A meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE
DELIVERY) will be held in the KESTREL ROOM, COUNTRYSIDE
CENTRE, HINCHINGBROOKE COUNTRY PARK, BRAMPTON
ROAD, HUNTINGDON, PE29 6DB on TUESDAY, 7 APRIL 2009 at
7:00 PM and you are requested to attend for the transaction of the
following business:-

APOLOGIES
MINUTES (Pages 1-4)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the
Panel held on 3™ March 2009.

2 Minutes.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation to
any Agenda Item. Please see Notes 1 and 2 overleaf.

2 Minutes.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN (Pages 5 -
10)

A copy of the current Forward Plan, which was published on 16™
March 2009, is attached. Members are invited to note the Plan and to
comment as appropriate on any items contained therein.

10 Minutes.

REVIEW OF THE HOME-LINK SCHEME AND THE COUNCIL'S
LETTINGS POLICY (Pages 11 - 54)

To consider a report by the Head of Housing Services detailing the
outcome of a review of the Home-Link Scheme and the Council’s
Lettings Policy.

20 Minutes.

SPORTS FACILITIES STRATEGY (Pages 55 -112)

To receive a report by the Head of Environmental and Community
Health Services on the Sports Facilities Strategy.

20 Minutes.

Contact
(01480)

Miss H Ali
388006

R Reeves
388003

S Plant / J Collen
388240/ 388220

Ms J Peadon /Dr S
Lammin
388048 / 388280



10.

11.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS TO ST IVES TOWN CENTRE
(Pages 113 - 128)

To receive a report by the Head of Environmental Management on
the outcome of the consultation undertaken by the Council on the St
Ives Environmental Improvements Scheme.

20 Minutes.
RECYCLING

To receive a verbal update from the Head of Operations on the
outcome of recent negotiations concerning recycled materials.

15 Minutes.
REVIEW OF DEMOCRATIC STRUCTURE (Pages 129 - 238)

To consider a report by the Structure Review Working Group
detailing the findings of their review of the Council’'s democratic
structure.

20 Minutes.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH
ACT 2007 - IMPLICATIONS FOR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
(Pages 239 - 248)

To consider a report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services
outlining the implications for Overview and Scrutiny with regards to
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.

15 Minutes.

NHS CAMBRIDGESHIRE STRATEGIC PLAN 2009 - 2014 (Pages
249 - 256)

To receive and note details of a consultation being undertaken by
NHS Cambridgeshire on their Strategic Plan for 2009 — 2014. A copy
of the Executive Summary is appended hereto. The Panel is
requested to submit a response to the consultation by 29" May 2009.

A copy of the full document will be circulated electronically to Panel
Members in advance of the meeting.

10 Minutes.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE DELIVERY) -
PROGRESS (Pages 257 - 266)

To consider a report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services
on the Panel’s programme of studies.

10 Minutes.

P Jose / C Allen
388332/ 388380

R Ward
388635

R Reeves
388003

A Roberts
388015

Miss H Ali
388006



12. SCRUTINY (Pages 267 - 276)

To scrutinise decisions since the last meeting as set out in the
Decision Digest (TO FOLLOW) and to raise any other matters for
scrutiny that fall within the remit of the Panel.

5 Minutes.
Dated this 31 day of March 2009
Ea& N\hAg
-
Chief Executive
Notes
1. A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent

than other people in the District —

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, their
family or any person with whom they had a close association;

(b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any
company of which they are directors;

(c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of
securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or

(d)  the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests.

2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has
knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member’s personal
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of
the public interest.

Please contact Miss H Ali, Democratic Services Officer, Tel No: (01480) 388006 / e-mail:
Habbiba.Ali@huntsdc.gov.uk if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish to
tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information on any
decision taken by the Panel.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the
Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website —
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy).

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports
or would like a large text version or an audio version
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and
we will try to accommodate your needs.



This page is intentionally left blank



84.

85.

86.

87.

Agenda ltem 1

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
(SERVICE DELIVERY) held in the Wren Room, Countryside Centre,
Hinchingbrooke Country Park, Brampton Road, Huntingdon, PE29
6DB on Tuesday, 3 March 2009.

PRESENT: Councillor S J Criswell — Chairman.

Councillors J D Ablewhite, Mrs M Banerjee,
Mrs K E Cooper, J E Garner, P Godley,
Mrs P A Jordan, P G Mitchell, M F Shellens
and P K Ursell.

APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were
submitted on behalf of Councillors
Mrs J A Dew, J M Sadler, Ms M J Thomas
and J S Watt.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 3rd March 2009
were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor S J Criswell declared a personal interest in Minute No. 87
by virtue of his membership of Somersham Parish Council.

Councillor M F Shellens declared a personal interest in Minute No. 87
as Chairman of Brampton Parish Council.

Councillor P K Ursell declared a personal interest in Minute No. 87 by
virtue of his membership of St Neots Town Council.

Councillor Mrs M Banerjee declared a personal interest in Minute No.
91 by virtue of her membership of the Board of Directors of Luminus.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN

The Panel considered the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions (a
copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) which had been
prepared by the Leader of the Council for the period 1st March to 30th
June 2009. In so doing, the Panel were advised that items on the
Older Persons Housing Strategy Update, Lettings Policy Review,
Leisure Facilities Strategy and St Ilves Environmental Improvements
would be submitted to the Panel’s April meeting. In addition, it was
reported that all Members of the Council had received a copy of the
report on Capital Grant Aid Awards.

PROVISION OF LEISURE FACILITIES FOR YOUNG PEOPLE

Pursuant to Minute No. 08/62, the Panel received a report by the
Head of Operations (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book)



88.

containing information on the leisure facilities owned and maintained
by the District Council or where the Council had an involvement in
their maintenance. Having drawn the Panel’'s attention to the report’s
Appendix, Mr J Craig, the Service Development Manager, reported
that the information presented excluded those facilities under the
direct control of the District's Town and Parish Councils.

Having drawn attention to the efforts of independent community
groups in raising funds for youth facilities within villages, Councillor P
G Mitchell expressed the view that support should be provided by the
District Council to assist the groups with the ongoing revenue costs
associated with such facilities. In response, Mr Craig stressed the
importance of budgeting for revenue costs when planning for new
facilities.

In discussing the provision of funding through Section 106
agreements for the construction and maintenance of facilities,
Members drew attention to the resulting difference between towns
and villages in the availability of facilities. The view was expressed
that there should be more consistency in the provision of youth
facilities across the District. It was, therefore, agreed to establish a
Working Group to meet with the Executive Councillor for Operational
and Countryside Services to discuss the matter further. Whereupon, it
was

RESOLVED
(a) that the report now submitted be noted; and

(b) that a Working Group be established comprising
Councillors J D Ablewhite and P G Mitchell to
investigate the provision of leisure facilities, with a view
to making recommendations on achieving an even
distribution of youth facilities across the District and on
meeting the ongoing revenue costs associated with
such facilities.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING

The Panel considered a report by the Head of Policy and Strategic
Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) containing
details of the Council’s performance against its priority objectives in
the quarter to 31st December 2008.

Having endorsed the comments made by the Corporate Plan Working
Group (a copy of which is also appended in the Minute Book)
Members confirmed the Working Group’s request for a report on the
private housing retrofit project to be submitted to the Panel’'s June
meeting. In addition, it was suggested that a representative of the
Carbon Trust should be invited to attend a subsequent meeting, with
a view to examining the retrofit project’s principles in the context of
the Trust's work. It was further suggested that environmental
efficiency data should be compiled in order to determine the energy
efficiency levels of the homes before and after completion of the
refurbishment works. It was anticipated that the availability of such
data would encourage residents and developers to adopt energy
efficiency measures.



89.

90.

Members concurred with the Corporate Plan Working Group’s
recommendation that promotion of the disabled facilities available at
Sawtry Leisure Centre should be undertaken.

In terms of the key measure relating to the number of households
living in temporary accommodation, the Panel noted that the quarterly
target had been exceeded. However, it was reported that the
performance achieved represented an increase in the number of
households prevented from becoming homeless during the reporting
period. In that context, Members were reminded of the measures that
had been put in place to tackle homelessness within the District.

Finally, the Panel reiterated their concern at the issue raised in the
previous quarter’'s monitoring report regarding a potential risk should
the bid for funding to re-model Coneygear Court not be successful.
Having expressed overall satisfaction with the levels of performance
achieved in the year to date, the Panel

RESOLVED

(a) that the report be endorsed for submission to the
Cabinet; and

(b) that the Cabinet be formally notified of the Panel's
views on the contents of the report by the Head of
Policy and Strategic Services.

ADOPTION OF ROADS AND SEWERS

Pursuant to Minute No. 08/80, the Panel received and noted a report
by the Adoption of Roads and Sewers Working Group (a copy of
which is appended in the Minute Book) which provided a further
update on the investigations by the Working Group. The District
Council’'s Head of Legal and Estates had advised the Working Group
that, in his opinion, there were adequate legal provisions in existence
to ensure that the adoption of roads and sewers could be brought to
completion. Furthermore, Members were advised that the Head of
Legal and Estates had made enquiries with local Solicitors on
conveyancing practices and, as a result, had established that during
the purchasing process, purchasers and mortgage providers were
made fully aware of the status of the roads and sewers servicing
properties and of the associated financial liabilities should either not
have been adopted. A suggestion was endorsed that the Working
Group should undertake further work intended to ensure that all
solicitors operated to this standard.

Following further discussion, the Panel concluded that new legislation
to be introduced by the Government in 2010/11 would ensure that
sewers were adopted and that this would expedite the adoption of
roads.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE DELIVERY) -
STUDIES

The Panel considered a report by the Head of Administration (a copy
of which is appended in the Minute Book) which contained details of

3



91.

actions taken in response to recent discussions and decisions.
Updates were received on developments relating to the Panel’s final
report on grant aid and on the future governance of Hinchingbrooke
Hospital. With regard to the latter, the Panel were advised that the
Department of Health had approved the Strategic Health Authority’s
proposal but that formal approval had yet to be obtained from Her
Majesty’s Treasury.

SCRUTINY

In scrutinising the 92nd Edition of the digest of decisions taken by the
Cabinet and other Panels etc, Members raised the following queries:-

Review of Central Services Directorate — in response to a question
by Councillor J E Garner, the Panel were advised that the review
would result in savings of £273,000 being achieved over the next
three years.

New Accommodation — Building A — Options Review — Councillor
M F Shellens questioned whether a Section 106 agreement would be
sought in relation to the proposals for the site. Clarification of this
matter would be circulated electronically to Members.

Chairman



YN"ACB OpSUNY®SWEAH Ul[0)

ew-3

89688¢ 087710 ‘ISL

Z3¢ 623d sque)
uopbBununyH
Jaysayouewpos)
sjebon|g zz

S80IAI9G BpIsAluno) pue
[euoneisadQ 10} 0[|IoUNOD BAINDSXT - swefH ¥ O Jojjlpuno)

)N"AOD opsjuny@Ma( sejbnog

ew-3

18691 087710 ‘ISL

H36 8¢3d
uopbununyH

Aai9) piojbuiwsH
peoy JIspA &

84Nns197 40} 10|[IDUN0YD) BANOBXT - meq g @ Jojjiouno)d

Agenda ltem 3

3N"ACD OpPSIUNU®)|[IY2INYD UdY]

ew-3

01025€ 08710 ‘ISL

N9 613d
SI0ON 1S

uolxed s
peoy uopios LG

JauIge ay) 0} JOSIApY [e109dS - 142INYD [ Y Jojj1oUN0Y

YN"ACB OpSIUNY®)|[duyong 1818d

ew-3

¢aeyes L8v10 ‘I8l

aye 8¢3ad
shoglepn

Aepn sopuyyied
asnoH ssedwo)

uodsuels] pue
ABajeng Buiuue|d Joy Jo|[IoUNOD BAINDSXT - |louxong 3 7 d Jo|1ouno)

YN"ACB OpSIUNY®UOSAWIS S\

ew-3

91688¢€ 087710 ‘ISL

X9 6¢3d sque)d
uopbununyH
smopeaj\ Asjeynis
9s0|D 9yoAa( ¥

ABojouyoa] uonewioyu| pue
S92IAI9S JoW0}SNY 10} JO|[IDUNOYD BAIINDSXT
pue [1ouno) ay) Jo Jepea Ainda( - uosdwig |\ 7 Jojjiouno)

X

3N°"AOD opsjuny@saleg ue|

ew-3

0620€8 08710 ‘ISL

N6 823d uopBununy

uoyIH
pu3 YoInyd ¥

[IoUN0D 8y} Jo JepesT - sajeg 9 | Jojjlouno)

allysuopbuluny”
~—

-:SMOJ|0} SE SI Jaulige 8y} jo diysiaquisiy

600Z AInr L€ 03 6002 11dY | ‘poudd o4
6002 YyoIeN 91 :uonjedliqnd jo ajeq
sajeq 9 | 10]|I19Uno) Aq paitedaud

SNOISIOEA A3 40 NV1d QAVMYO4




}N°AoB-opsuny@sanasy Aoy |lews sBuipui4

yoddng aoinIeS 10 €0088€ 081710 ON |91 S99I1AISS [Blud) sladed dnoig - dnoug Bupopn
Aanijeg @o1M88 nyainyo M slaquia\ pue oljeJooWa( JO pesH ‘sanaay Aoy Bupjiopn snoinald 600Z 1Ay 2 jouIge) MBIADY 8INJoNJS
|sued Aunniog Joj[1ouno) uaye} aq Aq apew aq 0}
¥ MIIAIBAQ aAlNoaxXg pajoejuod aq ued a|gejieAy 0} UOISIJ9pP | uoljepuUaWIWOIAI uoIs193( 10}
jJueA’|ay JueAd|ay uolje}nsuo?n 13210 JUBA3|3I MOH sjuawinoo( ajeq Juoisioag J3peNoalgng

90088¢ 08¥10 duoyda|s} Jo JpdIBFES[SUONNS/0/A680903V939/-2496-0Var-0450
~8Z234D9¢/SaIAUOPIgN N AOD OpSIUNY MMM//.011] JB 81Npadoid Suoiiled s,|louno) ay) 8as ases|d apew ag AW SUOISIOBp 8AOJE 8U) IN0ge suolejuasalidal Moy JNOge UOoNBULIOjUl JO- ()
«xx PIBIOULE BI1B PIEMIO SNoIABId Byl Wol sebueyo juesliubis/suonippy (1) -:sejoN

uojjesjsiuiwpy Jo pesH
sanaay Aoy

*18011JO JUBAS|B. 8L} 0} PajoalIp 8] pinoys®
uoljejusWNoOp J0 uolew.lojul Buiioddns Jo Aljige|ieAe 81 UO O UOISIOBp 10} pa|ge) 8 O] Jajew Jo 108lgns ay) 0] se sauinbus Aue Alewig spew aq O] SI UOISIOap 8y} YdIym 0} uoieal ul Jepew
8y} UO Jayew uolsiosp 8y} 0} papiwgns aq o) Wodal |euly ay) Buuedald Joy s|gisuodsal aq [jim oym ueid SIYy) Ul UMOYS Jao1o JueAs|al ay) Bunoejuoo Ag paulelqo aq Aew a|ge|ieAR Sjuswnoop auy |

"opew aq 0} S| UoIsioap 8y} Uaym ayep ayj o} Joud shep | uey) Sso| Jou YN"A0BOpSjUNU@IoABL Us[eH :|lew-3 J0 80088E 0810
Uo 1921J0O S82IAIBS dljeloows(q Joluasg ‘JojAe| us|eH SJ)\ Bunoejuoo Ag os op Aew spew 8q 01 SI YdIym UOISIOap B JNoge Jayew UoIsioap 8y} 0} suoljeluasaidal ayew 0] saysim oym uosiad Auy

v_3.>OU.OUwHC3£@mh®UON_.wocw._wn_. Jlew-3 1908 /8V1L0 ‘ISl

JOg¢ 823d  uopbupuny
yes

aueT MOpES\ $§ JusWUOJIAUT pue
abeynon sponsAsuoH 8oUBUI JO} JO|[IOUNOD) BANOSXT - slafoy A 1 Jojouno)

}N"AOD™OPSIUNY@SPIoUASY yelogeq Jlew-3 G€688¢€ 08710 ‘191

0S9 /Z3d
SOA| 1S ylleaH oljand pue
KRepp eluiBaip 21 Buisnoy Joj Jojj1ounoy sANoaxd - splouksy D @ SJA Jojjiouno)

¥N"ACD OPSJUNY@PIESUEH MaIpUY :[IeW-3J ZV688E 0810 ‘1oL

NNZ 613d

SJOdN 1S
AingsauAg Aoljo4 pue

peoy uonod 8/ $821N0SaY J0} JO[|IOUNOD SAIINISXT - pJesueH V Jojjiouno)




3nAoB-opsjuny@sdiliiud uyey
lews 10 09Z88€ 08%10 ON 191

£00¢ sunf uyyL

Aaswey
‘ewaul) puels

yoddng aoinieS piesueH v Jebeuey Auadold pue sajeys3 ‘sdijjiyd yiey -jouiqe) oy uoday | 600z 1dv €2 jouiqe) | ay) - 0} Jusoelpy pue
JOOWXO
aouepinb Buiuue|d 3}N°AoB opsuny®@uiqold pleyory ‘asenbg As|deg
|ewuojul se uondope |lews 1o 0SH88E 0810 ON 191 juswnooQ suondo 10 1se3 Aawio4
yoddng aoin18S leuxong 3 1d 10} anoiddy Jebeuely Aoljod Buluue|q ‘uAqold pieyory pue senss| yelq | 600z 4dv €2 jouiqe)n pue| 1o} ue|d JB1SEN
}n°AoB-opsjuny®asorned sjuswanosdw|
- llews Zg€88¢ 08710 ON [91 Juswabeuep [ejusIuOdIAUL
Aanijeg @188 siaboy A | salled pajsalalu| |elUSWUOIIAUT JO peaH ‘8sor |ned "QUON | 600z Jdy €2 jouIgen SoA| 1S
N
3N A0B-opsuny@dJeys wiooepy juswaalby
- |lews 1L0€88E 08¥710 ON IS L S3JINISS uoneloge|jod
yoddng aoi1nI8g [leuxong 3 1d |euoneladQ jo Jojoauiq ‘dieys wjooey BuoN | 600z 1Ay €2 jouIgen ua{ jeals
slapjoysyels
Aay Jayjo }N°A0B-opsuNy®@UuAqold pleyory
Ujim uonejnsuod - [lews JO 0gy88E 08¥L0 'ON 9L Jied SpISIanry Jied SpISIanry
yoddng aoin1eS leuxong 3 1d Buimojjoy enoiddy Jebeuely Aoljog Buluue|q ‘uAqold pieyory Joj sjesodoid yeiq | 600z 4dv €2 jouiqe)n J0} sjesodold
whPNIS
yn°Aobropsuny®@welbu| ans)s wswdojanag
sjeued Aunnios [lews Jo 00188€ 08110 ON auysebpuqwed auyy
yoddng a9i1nI8g [leuxong 3 1d pue mainBAQ | 81 S8dIAles Buluue|d Jo pesH ‘welbu| aAslS "9UON | 600z Jdy €2 jouIge) - MaINY SSY 9yl
|sued Aunniog Joj[1ouno) uaye} aq Aq apew aq 0}
¥ MIIAIDAQ aAlINoaXg pajoejuod aq ued a|gejieAy 0} UOISIJ9pP | uoljepUdWIWOIAI uoIs193( 10}
jueA’|ay jueA’|ay uolje}nsuo?n 13210 JUBAI|AI MOH sjuawinodo(Q ajeq Juoisioag J35eNoalgng




}N°AoBopsuny®)|@g uowis
[lews 10 6088€ 08110 "ON I9L S3jus)

wxjuswdojanag
J0} sjesodold
- saJjua) ainsia

Aianijeg ao1n8s meagad a|geoijdde JoN ainsia ‘Jabeuey [BJBUSY) ‘[|]og UOWIS BUON | 600z Ae p1 JouIge) | SJO8N IS pue OA| 1S
3n°AoB-opsuny@®@uopead-or
uosdwig N [lews 10 84088E 081710 ON |91 Jabeuep ABarens ABarens
Aianijeg @o1n8g 71 puemeg g a swdojaaaq ainsia ‘uopead I S\ sallioed ainsie] | 600z 1Ay €2 jouIge) sal}jloe4 ainsia
‘uonjesedaud }N°AoBropsuny@®@dieys wiooen
ul sseooud [lews 1o L0£88E 081710 ON |81 S92IA8S
yoddng aoi1n18g [leuxong 3 1d uole}nsuon |euoneladQ jo Jojoaliq ‘dieys wjooepy BuoN | 600z Jdv €2 jouigen | uejdisisepy us jealn
Q
3N Aob-opsjuny®@uigold-pleyory suonejuasaiday Jo suondQ pauisjaid
uole}Nsuo) - [lews JO OEH88E 087710 ON |81 | Alewwng pue poday ue|d uonoy ealy
uoddng aoinIeS leudong 3 1d 10} anoiddy Jabeueyy Aojod Buluueld ‘uAgoid pieyory suondQ pue sanss| | 600z 1dy €2 juIqen 1S9\ uopbununy
3¥n°AoB-opsuny@sdijiiud yyey
- |lews (09¢88€ 08710 ON 9L SOA| 1S ‘pPEOY UOIXED
Hoddng 891n8S pJesueH v a|geoidde joN | Jabeuepy Auadold pue sajeis3 ‘sdijjiud yiem "9UON | 600z 4dv €2 BUIge) ‘SIUN [elUISNpuU| MaN
8002 1snbny 970
‘sanuoyiny Buisnoy
|e007 Joj 8oueping
10 8po) - sbuma
paseg a210y)
3N AoB-opsuny@usijjo) uor :UOI}BPOWWOIDY
sploukay - lews 0Zz88e 08%1L0 ON [91 Jobeuep 40 uonedo|y M3INDY
Aanijeg @o1nM8g oasIn $90In0say pue spasN Buisnoy ‘usjjo) uor :Aoljod sbume1 DaH | 600z v €2 jouIge) Aoljod sbuma
|sued Aunniog Joj[1ouno) uaye} aq Aq apew aq 0}
¥ MIIAIDAQ aAlINoaXg pajoejuod aq ued a|gejieAy 0} UOISIJ9pP | uoljepUdWIWOIAI uoIs193( 10}
jueA’|ay jueA’|ay uolje}nsuo?n 13210 JUBAI|AI MOH sjuawinodo(Q ajeq Juoisioag J35eNoalgng




3n°AoB-opsjuny@negies) aulio)

[lews 1o 6G138¢ 100¢
08%10 ON |81 sdiysiauued ¥ aduewlojad 10V SaiuNWwo) +x:)OV SanuNwwo)
Aanijeg @188 sajeg D | ‘g|doad Jo pesH Bunoy ‘pegles aulio SI\ a|geulelsng | 600z unr g| jouIge) a|geule}sng
NN°AoB-opsuny®@As|ewS puejfepn
dnoig [IBwS JO 2Z2088E uope|sibe «xxMBINDY Aolj0d
Hoddng 891n18g pJesueH v Bulesls [euaiu] 08%71L0 ON |81 Jouoijos ‘Asjjews puejhepn Aoljod Bunsix3 | 600z unr gL BUuIge) B9OUE|[ISAINS UBA0D
3N AoB-opsjuny@suo|qersuyD
[lews 10 89¢88¢ 08¥710 ON I9L xxxUBId
Kianijeg ao1n8s s1eboy A 1 J9pesT Wea] JUSWUOIIAUT ‘P{SUO|qel SUYD "QUON | 600Z unr gl Jouige) | juswabeuely uogqie)
«xUBld pue|bug
1seg 3N Aobropsjuny®uigold pleyory Aoljod JO 1seJ ul sig||aael ]
-05) 0} SJUBWIWOD [lews Jo QSH88E 08110 ON |91 Jajj@Ael] pue AsdAg pue saisdAg Jo Aoljod
uoddng aoinleg leuong 3 1d OQH anouddy Jabeueyy Ao1j04 Buluueld ‘uAgqoid pieyory uo |aued jo yoday | 600z unr gL jouiqen | o0y sebueyn waoaohn_nvu
dnoig Buuealg
Ajenb3 (Aanjaq }Nn°AoB-opsuNy®INoqs asino ssalboid wxSSaIB01d
201M88) Aunniog [lews 1o £e088¢ 08110 ue|d uonoy - Aoljod ue|d uonoy Aojlod
Kianljag 9o1nI9S piesueH vy pue MaIAIdAQ "'ON |91 49210 A21j10d ‘In0qgs 8sIN0T SIN Ajjenbg ajelodion | 600z unr gL juIqen Ajjenb3g sjelodion
«xxPUBIBUT JO }se]
ay} ul syuswabuelly
JUSWUIBAOL) [BOOT]
Jeuoibay Joj ainjn4
3n-A0B-opsjuny@mouieqiayiea ue| 1eUM - Y433 ue jo
[lews 1o £0088€ 08110 ON |91 S82IAI8S pu3 8yl juswnooQ
yoddng a9i1nI8g sajeg D | [BJ3U8D JO J0JoBIIq ‘MoJlegiayiea ue| "QUON | 600Z unr gl jouIge) uole}nsuo)
|sued Aunniog Joj[1ouno) uaye} aq Aq apew aq 0}
¥ MIIAIDAQ aAlINoaXg pajoejuod aq ued a|gejieAy 0} UOISIJ9pP | uoljepUdWIWOIAI uoIs193( 10}
jueA’|ay jueA’|ay uolje}nsuo?n 13210 JUBAI|AI MOH sjuawinodo(Q ajeq Juoisioag J35eNoalgng




}N°AoB opsuNy®)|eg uowis
[lews 1o 6%088€ 08%710 ON [81 s8)Qud

++xHOd8Y Bunojuop
aouewouad

Aanijeg @o1n88 maaga alnsia ‘Jabeuey [BJBUSY) ‘[|]og UOWIS "QUON 600Z INr 91 jouIge) - saJjua) ainsia
sJapio }N°A0B-opsuNy®@UuAqold pleyory q
ayj uo uopsod [lews 1o 0E88€ 081710 ON I9L suone)NSuo) |
yoddng 8o1neg leuyong 3 1d s,DQH @sJopu3] Jabeuey Aaljod Buluueld ‘uAgqoid pleyory "QUON | 600Z unr gl uIge) | siepiQ Aonels Ly
salpoq Alojnjels
pue 21gnd ay} juswales
UM UOI3e)NSuod Jsyoeley) pue
pamo||o} }N°A0B-opsuNy®@UuAqold pleyory sabueyn Alepunog
Buiney uondope oy - [lews Jo 0SH88E 087710 ON 9L swnooQq BaJyY UOIBAISSUOD
yoddng aoin1eS leuxong 3 1d sabueyd anoiddy Jebeuely Aoljog Buluue|q ‘uAqold pieyory uoneynsuo) yeiq | 600Z unr gL jouiqe) | weysiawog jdope o
juswnoo(q bBuluueld
}N°A0B-opsuNy®@UuAgqold pleyory Aejuswalddng
uone}nsuoy [lews 1o 0E88€ 081710 ON I9L sue|d juswdojarsq suonnguuoy
yoddng aoin1eS leuxong 3 1d 10} anoiddy Jebeuely Aoljod Buluue|q ‘uAgqold pieyory aliysuopbununy | 600z unr gL jouiqe)n Buiuue|d yeiq
|sued Aunniog Joj[1ouno) uaye} aq Aq apew aq 0}
¥ MIIAIDAQ aAlINoaXg pajoejuod aq ued a|gejieAy 0} UOISIJ9pP | uoljepUdWIWOIAI uoIs193( 10}
jueA’|ay jueA’|ay uolje}nsuo?n 13210 JUBAI|AI MOH sjuawinodo(Q ajeq Juoisioag J35eNoalgng




Agenda ltem 4

Overview & Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery) 7 April 2009
Cabinet 23 April 2009

Review of the Home-Link Scheme & the Council’s Lettings Policy
(Report by the Head of Housing Services)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1  In February 2008 the Council introduced a choice based lettings
scheme, branded Home-Link. This changed the way in which housing
association properties in the district were let, from a system where
officers allocated properties to households on the Housing Register
based on their areas of choice, to one where the applicant is able to
express an interest, or bid, for specific vacant properties. Through this
scheme properties available for letting are openly advertised so that
applicants on the Register are able to see what is available and, within
certain criteria, make choices as to what they would like to bid for.

1.2  The Home-link scheme was introduced in partnership with the six other
councils that form the Cambridge sub region and attracted funding from
central government to help with the set up costs of the scheme. Each
partner reviewed their individual Lettings Policies and agreed a
common priority system as part of the scheme so that Register
applicants across the sub region have their overall priority for housing
assessed in the same way. Cabinet approved the adoption of
Huntingdonshire’s new Lettings Policy in July 2007 and this was
introduced in February 2008 when the scheme went live. This
changed the priority assessment from a points based system to a
broader brush priority band system. All applicants on the Register are
now prioritised under this banding system.

1.3 At the time of agreeing the new Lettings Policy and approval to
implement the Home-Link scheme, Cabinet recommended it receive a
report on the progress of the Home-Link scheme within 12 months of
its implementation. The Home-link partnership has carried out a review
of the scheme over the last few months and this report highlights the
findings.

2. SCOPE OF THE REVIEW

21 The review considered Home-Link’s strategic and operational issues,
and involved consultation with housing association partners, statutory
and voluntary agencies, as well as customers of the scheme to gauge
their experiences and views. A detailed report on the review’s initial
findings and recommendations was considered by the Home-Link
Management Board on 6 March 2009. The Management Board

11



2.2

2.3

2.4

consists of chief housing officers of all the local authority partners as
well as representatives from the housing association partners. Steve
Plant is Huntingdonshire’s representative on this board. The areas
covered by the review and the issues raised included:

Performance Management Information. The Home-Link IT system
holds a great deal of information about the demand for social housing,
the circumstances of people applying for housing, and the letting of
council and housing association properties across the sub region. The
Management Board has requested that the reports produced from the
IT system be refined to produce a range of performance management
data and other information. This may then be used to inform the
development of the Home-Link scheme and also give councils
information that will be useful in delivering affordable housing on new
sites across the sub region.

Developing the Home-Link brand. The initial plan was to establish
the core function of the Home-Link scheme to let social rented
properties by advertising them to applicants on the Housing Register.
It was then hoped that the scheme would be extended to advertise low
cost home ownership properties, including key worker housing as well
as privately rented properties. This would then give households a
range of property tenures that they could consider to try and meet their
housing need. Having consulted with applicants on the Register
throughout the first year of operation, over 70% of respondents said
they would like to see privately rented housing advertised through
Home-Link. This piece of work is due to be progressed through a
project that the Cambridgeshire councils are currently involved in called
the Enhanced Housing Options programme. The partnership is also in
discussion with Key Homes East, the agent for delivering low cost
homeownership housing, as to how they may make use of Home-Link
to advertise their properties.

Accessing and understanding the Home-Link scheme. The
Home-Link partnership sent a questionnaire to 10% of the households
on the Housing Registers across the Cambridge sub region to ask their
views on the Home-Link scheme, a total of over 2,200 households.
Although only 364 responded this gave some interesting feedback:

e 79% of respondents understand how the scheme works.

o 73% report they have enough information to allow them to use the
scheme.

e 72% know where/how to obtain a copy of property magazine or find
out what properties are available.

e 46% knew they could subscribe to the property magazine for a fee.

e 18% of respondents state they have never bid because they have
difficulty in understanding or using the scheme.

12



2.5

2.6

e Of the 18% above who did not bid because of difficulties
understanding and using the scheme:

» 12% had difficulties accessing the scheme due to lack of
computer facilities, unable to get/afford magazine.

= 8% said they needed help with accessing the scheme.
= 5% were not aware of Home-Link.

What did respondents like most about the scheme?

e Top responses — Ease of use; transparency of the scheme;
choice — not only of property but the increase in geographical
area.

What did respondents like least about the scheme?

e Top responses — Not enough houses; complicated system; lack
of feedback; don'’t like the system; unfair process; band C & D
disadvantaged.

Overall rating of the scheme.
Good/Excellent — 40%
Average — 25%

Poor — 35%

Communications and raising awareness of the support available —
As some of the responses to the customer questionnaire above
indicate, even from a small sample of households on the Register, it
suggests there are still a significant number of people who do not fully
understand how the Home-Link scheme works and/or require help to
be able to access the scheme and bid for properties. This was one of
the main concerns raised at the time the scheme was launched and as
a result:

¢ A welcome pack is sent to everyone applying to the Register giving
details of how the scheme works and the ways in which they can
get information on the properties available and how they may bid for
properties.

e The agencies able to offer support to customers were trained on the
Home-Link scheme with many signing up to an ‘Access Strategy’
giving details of the type of support they may offer customers.

e Customer Contact and Call Centre staff within each council were
trained on Home-Link so that they can advise and help customers.

As it appears that some people may still not be able to use the Home-

Link system the Management Board has recommended that a
Communications Strategy be put together to make sure that the

13



2.7

2.8

2.9

3.1

information regarding Home-Link and the places that support can be
provided are publicised as widely as possible in order to help those
people who may require help. This would also include an on-going
training plan for other agencies to ensure they are kept up to date with
the scheme and are confident about advising their customers about the
scheme.

Lettings Policy issues. The review considered whether there were
any aspects of the Lettings Policies of each of the partners that
affected their ability to deliver their legal duties and strategic objectives
in relation to meeting their own local housing needs. This part of the
review was particularly important for two reasons:

e Ensuring that the relative weighting awarded to different housing
circumstances within the common priority system of the Home-Link
scheme (the banding system), did not restrict those in perceived
greatest need being prioritised for housing.

e Ensuring that the policies were legal and complied with the relevant
legislation.

Each partner felt that the banding system prioritised those households
in greatest need and generally only minor changes to wording in the
policy have been recommended. The only recommendation for change
to the banding system was that applicants who were homeless and
sleeping rough should have a higher priority than the band C priority
the policy awarded. The logic to this was that other applicants
awarded band C priority included people living in properties where they
had to share facilities, such as a bathroom and a kitchen. A person
without a roof over their head should therefore have a higher priority
and a recommendation was made that they be awarded a band B
priority. It is proposed that this Council adopts this recommendation.

Several choice based lettings schemes have faced legal challenge
relating to how they prioritise households on their Register. It is
sensible to review our policy in line with the rulings made in any of
these cases so that any necessary changes may be made. Changes
to policy would require formal adoption by Cabinet and so members will
be kept informed of any legal rulings that impact on the Council’s
Lettings Policy. This will be an on-going process as any legal
challenges and rulings emerge.

CONCLUSION

The Home-Link scheme has had a positive first year of operation and it
continues to have encouraging feedback in terms of its transparency
and ease of use, particularly amongst those applicants that use the
website as a means of finding vacant properties and placing bids. The
partnership recognises thought that it needs to continue to promote the
scheme widely and ensure that the most vulnerable households in

14



3.2

41

housing need are supported so that they can participate in the scheme.
This will include reviewing the Access Strategy and support voluntary
and statutory agencies provide their clients and ensuring that any gaps
in support provision are filled. This will be one of the major pieces of
work over the coming months.

It is felt that the Council’s Lettings Policy ensures that those
households in greatest need continue to receive priority for housing
and it has therefore only required minor amendments. The Policy will
however remain open for review in the light of changing local
circumstances and rulings on legal challenges against choice based
lettings schemes elsewhere in the country. Any changes will be
brought back to members as required.

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that Scrutiny Panel:

a) note the findings of the review of the scheme and the planned
enhancements to Home-Link;

b) support the proposal to Cabinet for the amendment to the Lettings
Policy for homeless rough sleepers; and

c) determine if there are any comments that the Panel would like
Cabinet to consider or note.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Choice Based Lettings & Lettings Policy report — Cabinet July 2007

Contact Steve Plant, Head Of Housing Services
Officers:

® 01480 288240

Jon Collen, Housing Needs & Resources Manager
® 01480 288220

15



This page is intentionally left blank

16



Huntingdonshire District Council

LETTINGS POLICY DOCUMENT

This document sets out how Huntingdonshire District
Council, in partnership with Housing Associations with
properties in the district, let their properties through the

“Cambridge Sub Regional Choice Based Lettings Scheme”
(Home-Link scheme)

April 2009



Contents page

Chapter Contents Page No.

Chapter 1 Introduction
¢ Introduction 4
e Objectives of the lettings policy 4
e Statement on choice 5
e Legal context S
e Equal opportunities and diversity 6
¢ Monitoring and reviewing of lettings policy 6

Chapter 2 Applying for housing
e How to apply for housing 7
e Date of registration 8
e Date in band 8
e Multiple applications 8
e Change of circumstances 9
e Applicant’s consent and declaration 9
e Data protection 9
e Application review 9
e Cancelling an application 9

Chapter 3 Eligibility to be accepted onto the housing register
e Eligibility categories 11
¢ Notifying an ineligible applicant 11
e Exclusions from the housing register 11
¢ Notifying applicants who are excluded due to 12

unacceptable behaviour

Chapter 4 Assessment of housing needs
e Legal background 13
e Advice and information 13
e Assessment of housing need 13
e Local connection criteria 13
¢ Housing needs bands 14
e Band A: Urgent need 14
e Band B: High need 15
e Band C: Medium need 17
e Band D: Adequately housed 18
e Low priority 19
e Intentionally worsening circumstances 20
e Financial resources 20
e Officer review of band A applicants 20

Chapter 5 Assessment information and criteria
e Transfer applicants 21
¢ Homeless applications 21
e Split families 21
¢ Bedroom requirement guidelines 22
e Staying contact with children 22
e Medical assessments 22
e Harassment and domestic violence 23
e Applicants subject to MAPPA arrangements 23

2
18




23

e Emergency housing status
e Direct Lets 23
e Direct lets to homeless applicants 24
e Applicants who require a specific size, type or 25
adapted property
e Sheltered housing 25
e Extra care homes 25
e Refusals of direct lets 26
e Area specific policies 26
Chapter 6 Reviews of decisions
e Statutory reviews 27
¢ Homeless reviews 28
e The Local Government Ombudsman 28
Chapter 7 Letting of accommodation
e Letting of accommodation 30
e Labelling property advertisements 30
e Bedroom requirements 31
e Short listing 32
e Formal offer of property 32
e Withdrawal of offers 32
e Refusing an offer of accommodation 33
¢ Allocations to staff, council members or their family 33
members
e Tenancy management outside the scope of the 33
lettings policy
Chapter 8 Confidentiality and access to information
e Applicants’ rights to information 34
e Data protection 34
e Requesting information 34
Appendixes | 1 Partner organisation list 35
2 Glossary of terms 36




1.1

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.1.3

1.1.4

1.2

Chapter 1
Introduction

This is the letting policy for Huntingdonshire District Council, (“HDC”)
and should be considered in conjunction with the Cambridge Sub-
regional Choice Based Lettings scheme (“CBL”), framework document,
which outlines how the CBL scheme will work. The Partnership

Organisations (“PO’s”) to the Sub-regional CBL scheme are:

Cambridge City Council

East Cambridgeshire District Council
Fenland District Council

Forest Heath District Council
Huntingdonshire District Council
South Cambridgeshire District Council
St Edmundsbury Borough Council

The CBL scheme and this lettings policy have been designed in
collaboration with the sub regional POs listed above, with the aim of
having as much consistency in the letting of social housing as is
possible in a very diverse sub-region. The lettings policy aims to
ensure that all people seeking social housing in Huntingdonshire are
able to exercise choice in deciding where they wish to live and in the
type of property they would prefer.

The policy enables HDC to consider the individual needs of its
applicants whilst making best use of the scarce resource of housing
stock. The policy sets out:

How to apply for housing

Who is eligible to be accepted onto the housing register
Who is not eligible to be accepted onto the housing register
How priority for housing applicants will be given

What the decision making processes are

How homes will be let

You may view the CBL framework document and this lettings policy, at
www.huntsdc.gov.uk, or request a copy from any of the PO’s offices.
(See appendix 1)

Objectives of the lettings policy

e To meet the legal requirements for the allocation of social housing
as set out in the Housing Act (1996) as amended by the
Homelessness Act (2002)

e To assist applicants in the highest assessed need

e To let properties in a fair and transparent way and provide a
consistent lettings process



1.3

1.3.1

1.3.2

1.4

1.4.1

1.4.2

e To make best use of housing stock

e To ensure that applicants are not unlawfully discriminated against,
whether directly or indirectly

e To support vulnerable applicants

e To provide increased choice and information to applicants

e To provide information and feedback on homes that are let through
the CBL scheme

e To improve mobility across the sub-region

e To promote social inclusion and help achieve sustainable
communities

Statement on choice

HDC is fully committed to enabling applicants to play a more active role
in choosing where they live, whilst continuing to house those in the
greatest need in Huntingdonshire.

The CBL scheme will enable applicants from Huntingdonshire to have
access to a percentage of available homes from all the PO’s across the
sub region.

Legal context

All applicants for housing will be placed in the appropriate housing
needs band, based on an assessment of their household’s needs. This
is to ensure homes are let to those in the highest assessed need and
ensures that the Council meets its legal obligations as set out in the
Housing Act (1996) as amended by Homelessness Act (2002).

The law states that there are five groups of applicants where
reasonable preference must be considered:

e People who are homeless (within the meaning of Part VIl (7) of the
Housing Act 1996, as amended by the Homelessness Act 2002.)

e People who are owed a duty by any local housing authority under
section 190(2), 193(2), or 195(2) of the 1996 Act (or under section
65(2) or 68(2) of the Housing Act 1985) or who are occupying
accommodation secured by any such authority under section 192(3)

e People occupying unsanitary or overcrowded housing or otherwise
living in unsatisfactory housing conditions

e People who need to move on medical or welfare grounds (including
grounds relating to a disability); and

e People who need to move to a particular locality in the district of the
authority, where failure to meet that need would cause hardship (to
themselves or to others)



1.4.3

1.4.4

1.5

1.5.1

1.6

1.6.1

The Lettings Policy has been designed to ensure applicants who fall
into the above reasonable preference categories will be awarded
reasonable preference.

Every application received by HDC will be considered according to the
facts unique to that application as HDC recognises that every
applicant’s situation is different. Applications will be considered on an
individual basis and individual circumstances will be taken into account.
However, all lettings will be made in accordance with this lettings policy

Equal opportunities and diversity

The lettings policy will be responsive, accessible and sensitive to the
needs of all. HDC will not tolerate prejudice and unlawful
discrimination and we will actively promote equality.

Monitoring and reviewing the lettings policy

HDC will monitor the operation of the lettings policy by:

e Regularly reviewing the policy to ensure that the policy meets its
stated objectives and complies with legislative changes.



2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

213

214

215

2.1.6

Chapter 2
Applying for housing

How to apply for housing

Anyone can apply to HDC for housing. However, not everyone will be
eligible for housing. HDC will not register people who are not eligible to
be housed. Evidence of eligibility may be required to complete
registration. (See chapter 3) Applicants are advised that due to a high
demand for available housing in Huntingdonshire, not everyone who is
eligible to be considered for housing is guaranteed housing from the
register

To apply to go on the housing register, applicants are required to
complete a housing application form. This can be completed on-line at
www.home-link.org.uk or by requesting a paper form from any of the
Home-Link partners offices. Paper forms should be returned to
Huntingdonshire District Council, Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street,
Huntingdon, PE29 3TN or any of the POs offices as detailed in
appendix 1.

An applicant may include anyone on their application who may
reasonably be expected to live with them as part of their household.

Where more than one eligible applicant wishes to have a shared
application they will be known as joint applicants. Although siblings
and friends may jointly apply to the register, due to the level of demand
for family sized accommodation from family households, they will not
be prioritised for an offer of this size of accommodation ahead of
families.

On receipt of the application form HDC will assess the form and may
request additional information and supporting evidence so that the
applicant’s eligibility and housing need can be confirmed. HDC will
verify the information provided which may include inviting the applicant
for an interview or visiting them at home.

After assessment HDC will write to applicants to inform them:

e Whether the applicant is eligible for housing and if so:

e Their unique reference number, which allows them to bid for homes
through the CBL Scheme

e The Housing Needs Band in which the application has been placed

e The date that the application was placed in the band (the “date in
band”)

e The size of property for which the applicant is likely to be able to bid

e How decisions may be reviewed



2.2

2.2.1

2.3

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.4

241

2.5

2.5.1

Date of registration

The registration date of an application form will be the date the housing
application form is received at the office of HDC, or any of the POs. If
the form is completed over the Internet the date the form is received
electronically is the date of registration.

Date in band

The principle of the policy is that normally no applicant should overtake
existing applicants in a band. Therefore applicants will be placed within
a band in date order.

¢ New applications: the date in band will be the same as the
applicant’s date of registration.

e Change of circumstances which results in a higher band
assessment: the date in band will be the date the applicant
provides evidence of the change of circumstances leading to the
award of a higher priority band.

When applicants move down bands due to a change in their
circumstances the following applies:

¢ Returning to a band that they were previously placed in
(whether this is a higher or lower band): the date in band reverts
to the date that applied when the applicant was previously in that
band.

¢ Moving into a lower band they have not previously been placed
in: the date in band will be the date that the application was first
placed into a higher band. In most circumstances this is likely to be
their date of registration.

Multiple applications

An applicant can have only one active application as a main applicant
on the housing register at any time.

Change of circumstances

Where an applicant registered with HDC has a change in their
circumstances they must promptly inform HDC. Applicants can obtain a
change of circumstances form from any PO, but this must then be sent
to the PO where the original application was made. Change of
circumstances received by HDC will be assessed based on the new
circumstances. Examples of change of circumstances are detailed
below, although this list is not exhaustive.

e Change of address
e People joining or leaving the household

8
24



2.6

2.6.1

26.2

2.7

271

2.8

2.8.1

2.9

2.9.1

e Pregnancy/birth of a child

e Relationship breakdown

e Change to the medical circumstances of anyone included on the
application

e Death of a household member

e Death of a joint applicant

e Change of income and/or capital

Applicant’s consent and declaration

When an applicant applies for housing, they will be required to sign a

declaration to confirm that:

e The information they have provided is true, accurate and complete

e They will promptly inform HDC of any change in circumstances

e They understand that information will be shared with all the POs

e They consent to HDC making enquiries of any relevant persons to
confirm the information on the application form is correct

e They consent to the release of any relevant information either to
HDC held by third parties, or by HDC to third parties

HDC may take legal action against applicants who withhold or provide
false information regarding their housing application. Where an
applicant has been let a property as a result of providing false
information, their landlord may take court action to obtain possession of
the property.

Data protection
HDC policy on Data Protection is available on request.
Application review

When an applicant has not bid for any available properties for one year,
we will normally write to them to see if they still wish to be on the
housing register. If there is no response within the required time limit,
(28 days from the letter being sent) the application will be cancelled.
We will write to the applicant to notify them of this. If an applicant
contacts HDC within 28 days of their application being cancelled and
indicates that they still want to be considered for housing the
application will be reinstated from their last applicable date in band (see
section 2.3 above)

Cancelling an application

An application will be cancelled from the housing register in the
following circumstances:

e At the applicant’s request
¢ |f the applicant becomes ineligible for housing (see chapter 3)



292

293

e When the applicant has been housed through the Lettings Policy

e When a tenant completes a mutual exchange

e Where an applicant does not maintain their application through the
review process, or where they move and do not provide a contact
address

e Where the applicant has died

When an application is cancelled, we will write to the applicant or their
representative to notify them. Where an applicant has been highlighted
as vulnerable, HDC will contact the applicant to check their
circumstances before cancelling the application. Any applicant whose
application has been cancelled has the right to ask for a review of the
decision, (see chapter 6)

Where an applicant wishes to re-join the housing register at a later date
their new date of registration will be the date they re-apply.

10
26



3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.2

3.2.1

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

3.3.4

Chapter 3
Eligibility to be accepted onto the housing register
Eligibility categories

Under the Housing Act (1996), local authorities must consider whether
applicants are eligible for housing assistance. This relates to some
people who may have been living abroad or who do not have
permanent permission to remain in the UK.

HDC cannot, by law, allocate housing accommodation to anyone who
is subject to immigration control within the meaning of the Asylum and
Immigration Act (1996), unless they fall within a class exempted from

this restriction by Government regulations.

In addition, HDC cannot allocate housing accommodation to other
classes of persons from abroad if, by law, Government regulations
dictate we cannot.

Notifying an ineligible applicant

Applications whose immigration status makes them ineligible to be
considered on the register will be notified in writing of the decision and
the reason for the decision. If an applicant is accepted onto the
register, but subsequently becomes ineligible, their housing application
will be cancelled and the applicant notified. Applicants found to be
ineligible have a right to ask for a review of the decision (see chapter
6).

Exclusions from the housing register

HDC may exclude someone from the register if it considers it
proportionate and reasonable to do so as a result of unacceptable
behaviour.

Unacceptable behaviour is defined as behaviour which would, if the
person was either a secure tenant or a member of a secure tenant’s
household, entitle a landlord to a possession order under any grounds
of grounds 1 to 7 of the Housing Act 1985 schedule 2.

Unacceptable behaviour can include tenancy related debt or other
breach of tenancy conditions.

When considering whether to exclude an applicant from the register
HDC will consider when the unacceptable behaviour took place, the
length of time that has elapsed since and whether there has been any
change in circumstances which would show that the applicant had
amended their behaviour so that they are considered suitable to
become a tenant.

11
27



3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

Notifying applicants who are excluded due to unacceptable
behaviour

All applicants who are excluded due to unacceptable behaviour, will be
informed of this decision in writing and how they can become eligible,
for example, by agreeing an arrangement to make payments towards
rent arrears and adhering to this, or by the applicant showing that the
circumstances or behaviour that made them unsuitable to be a tenant,
has changed.

If an applicant is accepted onto the register, but subsequently becomes
ineligible, due to unacceptable behaviour, their housing application will
be removed and the applicant will be notified.

Applicants found to be ineligible due to unacceptable behaviour have a
right to ask for a review of the decision (see chapter 6).

12
28



4.1

411

4.2

4.2.1

4.3

4.3.1

4.4

4.4.1

442

443

Chapter 4
Assessment of housing need
Legal background

All applicants will be placed in a housing needs band following an
assessment of their household’s needs. This is to ensure that HDC
meet their legal obligations as set out in the Housing Act 1996 as
amended by the Homelessness Act 2002.

Advice and information

HDC will ensure that advice and information on how to apply for
housing in Huntingdonshire is available free of charge to everyone. If
applicants are likely to have difficulty in making an application without
assistance, then any necessary assistance they require will be made
available by the council.

Assessment of housing need

Assessments of housing needs are based on an applicant’s current
housing circumstances. These assessments are made by housing
officers of HDC.

Local connection criteria

To ensure local housing needs are met, 90% of properties advertised
through the CBL scheme will be labelled as available to applicants with
a local connection to HDC. 10% of advertised properties will be open
to bidding from applicants with a local connection to any authority in the
Cambridge Sub-region. 25% of new growth homes will be made
available for cross boundary mobility. The relevant local connection
requirement will be clearly labelled on the property advertisement.

The housing register is open to all customers who are eligible for
housing even if they do not have a connection to HDC. They are able
to express interest in advertised homes, but usually the property will be
labelled as available to a customer with a local connection to HDC or
the Sub region. If there is no local connection criteria required for the
property, this will be stated in the property advert.

Having a local connection with Huntingdonshire means that one of the
following conditions must apply:

e The applicant works in the local authority area for sixteen hours or
more per week

e The applicant has lived in the local authority area for at least 6 of
the last 12 months, or 3 of the last 5 years

13
29



e The applicant previously lived in the local authority area for 5 or
more years

e The applicant has family members who are resident in the local
authority area. Family members are defined as parents, children or
brothers or sisters who have been resident in the local authority for
a period of 5 years or longer. Other close family ties will be
considered on a case by case basis

e There are special circumstances which HDC considers give rise to
a local connection

4.4.4 When applying for a sub-regionally advertised property a local

4.5

4.5.1

4.6

connection to any of the POs will enable applicants to bid for it.
Housing needs bands

Housing need is assessed and applicants will be placed in one of the
following four bands in date order. Applicants placed in band A will
have the highest assessed need, band D the lowest. When an applicant
is placed in a housing needs band the same level of priority will apply with all
PQO’s in the sub-region.

Band A: Urgent Need
Applicants with the following circumstances will be placed into band A:
a) Urgent transfer

Where a housing association tenant living in Huntingdonshire or a PO
tenant needs to move urgently because of circumstances that could
include:

e Major repairs are required on the property in which they live and
which cannot be undertaken with the tenant living in the property

e The property is being demolished

e Urgent social need to move

b) Statutorily overcrowded

Applicants who have been assessed as being overcrowded as defined
in Part X (10) of the Housing Act 1985. An Environmental Health
Officer will carry out this assessment.

c) Current supported housing resident

Applicants leaving Social Services care, or other supported
accommodation, and are ready to move to a permanent home of their
own. This will be subject to the council, Social Services and the
landlord of the supported accommodation agreeing that the applicant is
ready to move to their own home. If the applicant needs an on going
support package to be able to live independently confirmation that this

14

30



4.8

will be put in place will also be required from the proposed support
provider.

d) Urgent health and safety risk

Applicants whose current accommodation has been assessed by HDC
or a PO as posing an urgent health and safety risk. This will apply
where the assessment has classified the accommodation as unsafe, or
where there is a risk of imminent harm as identified in the assessment,
which cannot be remedied in a reasonable time and where the health
and safety risk has not been caused intentionally by the applicant or a
member of the applicant’s household.

e) Urgent medical need

An assessment of medical need will be made by a medical professional
or senior officer, using sub-regionally agreed criteria for assessment.

Urgent medical need priority will be awarded when an applicant’s
current housing conditions have been assessed as having a major
adverse effect on the medical condition or disability of the applicant or
a member of their household.

f) Homeless households (Full homelessness duty owed under
s.193 (2) of the Housing Act 1996 as amended by the
Homelessness Act 2002)

Means where an applicant is not homeless intentionally or threatened
with homelessness intentionally, is eligible for assistance and has a
priority need for accommodation, and HDC or a PO has accepted a
duty under s193 (2) of the Housing Act 1996 as amended by the
Homelessness Act 2002 (referred to as the full homelessness duty).
g) Urgent multiple needs

Means where an applicant is assessed as having two or more band B
needs. This may include an application where two household
members have the same assessed need. i.e. two high medical needs.

For multiple needs in band A please see emergency housing status
(see chapter 5)

Band B: High Need
Applicants with the following circumstances will be placed into Band B:
a) High health and safety risk

Means applicants whose current accommodation has been assessed
by HDC or a PO as posing a high health and safety risk to them or

15
31



members of their household. This will apply where the assessment has
identified that the applicant is living in a property, the condition of which
places them or members of their household at a high risk of harm as
identified in the assessment, which cannot be remedied in a
reasonable time and where the health and safety risk has not been
caused intentionally by the applicant or a member of the applicant’s
household.

b) High medical need

An assessment of medical need will be made by a medical professional
or senior officer, using a sub-regionally agreed criteria for assessment.

High medical need priority will be awarded where an applicant’s current
housing conditions have been assessed as having a significant
adverse effect on the medical condition or disability of the applicant or
member of their household and this will be improved by alternative
accommodation.

c) Victims of harassment, violence or abuse

Where HDC or a PO has investigated and identified that the applicant
or a member of their household is being subjected to harassment or
other conduct causing alarm and distress that will be improved by a
move to alternative accommodation. Harassment might be, but is not
limited to, harassment due to, race, gender, sexual orientation, mental
health, physical disability, learning disability, religion, domestic abuse
or harassment by a former partner or associated persons.

HDC will offer advice and support to assist the applicant in identifying
possible ways to resolve the situation.

d) Lacking two bedrooms

Means the household is assessed as lacking two bedrooms based on
the bedroom calculation in chapter 5,.

e) Under-occupancy by two or more bedrooms or release of
adapted property

Means where an existing social housing tenant living in the sub region
is living in a property which:

e Has two bedrooms more than are required by the household

e Where a property has been adapted and the adaptations are
no longer required. For example if the person requiring the
adaptations has moved or died.

16
32



49

f) Homelessness prevention (prior to homelessness decision
being made)

Where an applicant is threatened with homelessness within a period of
more than 28 days, HDC will work with the applicant to try and prevent
their homelessness. Those applicants, who appear likely to have a
priority need in the event of a homelessness application, will be placed
in band B whilst the prevention measures are being pursued. Existing
housing register applicants within band A will retain their band A status.

Where homelessness prevention has not been possible and an
applicant remains threatened with homelessness within the next 28
days, they may choose to make a homeless application which will be
assessed under part 7 of the Housing Act 1996 as amended by the
Homelessness Act 2002.

g) Sleeping Rough

Means where it is confirmed that an applicant is sleeping rough and
has no other accommodation available to them. The council will verify
that an applicant is sleeping rough before awarding this priority. Rough
sleeping priority will not be awarded when accommodation is available
to the applicant, including a placement at a direct access hostel, but the
applicant chooses not to take up this offer of accommodation.

h) Multiple needs

Means where an applicant is assessed as having three or more band C
needs. This may include an application where more than two
household members have the same assessed need eg. three medical
needs.

Band C: Medium Need
Applicants with the following circumstances will be placed into band C:
a) Medium medical need

An assessment of medical need will be made by a medical professional
or senior officer, using a sub-regionally agreed criteria for assessment.

Medium medical need will be awarded where an applicant’s current

accommodation is having a minimal effect on the medical condition or
disability of the applicant or member of their household, but a move to
different accommodation would be likely to improve their quality of life.

b) Lacking one bedroom

Means the household is assessed as lacking one bedrooms based on
the bedroom calculation in chapter 5,.

17

33



c) Under-occupancy by one bedroom.

Means where an existing social housing tenant living in the sub region
lives in a property which has one bedroom more than is required by the
household.

d) Need to move for social reasons

Means where HDC or a PO has assessed the applicant’s need to move
for social reasons.

For example, where it has been confirmed that an applicant:

¢ Needs to move to or within an area of the sub region to give or
receive support, and a proven level of support is required and can
be given

e Has found employment in the Huntingdonshire area and needs to
move closer to work, or will otherwise lose their employment

e Has staying contact with a child/children and is living in
accommodation where the child/children are not allowed to stay
overnight

¢ s living in a first floor or above property and has children under 10
years of age as part of their household, or is more than 24 weeks
pregnant with their first child.

e) Housing conditions.

Means where the applicant/s either lack or share one or more of these
facilities with persons, who are not members of their household.
Facilities may include:

e Aliving room

e Kitchen

e Bathroom

f) Other homelessness

Applicants who are homelessness or threatened with homelessness and are:

¢ Intentionally homeless

e Homeless or threatened with homelessness but not in priority need

e Owed a main homelessness duty by a local authority that is not a PO in
the sub-region

410 Band D: Low Need
Any applicant who does not meet any of the criteria in bands A, B and

C will be assessed as having a low level of housing need and their
application will be placed in band D.

18
34



4.11 Low priority

4.11.1 In certain circumstances, applicants will be accepted onto the housing
register, but their application will be considered as low priority as a
result of behaviour or circumstances that affects their suitability to be a
tenant. In these circumstances their application will be placed in a
housing needs band but they will not be actively considered for an offer
of a tenancy and they will not be able to express interest in available
properties. Their application will remain in low priority until the
applicant has shown that the circumstances or behaviour has changed
so that they are considered suitable to be a tenant.

4.11.2 The following categories will be considered as low priority:

e Applicants with rent arrears, former rent arrears or other housing-
related charges or debts, where these are not sufficiently high to
exclude the applicant from the register (see section 3.3). Other
than in exceptional circumstances, an applicant with outstanding
rent arrears, former rent arrears or other housing-related debts will
not be considered for an offer of a tenancy or eligible to bid for
housing until they have shown a regular repayment record.

e Applicants guilty of anti social behaviour where this is not
sufficiently severe to exclude them from the register (see section
3.3).

4.11.3 All applicants who are considered low priority will be informed of this
decision in writing, and how their application could be re-assessed, for
example, by agreeing and keeping to an arrangement to make
payments towards rent arrears, or by the applicant satisfying the
council that the circumstances or behaviour that made them unsuitable
to be a tenant has changed.

4.11.4 HDC expects applicants to clear any housing related debts owed to any
registered social landlord before an offer of a tenancy is made, where it
is clearly within their means to do this (for example where the debt is
relatively low and the applicant has a reasonable disposable income or
has sufficient savings available).

4.11.5 When a financial assessment shows that the debt cannot be cleared
immediately then a realistic and affordable repayment arrangement
should be agreed to clear the debt. The applicant may become eligible
to bid for property as long as they have made regular payments in line
with the agreement they have made.

4.11.6 Applicants found to be low priority have a right to ask for a review of the
decision (see chapter 6). A designated senior officer will undertake the
review.

19
35



412 Intentionally worsening housing circumstances

4.12.1 If, in the reasonable opinion of a PO, an applicant has intentionally
worsened their housing situation in circumstances to deliberately
improve their housing priority, their housing need will be assessed on
the basis of their previous accommodation.

4.12.2 Applicants found to have intentionally worsened their circumstances
have a right to ask for a review of the decision (see chapter 6).

4.12.3 All applicants deemed to have intentionally worsened their
circumstances will have their application reviewed on the anniversary
of the decision, unless there is a change in their circumstances in the
meantime.

4.13 Financial resources

4.13.1 All eligible applicants are entitled to apply for housing regardless of
income levels. However if an applicant has an income and/or capital,
which will enable them to resolve their own housing need through other
tenures they will not receive any preference for rented housing and will
be given a low priority.

This assessment will be based on the following

e The total income of the applicant/partner

¢ Any capital available to the applicant/partner

e Average property prices in the area for the type of
accommodation needed by the household

e The ability of the applicant/partner to meet the required
mortgage repayments based on a realistic assessment of their
financial position and commitments.

4.14 Officer review for band A applicants

4.14.1 Where an applicant has held band A status for three months from their
applicable date in band, HDC will carry out a review of their
circumstances. This will result in either:

e Addirect let — usually for statutorily homeless applicants living in
temporary accommodation

e Periority being maintained

e Moving into a lower priority band if the circumstances under which
they were placed in band A no longer apply

20

36



5.1

5.1.1

5.2

5.21

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

5.3.4

5.3.5

5.3.6

5.4

5.4.1

Chapter 5
Assessment information and criteria

The following section outlines criteria taken into account when
considering assessments of housing need.

Transfer applicants

Transfer applicants are those applicants who are tenants of a housing
association property in the Huntingdonshire area who wish to move to
alternative accommodation.

Homeless applications

Applicants who are already on the housing register will remain in their
existing housing needs band whilst a homeless assessment is carried
out (unless the criteria in paragraph 5.3.3 below applies).

When a decision has been made by HDC that an applicant is owed a
full homelessness duty under s.193 (2) of the Housing Act 1996 (as
amended) their application will be placed in band A. (See chapter 4
section 4.7.1 b)

Where a person is threatened with homelessness within a period of
more than 28 days, the Council will work with the applicant to try and
prevent their homelessness. Those persons, who would appear likely
to have a priority need in the event of a homelessness application, will
be placed in band B whilst the prevention measures are being pursued.

A person who is threatened with homelessness may have an existing
housing register application. Applicants already in band A will retain
their existing band A status whilst homelessness prevention measures
are pursued.

An applicant who is statutorily homeless or threatened with
homelessness but deemed not to have a priority need will be placed in
band C (unless other circumstances are such that they are eligible for
placement within a different band).

Applicants who have been assessed as being in priority need but are
intentionally homeless will have their housing application assessed on
their current accommodation, if an applicant has intentionally worsened
their circumstances the housing needs assessment will take this into
account. (See section 4.12).

Split families

Where an application is made by family members who it would be
reasonable to expect them to live together but they are unable to do so,

21
37



the council will assess their particular circumstances to consider the
best way of addressing their housing needs.

5.5 Bedroom requirement guidelines

5.5.1 The following guidelines will be used when assessing the overcrowding

in an applicant’s own home:

e Couples require one double bedroom

e Single applicants require one bedroom

e Two children of the same sex under 10 years old require one
double bedroom

e Three children share a bedroom because they have no other option
they will be assessed as lacking one bedroom

e Two children of the opposite sex, where the oldest child is aged 6
years or over require two bedrooms

e Two children of the same sex over 10 years old require two
bedrooms

e A pregnant woman expecting her first child requires two bedrooms
after 24 weeks pregnant

e Bedrooms below 50 square feet in size will not be included as a
room in bedroom and overcrowding calculations

e Where a property has two reception rooms one of these will be
counted as a bedroom in the bedroom and overcrowding
calculations

5.6 Staying contact with children

5.6.1 A child living between parents at separate addresses will only be
considered as having one main home. An assessment will be made by
the council as to which parent’s property is considered as the child’s
main home. If the council considers that an applicant does not provide
the child with his or her main home then the child will not be considered
as part of the register application. This means that the child will not be
considered as part of the bedroom and overcrowding calculations for
that applicant.

5.7 Medical assessments

5.7.1 Medical assessments will be carried out for any applicants who believe
that their medical condition or disability is affected by their current
accommodation. The applicant will be required to fill in a self-
assessment medical form, detailing the effect that their current
accommodation has on their medical condition or disability. These
forms will be assessed and where appropriate referred to a medical
professional for their opinion of how the medical condition is affected by
the applicant’s housing circumstances.

22

38



5.8 Harassment and domestic violence

5.8.1 Where the applicant is a victim of harassment, domestic violence or
anti-social behaviour, HDC will offer advice and support to assist
applicants in identifying possible ways of resolving their situation.

5.9 Applicant subject to Multi Agency Public Protection
arrangements, (MAPPA)

5.9.1 Where an applicant is subject to Multi Agency Public Protection
(MAPP) arrangements, HDC will liaise with the panel to ensure an
appropriate housing solution to meet the needs of the applicant and the
community as a whole.

5.10 Emergency housing status

5.10.1 An emergency housing status may be awarded to applicants in
exceptional circumstances, where remaining in their current
accommodation may cause risk of death or serious injury, or where an
applicant has been assessed as having multiple needs that fall within
band A. An applicant with emergency housing status who bids for a
home will be considered as a priority above all other applicants in any
other band.

5.11 Direct lets

5.11.1 Most properties will be advertised through the CBL scheme. However
in certain circumstances some properties may be let directly to
applicants. Where an applicant is identified as requiring a direct let the
case will be referred to a senior officer for approval. The list below
gives some examples of where this may happen.

¢ Where the council has accepted a full homelessness duty towards a
household but the household has not found suitable
accommodation during a period of choice through the CBL scheme.

e Where an applicant and their household require a specific size, type
or adapted property and the applicant has not been able to find
suitable accommodation through the CBL scheme

e Where an existing social housing tenant is required to move to
make the best use of stock, and they have not been successful in
finding a suitable property through the CBL scheme

5.11.2 Information as to which properties have been allocated though direct
lets will be made available though the CBL feedback mechanism.

5.11.3 Direct lets will be made on the basis of a suitable property becoming
available. Where a property becomes available that is suitable for
more than one applicant with a direct let status, the date applicants

23

39



were awarded a direct let status will be used as a deciding factor in
deciding to whom the property will be let.

5.12 Direct lets to homeless applicants

5.12.1 Homeless applicants who are owed a full homelessness duty by HDC
(under s.193 (2) of the Housing Act 1996 as amended by the
Homelessness Act 2002), will be placed in band A and will be able to
bid for properties via the CBL scheme. Their date in band will be the
date they originally applied to the council as homeless.

5.12.2 Where homeless applicants in band A have not been successful in
bidding for properties within 3 months of their date in band, HDC
reserves the right to make a direct let of a property under the council’s
homelessness policy. The decision to make a direct let will depend on
the extent to which homeless applicants have had the opportunity to
bid for a property during the initial 3 month period of the full duty being
accepted.

5.12.3 Where a homeless applicant bids for a property within the initial 3
month period of being owed the full homelessness duty, is offered the
tenancy and subsequently refuses the offer, their application will
remain within the same housing band and the s.193 (2) duty under the
Housing Act 1996 as amended by the Homelessness Act 2002, will
continue.

5.12.4 The full homelessness duty will come to an end, and a homeless
applicant lose their priority under this section, when any of the
circumstances within s.193 (6) of the Act are met. This will include an
applicant:

e accepting an offer of accommodation made through the CBL
scheme

e accepting an offer made via the direct let mechanism within the
policy (see 5.11 above), or

¢ if, having been informed of the consequences and the right to
request a review, refuses a reasonable offer of suitable
accommodation made via the direct let mechanism

S. 193(6) of the Housing Act 1996 Act gives the full circumstances
under which the full homelessness duty comes to an end.

5.12.5 Where a homeless applicant is to be allocated a property through the
direct let process HDC has responsibility for determining the suitability
of any allocation. They will do this by assessing the household’s
particular needs and circumstances within the context of the general
housing conditions in the area as a whole.

5.12.6 Where a homeless applicant is offered accommodation via a direct let,
but does not feel that this offer is suitable, they have the right to

24
40



request a review of the decision that the offer is suitable. For details of
the review process (see chapter 6).

5.12.7 As the property does not have to remain available during the review of
the suitability and reasonableness of a direct let, homeless applicants
are advised to accept and move in to the accommodation pending the
decision on review. If the review outcome is unsuccessful for the
applicant they will still have accommodation to live in whilst they
consider their further options.

5.12.8 If a direct let is refused by a homeless applicant and it is then deemed
suitable at review, the full homelessness duty will come to an end.
They will also have to vacate any temporary accommodation that is
being provided.

5.12.10 If, on review reviewing an applicant’s refusal of a direct let, the
property offered is considered to be unreasonable or unsuitable, the
duty under s.193 (2) will continue and the applicant will be made a
further offer of suitable accommodation.

5.13 Applicants who require a specific size, type or adapted property.

5.13.1 Where an applicant requires a specific size, type or adapted property,
they will be placed in the appropriate housing needs band, but may be
offered a direct let if HDC have a shortage of suitable properties. For
example:

e An applicant requires a very large property to accommodate their
household

e An applicant requires a property of a specific type in a specific area
of the district

e An applicant requires a property with specific adaptations and such
a property becomes available

e Where an applicant is willing to move to release a large family home

5.14 Sheltered housing

5.14.1 Sheltered housing will be advertised through the CBL scheme.
Sheltered housing is available to applicants over 60 years of age and
prior to an offer of a tenancy applicants will be subject to an
assessment by the landlord of the accommodation to establish their
prospective support needs and suitability to living in sheltered housing.

5.15 Extra care homes
5.15.1 Extra care homes are properties for older people where additional

support services are provided. Allocation to extra care homes will not
be advertised through CBL but will be made by an allocation panel.

25
41



5.16 Refusals of direct let

5.16.1 Where an applicant (other than a person owed the full homelessness
duty) refuses a reasonable offer of a direct let a senior officer will
review the reasons for the refusal and the applicant may lose any
housing priority they held, dependent on the reasons for the offer
refusal. Applicants have the right to ask for a review of this decision
(see chapter 6)

5.17 Area specific policies

5.17.1 Area specific policies, also known as local lettings policies, are used
within the sub region to help create balanced and sustainable
communities. Where an area specific policy applies, it will be stated in
the property label. Details of these area specific policies/ schemes will
be available from the local authority. Some schemes may ask for an
applicant to have a local connection to a specific parish or village. In
those cases, the connection criteria will be stipulated in the legal
agreement for the development.

26
42



6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

Chapter 6
Reviews of decisions

A designated senior officer will carry out reviews of assessment
decisions as required.

Examples of circumstances that may be reviewed include:

Multiple need in band

Emergency housing status

Moving people up a band or down a band

Priority assessments, in complex cases.

Housing people in different accommodation to designated need size
Low priority review decisions

Direct lets

This list is not exhaustive.
Statutory reviews

An applicant has the right to request a review of certain decisions made
under part 6 of the Housing Act 1996. These are:

e Decisions about the facts of the applicant’s case which are likely to
be, or have been, taken into account in considering whether to
allocate housing accommodation to the applicant

e Lack of any reasonable preference based on previous behaviour
s167 (2C) Housing Act 1996

¢ Ineligibility for an allocation based on immigration status s160A (9).

Decision letters issued in respect of housing applications will advise the
applicant of their right to request a review and provide appropriate
guidance on how to do this. An applicant can obtain further details of
the review procedure from HDC.

A request for a review of a decision can be made in writing or verbally
to a member of staff at HDC. The request should be made within 21
days following the notification of the decision. Reviews will be
considered within 28 days of the request being received and the
applicant will receive a written response outlining the result of the
review.

An applicant will only be entitled to one internal review. If an applicant
is still unhappy following the review of a decision, they can make a
complaint through the council’s complaints procedures, contact the
Local Government Ombudsman (see section 6.5) or seek to challenge
the decision via a judicial review.

27
43



6.2.5

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

Reviews will be undertaken by a designated officer who was not
involved in the original decision, and who is senior to the original
decision making officer.

Homeless reviews

Homeless applicants have the right to request a review of certain
decisions made by HDC in respect of their homeless application.
Within the context of the council’s lettings policy this includes the
decision to bring to an end the full homelessness duty by making a
suitable offer of permanent accommodation via the housing register
(through the direct let mechanism).

If an applicant wishes to request a review of the reasonableness of an

offer or the suitability of the property, this must be made within 21 days
of notification of a decision to make the offer. Late review request can

be considered under exceptional circumstances at the discretion of the
local authority.

Applicants who request reviews of decisions about suitability of
accommodation will be advised to accept and move into
accommodation pending the outcome of their review request. If the
review goes in their favour alternative accommodation will be provided
as quickly as possible. However if the reasonableness and suitability of
the offer is upheld the applicant will still have accommodation to live in
whilst they consider their further options.

The applicant has the right of appeal to the county court if he or she is
dissatisfied with the decision on a review.

The Local Government Ombudsman

The Local Government Ombudsman investigates complaints of
injustice arising from maladministration by local authorities and other
bodies. They can be asked to investigate complaints about most
council matters including housing.

If an applicant is not satisfied with the action the council has taken, and
has exhausted the council’s own complaints procedure, they can send
a written complaint to the ombudsman.

The Local Government Ombudsman can be contacted at:

Local Government Ombudsman

The Oaks No 2

Westwood Way

Westwood Business Park Tel: 024 7682 0000
Coventry CV4 8JB Website: www.lgo.org.uk

28
44



If an applicant wishes to make a complaint against a housing
association, they should contact:

The Housing Ombudsman Service
Norman House

105 -109 Strand Tel: 08457 125 973
London Website: www.ihos.org.uk
WC2R 0AA

29

45



71

7.1.1

7.2

7.21

7.3

7.3.1

7.3.2

Chapter 7
Letting of accommodation

Properties will be advertised through the sub regional CBL scheme.
The advertising will be carried out on a regular basis and for specific
periods of time, known as advertising cycles. (See framework
document).

Labelling property advertisements

All adverts will include a description of the property and any other
relevant information, for example rent charge, property size, local
facilities, disabled adaptations or if the property is sheltered housing.
The property will be labelled to show who is able to express an interest
in it, for example, where a local connection is required, or if there is an
age restriction on the property.

Bedroom requirements

Table 1 below will be used to assess applicant’s/household bedroom
requirements.

Table 1 below shows the size of property that applicants may be
considered for based on their household composition, either when
expressing interest for an advertised property or for a direct let. (See
section 5.11)

30
46



Table 1

Key; Bungalow = B Maisonette = M House = H

Studio
Flat
M

1 Bed
Flat or
HorB
orM

2 Bed
Flat or
M.

2 Bed
HorB

Bed
H or

Bed
Flat
or M.

Bed
Flat
orM

5 Bed -

Single Person

\/

Single Person with
overnight contact to
1

or more children

\/

Couple or 2 Adults

Household with 1
child

Household with 2
children of same
Sex;

or 3 individual
adults

Household with 2
children of opposite
Sex;

or 3 or more
children

Household with 4 or
more children;

or household of at
least 6 people in
total

Large

Household with 5 or
more children;

or household of at
least 8 people in
total

Large

7.3.3 Please note that these are general guidelines. All properties that are
advertised through the CBL scheme will be clearly labelled to identify
the household size eligible to bid for each property as some landlords

may have different policies on the different property sizes offered to the

various household sizes. Applicants should check the information

contained in the labelling to see if they are able to be considered for the

property.

31
47



7.4

7.4.1

71.2.2

7.2.3

7.2.4

7.3

7.3.1

7.3.2

7.4

7.41

Short listing

After the end of an advertising cycle a shortlist of applicants bidding for
the property will be taken from the CBL computer system. The shortlist
will identify the order of applicants based on who has been in the
highest housing needs band for the longest time. In circumstances
where there is more than one applicant in the same band and they
have the same date in band, priority will be given to the applicant with
the earliest registration date. If there is more than one applicant with
the same band, date in band and registration date a senior officer will
make an allocation decision based on the best use of the housing stock
and needs of the applicants.

When a short list of applicants is completed the landlord of the
available property will offer an accompanied viewing of the property to
the highest priority applicants. This is to ensure that if the applicant
who tops the short list decides not to take the tenancy, the property can
be quickly offered to the next person on the shortlist.

After viewing the property the applicant at the top of the shortlist will be
given 24 hours to accept or refuse the offer. If the offer is refused the
next person on the short list will be offered the property.

In exceptional circumstances a senior officer may make a decision not
to offer a property to the applicant who tops a short list, eg. if, in doing
so, the offer could put a vulnerable person at risk of any harm. Any
such decisions will be explained fully to the applicant in writing.

Formal offer of the property

Once the applicant has confirmed their acceptance of the tenancy the
landlord of the property will write to confirm the formal offer of the
tenancy. The CBL system will then not allow that applicant to be
considered for any further properties and once the tenancy starts their
Register application will be cancelled.

Once the property is ready to let the landlord of the property will
complete the tenancy sign up.

Withdrawal of offers

In exceptional circumstances an offer of a property may be withdrawn,
for example:

e Where there has been a change in the applicants circumstances

e Where the successful applicant has rent arrears or other housing
related debts that had previously not come to light

¢ Following verification the applicant is not eligible for the property

e Where an error has been made in the advertising criteria

32
48



7.5

7.5.1

7.6

7.6.1

7.6.2

7.7

7.71

e Where an offer of accommodation could put a vulnerable person at
risk of any harm

Refusing an offer of accommodation

Usually, if an applicant refuses an offer of accommodation made
through CBL, they will remain in their housing needs band. If an
applicant refuses three offers of a property made through CBL, a
housing officer will contact the applicant to offer support and
assistance and verify their circumstances.

Allocations to staff, council members or their family members

Members of staff, their close family and elected members who require
housing with HDC may apply for housing in the same way as other
applicants. Their status should be disclosed on the application form at
the time of applying.

If an applicant who is a member of staff, elected member or a member
of their direct family, makes a successful bid for a property the Head of
Housing Services will be informed and must approve the letting prior to
the formal offer being made.

Tenancy management outside the scope of the lettings policy

The following tenancy management areas are not included as part of
this lettings policy as they are not included within part 6 of the Housing
Act 1996:

e Mutual exchanges
e Introductory tenancies converted to secure tenancies
e Where a secure tenancy of a property is assigned by way of
succession to the same property
e Where a secure tenancy is assigned to someone who would be
qualified to succeed to that tenancy if the secure tenant died
immediately before the assignment
e Where court orders are made under one of the following:
o Section 24 of the Matrimonial Causes Act 1973
o Section 17 (1) of the Matrimonial and Family Proceedings
Act 1984
o Paragraph 1 of schedule 1 to the Children Act 1989

33
49



8.1

8.1.1

8.1.2

8.2

8.2.1

8.2.2

8.2.3

8.3

8.3.1

Chapter 8
Confidentiality and access to information
Applicants’ Rights to Information

Applicants have the right to request such general information as will
enable them to assess:

e How their application is likely to be treated under the Lettings Policy
(including in particular whether they are likely to be regarded as a
member of a group of people who are to be given preference by
virtue of this Policy, (see chapter 4)

e Whether housing accommodation appropriate to their needs is likely
to be made available to them.

Applicants have the right to request information held about their
application which is likely to be, or has been, taken into account when
considering whether to allocate them housing.

Data protection

When an applicant applies to the CBL scheme the POs will only ask for
information that they need to assess their eligibility and housing needs.
The POs will collect and keep data in accordance with the council’s
guidelines on handling personal data.

These guidelines are in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998
that covers both electronic and manual records and the Act governs
everything we do with the personal data, including collecting, storing,
using and disposing of it.

Confidential information held about applicants will not be disclosed to
third parties apart from:

¢ Where the individual who is the subject of the confidential
information has consented to the disclosure

e Where the council or a PO is required by law to make such
disclosures

e Where disclosure is made in accordance with an information
sharing protocol

Requesting information

Applicants are able to request copies of the information held regarding
their application. This information is held in line with Data Protection
Act guidelines.

Please note that we cannot provide you with personal information

about other people if doing so will breach the Data Protection Act 1998.

34
50



Appendix 1

Cambridge Sub regional Choice Based Lettings
Partner Organisation list

Local Authority

Cambridge City Council
Hobson House

44 St Andrews Street

Cambridge City Council CB2 3AS

South Cambridgeshire District Council

Cambourne Business Park
Cambourne
Cambridge, CB3 6EA

East Cambridgeshire District Council,
The Grange,

Nutholt Lane,

Ely, CB7 4PL

Huntingdonshire District Council
Housing Services

Pathfinder House

St Mary's Street

Huntingdon

PE29 3TN

Fenland District Council
Fenland Hall

County Road

March

Camrnidgeshire

PE15 8QN

Forest Heath District Council
District Offices

College Heath Road
Mildenhall

Bury St Edmunds

Suffolk

LP28 7TEY

St Edmundsbury Borough Council
Borough Offices

Bury St Edmunds

Suffolk

1P33 1XB

35
51

LSVT Landlord

Hereward Housing
St Mary's Lodge
St Mary's Street
Ely

Cambridge

CB7 4EY
Luminus Group
Brook House
Ouse Walk
Huntingdon
Cambs

PE29 3QW

Kings Forest Housing Association
College Heath Road

Mildenhall

Bury St Edmunds

Suffolk

LP28 7TEY

Havebury Housing Partnership,
Havebury House, Western Way

Bury St. Edmunds, Suffolk IP33 3SP
and also Manor Road, Haverhill, Suffolk
CB9 OEP.

Email is Office@Havebury.com




Appendix 2
GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Adapted properties

Property that has been adapted for an applicant with disabilities.

Advertised

Properties that are advertised and are available for applicants to bid for under
CBL.

Age restrictions

Where a property is labelled, as only being available to applicants of a certain
age.

Application number

A unique housing number generated by the computer system.

Bedroom eligibility

How many bedrooms a household is assessed as needing

Choice Based Lettings (CBL)

A method of letting social housing through openly advertising property, and
allowing applicants to bid for those advertised properties.
Customer/Applicant

Is either a tenant of a PO (including those in temporary accommodation) or a
housing applicant on the housing needs register

Date of registration

The date an application form is registered with a PO

Date in band

The date an application is placed in a housing needs band, used as the
applicable date when short-listing.

Decision making organization

The PO that made a particular decision with regard to a housing or homeless
application

Direct lets

Property that is offered directly to an applicant, without them having to bid.
Domestic violence

Is threatening behaviour, violence or abuse (physical, psychological, sexual,
financial or emotional) by a former partner or associated person.

Bid

The process of applicants saying which property they would like to live in
Housing Associations

Also known as Registered Social Landlords. These are landlords who also
provide social rented housing for which applicants/ customers can bid through
the CBL scheme.

Housing options

Looking at what housing might be available to an applicant, including private
rented accommodation and other solutions.

Housing needs register

A list of those requesting and eligible for housing

Housing Related Debts

Are defined as current rent arrears, former tenant arrears, outstanding re-
chargeable repairs, current and former housing related service charge arrears

36
52



and court costs. They do not include Council Tax debts or Housing Benefit
overpayments.

Joint Application

Where one or more applicant applies to join the housing register on one
application form.

Labelling properties

Describing who is eligible to bid for a property

Local Connection

The connection an applicant has to a specific area within the sub region
Local elected members

Each local authority is governed by a group of elected member.

LSVT Landlord

Local Stock Voluntary transfer, where a Local authority has sold its housing
stock to a Registered Social Landlord

Mutual exchange

A scheme which allows two tenants to swap their homes.

Partner organizations (POs) All the organizations that are partners to the
Sub regional CBL scheme these may be local authority or RSL organizations.
The Cambridge Sub Region

The seven Local Authorities that make up the sub-region.

Transferring tenant

An applicant who is currently a tenant of a partner organization

37
53



This page is intentionally left blank

54



Agenda ltem 5

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 7™ APRIL 2009
(SERVICE DELIVERY)

SPORTS FACILITIES STRATEGY
Report by Head of Environmental and Community Health Services

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the proposal to seek
Cabinet consent to the adoption and implementation of a Sports Facility
Strategy for Huntingdonshire. The development and implementation of a
Sports Facility Strategy is needed to assist in guiding the future provision
of a range of sports facilities in the district.

1.2 There are two main factors which are particularly relevant to the future
provision of sports facilities; these are the future implementation of the
Building Schools for the Future Programme (BSF) in the District, and the
significant likely population growth particularly around the area of St
Neots. This strategy will be used to guide and inform the nature and
extent of resources, financial and operational, which are needed to ensure
that Huntingdonshire has up to date, fit for purpose, accessible and
welcoming sports facilities for the existing community, people working in,
or visiting the District, and any new residents in the District.

2. SCOPE OF THE STRATEGY

21 This strategy examines all known sports facility provision within the
district. Whilst Huntingdonshire District Council provides, manages and
maintains a diverse range of sports facilities, this strategy recognises that
the council is not solely responsible. Therefore the remit of the strategy is
to examine all sporting provision, including private, voluntary and
education provision, all of which makes an important contribution to the
sporting offer of Huntingdonshire.

2.2 It is important to stress that this strategy focuses on community sports
facility provision and the needs for provision both now and into the future.

2.3 This strategy is seeking to identify the following:

. Sports facilities that need to be preserved and maintained because
of identified strategic need.

. Existing facilities that require to be repaired, upgraded/improved to
meet identified strategic need.

. Any new sports facilities that may be required to meet identified
strategic need.

. Sites where new facilities may be required to meet identified
strategic need.

. A priority for future investment.

. Those facilities that need to be expanded or redeveloped to meet
identified strategic need and a timetable for any proposed sports-
developments

. Future opportunities for disinvestment in or redevelopment of
existing sports facilities in Huntingdonshire, as a result of under-use
and perceived lack of future demand or inappropriateness.

55



2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

5.1

Over 180 individual sites and 330 facilities have been identified and
mapped spatially onto GIS. Strategically significant sites have been
proposed from this list.

PROGRESS

In September 2008 Cabinet approved local standards for the major sports
facilities in the district: sports halls, swimming pools; indoor bowls;
synthetic turf pitches and health and fithness based on the available
national methodology. It is acknowledged however that sports facilities
cover a much wider range than those covered by the national
methodology.

This strategy takes the work a step further in identifying all key sports
facilities in the district and makes recommendations on standards for
other types of sports facilities.

The strategy has been written to take into account all relevant national,
regional and local documents and strategies including Cambs Horizons
Major Sports Facilities Strategy 2006, the Local Investment Framework
and Local Development Framework.

The first draft of the Sports Facility Strategy was distributed in March 2009
for consultation to members of Task and Finish Group and key
stakeholders. The consultation period closed on the 19" March and
feedback received, where appropriate, has been used to further develop
the strategy.

A copy of the draft strategy was submitted to the Chief Officers
Management Team on 24™ March, and is proposed to be submitted to
Cabinet on 23™ April.

CONCLUSION

The development and implementation of a Sports Facility Strategy is key
to ensuring high quality accessible sports facilities for the public and in
guiding the future provision of sports facilities in the district. The strategy
explores the policy context, examines existing provision as well as
identifying known projects that are currently in development. The draft
strategy has been subject to consultation with key stakeholders and will
be amended where appropriate, to take account of relevant comments
received.

RECOMMENDATION
Overview and Scrutiny (Service Delivery) is asked to review and endorse

the draft Sports Facilities Strategy for Huntingdonshire for submission to
Cabinet for adoption.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Adoption of Local Standards for the Provision of Sports Facilities in Huntingdonshire,

Sept 08

Contact Officer: Jo Peadon

= 01480 388048

56



Huntingdonshire

DISTRI1CT COUNTCIL

11
\\\\\\\\\\H HIII/////// e®%0,

3\ /, o
e 7. 3 .
°
2
= [ ]
= o
= °
= )
= )
N °
°
S XX

Sports Facilities Strategy
for Huntingdonshire

2009-2014

Draft Copy

57



58



—r s
Huntingdonshire

DI STRICT COUNCILL

Contents

1. Introduction

1.1 The Need to Develop a Sports Facilities Strategy 1

1.2 Strategy Vision ]

1.3 Scope of the Strategy 1
2.The Wider Picture

2.1 The Agenda for Sport 3

2.2 2012 Olympics

2.3 How this Sports Strategy fits within the National Agenda
3.The Districts Sporting Needs
3.1 District Profile
3.2 Overview of Current Participation in Sport
3.3 Participation by Age Group
3.4 Do existing facilities meet the needs of local communities and clubs?
4, Sports Provision in Huntingdonshire
4.1 Collation of Sports Facilities Data 1
4.2 Development of Local Standards for Sport L
4.3 Existing Provision and Future Needs 1
4.4 Other Sports Facilities in Huntingdonshire 22
5. Priorities for Sports Facilities in Huntingdonshire
5.1"Sports facilities that need to be preserved and maintained because of 23
identified strategic need”
5.2 "Existing sports facilities that need to be repaired, upgraded/improved to 24
meet identified strategic need”
5.3"Any new sports facilities that may be required to meet identified strategic 25
need, and proposed sites for where these facilities should be located”
5.4"Sites where new facilities are required to meet identified strategic need” 26
5.5"A priority for future investment” 27
5.6 "Those facilities that need to be expanded or redeveloped to meet 28
identified strategic need and a timetable for any proposed sports-developments”
5.7 "Future opportunities for disinvestment in or redevelopment of existing 28
sports facilities in Huntingdonshire, as a result of under-use and perceived lack of
future demand or inappropriateness”
6. Strategic Overview
6.1 Policy Recommendations 29

O 00 N U

Appendices

Appendix 1: Sports facilities steering group
Appendix 2: Key local policy documents

Appendix 3: Community engagement

Appendix 4: Spatial distribution of headline facilities
Appendix 5: Future sports and leisure projects
Appendix 6: Sports typology prioritisation matrix
Appendix 7: Sports facilities investment

59



1. Introduction

1.1 The Need to Develop a Sports Facilities Strategy

Huntingdonshire District Council has identified the need for a strategy to assist
in guiding the future provision of sports facilities in the district. The need for a
clear framework for future investment is particularly critical given the projected
population growth within Huntingdonshire.

The development of the sports facilities strategy also provides the opportunity
to assess the condition of existing provision, establish whether it is appropriate
to meet local needs and demand and to ensure that potential new provision
helps to address any current quantitative or qualitative deficiencies. In addition,
there is a need to facilitate increased participation and improve the health of the
local community.

Strategies have been developed regionally and at county level highlighting
facility provision within the district, and so there is now a need to develop a
complementary strategy at this local level. Therefore, a Director-led task and
finish group has been established to help develop and implement the Sports
Facilities Strategy, drawing on different areas of expertise across the council
including both officers and elected members (a detailed breakdown of the
steering group is provided in Appendix 1).

1.2 Strategy Vision:

The purpose of this strategy is to provide a clear framework for the prioritisation,
provision and enhancement of sports facilities within Huntingdonshire. With this
in mind, the overarching vision of this strategy is:

To promote active lifestyles: providing facilities/events and encourage participation
in active leisure pursuits for everyone. (Huntingdonshire District Council’s Corporate
Plan, “Growing Success’, 2008/9).

1.3 Scope of the Strategy:

This strategy examines all known sports facility provision within the district.
Whilst Huntingdonshire District Council provides, manages and maintains
a diverse range of sports facilities, this strategy recognises that the council
is not solely responsible. Therefore, the remit of this strategy is to examine
all sporting provision, including private, voluntary and education provision,
all of which makes an important contribution to the sporting offer

of Huntingdonshire.

60



This strategy is seeking to identify the following:

1. Sports facilities that need to be preserved and maintained because of identified strategic need.

2. Existing sports facilities that need to be repaired, upgraded/improved to meet identified strategic need.
3. Any new sports facilities that may be required to meet identified strategic need.

4. Sites where new facilities are required to meet identified strategic need.

5. A priority for future investment.

6. Those facilities that need to be expanded or redeveloped to meet identified strategic need, and a time
table for any proposed sports-developments.

7. Future opportunities for disinvestment in or redevelopment of existing sports facilities in
Huntingdonshire, as a result of under-use and perceived lack of future demand or inappropriateness.

61



2.The Wider Picture

2.1 The Agenda for Sport

Encouraging participation in physical activity is important. It is recognised that
sedentary lifestyles can contribute to increased health problems, with obesity a
major concern within the United Kingdom.

To address this, a range of documents and strategies have been driven forward
by central government and leading national sports bodies that identify leisure
and sports opportunities as a major contributory factor in helping to address
health issues, which in turn impact positively on issues such as community
cohesion, economic development, and crime reduction.

At the national level, the Chief Medical Officer’s Report (2004) outlines that
fundamental changes in attitude to active lifestyles should occur in every
household. The report backs the recommendation that for health benefits to
accrue the population must undertake a minimum of 5x30 minutes of moderate
physical activity per week, which can help towards preventing coronary heart
disease, musculoskeletal disorders, some forms of cancer, obesity, diabetes and
mental illness. It also showed that not being physically active is a major risk
factor for many diseases and chronic illnesses. People who are not active have
been shown to have a poorer health outlook than active people.

Linked to this, the Department for Health White Paper, “Choosing Health” (2004),
set out new far reaching proposals for supporting the public to make healthier
and more informed choices with regard to their health in order to address

the issues raised within the Chief Medical Officer’s report. It emphasised that
effective partnerships across communities are essential in making available and
promoting healthier choices and lifestyles. It also identified the need to reduce
the number of people who smoke, reduce obesity through diet and exercise,
and increase activity levels with particular emphasis on targeting young people.

At the start of 2009, the Department of Health, in partnership with other
Government Departments, published a new plan, “Be active, be healthy: a plan
for getting the nation moving’, setting out new ideas for determining and
responding to needs of local populations and encouraging more physical activity.

Sport England is the strategic lead for sport nationally, responsible for

the delivery of government wide objectives. In 2008, it published a new

strategy, “Grow, sustain, excel — Sport England Strategy 2008 — 20117 aimed

at encouraging more people to play and enjoy sport. In summary, it seeks to
create a vibrant sporting culture, in which the needs of sports participants are
addressed. Within the strategy, Sport England make a commitment to work
closely with the national governing bodies of sport and forge strong partnerships
with local authorities, acknowledging that local authorities are key to driving
local provision and helping to deliver high class community sport infrastructure.

62



2.2 The 2012 Olympics

In 2012, London will be hosting the Olympic and Paralympic Games. Central to this successful bid was the
notion that hosting the Olympics in this country will inspire and encourage more people to get active, and
increased participation in sport is a key goal underpinning legacy commitments and objectives designed
to deliver improved community services and facilities as well as enhanced sporting opportunities within
the United Kingdom.

In the lead up to the Games, it is crucial that local communities have the opportunity to access high
quality sports facility provision. The Olympic and Paralympic Games provide an ideal opportunity to
encourage participation and ensure that the games have a lasting effect on people’s participation levels.

2.3 How this Sports Strategy fits within the National Agenda

In light of the desire to improve the quality of provision and to seek an increase in sports participation,

a number of studies have taken place, both locally and regionally, to examine the current distribution

of sports facilities and to identify required provision in the future. The Cambridgeshire Horizons Major
Sports Facility Strategy (2006), which has subsequently been followed by the Cambridgeshire County
Sports Facility Strategy (2008), outlines a co-ordinated county-wide approach to improve sports facilities,
identifying specific recommendations for Huntingdonshire.

Locally, a number of key documents are important when considering both current and future sports facility
provision. The Council’s corporate plan, “Growing Success’, the Huntingdonshire Local Strategic Partnership
“Community Plan’, the Huntingdonshire Local Investment Framework and a range of other service-led
strategies and reports all have an impact and a detailed overview of these documents is provided within
Appendix 2. The link between local, regional and national policy is shown chronologically below.

_l

_¢

s,
o 4

Sports Facilities V" g -
Strategy




3.The Districts Sporting Needs

3.1 District Profile

The district of Huntingdonshire covers an area of approximately 350 square miles
and has a population of 168,200 (based on the Government Actuary Department
population figures published in 2007). This is anticipated to expand to 188,400

by 2021 and this has important implications when considering long-term
management of the districts sports facilities as there is a need to ensure that there
is sufficient provision to meet the demands of an increased local population.

A large proportion (approximately half) of the district’s current population is
found within four market towns; Huntingdon, St Neots, St Ives and Ramsey, with
the remaining residents distributed within key settlements and rural villages.
Much of the anticipated population growth is expected to occur around the

St Neots area and this needs to be considered when assessing future needs.
Similarly, the rural nature of the district means that accessibility to community
provision, including sports facilities, is a challenge (Sports Facilities Standards
Report, 2008), and consideration needs to be made as to how best to provide
participative opportunities and ensure accessibility to rural residents.

The district has a large younger population, and a high proportion of 30-44 year
olds; this profile is important with regard to sports provision, as individuals tend
to be more active when younger.

In 2008, Huntingdonshire's District Council Annual Survey highlighted that 84%
of people were ‘'very satisfied’ or ‘satisfied" with Huntingdonshire as a place to live
and most have a good quality of life. Life expectancy in Huntingdonshire is high
compared to the national average, and general health and well-being is good

as demonstrated by the 2001 census, which highlighted that 73.4% of people
described their health as'good, a percentage that is almost 5 points higher than
the national average.

Transport links within the district are good with roads such as the A1 and

A14, which in turn link to the M1, M11, and M6 motorways. This network is
important when considering accessibility issues and planning the location of
new facility provision. It should also be noted that 4% more households in the
district have access to two or more cars, compared with the national average.
This again reflects the rural nature of the district and the need to travel by car.

When looking at the distribution of facilities, consideration needs to given to
the fact that some local communities experience higher levels of relative
deprivation compared with the district as a whole or the region generally. For
instance, Huntingdon North ward has the lowest levels of both household
income and educational attainment in the district and is in the 10% most
deprived areas in Cambridgeshire.

64



Peterborough

Huntingdonshire District

East Coast Mainline

A141to
Chatteris

Bury
Warboys

A4 to
Midlands

a

Somersham

Kimbolton

e

Little
Paxto
Pr I S AW2BHOPT
St Neots ‘
~J
To Royston M11 to
London
Legend

Market towns are Key
Service Centres

‘ Future residential growth
Bedford

° Future growth within built
up area

@® Interchange

High Quality Public Transport

Guided Busway and bus
priority measures

A14 re-alignment




3.2 Overview of Current Participation in Sport

There are 1.5 million annual visitors to the council’s leisure centres and active
users of these leisure centres accounts for approximately 10% of the local
population. With regard to wider participation in sport and leisure activities,
Sport England has published an ‘Activity Profile’ for Huntingdonshire, derived
using data from the Active People Survey. This was first released in 2006 and
subsequently updated in 2008, and contains a range of sports participation
analysis for the district. The headline participation statistics are as follows:

Activity Huntingdonshire National Level
District Council
2005- 2007- 2005- | 2007-
2006 2008 2006 2008
Participation 23.5% |22.8% 21.0% |21.7%
(3 x 30 minutes
per week)

This shows that nearly one in four respondents in Huntingdonshire engage in
regular sport or recreational activity, a level that exceeds both the regional and
national figures, although it should be noted that there has been a slight decline
in participation since the first survey was conducted in 2005/2006.

This measure of participation is important - at the national level, the Government
sets a range of national indicators as a means of measuring agreed national
priorities. National Indicator 8 (NI8) is the indicator for sport and active
recreation and is measured by the percentage of the adult population in a local
area who participated in sport and active recreation, at moderate intensity, for

at least 30 minutes on at least 12 days out of the last 4 weeks (equivalent to

30 minutes on 3 or more days a week). Therefore, the above data shows that
Huntingdonshire is performing well against NI8.

In addition to participation data, the second Sport England survey has shown
that within Huntingdonshire, since 2006:

- The percentage of people volunteering — defined as people that offer support
to sport for at least one hour a week - has increased from 5.1% to 8.1%

- The percentage of people that are a member of a sports club has decreased
from 25.6% to 25.0%

- The percentage of people who have received tuition from an instructor or
coach to improve sports performance has decreased from 22.0% to 21.1%

- The percentage of people who take part in any organised competition in any
sport or recreational activity has increased from 17.2% to 18.5%

- The percentage of adults who are very or fairly satisfied with sports provision
in their local area increased from 73.9% to 75.3%.

66



3.3 Participation by Age Group

Given that the 2008 update of the Activity Profile has only recently been released, there is currently no
detailed analysis of the participation data by age group. Therefore, the 2006 data is still used as the
baseline, and within this report, Huntingdonshire was identified as having higher levels of participation
than those in the East of England.

One in six over 55 year olds participated 3 times a week compared to one in three 16-34 year olds and one
in four 35-54 year olds. However, Huntingdonshire had among the lowest participation rates in the 16-34
age group when compared to similar Index of Multiple Deprivation and Office of National Statistics areas,
yet the highest in the over 55 age group. This indicates that more needs to be done to develop facilities
that will encourage greater levels of participation within the 16 to 34 year old demographic.

3.4 Do existing facilities meet the needs of local communities and clubs?

In addition to the information provided within 3.1 and 3.2, it is also important that future policy decisions
relating to sports facility provision are based on an understanding of the sporting needs and aspirations

of key stakeholders, including local communities and sports clubs. Therefore, detailed community
engagement has been undertaken during the past four years and this is summarised in the diagram below.
(A detailed breakdown of the consultation undertaken is displayed in Appendix 3).

Hunts DC
Place Shaping
Survey Strategic
Hunts DC (2008) Leisure Ltd.
Sports Club Sports Facilities

Survey (2005) Standards

Report
(2008)
Hunts DC ( Cambs

Leisure Centre Count_y‘S.ports
Facilities

User Surveys SpOftS Strategy
(2006) Facilities (2008)

Strategy

Sport England
Cambridgeshire Active People
Quality of Life Survey
Survey (2006)

(2005-2008)

Hunts DC

Consultants SCu's';om‘er
PPG 17 Audit ats'fj f:/cet)'f”

(2006) (2006/07)

67



Key findings from the consultation

- Current satisfaction levels concerning sport and leisure facilities are high,
exceeding those of other authorities within the county (Sport England Active
People Survey).

- There is scope for trying to encourage more people to use sports and
leisure facilities with the Council’s Customer Satisfaction Survey (2006/2007)
showing that 1in 5 people had never used sports or leisure facilities. However,
encouragingly, the same survey showed that 37% of respondents used sports
/ leisure facilities at least once a month.

- Sports clubs within the district feel that there is sufficient pitch provision to
meet demand, and many view the quality of provision as good.

- Although transport is seen as a major barrier to accessing cultural facilities
within the district, particularly within rural areas, (Huntingdonshire District
Council Cultural Strategy, 2007), the main mode of transport of respondents
using outdoor sports facilities was via car (63%), indicating that people are
willing to travel to reach their chosen facility (Planning Policy Guidance 17
assessment — Household Survey).

« When asked to assess how easy it is to get to a sports / leisure centre, more
than 2 in 3 people (69%) of Huntingdonshire residents stated that it is very /
fairly easy (Cambridgeshire Quality of Life Survey).

- Responses to the household survey suggested that perceived shortfalls in
outdoor sports facilities relate to the provision of tennis and synthetic pitches.

- The Sports Club Survey (2005) highlighted that sports clubs generally felt that
the quality and accessibility of pitch provision in the district was good. The
only aspect that scored less than average was the provision of training areas.
Most clubs did not possess a training area and hence scored this as zero, whilst
changing rooms need improving in some instances. Similar to the scores
given for pitch quality factors, the scores given for ancillary facilities were
good, with only cycle parking scoring below average.

- Consultation suggests that access to training facilities is a key issue, with only
limited slots available at synthetic pitches for clubs wishing to train midweek.
There are few floodlit training areas and teams struggle to access facilities
between the peak hours of 6 and 9pm, particularly at the leisure centres
where there is high demand for facilities.

68




69



4, Sports Provision in Huntingdonshire

4.1 Collation of Sports Facilities Data

To help inform development of this strategy, a comprehensive database of

all known sports facilities has been mapped on to the council’s geographical
information system including over 180 sites and 340 facilities. Furthermore,
additional sites will be mapped as they are developed or identified. In the
long-term this information will be continually updated and will be publicly
accessible; functioning as an enhancement to the Active Places mapping system
that is currently available through the Sport England website. The council has
also compiled a database that identifies sports facilities that are located within
each of the district’s settlements, and this information is available on request
from the council.

4.2 Development of Local Standards for Sport

There is a need for objective standards, as they are important tools when looking
to measure change. In particular, keeping pace with changes in population
numbers and needs is important when seeking to ensure accessibility to sports
facilities. The dispersed nature of the district, means that district-wide standards
are a means of maintaining a strategic overview of provision versus demand.

Given the potential population expansion within the district, local standards can
be used when new developments are proposed to guide and inform the nature
and extent of resources, financial and operational, which are needed to ensure
that Huntingdonshire has sufficient up-to-date, fit-for-purpose, and accessible
sports facilities. This should allow proactive planning to meet future demand.

In order to assist in the development of local standards, Strategic Leisure Limited
were commissioned to undertake a comprehensive review of existing provision
and to identify future needs based on predicted population growth using

Sport England’s nationally recognised model the ‘Sports Facility Calculator’ This
work focused on a select number of sports facilities but included all known
provision irrespective of ownership, thereby incorporating local authority leisure
centres, voluntary sector sports clubs, private sector facilities, and secondary
schools - including those that will be re-built or re-furbished under PFl or the
Building Schools for the Future programme. (The Sports Facilities Standards
Report, produced by Strategic Leisure Limited, is available on request from
Huntingdonshire District Council).

70



Following on from this report, on the 4th September 2008, the council formally adopted the following
local standards for sports facilities, based on national methodology.

Facility Standard
Sports halls 51.2 sgq metres per 1,000 population
Swimming Pools 10.96 sgq metres per 1,000 population

Indoor Bowls Rink 0.05 rinks per 1,000 population
Artificial Turf Pitch 0.04 turf pitch per 1,000 population
Fitness Stations 3.6 stations per 1,000 population

There are many facilities where there is no nationally agreed methodology to form standards. Therefore
based on existing levels of provision the following standards are suggested for the following facilities:

Facility Standard
Outdoor sports pitches, courts & greens 16.1 sq m per resident
Outdoor Tennis Courts 1 court per 2,200 people
(Min 2 court facility)
Outdoor Bowling Greens 1 rink per 2,000 people
(Min 5 rink facility/39m?2)
Indoor Tennis Facility 1 facility per 40,000 people
Changing Rooms 1 facility per 2,000 people
Active Lifestyle Contribution £50,000 per 1,000 people

71



4.3 Existing Provision and Future Needs

The following section will provide an overview of current provision levels of

each of these headline sports facilities (refer to appendix 4 to view maps
showing the spatial distribution of these facilities) and explore whether existing
levels are sufficient to meet current and future demand. Whilst the main focus is
on provision within the boundary of Huntingdonshire, this strategy recognises
that facilities in neighbouring local authority areas can have an important role for
residents of the district, and where relevant, these facilities are also highlighted.

Sports Halls

Overview

Sports halls are multi-purpose in their very nature, allowing for a range of indoor
sporting activities to take place. This is important in ensuring the long-term
viability of such facilities.

There are currently twelve sports halls located within the district with six sites
being a minimum of four badminton courts in size. Of these, St Ivo Leisure
Centre and Kimbolton School provide the largest halls, each providing up to six
courts. A further five sites provide sports halls that are of three courts size, whilst
Spring Common School provides a 1 court facility.

Is there sufficient provision within Huntingdonshire?
The adopted local standard for sports halls has been applied to current provision
levels and is summarised below.

Facility Type | Local Standards | Required level of Current level
of Provision per | provision based on of Provision
1000 population | suggested standards | (2008)
(population 168,200)
Sports Hall (@ | 51.20 sgm 8612sgm 4536 sgm
min 594 sq m)
Notes: The survey discounted smaller sports halls. There is 2376 sq m of
space within these smaller venues and there are 2 sports halls currently in
development. Predicted need for <1 additional sports hall.

There are issues about the types of activities small sports halls can support.

By excluding halls that are less than four badminton courts in size (i.e those less
than 594 sq metres, there is currently a large deficit in sports hall provision within
the district.

72



The table below identifies the level of provision required in 2021:

Facility Type Local Standards of Provision based on standards | Current level of
Provision per 1000 (predicted population Provision (2008)
population 188,400)

Sports Hall (@ min | 51.20sgm 9646 sgm 4536 sgm

594 sqgm)

Notes: 2 in development in 2008-11. Further 2 large sports halls required (by 2021) to cope with demand

from population increase. There are some small halls in the district that may not be fit for purpose.

Future Options:

There is a clear shortfall in existing provision, and additional developments at Huntingdonshire Regional
College and Little Paxton will not address this deficit in the long-term. Spatially, there is a lack of fit-for-
purpose sports halls within Sawtry and Ramsey. Four court halls are identified as 'fit for purpose’and one
way in this could be addressed is through the Building Schools for the Future programme (BSF). The
Sports Facilities Standards report suggests that the implementation of BSF in the north of the district may
provide the opportunity to address the need for sports halls in these areas e.g. Sawtry Community College.

Furthermore, the Local Investment Framework also suggests the need for enhanced leisure facilities in St
Neots, and so there is a need to look at the strategic options and feasibility of providing enhanced facilities
within this locality.

More widely the need for an 8 court hall could be considered as part of any new development as identified
in both the Cambs Horizons Major Sports Facility Strategy (2006) and the Cambridgeshire Sports Facility
Strategy (2008).

Given the current deficit in provision, there is a long-term need to retain existing sports hall provision.




Indoor Swimming Pools

Overview

Swimming pools have to accommodate a range of users, including those of all
ages and abilities and those wishing to swim for social, fun, fitness, health or
competitive reasons.

There are currently fourteen indoor swimming pools across the district, although
only four sites have 25 metre length swimming pools. The largest pools are
located at Huntingdon Leisure Centre and Kimbolton School (each of which is
250 sg metres in size).

Is there sufficient provision within Huntingdonshire?
The adopted local standard for indoor swimming pools has been applied to
current provision levels and is summarised below.

Facility Type Local Standards | Required level of Current level
of Provision per | provision based on of Provision
1000 population | suggested standards | (2008)
(population 168,200)

Indoor 10.96 sgm 1844 sgm 938sgm
Swimming Pool
(@ min 212
sgm)

Notes: Recommended Community Pool size: 325 sq m. The survey discounted
smaller pools. Including all smaller pools there is 2202.7 sq m of water space in
the district. There are issues about both accessibility and the types of activities
small pools can support.

In 2021, the level of provision required is calculated to be:

Facility Type Local Standards | Provision based on Current level
of Provision per |standards (predicted | of Provision
1000 population | population 188,400) | (2008)

Indoor 10.96 sgm 2065 sgm 938sgm
Swimming Pool
(@min 212 sq
m)

Notes: Recommended Community Pool size: 325 sq m. The 2202.7 sq m of
water space in the district, includes some very small pools that may not be fit
for purpose.

74



Future Options:

When reviewing the data it is clear that the district currently has a deficit of swimming pools that are 25
metres in length. However, this masks the fact that there are a range of other pools (private and public)
that are smaller in size.

With regard to the need for new provision, the Sports Facilities Standards Report (2008), identifies that
there “could be demand”for a new swimming facility with St Neots, linked to the extensive population
growth projected for this area. Furthermore, the district’s Local Investment Framework supports the notion
of providing a new leisure facility, including an indoor swimming pool within the St Neots area to help
address the large increase of population.

However, given that there is already a 25 metre length pool in St Neots, further consultation will be
required to ascertain whether there is the need for an additional swimming facility within this location.

Itis also necessary to highlight proposed developments outside of the district’s boundary. For instance,
there are plans to provide a new community 25 metre swimming pool linked to a new residential
development within Hampton. Communities within the north of this district may choose to access
swimming provision here.

75



Indoor Bowls

Overview
Indoor bowls is a sport that offers social interaction, general fitness and well-
being as well as competitive opportunities to a range of age groups.

There are currently two sites that provide indoor bowls facilities; Huntingdon
Indoor Bowls Club and St Neots and District Indoor Bowls Club, with the latter
providing the largest number of rinks, eight.

Is there sufficient provision within Huntingdonshire?
The adopted local standard for indoor bowls has been applied to current
provision and is summarised below:

Facility Type Local Standards | Required level of Current level
of Provision per | provision based on of Provision
1000 population | suggested standards | (2008)
(population 168,200)

Indoor Bowls 0.05 rink 8.41 rinks 14 rinks

Notes: There is an apparent over supply of bowls facilities. These are club-
based.

Predicted provision requirements are calculated as follows:

Facility Type Local Standards | Provision based on Current level
of Provision per |standards (predicted | of Provision
1000 population | population 188,400) | (2008)

Indoor Bowls 0.05 rink 9.4 rinks 14 rinks

Notes: There is still likely to be an apparent oversupply of bowls facilities. These
are club-based.

Future Options:

Although there are only two indoor bowls facilities, this is sufficient to meet
both current and future needs. Provision is centrally located and is within 20-30
minutes drive-time of the rest of the district, and so there is no requirement for
additional provision.

76




Artificial Turf Pitches

Overview
Artificial turf pitches provide high quality provision for both sports training and matches.

The district currently has five full size artificial pitches (three sand-based and two third-generation pitches),
and an additional four sand-based and two third generation sites of training size within the district.

Is there sufficient provision within Huntingdonshire?
The adopted local standard for artificial turf pitches has been applied to current provision levels and is
summarised below.

Facility Type Local Standards of Required level of provision based Current level of
Provision per 1000 on suggested standards (population | Provision (2008)
population 168,200)

Synthetic Turf Pitches (Full | 0.04 pitches 6.7 5

size)

(min 640 sq m pitch per

25,000 population)

Notes: There was an identified need for more pitches.

Predicted provision requirements are calculated as follows:

Facility Type Local Standards of Provision based on standards Current level of
Provision per 1000 (predicted population 188,400) Provision (2008)
population

Synthetic Turf Pitches (Full | 0.04 pitches 7.5 5

size)

(min 640 sq m pitch per

25,000 population)

Notes: More pitches planned before 2021.

Future Options:

There is currently a deficit of full size provision when compared to the adopted local standard, but it should
be noted that the figures above do not show the important contribution made by six training pitches.
Future options regarding new artificial turf pitch provision are being considered.

The Local Investment Framework identifies the potential need for a new artificial turf pitch in St Neots.
This report acknowledges that there is insufficient demand generated for an artificial turf pitch based
solely on the growth of St Neots, but given the level of growth across the district as a whole, an additional
pitch is recommended.

The implementation of Building Schools for the Future may also lead to the development of additional
facilities, including artificial turf pitches.

When considering artificial turf pitches it should be acknowledged that it is not just the quantity of
provision that is important, but also the quality and type of provision. Some surfaces are not conducive

to all types of sport, likewise, new surfaces are being developed such as new third-generation pitches.
Therefore, it is important to keep updated with technological developments when seeking to provide new
developments or re-surfacing existing provision.

77



2 :
i

/7
i

Health and Fitness

Overview

Health and fitness centres are popular with people attending these facilities for a
variety of reasons including general health and well being, and weight loss.

The District Council has five Leisure Centres with St Ivo Leisure Centre providing
the largest number (75 stations - including free weights room). There are a range
of other providers across the district providing almost twice as much provision
as the council, with RAF Alconbury the largest provider of 100 stations.

Is there sufficient provision within Huntingdonshire?
The adopted local standard for fitness stations has been applied to the
quantitative data available and is summarised below.

Facility Type Local Standards | Required level of Current level
of Provision per | provision based on of Provision
1000 population | suggested standards | (2008)
(population 168,200)
Fitness Stations | 3.6 stations 605 586

Notes: Almost 40% of these facilities are in HDC leisure centres. At the time
of the survey there was a shortfall of 19 fitness stations. Since the survey new
fitness stations are being developed within HDC leisure centres.

Predicted provision requirements are calculated as follows:

Facility Type Local Standards | Provision based on Current level
of Provision per |standards (predicted | of Provision
1000 population | population 188,400) |(2008)
Fitness Stations | 3.6 stations 678 586

Notes: Increasing demand for fitness stations set to continue.

Future Options:

The Sports Facilities Standards Report highlights that communities living in the
four main settlements all have access to fitness stations within a 20 minute walk-
time. Furthermore, the deficit / surplus table above does not take into account
provision located outside of the district. Those residents living on the edge of
Huntingdonshire may seek to use facilities outside of the district. Harper's in
Wyboston attracts significant use from residents in and around the St Neots
area, important when considering the projected growth within this location.

Residents in the north of the district have easy access to Fitness Express on the
outskirts of Peterborough.

/8



Concerning council provision, each of the five leisure centres have ‘Impressions Fitness Suites. The Sports
Facilities Standards Report states that all of the leisure centres are in reasonable condition, but none of
them are fully DDA compliant, unsurprising given that the majority were built in the mid 1970's-early
1980's. Therefore, the council proposes to commit investment into these facilities to ensure that the quality
of the facilities offered and the fabric of the buildings continue to meet users expectations given that
increasing demand for fitness stations is set to continue.

20

79



Outdoor Grass Pitches, Courts and Greens.

Overview

Outdoor sports pitches, courts and greens provide a range of sporting
opportunities for all ages. Usage levels are dependent upon the quality of the
facility. This is particularly important for grass pitches where heavy usage can be
to the detriment of the pitch quality.

The Council's Playing Pitch Strategy, undertaken in 2006 as part of the Planning
Policy Guidance 17 assessment, identified all known provision as follows:

- 88 adult football pitches

« 54 junior football pitches

- 14 mini soccer pitches

- 43 cricket pitches

- 7 adult rugby pitches

- 7 junior rugby pitches

- 1 junior rugby league pitch
- 8x 18 hole golf courses

- 2 x6lane athletics tracks

Is there sufficient provision within Huntingdonshire?

A detailed Playing Pitch Strategy has been completed by PMP Consultants in
2006. Within this, Sport England’s Playing Pitch Methodology has been used

to identify surplus / deficits in provision. However it should be noted that the
overview of provision outlined above does not identify seasonal and temporal
variations in pitch usage, an important factor when considering grass pitch
provision. Furthermore, the analysis of provision is based upon the peak load of
games to be played at a specific time during the week (i.e. am or pm on a day).

However, for some sports such as mini-soccer it may be possible to spread the
games during the course of a Sunday morning and therefore not require the
maximum number of pitches. The calculations take into account the capacity

of pitches available. Improvements to pitch quality would increase the number
of games a pitch is able to sustain (capacity) and would therefore reduce any
shortfalls. (Refer to the Council’s Playing Pitch Strategy for a detailed overview of
the assessment process)

With regard to current outdoor pitch provision, key findings include:

- there is an oversupply of full size adult football pitches on the identified peak
day across the district

- there is an undersupply of junior football pitches on the identified peak day
and a large undersupply of mini-soccer pitches on the peak day

- there is a slight shortfall of cricket pitches on the identified peak day

- there is an undersupply of both adult rugby union pitches and junior rugby
pitches on the identified peak day

80



Concerning future provision, as is the current situation, the most severe pitch shortage is of mini soccer
pitches. In 2021, there will be a shortage of these pitches in all of the analysis areas in the district, whilst
there will be a surplus of provision of adult football pitches.

Future Options:
The Local Investment Framework identifies the potential need for an additional 49.6 ha of outdoor grass
pitches, courts and greens across the district, with slightly less than half of this being required within St Neots.

In terms of addressing this need, whilst the current quantity of pitches in Huntingdonshire secured for
community use is high, there remain some pitches at school sites that are not dual use facilities at the
present time and access to these facilities could provide a vital community resource, both in terms of
access to open space (particularly in smaller settlements where there is limited provision) but more
specifically through meeting the demand for pitch provision.

The Council should seek to secure section 106 contributions to improve the quality of existing outdoor
playing fields or alternative sporting provision in the district and provide new ones where a shortfall

has been identified. Developers cannot be asked to make up existing deficiencies, only to contribute to
those caused by or exacerbated by their development. This is particularly relevant when considering the
potential for new provision within the growth area of St Neots.

The quality of outdoor grass pitches, courts and greens vary across the district. Key sites to consider
improving, based on poor quality identified within the Planning Policy Guidance 17 Assessment include:

Market Towns: Stukeley Meadows Primary School (Huntingdon)
Town Hall Pitch (Ramsey)
Longsands College — St Neots

Key Centres: Adam Lyons Recreation Field (Warboys)
Fenstanton Sports Facility

Smaller Settlements:  Great Stukeley Sports Facility
Southoe Football Pitch
Broughton Sports Facility
Colne Sports Facility
Ashbeach — Ramsey St Marys
Abbotsley Sports Pitch
Hail Weston New Town Sports Area
Thornhill Estates Archery Fields — Offords
Yelling Cricket Club

4.4 Other Sports Facilities in Huntingdonshire

In addition to the headline facilities outlined in 4.3, there is a diverse range of additional sporting provision
located within Huntingdonshire, including facilities such as horse riding schools and outdoor water sports
facilities. Water sports in particular are important locally with a number of sites and clubs providing a
good infrastructure of water sports venues, together with the River Ouse which flows through the district.
In the quest to encourage physical activity, the potential contribution of water sports should not be
underestimated.

22

81



5. Facility Prioritisation Work

Section 1.3 of this strategy outlined a number of key considerations that need
to be addressed by this strategy, and in view of the information provided within
sections 3 and 4, recommendations are now made to address the districts
sporting requirements.

5.1 “Sports facilities that need to be preserved and maintained because of
identified strategic need”

The following existing facilities and clubs have been identified as being
strategically important to the district, and should therefore be maintained and
enhanced:

St Ivo Leisure Centre (Community Leisure Centre)
St Ivo Outdoor Centre (Community Leisure Centre)
St Neots Leisure Centre (Community Leisure Centre)
Huntingdon Leisure Centre (Community Leisure Centre)
Ramsey Leisure Centre (Community Leisure Centre)
Sawtry Leisure Centre (Community Leisure Centre)
Hinchingbrooke School (Specialist Sports College)
Huntingdon Gymnastics Club (Gymnastics)
Grafham Water Centre (Water sports)

Paxton Lakes Sailing Club (Sailing)

Hunts Sailing Club (Sailing)

Kimbolton School (Multi-sports)

Hemingford Sports Pavilion (Squash)

Huntingdon Tennis Club (Indoor Tennis)

St Neots Table Tennis Club (Table Tennis)

St Neots Town Football Club (Artificial Turf Pitch)

St Ives Rugby Club (Rugby Union)

St Neots Rugby Club (Rugby Union)

St Neots Rowing Club (Rowing)

Jubilee Park, Huntingdon (Football)

Somersham Town Football Club (Football)'

Stilton FC (Football)!

Sawtry Colts (Football)'

Warboys Colts (Football)’

Ramsey Town Colts (Football)'

Little Paxton Colts (Football)'

Godmanchester Town Cricket Club (Cricket)?

St Ives Town Cricket Club (Cricket)?

"Identified as a priority by the Huntingdonshire Football Association
2 |dentified as a priority by the Huntingdonshire Cricket Board

82




5.2 “Existing sports facilities that need to be repaired, upgraded/improved to meet identified
strategic need”

Significant investment has been made to sports facilities across the district in recent years and more is
planned, as shown within Appendix 7. It is particularly important that leisure centres are maintained to
a high standard given that they provide a range of sporting facilities including swimming, indoor hall
provision and fitness stations.

Appendix 7a provides a summary of condition survey spending at each of the five district council leisure
centres for the period 2007 to 2011.

A further condition survey will be undertaken in 2009 and this will provide a clear strategic framework for
the management and maintenance of leisure centre facilities until 2016, and this is important given the
high level of satisfaction regarding leisure centre provision within the district.

Aside from leisure centres, it is important that the quality of all sports facilities are maintained to a

suitable standard to ensure high quality, fit-for-purpose sporting opportunities are available within
Huntingdonshire. Furthermore, all facilities should comply with the Disability Discrimination Act (1995).

As a result of this act, service providers have had to make reasonable adjustments for disabled people,
such as providing extra help or making changes to the way they provide their services since October 1999.
Service providers have also had to make reasonable adjustments to the physical features of their premises
to overcome physical barriers since October 2004.

Another important consideration is that all existing sports facilities should seek to improve energy
efficiency. Similarly, all new projects should aim to minimise energy usage and consider the potential
impact on climate change. It is also important that all council maintained sites fully embrace the
recommendations made within the Huntingdonshire District Council Environment Strategy.

Within Appendix 5, a number of priority sporting and leisure projects have been identified including
improvements to a number of existing facilities, examples being the redevelopment of St Neots Table
Tennis Club and Huntingdon Gymnastics Club.

24

83



5.3“Any new sports facilities that may be required to meet identified
strategic need, and proposed sites for where these facilities should
be located”

Section 4 identified that there is a lack of fit-for-purpose sports halls within
Huntingdonshire, particularly within Sawtry and Ramsey. Furthermore, there is
the potential requirement for additional swimming pool provision, with St Neots
identified as a possible location based on projected population growth.

Given the national agenda for encouraging participation in sport linked to
positive health benefits, it is important that existing facilities are of a suitable
standard to encourage participation. Linked to the health agenda, there

is a need for more trim trails/active places/outdoor gyms, as shown in 5.4 -
increasing this form of provision will hopefully encourage more 16 to 34 years to
participate in sport, addressing the concerns raised in section 3.3.

One of the key aspects of the local consultation that has been conducted is that
there is general satisfaction with the quantity of sporting provision within the
district. However, a lack of provision and access to high quality training pitches
and ancillary facilities was identified as key barriers to participation.

Therefore, new training facilities are required within the district to address this
and changing facilities have been identified as priorities for football clubs such
as Ramsey FC (particularly the colts site), Sawtry FC and Stilton FC. The Cambs
Horizons Major Sports Facility Strategy (2006) and the Cambridgeshire Sports
Facility Strategy (2008) also identify the need for a specialist minimum 2 lane
indoor cricket facility to address the lack of adequate indoor cricket practice
facilities. These key regional documents also highlight the need for an 8 court
sports hall, as well as the need for a‘dojo’ specialist martial arts facility.

84



5.4"“Sites where new facilities are required to meet identified strategic need”

Based on existing facility provision and utilising the database that was compiled to identify facilities across
the district (highlighted in 4.1), settlements identified as priorities are summarised below:

Settlement High Priority Medium Priority Low Priority
St Neots -Trim Trails/Active -Athletics Track
Places/Outdoor Gyms (synthetic), Indoor Tennis
Huntingdon
St lves - Synthetic Turf Pitch - Trim Trails/Active
Places/Outdoor Gyms
Yaxley - Qutdoor Tennis Courts | - Trim Trails/Active
Places/Outdoor Gyms
Godmanchester - Qutdoor Tennis Courts | - Trim Trails/Active
Places/Outdoor Gyms

Ramsey (town)

- Football Grass Pitches
(Adult, Junior, Mini)

Sawtry - Football Grass Pitches | - Trim Trails/Active
(Adult, Junior, Mini) Places/Outdoor Gyms
- Outdoor Cricket Pitch
- Outdoor Tennis Court
Brampton - Trim Trails/Active
Places/Outdoor Gyms
- Tennis Courts
Warboys
Little Paxton - Outdoor / lawn bowls
Stilton - Football Grass Pitches

(Adult, Junior, Mini)

These settlements have been identified based on the fact that they are large enough to support additional
provision, none currently exist, or the need for new facilities is identified within other strategies or through
engagement with sports clubs and organisations. It should be noted that this information is continually
being updated as knowledge of new provision emerges, and this impacts upon which settlements are

prioritised for new facilities.

85

26




5.5“A priority for future investment”

Appendix 5 outlines known sporting and leisure facilities projects within the
district. Within this matrix, projects at Ramsey Football Club, Godmanchester
Town Cricket Club, Huntingdon Gymnastics Club, St Neots Table Tennis Club,

St Ives Golf Club, Paxton Lakes Sailing Club, St Neots Leisure Centre and St Ivo
Outdoor Leisure Centre are identified as highest priority projects based on local
strategic need, sustainability and current / potential participation.

A sports hierarchy has been developed to assist with the prioritisation of any future
investment within the district. This hierarchy is summarised below and has been
developed based on assessments made by Huntingdonshire District Council, with
the priority level based on club infrastructure, current and potential participation
levels, and facilities on offer (refer to Appendix 6 for a detailed overview).

Sporting types Priority
Football, golf, swimming, cricket 1
Squash, tennis, athletics, gymnastics, rugby union, 2
netball, rowing, sailing, martial arts

Hockey, bowls, basketball, canoeing, cycling, table 3

tennis, equestrian, badminton
Angling, archery, boxing, fencing, judo, rugby league, |4
volleyball

Triathlon 5

This shows that football, golf, swimming and cricket are the highest priority
facilities within the district. Priority levels were calculated based on club
infrastructure, current and potential participation levels and facilities available.
Future investment should seek to address facilities where there is clear potential
for improvement. For instance, there is scope for tennis to improve its overall
priority classification by having greater levels of participation which can be
encouraged through improved facilities and better access to some tennis courts.
Accessibility is an important consideration within the district; in many instances
it is not the quality of the provision that limits participation, instead it is a lack of
accessibility that acts as the key barrier.

Future priorities should seek to address this issue of access. Another case-in-
point of this is rugby union, with current participation levels good given the
limited number of clubs in the district. However, there is scope for improving
the working relationship between schools, clubs and the council to encourage
even greater levels of accessibility to playing rugby. Therefore, future
investment should not simply focus on providing new facilities, but looking at
wider issues of access and capacity to increase participation.

Linked to participation, future investment also needs to contribute towards
achieving the Local Area Agreement target of 1.5% growth in National Indicator
8 (as detailed within 3.2).

86



5.6 “Those facilities that need to be expanded or redeveloped to meet identified strategic need
and a timetable for any proposed sports-developments”

Appendix 5 provides an overview of future sports and leisure projects within the district. This table
provides details of projects that will help to improve existing facilities.

5.7 “Future opportunities for disinvestment in or redevelopment of existing sports facilities
in Huntingdonshire, as a result of under-use and perceived lack of future demand or
inappropriateness”

At present, community engagement suggests that satisfaction levels concerning sport and leisure facilities
are high, and most of the available evidence is that there is demand for existing facilities. Furthermore,
given that there is a deficit in provision of most headline facilities (section 4.3), it is important that these
facilities are protected and enhanced. Therefore, demand should be continually assessed by monitoring of
national, regional and local trends as well as participation levels.

28

87



29

WLy
\\\\ ////

-

6. Strategic Overview

The district’s future sporting requirements have been set out in section 5. In support
of this, there is a need to establish a set of clear policy recommendations to help
guide long-term decisions that are made about sports facility provision.

6.1 Policy Recommendations

1a: Seek to maximise section 106 contributions and Community Infrastructure
Levy tariff to enhance sports facilities across the district through the creation of a
Supplementary Planning Document within the Local Development Framework
to secure contributions from housing developers.

Outcome: Contributions from housing developers to maintain and enhance
sport and recreation facilities.

Timetable: On-going.

1b: Seek to maximise external funding, grant aid or sponsorship contributions to
enhance sports facilities in the district.

Outcome: Reduced pressure on limited funding sources.

Timetable: On-going.

2: Embed the local standards advocated within this strategy into key documents
such as the Local Development Framework and Local Investment Framework.
Outcome: High quality provision through new or improved sports facilities, as a
result of engaging with the planning framework to ensure that provision meets
strategic need.

Timetable: Complete by June 20009.

3: Encourage the retention of all 'strategically important sports facilities’ as
highlighted in section 5.1.

Outcome: Maintain a mix of strategically important facilities.

Timetable: On-going.

4: Given the current level of provision and identified need there

is a long-term need to retain existing sports halls within the district.
Outcome: Public access to sports halls with indoor facilities for a range of
sports activities.

Timetable: On-going.

5: To have regard to the recommendations made within the Local Investment
Framework as it relates to new areas of growth.

Outcome: Potential new provision to meet demands within growth areas.
Timetable: On-going.

88



6: Ensure all council Leisure Centres provide facilities that are fit-for-purpose.
Outcome: High quality leisure provision that continues to meet the needs of all users.
Timetable: On-going.

7: Encourage the retention of good quality outdoor sports facilities.
Outcome: High quality pitches that meets the needs of users.
Timetable: On-going.

8: Seek to encourage greater use of all existing sports facilities irrespective of whether they are school,
local authority or privately run.

Outcome: Enhanced access to existing facilities.

Timetable: On-going.

9: Work with neighbouring Local Authorities to identify key facilities that are located outside of
Huntingdonshire that benefit this district. Consult with neighbouring councils when planning to
improve or provide new facilities.

Outcome: Enhanced understanding of facility provision within the county and surrounding boundries,
and increased sharing of information.

Timetable: On-going.

10: Work with other sports and leisure facility providers to seek improvements in sports provision and
encourage participation in sport.

Outcome: A comprehensive range of sports facilities within the district.

Timetable: On-going.

11: The district council does not currently have any dedicated funding for sports applications. In
considering requests for support, the council will critically evaluate the contribution of the club and the
associated club facilities in light of this strategy and wider council objectives, within the resources available.
Outcome: High quality, accessible leisure provision.

Timetable: On-going.

This Strategy has been produced by Huntingdonshire District Council working in partnership with the following consultant:

jones plus limited*

@ | Consultant: Alex Jones
®® | e-mail: jonesplusltd@yahoo.co.uk
eoe
XX X
(X X X J
[ X X J

30

89



Appendix 1:

Sports Facilities Strategy Task Group:

Elected Members:
Executive Councillor for Leisure Centres - Clir Doug Dew
Deputy Leader of the Council - Cllr Mike Simpson

Officers:

Leisure Development Manager - Jo Peadon

Lifestyle Manager — Chris Lloyd

Director of Environmental & Community Services — Malcolm Sharp (Chairman)
Leisure Centres General Manager - Simon Bell

Operations Service Development Manager - John Craig

Head of Environmental & Community Health - Dr Sue Lammin

90




Appendix 2:

Key Local Policy Documents

i. Huntingdonshire’s Community Strategy

The Huntingdonshire Local Strategic Partnership (HLSP) includes a number of organisations and
community representatives formed to improve the area. This partnership includes key partners from the
public, private and voluntary sector, including:

Huntingdonshire District Council
NHS Cambridgeshire
- Cambridgeshire Community Service
- Cambridgeshire County Council
- Cambridgeshire Police
Local businesses
- Voluntary Sector Organisations

One of the major tasks undertaken by the HLSP was the development, implementation and on-going
monitoring of a’‘Community Strategy’— a key document that outlines how members of the HLSP will work
in partnership to improve the quality of life in the area.

Huntingdonshire's Community Strategy’s long term vision is based on what local people have told the
council is important for them now and in the future, which is:

Huntingdonshire is a place where current and future generations have a good quality of life and can:

- Make the most of opportunities that come from living in a growing and developing district;
Enjoy the benefits of continued economic success;
- Access suitable homes, jobs, services, shops, culture and leisure opportunities;
Realise their full potential;
- Maintain the special character of our market towns, villages and countryside; and
Live in an environment that is safe and protected from the effects of climate change and where valuable
natural resources are used wisely.

To support this Huntingdonshire District Council will strive to:

-« Make the most of the opportunities that come from growth by promoting the development of
sustainable communities;
Enable people to realise their full potential and have access to suitable homes, jobs and services;
- Work towards achieving a balance between social, economic and environmental needs;
- Maintain ‘excellent’ standards.

ii. Growing Success - Corporate Plan

Huntingdonshire District Council is responsible for promoting the economic, social and environmental well
being of its communities, with the desired objective of achieving a good quality of life. This is achieved by
delivering actions and principles established within the Community Strategy.

91



'Growing Success'is Huntingdonshire District Council’s Corporate Plan and
details how the Council will achieve its part of the Community Strategy. It is
based on detailed community engagement so that the council can identify local
communities' needs.'Growing Success'identifies aims that the council will work
towards, and details how these aims will be delivered.

iii. Local Development Framework (LDF)

This is one of the principle vehicles for achieving the corporate plan. It is a
spatial plan that goes beyond traditional land use planning to bring together
and integrate policies for the development and use of land with other policies
and programmes which influences the nature of places and how they function.
The LDF consists of a number of documents including a core strategy and
development control policies which together set out a spatial strategy to
manage the amount and direction of growth and policies to help guide

and judge that development. It also includes a document identifying where
allocations for development will occur.

iv. Huntingdonshire Local Investment Framework (HLIF)

The Council commissioned a joint consultancy team, led by EDAW plc, to
undertake an in-depth study into the physical and social infrastructure needs,
including sports facilities, arising from the projected population growth within
the district. The HLIF was produced to assist and inform the development of the
Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework.

The HLIF divides the district into five key areas of Huntingdon, Yaxley, Ramsey,
St lves and St Neots, enabling for more detailed analysis of social infrastructure
demand. For each area, priorities and demands are identified up until 2026
and the report provides information relating to leisure and recreation facilities
including swimming pools, sports halls, indoor bowls halls, artificial turf pitches
and outdoor sports facilities.

v. Huntingdonshire Cultural Strategy

This strategy sets out Huntingdonshire District Council’s key targets and
aspirations for culture between 2007 and 2010. It provides a distinctive vision
for the development of cultural activities, facilities and services and focuses

on improving the quality of life and wellbeing of Huntingdonshire's residents,
workers and visitors through the provision and development of cultural
activities, events and facilities and by helping to achieve other quality of life
goals such as providing lifelong learning opportunities, improving health,
stimulating economic development and helping to improve safety within local
communities.

92



The strategy contains a comprehensive action plan with detailed outputs, outcomes and targets, which
establishes a partnership-based approach to sustaining, developing and improving the cultural life of
the district. The action plan will be monitored on a quarterly and annual basis. Huntingdonshire District
Council has initiated this Strategy but its implementation requires the co-operation and partnership of
many people, organisations and groups in the public, voluntary and commercial sectors. It has been
developed as a strategy for the district and not a service plan for the council.

vi. Sports Facilities Standards Report (2008)

A need to develop and adopt local sports facility standards was identified through national best practice.
As an aid to this, Strategic Leisure Limited undertook a comprehensive review of existing sports facility
provision and identified future needs based on predicted population growth using Sport England’s
nationally recognised model the ‘Sports Facility Calculator’ Their research focused on indoor sports facilities
(swimming pools, sports halls, health and fitness facilities, indoor bowls) and artificial turf pitches, and this
work has helped inform the development of this strategy.

vii. Open Space, Sport and Recreation Needs Assessment (2006)

The Open Space, Sport and Recreation Needs Assessment and Audit was undertaken by PMP consultants.
The study covers informal open space, outdoor recreation facilities, children’s play areas, allotments

and outdoor sports pitch provision. The study was produced primarily to inform the planning process.
Planning Policy Guidance 17 requires local authorities to carry out a needs assessment and audit of
provision to inform the development of local standards for the provision of open space. The study
identifies deficiencies and surpluses of provision and their spatial distribution.

93



Appendix 3: Community Engagement

Sport England - Active People Survey (2005 - 2008)

Sport England have undertaken two Active People Survey'’s since October 2005.
The purpose of this survey was to identify the percentage of adults who are very
or fairly satisfied with sports provision within their local area.

The first survey undertaken between October 2005 to October 2006, showed
that 73.9% of people were very or fairly satisfied with sports provision. The
repeat survey undertaken in 2007 — 2008 saw this figure rise slightly to 75.3%.
When these results are compared with neighbouring authorities within
Cambridgeshire, Huntingdonshire has the highest levels of satisfaction, as
demonstrated below. Furthermore, this authority is the only one which had

an increase in satisfaction when comparing the second survey with the initial
consultation. These figures are also higher than the national average which was
calculated as 67.5%.

Local Authority Survey 1(2005/2006) | Survey 2 (2007/2008)
Huntingdonshire 73.9% 75.3%
South Cambridgeshire 73.9% 72.7%
Cambridge 72.7% 70.7%
Peterborough UA 70.4% 64.3%
East Cambridgeshire 69.1% 64.0%
Fenland 65.1% 62.2%

Customer Satisfaction Survey 2006/07 (Best Value General Survey)

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) requires

all local authorities to undertake customer satisfaction surveys every three
years. Questionnaires were sent to 2,500 addresses within the district (49%
return rate), and questions focused on a range of factors that impact on the
residents of Huntingdonshire. With regard to sports and leisure facilities, 67%
of respondents were satisfied with sports / leisure facilities and events, with
only 10% dissatisfied. The level of satisfaction has increased since the previous
consultation undertaken in 2003/04, with sports/leisure facilities now having a
satisfaction rate which is six percentage points higher.

Concerning usage of the districts facilities, 37% of respondents stated that they
used sports / leisure facilities at least once a month, but more than 1in 5 people
(22%) had never used sports / leisure facilities.

Those who use sports / leisure facilities were generally more satisfied than those
who do not. To illustrate, those classed as non-users of the sports/leisure facilities
and events (those who have never used them or last used them more than a
year ago) had a satisfaction level of 50%, which is almost 30% lower than the
satisfaction level among those who were users (77%).

When asked whether sports / leisure facilities had improved over the last three
years, 17% of respondents stated that they had improved, whilst 8% stated that
they had got worse.

94



When asked what needs improving locally, the second most popular answer in 2006/2007 was activities
for teenagers (36% of the 1227 individuals who responded). The levels of residents who thought that this
aspect was among those which most needed improving in 2006/7 were also similar to the levels in 2003/4,
when 39% of respondents highlighted activities for teenagers.

Planning Policy Guidance 17 Assessment - undertaken by PMP Consultants (2006)

As the part of the district-wide audit, 5000 households were given the opportunity to comment on

the overall provision, quality and accessibility of open space, sport and recreation facilities within
Huntingdonshire. The questionnaire was distributed according to the total population living in each
analysis area ensuring that geographically representative samples of residents living in the district were
able to comment. In total, 565 postal surveys were returned and supporting this postal questionnaire was
a number of community drop-in sessions.

The results from this showed that one in four people (25.7%) had visited outdoor sports facilities more
than once a month, with an additional 24% visiting less than once a month. One in two people (50.3%) of
respondents did not use outdoor sports facilities, indicating that there is a need to seek to encourage more
people to actively participate in sport.

The main mode of transport of respondents using outdoor sports facilities was via car (63%). The most
frequent travel time to the facility was between five and ten minutes (37%), followed by between 11 and
14 minutes (29%). This indicates that people are willing to travel to reach their chosen facility. This was
influenced by the overall type of facility, with more people expecting to drive to synthetic pitches. This
information is important to consider when planning additional facility provision that will be required to
meet future increases in population within Huntingdonshire.

There are mixed views regarding the overall quantity of provision in Huntingdonshire, with similar
proportions feeling the quantity of provision was about right to the proportion who felt provision was not
enough. This is likely to be reflective of the vast array of facilities that the outdoor sports facilities typology
covers. Further analysis of the household survey response suggested that perceived shortfalls particularly
relate to the provision of tennis and synthetic pitches.

Cambridgeshire Quality of Life Survey 2006 - The Cambridgeshire Joint Consultation Partnership
Postal questionnaires were sent to a random sample of 7,500 households across the county, and

3206 responses were received. These responses were weighted based on population within each of
Cambridgeshire's districts.

Within Huntingdonshire, a total of 671 completed questionnaires were returned (45% response rate). With
regard to facility provision, when asked to assess how easy it is to get to a sports / leisure centre, more than
2 in 3 people (69%) of Huntingdonshire residents stated that it is very / fairly easy. This figure compared
favourably to the county wide response of 64%.

Huntingdonshire Leisure Centre User Surveys
User Surveys were carried out at all five of the council’s leisure centres to assess usage patterns and needs.
When asked whether there are any facilities/services that could be improved, the most common answers
were ‘changing rooms/showers’and ‘equipment.

95



17.4% of users at Huntingdon Leisure Centre wanted improved changing
facilities, more than twice as many people than at Sawtry Leisure Centre (8.6%),
and Ramsey (6.5%).

24.2% of users at St Neots wanted improved equipment; with better gym
facilities and a larger pool the most commonly cited factors. In contrast, only 3%
wanted improved equipment at St Ives Indoor Leisure Centre.

Huntingdonshire District Council Sports Club Survey (2005)

A sports club survey was undertaken by the council to all known football, cricket,
rugby, hockey, tennis and bowls clubs during 2005, with a total of 62 clubs
responding to this questionnaire.

Responses indicated that 77% of the clubs felt that number and availability of
pitches met the demand within the district. In line with this, 47.6% of clubs rated
the availability of pitches in the district as very good or excellent. This related to
an average score of 3.42 (out of 5) and a modal score of 4 (very good). 59.7% of
clubs rated the accessibility of pitches as very good or excellent. This relates to
an average score of 3.61 (out of 5) and a modal score of 4 (very good).

Sports clubs generally felt that the quality of pitch provision in the district was of
a good standard. The only aspect that scored less than average was training area.
Most clubs did not possess a training area and hence scored this as zero. Similar
to the scores given for pitch quality factors, the scores given for ancillary facilities
were good, with only cycle parking scoring below average. Consultation
suggests that access to training facilities is a key issue, with only limited slots
available at synthetic pitches for clubs wishing to train midweek. There are

few floodlit training areas and teams struggle to access facilities between the
peak hours of 6 and 9pm, particularly at the leisure centres where there is high
demand for facilities.

96



Appendix 4: Spatial distribution of headline facilities

/’_-\
~Huntingdonshire

ODIESTRIET B0 0NEL

Sports Halls

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright Scale: 1:218009
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322 oz

97



I-'/-:*«
~Huntingdonshire

21 ETRIET SOUNEINL

Swiming Pools

98



/‘\
~Huntingdonshire

BIBTRIGT BEOULNETL

Indoor Bowls

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright Scale: 1:218009
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322 . e

99



/_'\
~Huntingdonshire

DIESTRICT EO0bDNElL

Synthetic Turf Pitches

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HOC 100022322 ; o

100



I-[/-:*/a‘
~Huntingdonshire

B ETRICT COUNEINTL

Health & Fitness

frea 4 reproduction infringes Crown ght and may lead to p o or civl proceedings. HDC 1000: ; ocale; |.£ 1 J

101



"A3[XeA 01 [9ARIY
01 9ARY Ajjua1Ind -
SaNI|IDe) S|geUIRISNS

AJ|EIUSWIUOIIAUD BunybIpool4
JO pasu ul gnpd ebniy
Buidoonrsp v abeulei(
SaNss| "9be||IA BUIAISS uol|ined
A[IgIssade |einy AJ1|12B) 9AIIRUISYE OU / swooi buibueyd ¢ anp
wnipay 4 z ¢ 9)0U JO SUON UOo1JIAS | Se 1auag AJunwiuiod) 000'007% sayoud maN | sgn|D suods [[EGI004 UOY|INS
[2A3] Jotun(
urewo( pue Npe 1e piodal
1UsWUOIIAUg ¥2BJ1 |NySS300NS SI9N dLN [[e3su] gnD 121D umo|
ybiy € ¢ 14 BUIAIT | 121S3UydURWIPOD) Y1M gn|> poon 000'0€73 | asnoyqgn|D apeibdn | sqniD suods 19153duUPWPOD)
SaNss|
A[IgIssadoe |einy palinbai ||e bunue|d
'S9INIDS abe|jIA buinias 'ssa00e ‘@beulel(
pue BulsNoH SPIOYO aYy | AlljIDe) 9AIIBUISYE OU JEN p|al4 Uol1eaiday
wnipsy 4 € z 01 sIaliieg 1 USPSURID | SE 1Yausg AUNWWoD) 000'001F | uoneanaldopAsg |  Anunwiuwiod SPIOYO
SaNss|
AJ[IqIssad2e |einy anp
'SDINIDS AJUNUWWoD) aWod3q
pue buisnoH 01 |elIua10d swooy buibueyd siolunr/gnpD
wnipa € z 4 01 sIallieg Alwmes | uonedidipied asealnu| puepiRl4 | sgnpD syodg 2100 Aiames
ulPWO SWOodU|
‘urewoq Aujigesiq
15 uoneaudaq
YiesH
‘urewlo bujurel|
19 S[|1YS ‘UoledINP] s109(0ud
'SaNss| d1eledas omy 1o
AMjIgIssad2e |einy 1u10[ 3U0 3 Aepy
'SDINIDS anp AlunwiuoD Sal|1oe4 AlejIDuy anpD Ynox
synpe ¢ pue BuisnoH SW0D3q 01 |el1UI0( sal|Ioe) buibueyd Asswiey 5 gnpD
ybiH ¢ z S10d € 01 siauleg Aoswiey | uonedipiled aseainu| asnoygnD | sqniD suodg ||eg1004 Aasuury
|ennusyod (mo7- 1L
13 uaLIND /YBIH - €)
(moq-1 (moq- L saljuold
/4BIH-€) | /YBIH -€) /P3N (pareWNSd)
Awoud uon Ajqe BISEM:INS uoneaudag juswdo|aAag | s9jedsawl] 1502 uonesiuebiQ
|e>o7 | -edpided -uleisng [e207 JO S221pU| piepm suods | pajewnsy | 123foud jejog Krewwns 129(oid jo adA) 123(0.d

s1o9foid ainsia| pue syiods aining :g xipuaddy

102



padojansp

Bulag 95IN0D) |05
ybIH V/N V/N V/N V/N V/N 01/600¢ 30y gL MaN | sqnpD siiods ani> 4105 S9A1IS
‘UMO1
3oy JO 3pIsINo uopbuRUNH UIYIM
buike|d pue bujueln A3D0Y 104 3|qe3INS anpD Aaxo0H
z z z Apuaund gnpp 000'005F | dLSazis [njaunbay | sgniD suods uopbununy
“UMOY DU} Ul S2111|108)
1330 buisn dwoy
UMO SABY O aY| 31IS W0y pa1edipsp anp Agbny
14 14 l pinom gn|D 10} Bupjoo| A|gIssod | sgnpD suods uopbununpy
‘uolredoiped
4O S|9A9] ybly Bunsixg
'Sal|10e) Ale||pue
pue buibueyd
Jo0d Ag umop
19| 3MS pOOD)
SaNss| ‘gn|p AuUNuwod Sa1|10ey Aej|dUe 3
AJ[IqIssad2e |einy AINgxg | dwWo0d3q 01 |elIua10d SaN|10ey Kepp 26104 ‘platq
wnipa z | ¢ 910U JO SUON sfkogJepn | “uoiedipiied asealdu puibueyd MaN pauIquiod sp10dg sfkoquep
uonedpnied
35eaIdUl [[IM
Aujioe) anbiun
9DU3)|90%3 JO e) bunsixa gn|D sluusl
ybIH 4 14 € 213U9) 99 O} [elIUS10d 600¢ 000'06€F | JOuswWdoASPaY | sqn|D s1odsS 9|geL SI09N IS
uonedpnied
958310U] [|IM $S922NS
3|9 JO pI0d3l Dkl | SalM|Ioe) BuSIXd gnpD sonseu
ybIH < z ¢ 9DU3||90XF JO 213UdD 01/6002 000000'v% | jouswdoppaspay | sgnjD sHods | -WAD uopbupunyy
3NSS| Ue Sa31|10e)
19y10 03 Aywixold -
Uo[ed07 ‘pasu Sa|1Dey
[EUOIIINPA pPauyaq sp0ds mau yim ab9|10D
10349 JuedYIubIS yooigbulydUIH uonesnp3 [euoibay
wnips 4 4 z 3/eY 0} [PRUSIO 11/010T 0} UO1BD0[3Y JEINIE uopbununy
|ennuszod (mo-1
18 JUSLIND /UBIH - €)
(moq-1 (moq- L saljuold
JUBIH-€) | /UBIH -€) /P3N (pa1ewnss)
Ayoud uon Ajqe BI[SEM:IMN uoneaudag juswdo|aAdg | S9jedsawl] 150D uopnesiuebiQ
|e>o7 | -edpided -uieisng |e207 J0O S921pU| piepm suods | pajewnsy | 1d23foud je1og Krewwns 129(oid JLETIS] 123f0ud

103



19U 123D21UD Joopul

anio

L 14 4 Aaswey W13-000'00S3 aue|{ oz jjeasul | sqnpD suods 19321D) Aasuuey
‘uoisinold
SSaUIY pasealdul
pue 1onpoid
SuaIp|Iyd ‘8ydaId
‘Buiiaed ‘uondadal
01 SyuawaAoidwll
K|9¥1] pue ‘abuey ENIED) (Joopur) a1uaD)
4 4 L (YanoS) s9A1S 0L0¢ 0000093 | 9y JO UOISISAUOD 2INSIo] 2INs|a OA[1S
DIE]
215 216 asnoyagn|d ‘safl|ioey}
-91e415 £33 99 p|nom spiods buipnjpul a1s anp
z 14 z Aimes UYL gD SIUNH M3U 0} UoledoRY | sqn|D suods 19301 Almes
(Y1IoN) 1Jauaq ued Hpooy ‘saydud EHEYD) ENNEREINEY]
WnIpay 4 € L uopbuunH -4Iubis 10§ [enua10d 60/800¢ 0000513 dpls-e-gHEX T 2INSIo] uopbununy
AKema|dAd
“Sied Jed ‘swool bul
-bueyd |euonippe
1yauaq 1ued ‘(A|uo 192205) y21ld CTIED) (JoopInQ) 211
ubIH € 4 € (1s9M) SIS -4IubIs 10§ [enua10d 01/600¢ we'l3 DIIBYIUAS MON QINSIST | -USD 2INSI9T OA 1S
2U0Z unj
pue Aejd 3os ‘21ns
Uieay ‘soiqolse
¥2015 BulsIxa [eUORIPPE ‘OIpNIS
Jo uona|dap oN - ssauly Jabue| - uols STIIED) STIED)
ybiH € 3 14 AingsauA3 S91I[1De} [PUONIPPY 01/600¢ wo' |3 -1noud Uy aseaunu| 2INsI 3INSI97 109N 1S
saye]
uawdolPAag ains uoiIXed 1€ syuawdo
-197 YIM SyUl| poon -|oASp/uUoisuedxa 01
"9DU3|[9IXT JO 213UdD anp anp bul
ybiH 14 14 € 3Q 01 |PlUS10d pa1ed0jal 9q Aely | sqnjD suods | -[1es saxeT uoixed
SanljIoe) Ale||id
-ue/asnoy gnpp mau
pue sai|ide) buiuiely
2In1on11s plutelAd [eUOIIPPE Y3
ybnouys ssaiboid dMS youd mau 01 A
L Z | AINQSaUA3 o1 Ajige gnpD WEF-WF | 21ed0a1 01 buUoOT] | sgnD sHodS | SI9A0Y AINQSaUAT
|ernuszod (mo1-1
'8 JUBLIND /UBIH - €)
(Mo -1 (moq-1 sojlioud
JUBIH-€) | /UBIH-€) /P3dN (parewnss)
Aiond uon Aujiqe J16918115 uoneaudag juswdo|anag | S9jedsawl] 150D uonesiuebiQ
|07 | -edipdiued -ureisns |ed07 JO S921pU| piep syodsg | pajewnsy | 123foud jeyog Krewwns 109(0id Jo 2dA] 19f0id

104



Appendix 6: Sports Typology Prioritisation Matrix

Sport

Overall

Club
Infrastr-
ucture

Participation

Facilities

Total

Information in support of the
prioritisation

Football

Golf

Swimming

Cricket

Squash

Priority
Classifi-
cation

(out of
5)

Current
(out of 5)

Potential
(out of 5)

(out of 5)

(max

4

18

County FA means resources
better on the ground for
ngb. Excellent supply of
clubs with high participation
levels. LFP and Hunts FA have
development plans.

17

Excellent supply of facilities
across the district. Some
work on going with School
Sports Partnership and
Leisure Development holiday
programmes & afterschool
programmes. Private
businesses and others require
more support.

17

5 district council swimming
facilities plus Hinchingbrooke,
Godmanchester and
Kimbolton. Good supply of
clubs with good participation
levels.

17

County Cricket Association
means resources better on
the ground for ngb. Good
supply of facilities and

clubs with junior sections.
Huntingdonshire Cricket
Board has own development
plan.

15

Hunts County Squash Club at
Hemingford pride of place but
other good facilities and clubs
including Abbotsley, SIOC, St
Neots etc.

Tennis

15

Very nearly a 1. Hunts tennis
club with indoor facilities

a good advantage for the
district. Elite performance
track record. Good supply

of clubs across the district

— facilities can be variable and
access can be variable.

105




Sport

Overall

Club
Infrastr-
ucture

Participation

Facilities

Total

Information in support of
the prioritisation

Priority
Classifi-
cation

(out of
5)

Current
(out of 5)

Potential | (out of 5)

(out of 5)

(max
20)

Athletics

2

4

14

St lvo Outdoor Centre
facilities & locally based club
— Huntingdonshire Athletics
Club & St Neots Riverside
Runners

Gymnastics

14

Huntingdon Olympic Gym
Club — ambitious club with
approved development plans.
Track record for elite athletes
and waiting lists for grass
roots participation.

Rugby
Union

14

3 good clubs across the
district although Huntingdon
require a new home.

High participation levels.

Not higher because of

ngb structure — scope for
improving schools / clubs
working relationship.

Netball

13

Lack of high quality facilities
probably holds it back but
good clubs in Hawks and
Icons. New social club starting
in St Neots. Excellent work
going on in schools with High
5.

Rowing

13

High participation levels at 3
clubs in the area — St Neots, St
lves & Huntingdon. St Neots
track record at elite level & St
lves participation in Leisure
Development holiday activity
programme

Sailing

13

Good facilities at Grafham,
Little Paxton & St Ives.

Little Paxton SC participation
in holiday programmes.

Martial Arts

13

Recognised governing body
structure required.

Hockey

12

Adequate clubs and facilities
across the district. Issue with
Huntingdon and full size
synthetic turf pitch access.
Not as strong as some of the
others but obvious potential.

106




Sport

Overall

Club
Infrastr-
ucture

Participation

Facilities

Total

Information in support of
the prioritisation

Priority
Classifi-
cation

(out of
5)

Potential
(out of 5)

Current
(out of 5)

(out of 5)

Bowls

3

Good indoor facilities in the
district and good supply of
outdoor facilities. Need to
work on junior development
but a good asset to the
district.

Basketball

Huntingdon Hawks seeking
to expand - very keen and
enthusiastic. Facilities may be
a bit limited (only 1 double
court venue) but there is
untapped potential.

Canoeing

10

Good facilities across the
district. Leisure Development
holiday programmes with
independent instructor and
Huntingdon Canoe Club.

Cycling

10

New partnership building
with British Cycling over
holiday programmes.

St Ives Cycling Club looking to
expand junior programme.

Table
Tennis

10

St Neots Table Tennis Club
provides an opportunity for
the sport in the area. Other
facilities also host and there
are a few clubs around.
Potential but limited impact
across the whole district.

Equestrian

There are facilities within the
district but limited available
information to rate higher

Badminton

Angling

Angling — Countryside
Services do some excellent
work with angling for young
people. Disabled platforms
being added to the district.
Good facilities at Gratham.

Archery

107




Sport Overall | Club Participation Facilities | Total | Information in support of
Infrastr- the prioritisation
ucture
Priority | (outof | Current | Potential | (outof 5) | (max
Classifi- | 5) (out of 5) | (out of 5) 20)
cation

Boxing 4 2 1 3 1 7 Boxing — couple of clubs
in the district and always
seem to be interest for more.
Limited access to facilities
though and always needing
support.

Fencing 4 2 1 2 1 6 Fencing — Excellent Club at St
Neots Leisure Centre. Good
track record at competition
level as well.

Judo 4 1 1 1 6

Rugby 4 1 1 2 6 1 club, no dedicated facility

League — limited potential but still
fulfils a minority interest

Volleyball |4 1 1 2 2 6

Triathlon - 0 0 0 0 0

108




Appendix 7: Sports Facilities Investment

a: Condition Survey Spending (2007- 2011)

Type of works HLC RLC SLC SNLC SILC* SIoC Total
Exterior works £207,185 | £119,240 | £64,625 £664,730 | £17,050 |£1,072,830
Sportshall £4400 | £56,595 |£22,990 £64,900 £148,885
Circulation routes and | £108,735 | £68,200 | £8,360 £122,595 | £233,860 | £541,750
general areas

Heating, ventilation £56,760 | £56,100 |£26,180 £258,115 1£9,020 £406,175
and mechanical

services

Swimming pool £37950 |£99,770 |£46,970 |£539880 |£111,760 £836,330
including changing

rooms

Astro/athletics track/ | £99,000 £66,000 |£156,200 £18,150 | £339,350
tennis courts

SNLC dryside £339,240 £339,240
refurbishment

Total £514,030 | £399,905 | £235,125 | £1,035,320 | £1,222,100 | £278,080 | £3,684,560

All figures correct at 30/01/2009
* Does not include Burgess Hall and Drama Studio

HLC Huntingdon Leisure Centre
RLC Ramsey Leisure Centre

SLC Sawtry Leisure Centre
SNLC St Neots Leisure Centre
SILC St Ivo Leisure Centre

SIOC St Ilvo Outdoor Centre

109




b: Recent Investment Sites (>£50,000)

Site Funding source | Completed £ (Total cost)
Hinchingbrooke | Football 2009 600,000
School (3G STP) Foundation
Partnership
Funding
Plus Revenue 140,000
Grant
Alconbury Sports | Football 2009 280,000
& Social Club (STP) | Foundation
St Neots HDC 2008 500,000
Leisure Centre
(Swimming Pool)
St Neots Leisure HDC 2008 330,000
Centre (Tennis/ NOF Lottery
Netball Courts)
Huntingdon HDC 2008/09 (Phased) | 1,300,000
Leisure Centre
(Gym/Sports Hall)
Priory Park, St Football 2008 500,000
Neots (Changing | Foundation
Provision)
Hemingford Community Club | 2008 500,000
Sports Pavilion Development
Fund
St Neots Town Section 106 2008
FC & Community
Facilities (New
Stadium & 3G STP)
Ferndale, Yaxley Football 2008 514,000
(Changing Foundation
Provision) Section 106/PC
Grafham Water HDC 2007 300,000
Centre (Indoor NOF Lottery
Activity Hall)

110




c: Planned Investment Sites (>£50,000)

Site Funding source In Progress £ (Total cost)
St Ivo Outdoor Centre HDC/Section 106 1,500,000
(STP. Changing Provision, | Football Foundation
Leisure Room)
Jubilee Park, Huntingdon | Football Foundation 1,100,000
(Changing Provision / Partnership Funding
Stadia)

Plus Revenue Grant 46,000
Hunts Olympic Gym HGF 500,000
(Extended Facilities)
St Neots Table Tennis Community Club 390,000
Club Development Fund
Grafham Water Centre HGF 500,000

(Extended Ancillary
Facilities)

111




This page is intentionally left blank

112



1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

Agenda ltem 6

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 7 APRIL 2009
(SERVICE DELIVERY)

CABINET 23 APRIL 2009

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS TO ST IVES TOWN CENTRE
(Report by Head of Environmental Management,)

INTRODUCTION

St Ives Town Centre has been identified as being an area that required improvements due to its
importance as a Town Centre area. There is a MTP scheme for £1080k in the programme to carry
out these works between 2008 and 2010. A previous phase carried out improvements to the Bridge
Street area. Phase 2 of the work is looking to improvements in the Market Hill area of the town
centre. The whole purpose of the scheme is to ensure the continued economic prosperity of the
town for future years by keeping it at a high standard of appearance and increasing footfall and
reducing town centre traffic.

This report outlines the progress to date and the process required to take the scheme forward to
construction

SUPPORTING/BACKGROUND INFORMATION

A previous phase was carried out in 2001 following wide consultation in the Bridge Street / Crown
Street area.

As part of the previous consultation, it was agreed that the second phase would be the Market Hill
area. The district council supported this by including future monies in the capital programme.

Following the guidelines set by Cabinet, an Advisory Group has been set up for the scheme. This
includes the local District and County Councillors, Town Council representatives, Scrutiny
representatives and representatives from local consultative groups such as the Town Centre
Initiative, Access Group and Civic Society. Meetings have been held since May 2006 with these
groups to discuss the principle of the scheme and, more recently, detail of the design.

MARKET HILL ISSUES AND PROPOSALS

Market Hill, a large market square, regularly hosts a number of markets, including a charter market
every Monday which takes over most of the space with stalls. There are safety issues with the
present layout which could be improved with a new market layout.

Currently, the pavements are narrow for a town centre and, with stalls erected on them, this causes
restrictions to pedestrian flow. Traffic surveys have shown that vehicles will often drive around market
place looking for spaces rather than go direct to the off street car parks, where there is extensive
parking provision.

The present layout of Market Hill has limited clear public open space and favours vehicles over
pedestrians. Studies of semi-pedestrianisation of town centres have shown that this increase in
pedestrian rights benefits both the economic vitality of towns and enhances the environment for
shoppers. A St Ives specific study of the economy has not been carried out to assess the effect on
varying degrees of pedestrianisation of the town. Several options were developed under the
framework of the Advisory Groups over the last two years. These showed a range of options from

113



3.4

3.5

4.1

5.1

52

5.3

5.4

slight reduction in parking provision, to minimum parking with maximum pedestrianisation. Total
pedestrianisation is not possible as there is one road and several accesses off the square which
need to be kept available at all times.

The Advisory group agreed in autumn 2008 to take 3 options out to consultation. These options
were;

Option1:  a semi-pedestrianised scheme with the creation of a defined public open space outside
three of the towns most notable buildings — the Free Church, Golden Lion and the Town Hall. A
combination of Blue Badge / Public parking / loading is provided at the eastern end of the town
centre. The scheme also proposed to move the War Memorial and Cromwell Statue into more
prominent places in the open spaces.

Option 2:  this has a similar road layout to Option 1 but provides extra parking for Blue Badge
holders and delivery areas at the west end of Market Hill.

Option 3 is not to carry out any road layout changes, but just to enhance the existing street furniture,
signage and surfacing.

The plans included in Annex A show the three options that went out for consultation.

BRIDGE STREET PROPOSALS

The consultation also considered the requirement for removal of loading bays from Bridge Street to
allow for street cafes to be allowed. (Plan in Annex B) This consultation was required by the County
council following a petition they received for Street cafes in Bridge Street. The following options were
considered:-

(1) to leave the order as it is at present;

(2) torestrict the use of one loading bay at the south end of the street for a maximum of 8 hours to
allow for street cafes

(3) torestrict all loading bays for a maximum of 8 hours and move the disabled bay from the south
end to the north end;

RESULTS OF THE CONSULTATION

The evaluation of the 638 returned questionnaires revealed the following:.

Those in favour of improvements to Market Hill 68%

The results for preference of the options are:

In favour of Option 1 36%
In favour of Option 2 13%
In favour of Option 3 34%
In favour of none of the proposals 14%

For Bridge Street:

In favour of no change 42%
In favour of reductions 53%
Of these In favour of removing 1 loading bay 59%

In favour of removing all loading bays  42%
Full results of the survey are given in Annex C.

Written responses were also received from formal consultees. These are included Annex D

114



5.5

6.1

6.2

6.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

There were three alternative schemes submitted by groups / individuals which gave variations on the
original options.

INTERPRETATION OF THE RESULTS
There is a majority of 68% in favour of improvements to the Market Hill.

The most favoured was Option 1 (36%) which will create the public square but by only a small
majority. The next most popular was Option 3 (34%) — to do minimum.

The significant objection to those choosing Option 3 in particular was that they did not want the war
memorial or Cromwell statue moved. However when you consider those that want Option 1, then
88% of them are happy for the memorials to be moved.

The Town Council at their planning committee in December did not support any of the options, but
modified their response at their meeting of 17" March 2009.

SITI supported Option 1

Civic Society supported Option 3

Bridge Street — 53% support reduction of loading bays, with the majority of these for just one bay
being removed.

Two meetings of the Advisory group have been held since the consultation closed, firstly to inform
the groups of the results of the consultation, and then to receive their comments back on the results.
These comments are included in Annex D. After consideration of the results, most groups agree that
improvements are needed to the town centre but could not yet agree to a prefered layout. They
have been made aware that any option needs to meet this Council’s requirement to aid economic
growth, the main requisite is to reduce car movements and increase pedestrianisation, and County’s
highways design requirements. The maijority of the groups recommended that the scheme be
delayed from its planned start date of January 2010 by 12 months because of the current economic
climate. Itis also clear that as a result of the effective nature of the consultation that there was a
consensus that a design could be agreed if time was available for further considerations of economic
and design aspects. Concerns were also expressed about a 2010 start due to the Towns 800 year
celebrations that would be held throughout the town centre.

The results of the Bridge Street consultation needs to be passed to the County Council for them to
take forward any amendments to the parking order regarding the loading bays and the disabled
bays.

PROGRESSION OF THE SCHEME
Monies are presently available in the MTP for construction in 2009/10 and 2010/11.

There is no clear majority for any of the three options, with a close split existing between options 1
and 3. It should be possible to produce a compromise scheme which meets some of the concerns
raised, but meets the base criteria for the scheme. This would be taken forward under the guidance
of the Advisory Group, and then with the approval of the Area Joint Committee, be consulted on
regarding the required traffic regulations.

None of the partners have yet committed joint funding to this scheme, although the Town Council
have indicated that they will support the scheme financially, but have not set a budget for this yet.

Because of delays that been experienced with the results of the consultation, there is a now a time
constraint in actually starting on site in January 2010, as there will be a problem with meeting the
Area Joint Committee cycle. Also under the present economic climate and the town’s 800 year
celebrations, it is considered by most parties that it is not the best time to carry out work in the town
centre, and that the work should be deferred by 12 months.

115



7.5 There are several options that the Cabinet need to consider:

1 to stop all the design work on the scheme and not carry out any work in St Ives Town Centre.

2 to carry out minimum improvements to the street furniture, signage and access requirements
on the pavements. Pavement and road surface repairs would be the responsibility of the
County Council.

3 to choose the most favoured option, No 1, and proceed to the timescales previously set

4 to defer the project by 12 months (or other as yet unspecified period) to allow time for the
production of a scheme which meets the majority of the requirements of the interested parties.

8. CONCLUSION

8.1 St lves town centre, like many other towns, is experiencing challenges in the retail sector. Itis
considered that investment in the town central area is needed to ensure its continued economic
viability and also to improve the environment to make it a better shopping experience. In this
Council’s opinion, this requires reducing the traffic flows in the town centre and increasing the
pedestrianised areas.

8.2 The results of the consultation show that a majority would like to see improvements to the area and
that Option 1 is just the favoured option but not with any great majority. There have been objections
for some areas of the business community and local residents to changes because of the economic
climate and their perception that maximum car parking is required in the centre of the town.

8.3 Guidance is needed as to whether the scheme is taken forward, and if it is, the timescale that will
now be adopted. These options are listed in para 7.5 above.

9. RECOMMENDATION

9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet—
(1) note the progress of the scheme and the results of the consultation to date
(2) give guidance as to which of the options listed in para. 7.5 should be adopted to take the scheme
forward.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Environmental Management Division files
Consultation documents and results

Contact Officer: Dr P Jose, Head of Environmental Management
= 01480 388332
C Allen — Project and Assets Manager
= 01480 388380

116



LI

ANNEX A - MARKET HILL PROPOSALS - OPTION 1

= 7 )

Option 1 g

Morarcn G Ska
Court

s
=

TMLE ---"'_':-.h._ -~ —
donshire

L YR’ Y

DATE

Environmental Improvements g :
i arket Hill B Froposed Layout ; HUHT.IH.

| T S

DRAAM BY s

St.lves

DFG. N, |




8L

ANNEX A - MARKET HILL PROPOSALS - OPTION 2

~ O /T < Wik o)
ol ) s
< Option 2
Sub Sta

JOB

Enviranmental Improvements
M arket Hill
Stives

TMLE

Proposed Layout

H

[F]

e

untingdonshire

[

DATE

DR B

el

DRG. Mo




61

ANNEX A - MARKET HILL PROPOSALS - OPTION 3

} qs o .
JiiB TMLE EES v TOALE | 1ATE

Enviranmental Improvements H i i
. it untingdonshirg
M arkEt H I” EXI Stl ng LaYDUt - e PO e | \gl (S BEatl PR A el o | BRANNEY Y
PATHFINDER HOUSE ST.MARYS STREET Chriz Alen, B.%c., CEng, Dip. R%A
Stlves HUNTINGOEH, CaMBS. PE1# ©TN Project and fezets his | DRG. Mo |

nager )
TELEFHO HE: HU NTINGDO M D | 65601 355355 Environmertal and Lammunity Serues




0ct

ANNEX B — BRIDGE STREET PROPOSALS

— = R I B ——
Option 3
—_— . ; —
Loading Bay becomes
& restricted \ \‘l { ﬁ
gﬂ:j Option 3 R Option 2
i Loading Bay becomes Loading but restricted |
g?f 'Disabled 29
’_%rg' 13 x
# 15 8 19 21 77
TTT Tt TIT byt T T Tt I T I LA DTt
B e
iy - ] - L LI Leading T
Loading %
Bridge Street o Disabled :
LT — Tt Tt IE LT TTSTt e LT
B EgL 0e 9
g}
Option 3
Disabled Bay becomes
'Loading' but restricted /
[ ~ i
" g " g Sastre i
Bridge Street Proposed Layout AU SGRSTIRe TRy
; e Cablas e DRG. Mo |




Annex C
Public Consultation — Questionnaire Responses

In total there were 638 responses ....

Question 1 — Would you support further improvements in Market Hill ?
Yes (431) — 68%
No (182) — 29%

Question 2 — Would you like wider pavements ?
Yes (385) — 60%
No (234) — 37%

Question 3 — Would you agree that a public open space would enhance the Market
Hill area ?
Yes (332) — 52%
No (278) — 44%

Question 4 — Do you feel an improved Market stall layout is required ?
Yes (344) — 54%
No (265) — 42%

Question 5 — Do you agree that both should be moved ?

War Memorial Yes (248) — 39%
No (358) — 56%

Cromwell Statue Yes (239) — 37%
No (363) — 57%

Question 6 — Which of the proposed options do you prefer ?
Option 1 (227) — 36%
Option 2 (84) — 13%
Option 3 (218) — 34%
None  (93)-14%

Question 7 — Do you think the balance between on-street parking is appropriate in:
Option 1 — Yes (194) 30%
No (181) 28%

Option 2 — Yes (84) 13%
No (168) 26%

Option 3 — Yes (228) 36%
No (131) 21%

Question 8 — Would you support such reductions in Bridge Street
Yes (337) — 53%
No (266) — 42%

Of the ones that said yes ........

Remove one loading bay (199) 59%
Remove all loading bays (103) 31%

121



Annex D — Correspondence for Advisory group representatives

T

SIAG

)
St. lves M ACCESS GROUP

20, Willow Green
Needingworth
Cambs
PE27 4SW
Tel 01480 467091

Email sue.ferreira@virgin.net

15™ March 2009.

Dr P José

Head of Environmental Management
Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House

SIAG’s comments on the St Ives Environmental Improvements

We feel the questionnaire was difficult to answer impartially. For example: if the response to changing of
loading bays had been to have no loading bays would this really have happened? The same applies to Blue
Badge Parking Bays. There seems little point in asking these questions when their provision is a necessity

Having said that, we feel it is time to move on in a positive and constructive way. We have submitted our own
plan which encapsulates our views.

Cromwell and the War Memorial should not be moved.

There should be adequate Blue Badge Parking bearing in mind the current designated bays and the
number of Badge Holders who currently have to park on yellow lines.

There should be provision for loading and space for wedding and funeral cars to access the Free
Church.

All street furniture should be kept to a minimum though extra seating would be welcome. Do we need
two phone boxes?

The pavements need to be maintained to a high standard with regular dropped kerbs flush with the road.
The open space outside Boots is well placed for sunshine. Why do we need another space?

Extending and rationalising the whole central island to include Cromwell, the War Memorial and all the
central parking spaces, as suggested in our plan, seems to us a more cost-effective solution.

122



We do not believe there is any reason to delay the work once the plan is agreed upon. There is an argument for
starting it at a time when the shops are quiet. Once the economy improves the traders will be glad of the
improvements. There is probably no perfect time for everyone but if the work is completed as quickly as
possible the disruption could be minimised. If there is any question of delaying the start of the scheme it would
be imperative that the financing be ring fenced to protect it for use only on this project.

The recent Town Centre Survey suggests that St Ives is a currently a vibrant and popular place to shop. Let us
not destroy that.

Sue Ferreira

123



From St Ilves Civic Society

13 March 2009

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS TO ST. IVES TOWN CENTRE.

We have now had the opportunity to go through Chris Allen’s recent report, consider the figures and formulate
some ideas. The report asks groups to feed back their views at the meeting on 17 March; this letter is, in
effect, a pre-view of what we will be suggesting next Tuesday.

Of those who replied to the questionnaire (not very many really) 68% supported improvements to Market Hill.
The question was a bit like asking “Would you like more pay?”’; almost certain to elicit a “Yes’ answer. The
problems, in our view, start to arise with Questions 5 and 6. The numbers in your survey are significantly
against moving the war memorial and Cromwell statue and without movement Options 1 and 2 loose a lot of
their effect.

In gauging electors’ support, we believe we could put Options 1 and 2 together and Options 3 and ‘None of the
Above’ together. Options 1 and 2 both go for major structural change in the same area, with variations;
Option 3 proposes almost no change and is very nearly ‘do nothing’. In your survey the total numbers
approving Options 1 or 2 was 311; the total numbers opting for Option 3 or None was also 311. It therefore
appears that there is no significant majority support for Options 1 or 2 and that we should be looking at the
whole scheme afresh.

The Civic Society therefore proposes deferring the project by a year provided the time gained is used for a
major re-think of the scheme involving, inter alia, no movement of the war memorial or Cromwell statue.

In any revised scheme the following should be considered:

The balance between the needs of market traders and static retailers.

To provide wider pavements where possible.

Extend pedestrian (public) space round the war memorial

Provide a turning circle for large delivery lorries at the western end of Market Hill.

Parking balance.

Make more use of the ‘sunny’ area of Market Hill.

To leave the town centre doing what it does best: to be an unchanged, un-made-over market town
centre with a street market that straggles from one end to the other.

o a0 o

The Society would also suggest the use of two pedestrian crossings at the war memorial, not only as crossings
but also for traffic calming in Market Hill.

Regarding Bridge Street, you will be aware from previous correspondence that for several years now the Civic
Society’s policy on pavement cafes has been to support and encourage any traders who wish to risk the
vagaries of the British climate. If Bridge Street is to be made available for pavement cafes the sensible
approach would appear to be to eliminate the loading and parking bays south of the entrance to Star
Court(Noble’s Yard) and south of Bull Lane, thus leaving the south end of Bridge Street available for
pavement cafes.

(PHW ALLAN)

Secretary

Civic Society of St. Ives

124



Stlves

TOWN INITIATIVE

Consultation on the St Ives Town Centre Environmental Improvements.

We have carefully considered at our board meetings the three proposals brought forward to us by
Huntingdonshire District Council.

Having been involved in the consultation group since its inception we believe we have positively contributed
towards it with regards to this scheme.

The second part of the consultation was regarding the proposed alterations to Bridge Street. We have been
instrumental in bringing these forward originally as a petition called for by a number of our members.

Our choice of scheme to support at the time of the consultation was firmly for Option 1 and continues to be
SO.

SITI has considered the results of the public consultation extensively and would wish to make the following
observations and comments.

Whilst our preferred option, Option 1, received the highest overall level of support we do not consider this
high enough to emerge as a favorite from the consultation results.

There was a clear preference for at least something to be done to Market Hill and Bridge Street.

Option 2, in our opinion, fails to gain a great level of support.

We still feel that Option 3 fails to provide any clear benefits to the town. However, a large number of people
who supported this option were of the opinion that the statue of Oliver Cromwell or the Cross of Sacrifice

should not be moved. In fact this is a highly emotive issue in the town.

Having considered the report in great detail at a special meeting our considered response is that we still
favour Option 1 but that consideration should be given to amending this to leave the memorials in situ.

We still fully support the Bridge Street proposals and hope that this implemented in the very near future.

We therefore strongly recommend that the present program be deferred to enable the District Council to
bring forward these alternatives at a suitable time.

125



ST IVES TOWN COUNCIL

Town Hall

St lves
Huntingdonshire
PE27 5AL

Tel: 01480 388929  Fax: 01480 388932 Alison Melnyczuk
e-mail: clerk@stivestowncouncil.gov.uk TOWN CLERK
www.stivestowncouncil.gov.uk

TWINNED WITH STADTALLENDORF

23 February 2009

Dr Paul José

Head of Environmental Management
Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House

By Email
Dear Paul
ST IVES ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS

As you are aware following our recent conversation the Town Council was proposing to host a meeting of
various group in the town that have a direct interest in the Environment Improvement Scheme. The purpose
of the meeting was to try and identify common ground between the groups that could be presented to HDC at
the next Liaison Meeting on 17" March. On Saturday 7 March that meeting took place and present were
representatives from The Civic Society, SITI, St Ives Business Forum and Members of the Town Council.
Comments were also considered and taken into account from the Town Centre Residents Association and the
St Ives Access Group who were unable to attend but wanted their views included.

All groups agreed that it would be impossible for everyone’s requirements to be met but that change is
required and those present outlined the individual views of their groups. Thereafter the various parts of the
proposals were discussed in turn and the following general principals were agreed:
e Any work should be delayed for a year due to the current economic situation and to allow time for a
scheme to be agreed.
e The War Memorial and Oliver Cromwell statue should remain in their current locations
e Wider pavements were desirable where existing pavements were narrow and to enable a ramp to be
provided for the Town Hall.
¢ A new market stall layout was required to improve access to shops on market days
Public space around the War Memorial should be increased to give this feature prominence
It was noted that for the Monday market and other events the entire area was used as a public space
Similar levels of parking should be provided
Parking restrictions needed to be enforced
The road junction at Market Hill / Station Road needed to be improved.
Any scheme should have an impact statement on business
Any scheme must consider and minimise disruption to traders during construction.

Other points raised during the discussion included:-

e Any improvements in St Ives Town centre would be undermined if out of town retail space and parking
were allowed to expand

e The new Park & Ride site in St Ives would offer free parking, although CCC would take steps if too
many St Ives shoppers used it.

126



It was noted that all the proposed guided busway services would continue into St Ives bus station and
onto Ramsey Road
Improvement work was also need to the bus station area.

I have also been instructed to forward to you the comments made at the Town Council Planning Committee
meeting held on 25 February at which time the results of the Consultation were considered, although please
take into account some of these comments have been superseded by the points above:-

It was felt that the results had, to some degree, been misinterpreted, particularly with regard to the re-
siting of the statues and the claim that a majority had supported Option 1.

Some concerns were expressed about inaccurate reporting in the press which intimated that local groups
in the town would be required to find a solution.

The Council might wish to reconsider its view on the number of parking bays in Bridge Street in the
light of the high percentage in favour of removal of a single parking bay.

There was some urgency in formulating a way forward. It was uncertain whether attendance at the
Advisory Group meetings would be the best way and consideration ought to be given to meeting with
other local groups and with the District Council officers separately.

A basis exists to formulate a view and there are elements all the options could be used in this

Seeing the responses from the various consultees would be useful to the Council in formulating a view.
Postponement of the scheme for one year was an option which had been discussed at the first Advisory
Group meeting and perhaps there was some validity in seeking this.

There was some concern that the threat of losing the money for the project was once again being
directed at the Council.

| trust the above is clear however, should you require clarification of any points prior to the next Advisory
Group meeting please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind regards.

Yours sincerely

Alison Melnyczuk
TOWN CLERK

127



This page is intentionally left blank

128



CABINET Agﬁﬂd aojte m 8

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE DELIVERY) 7™ APRIL 2009
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE SUPPORT) 14™ APRIL 2009
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL 16'" APRIL 2009
COUNCIL 22N° APRIL 2009

REVIEW OF DEMOCRATIC STRUCTURE
(Report of the Structure Review Working Party)
1. Introduction

1.1 Councillor K J Churchill, the special adviser to the Cabinet, has been invited
by Cabinet to conduct a review of the Council’'s democratic structure, with the
assistance of a working party established by Cabinet at its meeting held on 4™
September 2008.

1.2 The working party comprised Councillors K J Churchill (Chairman), Mrs M
Banerjee, W T Clough, S J Criswell, T D Sanderson, Ms M J Thomas, G S E
Thorpe and R G Tuplin and met on a total of 11 occasions. The working party
undertook a visit to Basingstoke and Deane District Council to discuss the
constitutional arrangements of a similarly sized shire district. The Chairman
attended a seminar in Birmingham presented by the Institute of Local
Government Studies of Birmingham University on the role of the Council
meeting.

1.3 The Chairman conducted an extensive series of interviews with members of
the Cabinet, chairmen of panels, individual councillors, directors and heads of
service. An open invitation was extended to all members to raise issues with
the Chairman at the outset of the review. The comments raised in those
interviews were considered as part of the review exercise.

14 The final report itself is unashamedly lengthy which reflects the length of time,
range of subject areas and depth of scrutiny given to the subject by the
working party. The Presentation on the findings has been given to all
Members over 2 separate evenings in March. An executive summary also has
been prepared which contains the working party’s recommendations which is
attached as Annex A.

1.5 The working party is grateful to the staff of the Democratic Services Section
for their support in undertaking this extensive review.

2. Background

2.1 The Council’s existing democratic structure that had emerged as a result of
the constitutional changes introduced by the Local Government Act 2000 had
been in place for some 6 years when the review began, with a trial having
operated for 2 years prior to that. The new arrangements had represented a
fundamental change from the committee structure that preceded it but,
although annual and subsequently biennial reviews of the constitution have
been undertaken, the Council had yet to commission a comprehensive review
of the democratic and decision making arrangements to review their
effectiveness and ensure that they are fit for purpose.

2.2 Since that time there has been a proliferation of partnership working which
has created issues of accountability and transparency which have yet to be
addressed fully. The development of Local Area Agreements and Local
Strategic Partnerships do not sit comfortably with a need for greater clarity in

1
129



2.3

24

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

decision making and their deliberations have yet to be held to account
satisfactorily.

Further constitutional change was introduced by the Local Government and
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 as a response to a Government white
paper ‘Strong and Prosperous Communities’ published in October 2006. A
further white paper, ‘Communities in Control: Real People, Real Power
published in July 2008, contains proposals for additional change which are
currently before parliament in the shape of the Local Democracy, Economic
Development and Construction Bill. The bill will place a duty on the Council
to promote understanding among local people of the authority’s functions and
democratic arrangements and explain how members of the public can take
part in those arrangements. The working party has endeavoured, where
possible, to anticipate the implications of the bill in its deliberations and
recommendations.

In order to undertake the review, the working party has had to familiarise itself
thoroughly with the legislation that determines the way in which the Council is
structured in terms of its decision making. A number of briefing papers were
submitted to assist the working party in its deliberations which are listed as
background documents to this report. The working party’s attention also was
drawn to the existing terms of reference of the Cabinet, panels and
committees etc. that are reproduced in the Council’s constitution. Details of
the democratic structures of a number of comparably sized shire districts,
together those of the other districts in Cambridgeshire, were obtained and
considered. The working party had intended to undertake visits to two district
councils to learn from the experience of others but a number of those
contacted were in the process of reorganisation as a result of the unitary
authority changes introduced by the 2007 Act and felt unable to
accommodate a visit. As a result, the only authority that was visited was
Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council, a similarly sized shire district in
Hampshire.

Coincidentally, the Institute of Local Studies hosted a seminar at the
University of Birmingham on the role of the Council in the new local
government structure while the review was being undertaken. This was
attended by the Chairman and the Head of Democratic and Central Services
and proved particularly helpful in identifying ideas to re-invigorate Council
meetings.

Changing Roles

Recurrent themes throughout the review were the need to promote
community engagement and the changing role of the local authority
councillor.

Part of the rationale for the Local Government Act 2000 was the
Government’s desire to modernise local democracy and encourage people to
play a more active role in local decision making. Electorate turnout at local
elections has been a growing cause for concern, political party membership is
falling, parties struggle to interest persons in becoming candidates,
councillors are not representative of their communities in terms of their age
profile etc. and a relatively high proportion of councillors choose not to stand
for re-election after their initial term of office comes to an end.

Although the 2000 Act introduced fundamental changes to the way in which
local authorities are administered, concerns have remained that there is
insufficient interest in local democracy, that local people do not engage
sufficiently in their local communities and that there is insufficient
encouragement for people to become and remain councillors.

2
130



3.4

41

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

In reviewing the structure of the Council, the working party was conscious of
the need to address the role of the councillor in a wider context than simply
attendance at meetings of the Council. Increasingly, councillors need to act
as local community advocates for their wards and parishioners, respond to
the new ‘councillor call for action’ agenda, and represent the views of their
constituents with other service providers. In so doing, they have the potential
to raise the profile of the authority with their constituents and encourage
greater public participation and involvement in the democratic process.

Review Methodology

The working party divided the task of reviewing the structure into the following
broad headings —

Executive and scrutiny arrangements

Council and non-executive structure

Partnerships, joint committees and other issues
Community engagement and neighbourhood management
The role of the councillor

Some changes have been necessitated by recent legislative developments.
Others have emerged from the experience of operating an executive/scrutiny
structure for a number of years. To put those into context, the working party’s
report lists the changes that have and are taking place before explaining the
reasons for its recommendations or why no change to the present
arrangement is proposed.

Legislative Position

The Local Government Act 2000 was intended to modernise and expedite
decision making and replace what had become to be regarded as an out-
moded committee system. However it was superimposed on the 1972 Local
Government Act framework rather than replacing it. A series of regulations
and guidance provide a framework for the new structural arrangements.
These define a fairly extensive range of functions and responsibilities that are
not the responsibility of the executive, with the list being added to from time to
time by ensuing legislation. By omission, those functions and responsibilities
that are not included on that list are the responsibility of the executive.
Failure to attribute a function to the correct decision-making element of the
Council will render a decision ultra vires and subject to a potentially
successful challenge in the courts.

The 2000 Act introduced the concept of an executive and scrutiny
arrangements to hold that executive to account. The powers of executive and
scrutiny are defined in the legislation and are not delegated by the Council, a
significant departure from previous legislative provision where all powers
rested with the Council and decision making was delegated to individual
committees and officers.

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 has
introduced further change to the way in which the Council can be structured
but has not altered the fundamental split in responsibility between the
executive and non-executive elements of the authority. Further change will
be introduced by the Local Government, Economic Development and
Construction Bill which the working party has tried to anticipate as far as is
possible at this early stage of the bill's progress through parliament.

The Executive

3
131



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Current Arrangements

The 2000 Act requires the Council to operate one of three types of executive
— an elected mayor and cabinet, an elected mayor and council manager, or a
leader and cabinet. Under the latter, the cabinet is chosen either by the
leader (referred to as the ‘strong leader’ model) or by the Council (the ‘weak
leader model). The Council operates the latter. Inclusive of the mayor or
leader, a cabinet must have a minimum of 2 and a maximum of 10
councillors. Scrutiny members cannot sit on cabinet and vice versa but both
can sit on other committees and panels, subject to certain restrictions as to
chairmanship. The chairman and vice chairman of the Council cannot be
members of the cabinet.

The vast majority of councils operate under the leader and cabinet model.
Despite consistent Government support for directly elected mayors, there are
only 12 currently throughout the country. Only one authority is currently
operating the mayor and manager model but it is in the process of reverting
back to a leader and cabinet. If 5% of the electorate sign a petition in favour
of an elected mayor, the Council must hold a referendum to obtain the
public’s reaction. If a majority vote in favour of a mayoral system, the Council
must introduce that form of administration. Once a mayoral system had been
introduced, it was not possible, prior to the 2007 Act, for an authority to return
to a leader and cabinet system.

Since the implementation of the present arrangements, the Council has
operated under the leader and cabinet model, with cabinet members
appointed by the Council (the ‘weak’ leader model). The rules of
proportionality do not apply to executives and the Council has operated a
single party cabinet which has fluctuated in size between 8 and 9 members
inclusive of the leader.

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

The 2007 Act has narrowed the choice of executive arrangements open to
local authorities to

¢ an elected mayor and cabinet appointed by him, or

e an executive leader appointed by the Council from amongst its
membership and a cabinet executive appointed by that leader.

In either case the cabinet still must comprise between 2 and 10 councillors
inclusive of the mayor or executive leader.

The Act has introduced significant changes to the current leader and cabinet
system which are dealt with in the following paragraphs.

The executive leader must be elected at the first annual meeting of the
Council following the transition to the new executive leader and cabinet
executive model. He holds office until the annual meeting after his normal
date of retirement as a councillor. In the case of an authority operating
partial-council elections such as Huntingdonshire, that period could therefore
be up to 4 years in length or such lesser period when the leader’s term of
office as a councillor comes to an end. If an executive leader would normally
have ceased to be a councillor when his term of office comes to an end
(because he has decided not to stand again or is not elected), he
nevertheless will remain as executive leader and a councillor until the ensuing
annual meeting when a new executive leader is appointed.

4
132



6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

The Council can resolve to remove an executive leader from office at any
time and appoint a replacement either when the executive leader is removed
from office or at a later meeting.

The executive leader must appoint one of the members of the cabinet
executive to be the deputy executive leader who shall serve for the same
period of office as the executive leader, unless he resigns as either deputy
executive leader or as a councillor in the interim or he is removed as deputy
executive leader by the executive leader. The deputy executive leader will
act in place of the executive leader if the latter position is vacant or the
executive leader is unable to act. If both are unable to act or both positions
are vacant, the cabinet must act in the place of the executive leader or can
appoint a member of the cabinet to do so.

The Act effectively gives the executive leader the same powers as a mayor in
terms of the discharge of the executive functions of the Council. The leader
can discharge any of those functions himself or can arrange for them to be
discharged by the cabinet, by a member of the cabinet, by a committee of the
cabinet or by an officer. That choice is his and not the Council’s. The Act
enables the cabinet, a committee of the cabinet or an executive member to
further delegate any executive power delegated to them to an officer but gives
the leader a right of veto over any such further delegation.

The Council must decide which form of executive it wishes to operate by the
end of the transitional period specified in the Act. A resolution to change the
governance arrangements must be made no later than 31%' December 2010
with the new arrangements coming into effect no later than the third day after
the day of elections to the Council in May 2011. If a resolution is not passed
by the due date, the Council must implement the executive leader and cabinet
executive arrangements. The Council’s existing arrangements will remain in
place until the new arrangements are implemented.

The Council can change governance arrangements subsequently only during
a permitted resolution period which extends from the date of the annual
meeting in 2014 until the end of that year and a similar period every 4 years
thereafter. The change would come into effect on the third day after the day
of election in 2015 and any fourth year thereafter. It is open now for an
authority to move back from an elected mayor and cabinet system to an
executive leader and cabinet executive system.

Before passing a resolution as to which new form of executive to adopt, the
Council must take reasonable steps to consult the electorate and other
interested parties. The Council must then draw up proposals for change in
order to secure continuous improvement in the way in which the Council’s
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness. The Council has discretion to make a decision
on the choice of executive the subject of approval by a referendum, If a
referendum is held, the result is binding on the authority. The proposals must
be published both before and after the resolution has been passed to change
the governance arrangements.

The change introduced by the Act does not affect the opportunity for the
electorate to petition for the introduction of a mayor and cabinet under the
2000 Act which would not follow the above timetable. However where a
change to a mayoral system has been made as a result of a referendum,
either as a result of a petition or by choice on the part of the authority, the
Council cannot resolve to change governance arrangements again without
another referendum being held. If a referendum is held as a result of a
petition, another referendum cannot be held until a period of 10 years has
elapsed.

5
133



6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

Communities in Control White Paper

Further change was heralded in the recent White Paper with the Government
indicating that it wants to make it easier for people to demand a mayor
through a referendum. The Government is currently consulting on allowing
the use of on-line petitions to register support for a referendum, a reduction in
the trigger threshold for a referendum from 5% of voters to possibly as low as
2% and a reduction in the period between referenda from 10 to 4 years.

Options

Fundamental therefore to the review of the Council’s structure was the choice
of governance arrangements in response to the 2007 Act. This must be in
place by 2011 but can be implemented earlier if the Council so decides. Any
changes to the Council’s existing arrangements in terms of size of cabinet
membership, frequency and timing of meetings etc. emerging from the review
will only apply from the annual meeting in 2009 until the new governance
arrangements of an executive leader or mayor apply. After that date, it will be
for the executive leader or mayor to determine all matters relating to the
discharge of executive functions over which the Council itself will have no
jurisdiction (other than to remove the leader from office or change to the
alternative form of executive). In practice, the powers of an elected mayor
and an executive leader are broadly similar with the only principal difference
being that the mayor is elected for a four year term of office by the electorate
whereas the executive leader is appointed by the Council from amongst its
membership and can be similarly removed from office.

The two principal issues that the working party therefore needed to address
were which form of executive should be introduced in response to the 2007
Act and whether any changes to the present arrangements should be
recommended to Council in the interim.

Choice of Executive

Addressing the long term future governance arrangements of the Council first,
the working party considered whether an elected mayor or executive leader
should be adopted, what consultation arrangements should be implemented
with electors and interested parties and whether a referendum should be
held. The Government is clear in its support for directly elected mayors.
Nevertheless, nine years after the 2000 Act, there are still only 12 elected
mayors in the country, excluding London itself, which reinforces the view that
there is little public appetite or support for elected mayors, notwithstanding
the publicity attaching to last year’s London mayoral elections.

The new governance arrangements in 2011 will require a resolution to be
passed no later than the Council meeting in December 2010. A decision to
hold a referendum will clearly lengthen the timetable for implementation but
the latest that the consultation itself should begin is June of that year with a
referendum in November and a resolution to adopt the new governance
arrangements being made within 28 days of the date of that referendum. To
provide sufficient time for consideration prior to the consultation
arrangements, the Council would need to begin the process not later than
March 2010.

The working party took the view that there was no useful purpose in delaying
consideration of the decision. In terms of the choice of an elected mayor or
executive leader, the working party acknowledged -

¢ the lack of support nationally for the mayoral model,

6
134



6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

o that the public consultation that was undertaken on the choice of
executive in Huntingdonshire when the 2000 Act was implemented
favoured the leader and cabinet model,

e that the County Council (which had to move to the new arrangements
earlier in the statutory timescale) has adopted the executive leader model
with effect from May 2009 in response to its public consultation on the
choice,

e an apparent lack of enthusiasm both in Huntingdonshire and elsewhere
within Cambridgeshire for an elected mayor, and

e that the Council's existing leader and cabinet arrangements are
understood and have been embedded in the organisation since their initial
implementation.

The working party recognised that the mayoral system enables an individual
person to become elected, potentially on the basis of a populist electoral
campaign or a single contentious issue of concern, without the benefit of
support from one of the political parties. This has the potential to lead to
tensions between the mayor and elected councillors from whom the cabinet
would be chosen and to consequential operational and practical difficulties in
terms of working relationships. Members felt that there was little to be gained
and potentially much to be lost if a mayoral system was introduced.

The working party is of the opinion that the present executive arrangements
have worked well and can see no useful purpose in moving toward a mayoral
system. In view of the lack of public interest, there also seems little
justification in holding a referendum on the choice, as opposed to a public
consultation exercise which will give local people an opportunity to express
their views. If the latter results in strong support for an elected mayor, the
Council can reconsider whether to hold a referendum.

The working party therefore recommends that the Council undertakes a
public consultation exercise as soon as practicable with the intention of
implementing an executive leader form of executive in response to the
2007 Act. Following completion of that exercise, the Council is invited
to move to the new system with effect from the annual meeting in 2010
or earlier if practicable.

Interim Arrangements

Pending the implementation of the elected mayor or executive leader
arrangements, the working party reviewed the present leader and executive
arrangements and addressed a series of questions about the current
structure and ways of working of the cabinet. The working party found the
views expressed by existing Cabinet members to the Chairman in the course
of his interviews as part of the review to be particularly helpful in this context.

The working party concluded that the present range of executive functions did
not appear to be evenly divided, with some executive councillors having
extensive portfolios which were difficult to manage effectively. In a large and
progressive authority of Huntingdonshire’s size, the working party felt that the
opportunity should be taken to make maximum use of the size constraint for
the executive permitted by the legislation by increasing the size of the Cabinet
to 10 from its current number of 9. The working party recommends that
the size of the Cabinet be increased to 10 members, inclusive of the
Leader.

The working party looked at different ways of structuring the Cabinet to
provide continuity and cover in the unavoidable absence of an executive
councillor through illness or holiday and to enable new executive councillors
to become effective as early as possible. The idea of a two tier system of

7
135



6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

senior and junior Cabinet members with a shared portfolio was discussed, as
was the possibility of executive councillors being ‘shadowed’ by another
councillor who could substitute for them in an emergency. For a variety of
reasons, these were discounted. As cabinet membership is restricted to a
maximum of 10, it was felt that combining all executive responsibilities into no
more than 4 portfolios shared by a pair of executive councillors (excluding the
leader and deputy leader from portfolio responsibility) would result in the
portfolios themselves being too large. Confusion might arise as to who was
taking the lead on individual functions within each enlarged portfolio. The
working party was attracted to the idea of ‘shadow’ executive councillors who
could step in when existing Cabinet Members were unavailable but the
restriction on being a member of both the executive and scrutiny and the
resources required in keeping ‘shadow’ executive councillors informed made
this a somewhat impractical proposition and it was discounted during the
working party’s deliberations.

The working party also considered the role of the deputy leader. Currently
the postholder has responsibility for a portfolio which limits his ability to
deputise for the leader or for any other executive councillor who is absent. In
the absence of a satisfactory alternative to provide cover for executive
councillors as outlined above, the working party concluded that both the
leader, as currently, and the deputy leader should not be burdened with
portfolio responsibilities. It was felt that the deputy leader's primary
responsibilities should be to provide the necessary support and assistance to
the leader and to be able to stand in for other executive councillors who are
absent thereby overcoming the issues of continuity and cover. Later in its
report, the working party’s views on support for Members are expressed but it
was felt that this is a critical function that should also be led by the deputy
leader. The working party therefore recommends that the deputy leader
should not have responsibility for a portfolio of executive functions but
should be responsible for deputising and supporting the leader and
other executive councillors, as necessary, and for a Member training
and mentoring programme on a cross party basis.

The rules of proportionality in terms of membership reflecting the political
composition of the Council do not apply to local authority executives. Since
the inception of the present arrangements however, the Council has operated
a single party Cabinet comprising members of the majority party only.
Practices vary in other authorities but some continue to operate a multi-party
executive that reflects the political composition of the Council. The working
party discussed whether a single party cabinet should be retained but the
minority party members who sat on the working party expressed the view that
if the party were to be represented in cabinet, this would constrain their ability
to challenge and scrutinise cabinet decisions. They were not therefore in
favour of change. As a result, the working party recommends that the
Cabinet should continue to contain members of the majority political
party only.

The working party considered the frequency and timing of meetings of the
cabinet in an attempt to ascertain whether this was restricting membership
through an inability of some members in full time employment to become
executive councillors. Historically, the Cabinet has met roughly every three
weeks on Thursday mornings, with a briefing meeting comprising Cabinet
members only earlier that day. The new municipal year will see a move to
meetings on a monthly basis on the third Thursday of each month with the
timing of meetings remaining unchanged.

The working party came to the conclusion that the present arrangements do

tend to preclude members in full time employment from becoming executive
councillors. Although employment legislation entitles employees to

8
136



6.31

7.1

7.2

7.3

reasonable time off work to undertake Council business, the working party felt
that this was still not sufficiently conducive to attract career minded
councillors to become executive councillors, nor was the special responsibility
allowance sufficient to compensate for the loss of earnings from normal
employment. The working party supported the move towards monthly
meetings of the cabinet but felt that the present timing of meetings was
unsatisfactory on the basis that it did militate against those members in full
time employment. The working party therefore recommends that
meetings of the Cabinet should be held in the late afternoon or early
evening.

Whilst accepting that it is a matter for the Cabinet to determine, the working
party did not feel that the present briefing arrangements for Cabinet meetings
are particularly helpful. There was a perception that the present system of
discussing Cabinet business earlier in the morning of a meeting can create an
impression for the watching public of a lack of effective debate and that
decisions have been taken in advance. While a preliminary meeting to
discuss procedural issues is justifiable, the working party felt that it would be
more useful for Cabinet to have a briefing by appropriate officers some 2 or 3
days prior to the monthly meeting. It was also felt that that the Cabinet should
introduce more informal meetings at regular intervals to discuss issues of
topical or future importance with other panel chairmen, including those of the
overview and scrutiny panels. In so doing, cabinet can obtain the views of
others on future policy direction, with officers invited where appropriate. The
working party recommends that short briefings of Cabinet members be
held prior to Cabinet meetings only with a formal briefing by officers
some 2/3 days previously. In addition, regular member only ‘blue sky’
meetings should be convened by Cabinet at regular intervals involving,
where appropriate, other non-executive members.

Overview and Scrutiny
Current Arrangements

Overview and scrutiny as a concept was applied to local government by the
Local Government Act 2000. The Act requires a local authority operating
under executive arrangements to appoint one or more overview and scrutiny
committees and defines the functions of that committee(s) as —

e to review or scrutinise decisions made or action taken by the executive in
discharging its functions

e to make reports and recommendations to the authority or the executive
about the discharge of executive functions

e to review or scrutinise decisions made or action taken in the discharge of
non-executive functions

e to make reports and recommendations to the authority or the executive
about the discharge of non-executive functions

¢ to make reports and recommendations to the authority or the executive on
matters that affect the authority’s area or its inhabitants

e to conduct best value reviews if included within its terms of reference by
the authority.

The Act prohibits an overview and scrutiny committee from discharging any
other function (with the exception of a county or unitary authority which can
scrutinise matters relating to the health service).

No member of an executive can be a member of an overview and scrutiny
panel. Subsequent legislative change enables the co-option of persons who
are not members of the Council to an overview and scrutiny committee in a
non-voting capacity. If a scheme has been approved and advertised by the

9
137



7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

Council in relation to co-option arrangements, a co-opted person can vote at
scrutiny committee meetings.

Scrutiny committees are subject to the normal rules of proportionality. They
can require attendance at their meetings by cabinet members, other members
and officers but can only invite representatives of external organisations to
attend.

Scrutiny has offered probably the most challenging aspect of the new
governance arrangements. The concept is still relatively new to local
government, although based on the parliamentary select committee model. It
requires scrutiny to challenge and hold to account not only the authority’s own
executive and other parts of an authority’s administration, but also external
organisations contributing to the economic, social and environmental well-
being of the District.

How scrutiny addresses those responsibilities is a matter for an individual
authority and a range of differing structures have been adopted by authorities
to suit their own circumstances. An on-going issue is the need to overcome
the perception that scrutiny is an activity for backbench councillors, struggling
to find a role for themselves with the demise of the committee system. In
reality, scrutiny enables councillors to set their own agenda, to choose which
topics they want to study in depth and to take a broader approach to the
issues facing the District and their constituents. To operate successfully, it
requires scrutiny councillors to take a far more pro-active approach and rely
less upon the support of the officer structure.

Scrutiny is not merely a vehicle for challenging the executive. It can become
involved in policy formulation, with topics of its own choosing or which have
been referred by the executive for a more in-depth review and investigation.
Recommendations that are well argued and evidence based can be
constructive and difficult to refute. Scrutiny therefore should not be regarded
as threatening by the remainder of the administration although, without some
tension and challenge, scrutiny does not function effectively. The phrase
most often used to describe effective scrutiny is a ‘critical friend’.

Since the introduction of the new governance arrangements, the Council has
appointed two overview and scrutiny panels. Although their titles have
changed from time to time (currently service delivery and service support),
they have effectively mirrored a split in Cabinet portfolios, each scrutinising
roughly half of the Cabinet membership. Suggestions have been made from
time to time by scrutiny councillors that there is a need for a third panel to be
established because of workload volumes. While that has not found general
support within the Council in the constitutional reviews that have taken place
to date, a composite of the two panels has been established to deal with the
budget, corporate framework and issues of major importance which, in the
past, had tended to be submitted to both scrutiny panels.

The panels originally comprised 12 Members which subsequently was felt to
be too small to create a sufficient pool of councillors to sit on the working
groups established to undertake detailed studies and reviews. Their size was
increased to a maximum of 16 councillors, although in practice only 15 have
been appointed to each. The Corporate and Strategic Framework Panel also
has a membership of 15 but it is drawn from the 2 existing overview and
scrutiny panels, including both chairmen and vice chairmen.

Although the panels are proportionately balanced to reflect membership of the
political parties, they tend not to be arena for political debate, the more
appropriate forum for which is the Council meeting. The panels appoint their
own chairmen and vice chairmen. During the two year trial prior to

10
138



7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

implementation of the 2000 Act, one of the panels was chaired by a member
of the opposition. More latterly one of the vice chairmen was a member of the
opposition. All of the chairmen and vice chairmen are currently members of
the majority party.

The panels arrange their own work programmes but do not tend to plan
ahead for twelve months, as some commentators suggest is advisable. The
panels’ opinion is that the latter would lose flexibility, make it more difficult to
respond to local circumstances and the changing content of the Forward
Plan, stifle spontaneity and interest and also alert the Cabinet which might
pre-empt any proposals that might be forthcoming.

The constitution permits non-scrutiny councillors to raise items on panel
agenda and speak at panel meetings. Non-scrutiny councillors can be
appointed to the ad hoc working groups established from time to time by the
panels to undertake investigations and reviews but in practice this has
happened rarely.

One of the major challenges for scrutiny is to raise the awareness of scrutiny
councillors and develop their expertise with a wholly different skill set
required. A scrutiny councillor is unlikely to be effective if he lacks knowledge
of the Council’s policy and budgetary framework, how those policies are being
implemented, how effectively the Council is performing against target and the
growing trend towards partnership delivery. In the wider context, this also
requires a sound knowledge of the economic, environmental and social
circumstances applying in the district and where local needs and priorities are
not being addressed effectively.

Scrutiny can ‘call in’ executive decisions made by the executive, irrespective
of whether they are made by the cabinet itself, a sub committee of the
cabinet, a joint committee exercising executive responsibilities or an individual
cabinet member. Key decisions made by officers also can be called in,
although in practice all key decisions are dealt with by members. A minimum
of three members of the relevant panel is required to trigger the call in
mechanism.

The scrutiny panels have reviewed their working practices and terms of
reference on a number of occasions since the present governance
arrangements were first introduced and have produced action plans for
change and improvement which has produced the present arrangements.

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

Both the 2007 and the earlier Police and Justice Act 2006 have enhanced the
role of overview and scrutiny. The maijority of the 2007 Act changes will come
into force in April 2009 but those contained in the Police and Justice Act have
yet to be implemented by parliament. The changes reflect the importance
that Government attaches to role of scrutiny and also the need to secure
effective scrutiny of partnership working in the new era of local area
agreements, community safety partnerships etc.. The key developments can
be summarised as follows —

e provision for any member of an overview and scrutiny committee to refer
to the committee any matter of relevance to the functions of the
committee;

e provision for any member of the Council to refer to an overview and
scrutiny committee any matter of relevance to the functions of the
committee that affects his/her ward;

11
139



7.7

7.18

7.19

e a requirement to establish a crime and disorder committee to review,
scrutinise and make reports and recommendations to authorities
responsible for crime and disorder strategies;

e provision for any member of the Council to refer to a crime and disorder
committee any matter of relevance to the functions of the committee that
affects his/her ward;

e power to scrutinise the discharge of functions by individual councillors in
their wards if the Council devolves decision making to ward councillors
under the 2007 Act;

e power for an overview and scrutiny committee to require information from
the County Council and certain partner authorities;

e power for a crime and disorder committee to similarly require information
and also require attendance at committee meetings by responsible
authorities;

e power to co-opt additional persons to a crime and disorder committee;

e discretion for an overview and scrutiny committee to publish its report and
recommendations to the executive;

e aduty for the executive to respond in writing to an overview and scrutiny’s
report and recommendations within 2 months and to publish the response
if the committee’s report was published;

e power for a county council and partner district councils to establish a joint
overview and scrutiny committee to scrutinise the attainment of local
improvement targets specified in a local area agreement;

e power for a district council to make reports and recommendations to a
partner county council relating to the attainment of local improvement
targets specified in a local area agreement; and

e power for councils responsible for crime and disorder strategies to appoint
a joint crime and disorder committee to exercise scrutiny functions.

Communities in Control White Paper

The White Paper heralds the Government’s intention to raise the visibility of
the scrutiny function to ensure that local people are aware that this is at their
disposal if they have issues of concern that they want to raise.

The Government has announced that it intends to do this by —

e encouraging a more creative involvement by the public, for example by
holding ‘deliberative events’;

e moving meetings into the local community and considering webcasting;

e greater public involvement in suggesting and selecting topics for review;

e making information more readily available and accessible on websites and
at council offices;

o further enhancing the powers of overview and scrutiny committees to
require information from partners on a broader range of issues;

e if necessary providing councils in two tier areas with the power to combine
resources in ‘area’ scrutiny committees; and

e requiring some dedicated scrutiny resource in county and unitary councils.

Some of the above are contained in the Local Democracy, Economic
Development and Construction Bill.

Options

The working party was conscious that the existing overview and scrutiny
panels have undertaken a number of reviews of their own structure and
working practices since the introduction of the scrutiny principle. With the
added emphasis generated by recent legislation, the working party
acknowledged that scrutiny’s role and significance will continue to grow. It

12
140



7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

was felt that perhaps its function was still not appreciated fully, either within
the Council or the local community, notwithstanding the efforts of the existing
panels to encourage greater participation and awareness in their business. In
particular it was suggested that the scrutiny panels are an underused
resource that Cabinet do not always take full advantage of to assist in policy
formulation.

The working party was aware that other authorities have found several
different ways of structuring their scrutiny arrangements, some having
separated the overview and scrutiny functions while others undertake pre-
scrutiny of all cabinet items as opposed to post scrutiny.  Of particular
interest from the discussions with Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council
was the fact that, based upon its experience, it was proposing to change its
existing arrangements of 3 overview committees and 1 scrutiny committee to
a model that comprised committees that undertook both functions. On the
whole, the working party concluded that the Council’s existing arrangements
had largely worked well since their inception.

In considering whether further change is required, the working party had
sympathy with previous suggestions that there should be more than two
panels. Although the corporate and strategic panel has provided a forum for
discussion of principally budgetary and strategic issues, the working party
came to the conclusion that it could at best be regarded as a compromise.
The working party therefore looked at the number and size of the panels in
the context of the enhanced role of scrutiny. With a current membership of 30
in the existing two panels, the working party agreed that it was impractical for
additional Members to become ‘scrutineers’ and that if the panels’
membership was too small, this would lead to insufficient numbers being
available to undertake the ad hoc studies through which most of the work of
the panels is undertaken.

In particular, the working party was conscious that scrutiny’s role in holding
the local strategic partnership to account had not been fully developed to
reflect the significance of the recent expansion of partnership working.
Currently the work of the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership and the
various thematic groups that have been formed are not being scrutinised.
With the allocation of LPSA reward grant through Cambridgeshire Together
(the County LSP), the working party was concerned that there is an absence
of transparency and accountability in the process. The 2007 Act does make
provision for joint county and district scrutiny of performance achievement
and officers of the authorities in the county are currently exploring ways in
which this can be achieved whilst safeguarding the role and independence of
each authority’s own scrutiny arrangements.

In the interim, the working party considered how best to scrutinise the LSP
and its thematic groups. While it seemed clear to the working party that the
thematic groups could be aligned to the terms of reference of scrutiny panels,
it was less clear how best to hold the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership
itself to account. The working party concluded that, as the Sustainable
Community Strategy is approved by full Council, it would be more appropriate
for the LSP to be held to account through the mechanism of the Council itself.
This is referred to again later in the section of this report dealing with the role
and business of the Council itself.

The working party therefore concluded that there was sufficient work to justify
the creation of an additional panel to replace the corporate and strategic
framework panel but with an adjusted re-alignment of responsibilities. In so
doing, the working party has used the opportunity to highlight within the
panels’ terms of reference the corporate priorities and goals of not only the
Huntingdonshire Sustainable Community Strategy and the Council’s

13
141



7.25

7.26

Corporate Plan but also those of the Countywide Sustainable Community
Strategy (Cambridgeshire’s Vision) given the new shared responsibility for
scrutinising the attainment of local improvement targets.

The working party therefore recommends that the present scrutiny
arrangements be replaced by three new overview and scrutiny panels
with the following titles and terms of reference -

Social Well-Being

¢ District Council portfolios - housing & public health and leisure;

e Cambridgeshire’s Vision priorities — equality & inclusion and
safer & stronger communities;

¢ Huntingdonshire Sustainable Community Strategy themes -
children & young people, health & well-being and inclusive, safe
& cohesive communities;

¢ Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership thematic groups - children
& young people, health & well-being and inclusive, cohesive &
safe communities; and

e Council’s corporate plan ‘Growing Success’ aims - housing that
meets individuals’ needs, safe, vibrant & inclusive communities
and healthy living.

Environmental Well-Being

e District Council portfolios - planning strategy & transport,
operational & countryside services and the environment aspects
of finance and environment;

e Cambridgeshire’s Vision priorities — environmental sustainability
and managing growth;

¢ Huntingdonshire Sustainable Community Strategy theme -
environment;

e Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership thematic groups -
environment forum and growth & infrastructure; and

¢ Council’s corporate plan ‘Growing Success’ aims - a clean, green
& attractive place and developing sustainable communities.

Economic Well-Being

e District Council portfolios — resources & policy, customer
services & information technology and the finance aspects of
finance & environment;

e Cambridgeshire’s Vision priorities — economic prosperity;

¢ Huntingdonshire Sustainable Community Strategy theme -
economic prosperity & skills;

¢ Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership thematic groups -
economic skills & prosperity; and

e Council’s corporate plan ‘Growing Success’ aims - a strong local
economy and improving systems & practices, learning &
developing and maintaining sound finances.

If each of the panels contains 10 members, this will not increase the existing
number of scrutiny councillors. However the working party felt that the rules
on co-option offer an exciting opportunity to encourage members of the public
to become more directly involved in participation in Council business which
will help promote an involvement in local democracy which is one of the key
aims of the current Local Democracy, Economic Development and
Construction Bill. The principle of independent persons on the Council’s
Standards Committee already works well and the working party sees this as a

14
142



7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

valuable way of encouraging others to take part in local democracy. The
working party therefore suggests that 2 persons should be co-opted to each
of the panels with voting rights but without the right of call-in. This could offer
practical benefits for each of the panels if co-opted persons have suitable
experience in some of the functions or areas being scrutinised by each panel
and also provide a useful introduction to local government for prospective
election candidates. Another option might include the co-option of young
people as a way of encouraging younger individuals to become more involved
in local democracy. If Council is agreeable to the proposal, a co-option
scheme needs to be formally adopted in accordance with the formal
legislation. The working party recommends that each of the overview
and scrutiny panels comprises 10 members plus 2 co-opted persons
with voting rights but without a right of call-in and that arrangements be
made for a formal co-option scheme to be adopted to this effect.

The working party addressed the issue of substitution which has been
advocated from time to time as a means of ensuring full attendance at
meetings. The practice tends to be used most in authorities with close
political control to ensure that a majority party can be assured its policies are
carried when a vote is required. Such circumstances tend not to apply to
scrutiny where discussion is cross party and divisions on party grounds have
been rare. For a variety of reasons, including the fact that the system can be
open to political abuse, together with the practicalities of a lack of continuity,
inexperience and repetition of debate, the working party did not support the
idea of substitution for scrutiny panel membership. The working party
recommends that no change be made to the present system of no
substitution on scrutiny panels.

The working party considered the role of the chairmen and the vice chairmen
of the overview and scrutiny panels and whether specific provision should be
made for positions to be offered to members of minority political groups. It
was the unanimous view of the working party, which comprised members of
both parties and an independent councillor, that chairmanship and vice
chairmanship should be undertaken by the best persons for the job,
irrespective of party, and also that there should no stipulation as to the length
of time that a person should serve in each position. The working party
therefore recommends that no change should be made to the present
arrangements in terms of the appointment and length of office of the
chairmen and vice chairmen of the panels.

In terms of the frequency and timing of meetings, the working party found that
the present arrangement of monthly meetings (with the exception of May and
August) starting at 7.00 p.m. appears to suit those councillors who sit on the
panels and it is recommended therefore that no change be made to the
frequency and starting time of meetings of the panels.

The working party was conscious of the need to enhance the profile of
scrutiny in the context of recent legislative change but was aware that this has
featured often in the deliberations of the panels themselves. Press releases,
articles in Districtwide, better use of the Council’s website all can play their
part but the working party was less than enthusiastic of the Government’s
proposal that meetings should be webcast to the general public. While
supporting the idea that the new civic suite to be constructed as part of the
new accommodation project should contain provision for webcams in the
event that the Government introduces a statutory requirement to this effect,
the working party felt that there was insufficient evidence currently to suggest
that the investment required to webcam meetings could be justified.
Nevertheless the working party recommends that every effort be made
to highlight the importance of scrutiny and encourage both members
and the wider public to play an active role in the scrutiny process.

15
143



7.31

7.32

7.33

8.1

8.2

The working party considered the present call-in arrangements and whether
they were thought to be working satisfactorily. Call-ins have tended to be
infrequent with historically no more than 2 or 3 in total per annum. A
requirement for 3 Members of the relevant panel to trigger a call-in appears to
offer the right balance and the working party cannot see any reason for
change. It recommends that no change be made to the present
arrangements for the call-in of executive decisions contained in the
constitution.

The changes proposed will create a requirement for additional scrutiny
support from the officer structure. Previous suggestions for a dedicated
scrutiny resource have not been accepted by the Council and support has
been provided by the staff of the Democratic Services Section of the Central
Services Directorate. The Local Democracy, Economic Development and
Construction Bill makes provision for county and unitary authorities to have a
dedicated ‘scrutiny officer’ which cannot be filled by one of the existing three
statutory posts of head of paid service, monitoring officer and section 151
officer. Although this does not extend to district councils, increasingly the
partnership agenda will involve scrutiny staff in maintaining close contact with
the statutory scrutiny officer at county level.

Coincidental to the working party’s review, the Director of Central Services,
following his recent appointment, has undertaken a review of his directorate
structure. Through a redistribution of staffing resources, it has been possible
to propose the creation of a post of Scrutiny Manager. The restructuring has
now been approved by the Employment Panel and the working party
welcomes the creation of a dedicated post of Scrutiny Manager to support the
scrutiny process.

The Non-Executive Structure of the Council

Regulations made under the 2000 Act list a range of functions that are
defined as non-executive. Some are specifically reserved to Council by the
regulations and other legislation but for the remainder, the Council can
delegate responsibility to committees or officers under the pre-2000 Act
arrangements. The functions can be grouped together under the following
headings —

¢ functions relating to town and country planning and development control
¢ licensing and registration functions

e functions relating to health and safety at work (other than in relation to the
Council as an employer)

functions relating to elections

functions relating to the name and status of areas and individuals
functions relating to changing governance arrangements

functions relating to community governance

power to make, etc. byelaws

functions relating to smoke free premises

power to promote or oppose local or personal Bills

functions relating to pensions etc.

functions relating to public rights of way

duty and power to designate certain officers

power to appoint staff and determine their terms and conditions

various other miscellaneous functions

In addition there are a number of other functions, referred to as local choice
functions, that the Council has a choice of determining as executive or non-
executive. Those that affect the Council are —

16
144



8.3

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

determination of appeals against decisions made by the authority
functions relating to contaminated land

functions relating to the control of pollution or air quality
functions relating to statutory nuisances

appointment of individuals to other offices and bodies

functions relating to local area agreements.

Some committees (standards and licensing) are statutory and must be
established but, those apart, it is a matter for the Council’s discretion as how
it undertakes non-executive decision making. The working party looked at the
remit of each of the panels and committees that have been established.

The Council

Article 4 of the constitution lists the powers that have been reserved to the
Council which principally relate to the approval of the budget and various
policies and strategies that together make up the Council’s policy and
budgetary framework. Once those have been approved, it is for the Cabinet
to carry out their detailed implementation. Any proposed decision that is
contrary to the framework requires reference to Council for determination.

The Council currently meets 6 times per annum at 2.30 p.m. This includes
the statutory annual meeting in May.

Of all the parts of the democratic structure, the Council has probably changed
the least as a result of the implementation of the 2000 Act and attracted the
least attention from local government commentators. At the time of the Act, a
leading academic of the Institute of Local Government Studies commented in
an article that ‘under existing structures the Council meeting has become in
most authorities an unsatisfactory occasion. Its business consisted largely of
reports from committees....... That business covered ground already gone
over in committee. The Council meeting became in many authorities little
more than a formality.’

Members will recognise that little has changed in the intervening years,
despite various attempts to enliven Council meetings and encourage public
attendance which has included —

e introduction of the state of the district debate;

¢ holding meetings at alternative venues;

e an opportunity for the public to present petitions containing more than 50
signatures;

e introduction of a period for oral questions by councillors to the executive
and other chairmen and

¢ changing the layout of the chamber.

The Council meeting should be the main forum for debate on the policy and
budgetary framework but robust debate is handicapped when policies and
strategies have been the subject of prior public consultation, agreement with
partners and discussion at scrutiny and cabinet en route to Council for
approval. Often there is little left to discuss or time in which to do so. With
cabinet being single party, scrutiny tending to be cross party and regulatory
committees not the vehicles for party politics, the Council meeting should
provide the principal opportunity for political debate.

The White Paper ‘Communities in Control’ is largely silent on the role of the
Council but the proposed new duty of promoting democracy and involving
local people in key decisions has been carried forward in the Local

17
145



9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Bill. So too has the
introduction of electronic petitions to make it easier for local people to petition
the Council but this latter initiative has already been implemented by the
Council.

The working party was faced with the choice of accepting that Council
meetings are a rather uninteresting necessity or proposing more radical
change. It chose the latter, prompted by some thought-provoking ideas that
emerged from the seminar attended by its Chairman that was organised by
the Institute of Local Government Studies.

The 2000 Act superimposed a parliamentary model on local government with
an executive (cabinet) and overview and scrutiny committees (parliamentary
select committees). The working party looked at the scope for remodelling
Council meetings to more closely resemble parliament with debates on the
stages of policy formulation, opposition debate days (supply days), question
time, early day motions and a speaker. In addition to the Council’s existing
terms of reference, the working party addressed a number of questions,
namely —

¢ how does the Council hold the executive to account?

e can the Council play a part in supporting the role of the authority in
community leadership?

¢ how can the relationship between the Council, the executive and scrutiny
be configured so Council is both supportive and critical of those roles?

o will policy and budgetary proposals be considered at a single meeting or
through a series of events?

e are the present arrangements for chairing meetings satisfactory?

The working party concluded that the Council should become a new
democratic forum. While there is a place for ceremony and symbolism, the
working party also found a need for flexibility and creativity to stimulate a
healthy local democracy and generate debate and deliberation. The Council
should be a place for representation and government, for the elected
representatives of the people to conduct the politics of the locality and for the
people of the locality to conduct their political activity.

The working party felt that the present reporting arrangements at Council
meetings provide an opportunity for not only executive councillors but also
scrutiny and the other committees/panels to be held to account and should
not therefore be changed. Similarly it considered that the opportunity for the
submission of petitions and Members’ question time had worked well.

Conversely the working party regarded the current arrangements for the
approval of major policy documents to be unsatisfactory. The statutory
guidance on new constitutions envisaged a situation where new policy
initiatives are debated first in Council before being the subject of consultation
and then final approval by Council. As explained earlier, there is currently
little opportunity for debate if the first occasion that a document is presented
to Council is after its content has been agreed with partners, discussed by
Cabinet and/or scrutiny and is too close to the deadline for approval.
Moreover the sheer scale of some of the policy documents means that it is
unrealistic for them to be the subject of meaningful debate by Members who
may only be aware of the subject area on receiving the meeting agenda. The
working party favoured a move towards the parliamentary approach of white
and green papers whereby new policies and proposals are raised in Council
on a more informal basis.

The working party suggests a new approach is needed whereby major policy
initiatives are discussed first in Council with Members being briefed in

18
146



9.13

9.14

9.15

innovative ways to stimulate questions and debate. Meetings could comprise
single issue debates on matters of topical importance to the district with
external speakers/organisations invited to brief Members on issues of
relevance and significance. They could also be used as a forum for local
accountability involving outside bodies or partners. As part of those
arrangements, the working party was attracted to the idea of the opposition
being invited to choose a theme for debate at one meeting each year and for
individual Members to be encouraged to make use of the current notice of
motion arrangements to identify subjects for discussion either in Council or by
reference to cabinet or panel. By so doing, the Council can become a forum
for the community and other agencies to debate important local issues with
their elected councillors. The working party therefore recommends that
major policy decisions that are reserved to Council should be the
subject of debate at Council meetings before public consultation and
innovative ways used to brief Members on the subjects to stimulate
debate. Arrangements should be made for single issue debates (in
addition to normal business), with the opposition political party invited
to choose the subject for debate at one meeting per annum.

Earlier in its report, the working party touched on the difficulty in effectively
scrutinising and holding to account the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership.
The overarching importance of the LSP and the achievement of targets
through the local area agreement suggests that this is a role for the Council
itself, especially as the Sustainable Community Strategy which the LSP is
responsible for delivering is approved by Council. The working party
recommends that the annual refresh of the strategy and periodic reports
on the performance of the LSP should be submitted to Council for
consideration and approval, with any detailed scrutiny referred to the
relevant panel for investigation.

The success of the new format will be dependent to some degree on the skill
and expertise of the person chairing the meeting, who will need to be able to
exercise a degree of independence of party political control and be
answerable only to the Council. The working party was attracted to the idea
of meetings being chaired by a speaker along similar lines to parliament.
Currently meetings are chaired by the Chairman of the Council who is elected
annually but historically tends to serve in that position for two years. The
choice of chairman derives largely from seniority and length of service,
together with that person’s ability to act as the ambassador for the Council at
civic functions. An ability to chair meetings is of relatively minor significance
and it is often difficult for incoming chairmen to familiarise themselves quickly
with the Council’s constitution, conduct meetings effectively and stimulate
debate.

The working party accepts that the Chairman’s role in undertaking civic duties
should remain unaltered but suggests that, other than chairman’s
announcements, the chairing of meetings of the Council should be
undertaken by a speaker elected by the Council and accountable only to that
body as a whole. With the exception of executive councillors who will be
appointed in future by the leader and therefore could have a conflict in
allegiance, the working party suggests that the position of speaker should be
open to all, irrespective of whether that person is holding another position
within the authority. In the absence of the speaker, it is suggested that his or
her place is filled by the Chairman. The working party recommends that
meetings of the Council are chaired by a speaker elected by the Council
itself at its annual meeting and that the position be open to any Member
irrespective of any other position already held, with the exception of
membership of the Cabinet.

19
147



9.16

9.17

9.18

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

The working party considered whether an opportunity should be provided for
public question time at meetings of the Council. Currently this is limited to
Members only, although organisers of petitions can present and speak to their
petition at meetings. To encourage public engagement, the working party
was of the view that any person who lived, worked or owned property in the
district should be able to ask a question at meetings of the full Council using
the same criteria as the existing Members’ question time but subject to notice
of the question being submitted at least one week prior to the meeting, both to
ensure that the question is acceptable and to present the person to whom the
question is addressed an opportunity to prepare an answer. The working
party recommends that public question time be introduced at Council
meetings as set out in the procedure attached as annex B.

Bearing in mind the changes proposed, the working party discussed the
frequency and timing of meetings. If the new arrangements work
successfully, there may be a need for additional meetings but in the first
instance, the working party recommends that the number of meetings of
the Council be increased from 5 plus the annual meeting to six plus the
annual meeting each year. Meetings are currently held at 2.30 p.m. but this
may present attendance problems for members in full time employment,
guest speakers from partner and other organisations and members of the
public. The working party therefore recommends that meetings should
commence at 6.30 p.m. for a trial period of twelve months.

A suggested format for a new look Council meeting is attached as annex C.
Other Non-Executive Functions

The 2000 Act rules in terms of decision making do not apply to non-executive
functions. Hence the previous 1972 Act and associated legislation remain
applicable. Delegation can be to a committee and subsequently to a sub
committee (as opposed to an individual member) or to an officer. Committees
must be politically balanced.

Statutory guidance on the implementation of the 2000 Act to which the
Council has to have regard states that, in the Secretary of State’s view, the
number of committees to which decision making is delegated should be kept
to a minimum, as should the number of members on committees which
should be proportionate to the size of the authority. In addition, the
membership of committees should be kept under review in line with the
principles of efficiency, transparency and accountability.

How the Council structures its non-executive decision making is a matter for
local discretion. The statutory guidance refers only to development control
and licensing, registration and health and safety at work functions. The
working party was reminded that, if a non-executive decision is not delegated
to a committee or to an officer, it must be taken by the full Council itself.
While this may enhance the role of the Council as described above, there are
some decisions that require detailed investigation, others that are relatively
insignificant and others that are simply inappropriate for discussion in a public
forum which comprises all members.

Some specific non-executive functions relating to licensing and standards are
derived direct from the relevant legislation and different procedures therefore
apply in the case of those committees.

Before addressing the current way in which non-executive decision making is
structured, the working party discussed the issue of substitution in the event
of a councillor being unable to attend a committee meeting of which he or she
is a member. This has become a relatively common practice within local

20
148



10.6

10.7

11.

government, particularly in authorities where political parties are closely
balanced. It does provide an opportunity to ensure full membership of a
committee, to share responsibilities and potentially to bring a fresh
perspective to a debate. Substitution tends to be attractive if a party’s
majority is small and there is a danger of being outvoted in committee if one
of its members is unable to attend. Similarly if committee membership is
small and an opposition party is entitled only to a single seat, an inability of its
appointee to attend would leave the party unrepresented at that meeting.

In discussing substitution, the working party considered the functions of the
committees to which it might be applied. Cabinet has been dealt with earlier
in the report with the working party concluding that this should remain single
party with no opportunity for ‘shadow’ Cabinet members. Similarly the
working party felt that substitution was inappropriate for scrutiny. Party
politics should play no part in the deliberations of the regulatory committees
where decisions should be free of political bias and the current format of the
Standards Committee is not appropriate for substitution, containing as it does
a number of independent persons and parish council representatives.

The working party did not find the idea of substitution attractive. It did not
consider that the business and conduct of the Council has been unduly
hampered by the absence of substitutes to date and felt that substitution has
less relevance in the current constitutional climate. The working party
therefore recommends that substitution is not introduced for non-
executive meetings of the Council.

Development Control Panel

The Council has delegated non-executive functions relating to town and
country planning, public rights of way and trees and hedgerows to the
Development Control Panel. The Panel is authorised to determine
applications and make orders within the local development framework
approved by Council and acts as a consultee when LDF policies are being
formulated by Cabinet for submission to Council for approval. Where
decisions are proposed that are contrary to policy, these must be referred to
Council for approval. In the case of planning applications, the Council in
effect assumes the Panel’s role in determining an application and procedures
have been implemented to address this concept.

The Panel itself currently comprises 16 members, meeting monthly at 7.00
p.m.. In accordance with statutory guidance, the constitution currently
provides for the relevant executive councillor to be an ex officio member of
the Panel to provide a link with the policy formulators in Cabinet but there is
no restriction in terms of the maximum membership of the Panel by executive
councillors. The guidance also suggests that the executive councillor who
sits on the Panel should not be its chairman.

An extensive system of delegation to the Head of Planning Services is in
place (which is listed in the constitution) to help ensure that the Council meets
its statutory target of determining applications within the required timescales
and keep meetings to manageable proportions. Nevertheless all Members do
have an opportunity within 21 days of the publication of the weekly planning
list to ask for an individual application to be determined by the Panel as
opposed to an officer, provided that material planning reasons are submitted
by the Member to accompany the request.

The Panel has introduced a system of public speaking at its meetings which
has proved popular without elongating meetings unduly. High levels of public
attendance are the norm with over 50 people being a regular occurrence.
The public speaking arrangements were reviewed last summer by the

21
149



12

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Service Support) and by the Development
Control Panel itself and minor changes made to a system that has been a
notable success.

The working party looked at the size of the panel, the level and nature of
representation of executive councillors, the frequency, time, length and venue
of meetings, bearing in mind their popularity with the public. Evidence
suggests that the level of Member attendance at panel meetings is high with
usually only 2 or 3 absentees per meeting. In terms of executive councillor
attendance, the working party queried whether there might be a perception
that the portfolio holder might be inclined to regularly support planning
officers’ recommendations on development applications. However the
working party did not find any evidence to this effect and felt that the
presence of the executive councillor's experience of planning policy was
valuable in debate. With regard to the timing etc. of meetings, the working
party was satisfied that the present arrangements are working well and it
therefore recommends that no change be made to the terms of
reference, composition etc. of the Development Control Panel.

Licensing and Protection Panel and Licensing Committee

Licensing, registration and health and safety are the only other non-executive
functions mentioned in the statutory guidance. In addition to those listed
specifically as non-executive in the regulations, the Council has chosen to
designate a number of the local choice functions as non-executive and these
have been grouped together within the responsibilities of the Licensing and
Protection Panel

Most decision making for licences, registrations and the enforcement of
health and safety is delegated to officers, often after consultation with the
Chairman and Vice Chairman, as set out in the constitution. The principal
function of the Panel is policy formulation and, unlike development control,
most applications that require member decisions are dealt with by application
sub groups.

The Panel therefore meets relatively infrequently on three occasions per
annum, usually at 2.30 p.m. It comprises 12 members with the relevant
executive councillor again being an ex officio member. The Panel must be
politically balanced. Public speaking is not permitted at panel meetings but,
as the determination of applications is delegated to sub groups, there are few
occasions when this would be relevant

The Licensing Committee, on the other hand, is a statutory committee, the
terms of reference of which are determined by the Licensing Act 2003 and
subsequently the Gambling Act 2005. It must comprise 12 members and be
politically balanced. The Committee must appoint at least one sub committee
of 3 members to determine applications at hearings when representations
have been received. Most decision making has been delegated to officers or
is dealt with by the sub committees.

As a result of a quirk in the legislation, it is not possible for the Licensing
Committee to incorporate the functions of the Licensing and Protection Panel
and vice versa. The practical answer has been for the Committee to replicate
the membership, chairmanship etc. of the Panel and for its meetings to
immediately follow those of the Panel.

The Working Party looked at the frequency, timing and venue for meetings
and the balance between executive and non-executive members of both the
Committee and the Panel. It found that the current arrangements are working
well and the time and frequency of meetings to be appropriate for its business

22
150



13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

14.

14.1

14.2

and conduct. The working party found that there was therefore little
opportunity or need for any amendments and recommends that no change
be made to the terms of reference, composition, etc. of the Licensing
and Protection Panel and Licensing Committee.

Standards Committee

The Standards Committee similarly is a statutory committee but derived from
the 2000 Act with subsequent regulations defining its membership and the
delegation of functions to a variety of sub committees.

The Committee must comprise at least 25% independent persons who are
not elected members. In addition it must comprise at least one representative
of parish councils who must be present when issues relating to parish
councils are being discussed. Two mandatory sub committees must be
appointed to deal with allegations of breaches of the Members Code of
Conduct and each of the sub committees, as well as the committee itself,
must be chaired by an independent person. If a sub committee is dealing
with an issue relating to parish councils, a parish council member of the
Committee must be present. To have sufficient humbers to appoint to and
chair the sub committees, it is necessary for the Committee to comprise at
least three independent persons and three representatives of town and parish
councils. The Committee must include one or more executive councillors.

The current membership of the Committee is therefore 7 councillors, 4
independent persons and 3 parish council representatives, although it has
only recently been possible to attract a full complement of parish councillors
on the Committee. Meetings are held quarterly, usually at 4.00 p.m.

When the Committee was first established, its terms of reference included a
number of other miscellaneous non-executive functions in the absence of an
alternative decision making forum, e.g. complaints handling, whistleblowing
procedure, constitutional matters. However it became apparent that it was
inappropriate for independent persons and parish councillors to be taking
decisions on matters of Council business of this nature and those functions
have now been transferred to the Corporate Governance Panel. This has
meant that the terms of reference of the Standards Committee are limited
solely to those that specifically derive from the 2000 Act and subsequent
regulations.

The working party found little opportunity to suggest any change to the
Standards Committee whose business is heavily constrained by regulation,
other than a change in the time of its meetings to an early evening which
might be of assistance to the independent persons and parish council
representatives who sit on the committee. The working party recommends
that no change be made to the terms of reference, composition, etc. of
the Standards Committee, other than a change in the time of its
meetings to 6.30 p.m..

Corporate Governance Panel

The Panel is a relatively recent innovation. It fulfils the role of the Council’s
audit committee and deals with issues relating to the Council’s governance
arrangements, internal and financial controls, customer feedback and
whistleblowing.

The Panel comprises 7 members, of which at least one and no more than
three should be members of the executive. In practice the Panel has
contained 3 members of the Cabinet since its inception. It meets quarterly,
usually at 6.00p.m.

23
151



14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

15.

The Panel recently reviewed its own effectiveness in association with the
external auditors and prepared an action plan for improvement which contains
two issues that were referred to the working party for consideration as part of
the review. The first relates to its membership. A quorum for meetings is
three Members and the Panel was concerned that this could create a
possibility that on rare occasions only Cabinet Members need be present to
meet the quorum requirements.

The second matter related to the Panel’s terms of reference. In reviewing its
effectiveness, the Panel considered whether these followed the CIPFA model.
The Panel had concluded that they did but referred the matter to the working
party for consideration as part of its wider review.

The Panel is not a statutory committee and is not referred to in the statutory
guidance for local authority constitutions. However, the Corporate
Governance Panel does represent good practice and the Council scores well
in terms of its annual use of resources assessment by having invested in the
establishment of a panel of this nature.

In terms of membership, the working party discussed the relationship
between the Panel and both the Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny
Panel (Service Support) as three members of the former and the chairman of
the latter are currently members of the Panel. The working party
acknowledged the separate roles of the Corporate Governance and Scrutiny
Panels but did not consider that this gave rise to a conflict of interest if a
Member sat on both. However the working party did think that a maximum of
three executive councillors was too high in a panel size of 7. It was felt that
the practice of development control and licensing should be followed with
those executive councillors with responsibility for finance and corporate
governance being ex officio members of the Panel. It was also felt that co-
option of external persons might be beneficial on an ad hoc basis in a non-
voting capacity. The working party therefore recommends that the
executive councillors whose portfolios include finance and corporate
governance should become ex officio members of the Corporate
Governance Panel in place of the present arrangements for a maximum
of 3 Cabinet members.

Having reviewed the Audit Commission’s suggested terms of reference for
the Panel in comparison to those approved by Council, the working party
found that these largely coincided. However for the sake of clarity, the
working party recommends that the following be added to the terms of
reference of the Panel —

e comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and ensure
it gives value for money

o liaise with the Audit Commission over the appointment of the
Council’s external auditor

e commission work from internal and external audit

e monitor the Council’s policies on ‘Raising Concerns at Work’, the
Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy and the Council’s customer
feedback process.

With the exceptions referred to above, the only other change considered by
the working party was the time of meetings and, for consistency, it is
recommended that meetings of the Corporate Governance Panel
commence at 6.30 p.m.

Employment Panel

24
152



15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

The Council’s workforce are employees of and accountable to the Council as
a whole, not the executive. The functions and responsibilities regulations
specifically define the appointment and terms and conditions of staff as non-
executive functions which must therefore be dealt with either in full Council or
by delegation to a committee or officer.

The Council has chosen to establish an Employment Panel, whose terms of
reference also include responsibility for determining the Employees Code of
Conduct, the Protocol on Member/Employee Relations and Officer
Employment Procedure Rules. It is not a statutory committee, nor is there
any reference in the statutory guidance as to how such matters should be
dealt with in a Council’s constitutional arrangements.

The Panel currently comprises 8 Members, including at least one member of
the Cabinet, and meets quarterly, usually at 3.00 p.m.

Although aware of a view that the Panel's existence was unnecessary, the
working party found a need for a mechanism to deal with employment issues.
The working party acknowledged that it would be inappropriate for staffing
matters to be discussed in full Council, nor for issues of such significance as
the negotiation of the annual salary award to be delegated to officers. Some
form of Member decision making forum is therefore inevitable and the working
party found the present arrangements to be working satisfactorily. The
working party therefore recommends that no change be made to the
terms of reference, composition, etc. of the Employment Panel.

Appointments Panel

The Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) Regulations 2000
define the following functions of the Council as not being the responsibility of
the executive —

e power to appoint staff and to determine the terms and conditions on which
they hold office (including procedures for their dismissal),

e power to appoint officers for particular purposes (appointment of ‘proper
officers’),

¢ duty to designate officer as head of the authority’s paid service and to
provide staff etc.

e duty to designate an officer as the monitoring officer and to provide staff
etc., and

e duty to provide staff etc. to person nominated by the monitoring officer.

The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 require
an authority to include in its standing orders certain procedures for the
appointment and dismissal of staff.

The statutory guidance for the implementation of the Local Government Act
2000 also makes provision as to how the appointment and dismissal of staff
must be dealt with by an authority.

There is a perception that the current arrangements, contained in the Officer
Employment Procedure Rules in the constitution, are unwieldy in terms of the
appointment of the Chief Executive, directors and heads of service. For all
other employees, both the Regulations and the Rules require the appointment
of employees below head of service level to be the responsibility of the Chief
Executive or his nominee and this cannot be undertaken by councillors. The
working party’s review therefore dealt only with employees at head of service
level and above.

25
153



16.5

16.6

16.7

16.8

16.9

16.10

In the case of the head of paid service (the Chief Executive), the Employment
Procedure Rules require the full Council to approve the appointment,
following a recommendation by a panel appointed by the Council which must
include the relevant executive councillor. In the case of chief officers
(directors) and heads of service, responsibility for their appointment is
delegated to a panel (the Appointments Panel) which must include the
relevant executive councillor in relation to the post to be filled.

The Rules stipulate that an offer of appointment by the Council or the Panel
cannot take place until —

(i) the Council or Panel has supplied the Chief Executive with details of
the proposed appointment,

(i) the Chief Executive has supplied members of the Cabinet with details
of the proposed appointment and allowed a period for objection to the
offer by the leader on behalf of the Cabinet, and

(iii) the leader has informed the Chief Executive that -

¢ there is no objection to the offer,

e such an objection has not been received within the requisite
period, or

¢ the Council or Panel is satisfied that such objection is not material
or well-founded.

In any case, the final decision as to the offer of appointment is the respective
responsibility of the Council or Panel. The same situation applies in the case
of the dismissal of employees.

The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 define
the procedure for the appointment and dismissal of the head of paid service,
statutory and non-statutory chief officers and deputy chief officers. Other than
the fact that the Council has delegated to the Appointments Panel
responsibility for the interviewing of candidates, the Council's Officer
Employment Procedure Rules exactly mirror the requirements contained in
the Regulations.

The Appointments Panel is appointed by the Council each year at the annual
meeting. Its size is not defined in the constitution and can therefore be varied
at each annual meeting, subject to it always including at least one member of
the Cabinet and being politically balanced. Historically, the Panel has
comprised four members including the deputy leader, the relevant executive
councillor in relation to the post to be filled, the chairman of the Employment
Panel and a member of the majority opposition party.

The working party acknowledged that the only flexibility effectively available is
the size of the Appointments Panel. The working party had intended to
recommend that membership of the panel comprise the chairman and vice
chairman of the Employment Panel, deputy leader, relevant executive
councillor and one member of the opposition which would provide a balanced
cross section of executive and non-executive members of both parties.
However before the completion of the review, a further vacancy for a head of
service position has highlighted the problem of finding dates when the
existing membership are available which can slow the recruitment process.
An alternative approach has been mooted whereby a pool of Members is
established from which a panel of 5 is appointed on an ad hoc basis. The
approach could lead to a potential imbalance in membership in comparison to
the working party’s original concept. The working party acknowledged the
potential problem but was opposed to the idea of a pool of members for the
same reasons as it had discounted substitution. The Working Party felt that a
solution to this situation would be for each of the members appointed to the

26
154



17.

171

17.2

17.3

18.

18.1

Appointments Panel to be able to nominate an alternative representative who
could attend a meeting on their behalf if they were unable to participate in the
interview meeting. The working party therefore recommends that
membership of the Appointments Panel comprise the chairman and vice
chairman of the Employment Panel, deputy leader, relevant portfolio
holder and the Leader of the majority opposition party (or their
respective nominees).

Elections Panel

Finally the working party reviewed the position of the Elections Panel.
Functions relating to elections, the name and status of areas and individuals,
governance arrangements and community governance are defined as non-
executive. The establishment of a panel to deal with such matters has been a
relatively recent development that reflected the need for detailed debate on a
number of electoral matters in recent years such as boundary reviews and
electoral cycles. In the absence of a panel, such matters would need to be
discussed in full Council.

The terms of reference of the Panel will require some amendment to include
the new provisions introduced by the 2007 Act which will be dealt with in the
biennial review of the constitution which is currently taking place.

The Panel comprises 7 Members and meets on an ad hoc basis as and when
the need arises. The working party found that the Panel provides a practical
way of dealing with electoral matters in an informal manner which aids
discussion of detailed issues. The working party therefore recommends
that no change be made to the terms of reference, composition, etc. of
the Elections Panel.

Other Committees, Panels and Groups

There remained a number of joint committees, sub and advisory groups and
working parties that have been established by Cabinet or panels. These can
be summarised as follows —

Cabinet

Hinchingbrooke Country Park Joint Liaison Group

Huntingdonshire Traffic Management Area Joint Committee

Safety Advisory Group

Customer First and Accommodation Advisory Group

Environment Strategy Working Group

Car Parking Working Group

Overview and Scrutiny Panels

Performance Review Working Group

Development Control Panel

Development Plan Policy Advisory Group

Section 106 Agreement Advisory Group

Tree Preservation Order Sub Group

Licensing and Protection Panel/Licensing Committee

Applications Sub Groups
Licensing Sub Committees

27
155



18.2

19.

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

20.

20.1

20.2

Employment Panel

Employees Liaison Advisory Group
Appeals Sub Group

Standards Committee

Referrals (Assessment) Sub Committee
Review Sub Committee

Some of the sub committees are required by statute. Others have been
established to undertake specific functions, either internally or jointly with
external partners, by the parent Cabinet or panel. Some are time limited but
they are all subject to change at the discretion of the parent body, as in the
case of the recent decision to wind up the leisure centre management
committees. They therefore were omitted from its review by the working party
which left only the question of area committees.

Area Committees

The statutory guidance that was issued by the Secretary of State to
accompany the Local Government Act 2000 recognised that area committees
or forums could have an important role to play in bringing decision making
closer to people and helping to give local people a say in how a local authority
works. The Secretary of State therefore encourages local authorities to
consider the use of such decentralised arrangements for consultation or
decision making or both.

Area committees or forums can take many forms and undertake a variety of
roles. They can include councillors or be comprised of councillors and
representatives of other public, private and voluntary sector bodies in the
area. They can have delegated functions and budgets or they can be purely
advisory or consultative.

The Council previously had four area consultative committees that comprised
ward councillors but these ceased to exist in the mid 1990s because of lack of
business and interest. The only restriction in terms of decision making now is
that if an area committee is to exercise delegated executive decision making,
it must not exceed 40% of the size of the authority in terms of either area or
population. In establishing the new structure in response to the 2000 Act, the
Council decided not to introduce the concept of area committees at that time.

Since then, there has been considerable emphasis on community
engagement and neighbourhood management and the question of areas
committees is dealt with below.

Community Engagement and Neighbourhood Management

A brief report jointly authored by the Heads of Administration, Community and
Environmental Health and Policy and Strategic Services was submitted to
both Overview and Scrutiny Panels in November which referred to initial
discussions into the question of community engagement and neighbourhood
management. As the review of the constitution was in progress, it was
agreed to refer the matter to the working party for consideration as part of its
wider remit.

The need for closer engagement with local communities and encourage
people to participate in local activities have featured strongly in recent
Government white papers and legislation. Both the Strong and Prosperous
Communities and Communities in Control white papers have recurrent

28
156



20.3

20.4

20.5

20.6

20.7

themes of engaging with communities and engendering a greater involvement
and interest on the part of individuals in local decision making and creating a
sense of place.

Local Aims and Objectives

The development of neighbourhood management is a key objective in both
County and District sustainable community strategies and in the Council’s
own corporate plan.

‘Cambridgeshire’s Vision’, the Cambridgeshire Sustainable Communities
Strategy, contains 5 key themes —

Managing Growth

Equality & Inclusion

Safer & Stronger Communities
Environmental Sustainability
Economic Prosperity

Effective neighbourhood engagement and management can play a significant
role in delivering against the key themes.

One of the six strategic themes of the Huntingdonshire sustainable
community strategy is inclusive, safe and cohesive communities which lists a
number of outcomes, one of which is effective neighbourhood management in
appropriate communities by

e implementing neighbourhood management in Ramsey, Oxmoor and
Eynesbury,

e investigating neighbourhood management in other communities, and

e promoting the engagement of communities in the provision and running of
services.

The Council’'s own corporate plan, ‘Growing Success’ lists empowerment as
one of the Council’s roles by ‘helping and empowering local people and acting
as their advocate and working closely with town and parish councils,
communities and neighbourhoods; listening and communicating with local
residents and supporting the representative role of local councillors’. The
community aims include safe, vibrant and inclusive communities, one of the
objectives of which is to enable residents to take an active part in their
communities —

e by encouraging them to take part in representative and democratic
activities, and

e by assisting communities to resolve community issues locally and
adopting a neighbourhood management approach in the neediest
communities.

Current Arrangements

Neighbourhood police panels, formerly safer neighbourhood panels, have
been operating in Cambridgeshire since 2006, concentrating on establishing
priorities for community safety issues in localities. They have been serviced
by the Police with the support of the Council’s community safety team and are
public meetings, open to county, district, town and parish councillors as well
as the wider community. Sitting alongside each panel is a joint action group
of officers from the Police, community safety and others to agree actions to
meet the priorities set by the panel and report back. Seven panels in
Huntingdonshire cover

29
157



20.8

20.9

20.10

20.11

20.12

20.13

20.14

20.15

North and West Huntingdonshire
Ramsey and District

Huntingdon and District

Oxmoor and Hartford

St Ives and District

Eynesbury

St Neots and District

A recent national review of policing undertaken by Sir Ronnie Flanagan has
recommended a closer link between local police forces and other partner
organisations at a neighbourhood level on the basis that ‘neighbourhood
policing should exist within a wider context of collaboration and joint working,
with police officers working in partnership with a wide range of local agencies,
from councils to primary care trusts to schools’.

In addition to the police panels, there are locality groups operating in those
wards with higher levels of deprivation in Huntingdonshire in Eynesbury,
Oxmoor and Ramsey.

Town Centre management groups have been established in each of the four
market towns in the District but while they bring together local authority
representation and business interests, their principal function is to promote
the economic vitality of the towns and their role should not be confused with
neighbourhood management.

Developments in Cambridgeshire

The County Council’'s Cabinet approved recommendations contained in a
report on ‘Taking Forward Neighbourhood Management in Huntingdonshire’
in July 2007 which facilitated the neighbourhood management initiatives
being implemented in Oxmoor, Eynesbury and Ramsey.

The County Council is also working more widely across Cambridgeshire to
develop neighbourhood management with the key aims of —

e improving outcomes for local people by bringing agencies together to
address problems in a joined up way,

e helping citizens engage with and influence public service delivery and
democratic governance, and

e supporting local communities in taking local action.

Two neighbourhood panel liaison officers have been appointed in recent
months to support the County Council and its members at neighbourhood
panel meetings. The officer responsible for the panels in the north of the
County has given a presentation on the proposals to County and District
members at a Huntingdonshire In Your Patch meeting in December 2008.

Elsewhere in the County, Fenland District Council recently agreed a proposal
for enhanced neighbourhood engagement and management. Building on a
pilot scheme that has been operating in Fenland and an extensive
consultation exercise, the Council will be developing 5 neighbourhood
management boards and 7 forums. The boards are likely to comprise
councillors from Fenland, Cambridgeshire, town and parish councils, youth
district councillors, Cambridgeshire Constabulary, the local PCT, a housing
association and the local secondary school head teacher and will be attended
by officers from the District and County Councils.

The boards will have the following key roles —

30
158



20.16

20.17

20.18

20.19

20.20

e setting local priorities for partner agencies, including safety and policing
policies, linked to the Fenland sustainable community strategy and LAA,

e engaging with the community on local planning issues (where
appropriate),

e providing grants to voluntary and community organisations,

e seeking accountability of local service providers,

e developing and commissioning local community initiatives such as
projects to develop local skills, raise aspirations, improve quality of life
etc., and

¢ helping to enable town and parish plan development and integrate town
and parish priorities into area action plans.

The neighbourhood forums will include the public, Fenland ward councillors
and County Council electoral division councillors from the forum catchment
area, the chairmen of town and parish councils, representatives of local
tenant and residents associations, local youth councillors and the voluntary
sector.

In East Cambs District Council, a review of its neighbourhood panel project
was considered in October 2008. A pilot has been trialled in the Soham area
since November 2006 and was extended to cover all parts of the District in
January of last year with 5 panels currently in operation. Each panel
comprises elected members from all 3 tiers of local government with up to 4
community representatives being co-opted. Parish council representatives
provide a regular community viewpoint, augmented by contributions from
other panel members and the public who are encouraged to attend. The
panel is provided with reports on the local issues facing service providers and
meets in public to prioritise the actions necessary to address the issues,
taking advice from officers of the public service providers. Actions prioritised
at each panel meeting are reported back to the panel and public at the next
meeting. The process is supported by a neighbourhoods panel co-ordinator,
funded through LPSA reward grant.

Neighbourhood Management in Huntingdonshire

Neighbourhood management is clearly high on the political agenda nationally
and forms part of the Council’s aims and objectives.

The Council needs to consider how best to take this forward. To be effective,
it requires commitment and support with significant resource implications,
both at member and officer level. There are no additional resources available
currently and against a background of financial restraint with budgetary cuts
required, it is unlikely that any new funding can be found, other than possibly
from existing partners. It seems sensible therefore to build on existing
neighbourhood management in the District by expanding the role of the police
panels which are already attended by representatives of the three local
government tiers, the police and the public. Membership could be expanded
to include NHS, education and Luminus representation with servicing of the
panels transferring from the police to the District Council.

The working party had a particularly lengthy debate on this subject. If
neighbourhood meetings are to be meaningful, it is clear that strong
leadership will be required to encourage public involvement and ensure that
issues raised are dealt with by relevant bodies. Bearing in mind the
developments elsewhere and the commitments expressed in the sustainable
community strategy and corporate plan, the working party concluded that the
District Council should take the lead in Huntingdonshire by building on the
existing foundations of the police panels. Having regard to the specialist
nature of the neighbourhood management initiatives in Oxmoor, Eynesbury

31
159



20.21

20.22

20.23

20.24

and Ramsey, it was felt that these should continue unchanged by any
proposals for neighbourhood forums with a wider remit both geographically
and in their terms of reference.

The working party felt that the fundamental principle for the forums should be
the provision of an opportunity for members of the public to raise issues of
concern with relevant authorities and public bodies. Therefore the forums
should not be too remote from local people, nor should there be so many that
it would be impossible for them to be serviced satisfactorily. Although a
number of different scenarios were considered, the working party concluded
that a total of 6 forums meeting on a quarterly basis would be manageable.
Parishes have been nominally allocated to each forum area based on ward
and electoral division boundaries and what are perceived to be local
communities of interest. This is shown on the map attached as annex D.
Some variation may be appropriate as a result of local representation or with
partners and indeed initial discussions with Cambridgeshire Constabulary
suggest that, for operational reasons, they favour retention of the existing
neighbourhood police panels boundaries as shown on annex E, with the
exception of those at Oxmoor & Hartford and Eynesbury. The working party
believes that local communities of interest should be the priority, otherwise
the public are unlikely to attend.

Although the forums will be open meetings, the working party proposes that a
panel be established for each area that will comprise a ‘top table’ at forum
meetings with the purpose of presenting information, resolving issues raised
from the floor, moderating any requests for information/action that need to be
referred elsewhere, monitoring, progress chasing and reporting back to
ensuing meetings. As each forum area will vary in terms of its priorities and
circumstances, the working party felt that it would inappropriate to
predetermine the composition of the panels, subject only to a membership not
exceeding 10 and chairmanship by a district councillor from within the
catchment area. Dependent on the length of the forum meeting, a separate
meeting of each panel might be required either after the forum discussion or
on an ensuing date to action issues raised by those attending.

In terms of the reporting arrangements, the working party proposes that the
forums/panels feed into the appropriate thematic groups of the
Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership with any issues of concern with regard
to membership, attendance by public bodies, investigation of issues etc.
being reported through the HSP itself to the LSP partners. Operational issues
would be referred to and dealt with by the appropriate local authority or public
sector body with the outcome reported back to the next ensuing forum
meeting. A diagram showing the various proposed linkages is attached as
annex F.

The working party therefore recommends that 6 neighbourhood forums
open to the public be established in Huntingdonshire, chaired by district
councillors and serviced by the District Council for the areas of
Huntingdon, St Neots, St Ives, Ramsey, North Huntingdonshire and
West Huntingdonshire with the catchment areas shown on the plan
attached as annex D to this report and the following terms of reference —

¢ advising on the setting of local priorities for partner agencies,
including safety and policing policies, linked to the Huntingdonshire
sustainable community strategy and local area agreement,

e engaging with the community on local planning issues (where
appropriate),

¢ seeking the accountability of local service providers,

32
160



¢ developing and commissioning local community initiatives such as
projects to develop local skills, raise aspirations, improve quality of
life etc.,

¢ helping to enable town and parish plan development and integrate
town and parish priorities into area action plans’ and

e expressing views in response to consultation on proposals under
the Sustainable Communities Act 2007 (see below).

20.25 The working party recommends that a panel should be established for

21.

21.1

21.2

21.3

each forum, chaired by a district councillor and serviced by the District
Council, with the composition of each panel being a matter for local
determination subject to a ceiling of 10 representatives of local
authorities and other public sector bodies active in the area of that
forum and with the following terms of reference —

e presenting information at forum meetings,

¢ resolving issues raised at forum meetings,

¢ moderating any requests for information/action that need to be
referred elsewhere,

e monitoring the performance of the forum,

¢ progress chasing requests for information/action, and

e reporting back to ensuing meetings.

The panels and forums will feed into the appropriate thematic group of
the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership.

Sustainable Communities Act 2007

The principal aim of the Act is to promote the sustainability of local
communities by encouraging the improvement of the social, economic and
environmental well-being of an authority’s area, including participation in civic
and political activity. The Act requires the Secretary of State to invite local
authorities to submit proposals to promote the sustainability of local
communities which can include a transfer of functions between local and
public authorities. Before doing so, an authority must consult with the
transferor authority and a panel of representatives of local people, including,
specifically, under-represented groups. Regulations on the implementation of
Act were published only recently by Secretary of State in November 2008.

For the purposes of the review, the working party considered the composition
of the panel required under the Act. Some authorities already have
established citizens panels and there is no necessity for such to be duplicated
for the purposes of the Act. Where those do not exist, an authority that
wishes to submit proposals under the Act must consult a panel, including
representatives of persons from under-represented groups. The latter are not
defined and it is a matter for each local authority to decide upon reasonable
steps to identify under-represented groups if a new panel is to be established.

The steps should include —

¢ identifying communities of interest in the area, and

e working with colleagues, the voluntary sector and other service providers
on which communities of interest may be under-represented in civic and
political activity, in particular those that are hardest to reach

and then ensuring that they are represented on the panel. Once the panel
has been established, the authority must take a view as to whether those
under-represented groups are sufficiently represented.

33
161



214

22,

22.1

22.2

22.3

224

22.5

Further consideration of the implementation of the Act will be dealt with
elsewhere but the working party can see no reason to establish a separate
panel for consultation on proposals coming forward under the legislation. The
working party therefore recommends that any proposals under the Act
should be subject to consultation with the neighbourhood forums.

Exercise of Functions by Individual Councillors

Although the working party’s remit related to a review of the constitution, it
was conscious of recent legislative change intended to raise the profile of the
ward councillor in the community and also enable councillors to take
delegated decisions on an individual basis. The working party felt that it
would have been remiss of them not to have therefore also addressed the
role of the councillor as part of its review.

Constituency work has long been an important element of a councillor's
duties. Indeed one of the aims of the Local Government Act 2000 was to free
up councillors’ time from committee attendance to allow them to concentrate
more on working in their constituencies, previous surveys having suggested
that this was what was regarded by councillors as one of their more important
and valuable roles. In practice, there has been no less ‘committee’ work with
the creation of overview and scrutiny and other non-executive decision
making than was the case with the old committee system. The role of the
councillor as a community leader has however increased with recent white
papers and legislation. The need for better communication with members has
been the subject of separate discussions involving members and officers that
has been running parallel to the review which has culminated in a recently
produced ‘Communicating with Councillors’ protocol, available on the
Council’s intranet site.

The white paper ‘Strong and Prosperous Communities’ acknowledged that
councillors will often be able to solve a community’s problem themselves. A
councillor’'s ability to do so was strengthened in two ways in the 2007 Act.
The first was the introduction of the councillor’s ‘call for action’ which enables
a councillor to raise an issue on behalf of a constituent through an authority’s
overview and scrutiny panel. The second, which was considered by the
working party, is the ability to delegate decision making to individual
councillors.

Prior to the 2000 and 2007 Acts, as referred to earlier in the report, legislation
only enabled decision making to be delegated to committees, sub committees
and officers. As a committee cannot comprise one person, individual
councillors could not have decision making delegated to them. The 2000 Act
introduced executive decision making by executive councillors if the
responsibility was delegated to them by the Cabinet or leader. The 2007 Act
takes this further and enables both the leader and the Council to delegate
responsibility for the discharge of executive and non executive functions
respectively to councillors for the wards that they represent. This will not
apply where it is expressly prohibited by other legislation (e.g. a hearing to
determine an application under the Licensing Act 2003 must be heard by a
sub committee comprising three members of a licensing committee). The
Secretary of State by order may also limit the functions that can be
discharged and any such delegation, as normal, does not prevent the
discharge of the function by the person or body that has authorised the
delegation.

Although the discharge arrangements are not limited other than as referred to
in the preceding paragraph, it is expected that authorities wishing to make
use of the new power will do so to delegate a budget to local councillors for
expenditure in their wards to promote social, economic and environmental

34
162



22.6

22.7

22.8

22.9

23.

23.1

23.2

well-being. Any decisions made by an individual councillor will have to be
recorded and retained for inspection for six years and a councillor can be
called to account by an overview and scrutiny panel for his or her actions in
this respect.

Some authorities have found ways of delegating small budgets to individual
councillors in the past but the 2007 Act introduced a far more wide ranging
ability to facilitate local decision making. Clearly this works best in single
member wards where there is more transparent local accountability as in two
and three member wards the views of ward members may be divergent.

If expenditure was to be delegated, budgetary provision would need to be
made. Even allowing for a modest sum of say £2,000 per annum for each
councillor, this would amount to in excess of £100,000 per annum which
would be available for expenditure by individual councillors. The feasibility of
this would have to be considered in the context of the Council’'s current
financial position.

The other consideration is the question of resources. Although decisions
would be taken by individual councillors, these would have to be recorded
and retained for public inspection, advice may be required from officers on the
advisability of certain proposed decisions, actions would have to be monitored
etc.

The working party balanced the benefits of the local discharge of functions
against the resource implications and budgetary considerations involved.
While superficially attractive, the working party foresaw numerous problems
with delegated budgets to individual councillors. The view was taken that any
scheme would be difficult and time consuming to administer, it may be
tempting for members to take a less than partial view of applications and the
effort involved could not be justified by the relatively small amounts of money
that might be made available for each member to allocate. The working
party therefore was not persuaded to the idea and recommends that no
action be taken to implement delegated decision making, including
delegated budgets, to ward councillors under the 2007 Act.

Outside Bodies

Another significant role for individual councillors is representation on external
organisations, the value and extent of which is often underestimated. The
latter can be summarised as —

¢ enabling the Council to maintain close liaison with bodies helping to
deliver shared aims and objectives, especially where they are in receipt of
Council funding;

e enabling the Council to influence service delivery by other public and
voluntary sector organisations;

e providing public and voluntary organisations better access to the Council;
and

¢ adding kudos to the management of an organisation by having an elected
representative on its management committee or board.

The Council has historically encouraged councillors to play an active role in
the wider community in this way. In certain limited cases, the representation
is statutory (for example internal drainage boards) or the subject of formal
agreement (for example East of England Regional Assembly or the Luminus
Group). In the majority of cases however, representation is voluntary.

35
163



23.3

24,

241

Reviews are undertaken periodically of organisations to which appointments
are made to ensure that the Council’s representation remains appropriate and
adds value.

Working party members themselves sit on a number of external organisations
and therefore had experience of representing the Council in this way. The
working party acknowledged the value that representation can bring but did
feel that insufficient support was available from the Council to assist
councillors who represent it on external organisations in this way. In relatively
few cases is a briefing provided of the organisation to which a Member is
being appointed for the first time, nor is it often clear where guidance is
available if required. There is little opportunity for a representative to report
back on matters of interest, particularly when the person appointed to
represent the Council is not a member of the authority. The working party
was of the opinion that there was scope for a number of improvements in the
way that this is handled by the Council which should have relatively minor
resource implications. The working party therefore recommends

¢ that there should be an annual review of the organisations to which
representatives are appointed by the Council, prior to new or re-
appointments being made;

o that cross party discussions should take place between a
representative of each of the political parties on the Council and the
independent councillors before new or re-appointments are made
annually;

e that councillors or members of the public newly appointed to an
external organisation should receive a briefing note prepared by the
Democratic Services Section before attending their first meeting of
that organisation, explaining the implications of representation, the
aims of the organisation etc.;

o that external organisations to which representatives are appointed
be requested to provide an induction process for those persons;

¢ that an officer be named in respect of each external organisation to
which the Council makes an appointment to whom the
representative can turn for advice and support about membership of
that body; and

o that representatives be encouraged to produce a short report at
regular intervals of their membership of external organisations and a
page be established on the intranet to enable such reports to be
posted.

The Role of the Councillor
The Councillors Commission

Early in 2007 and in response to the Strong and Prosperous Communities
white paper, the Secretary of State established an independent Councillors
Commission to -

e encourage people who are able, qualified and representative to be
candidates to serve as councillors;

¢ retain and develop them once they are elected (or appointed under the
Local Government Act 2000); and

36
164



242

24.3

24.4

24.5

24.6

e enable them to secure public interest and recognition for the work they
carry out for their communities.

The Commission’s final report was published in December 2007 and can be
found on
http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/localgovernment/pdf/583990.pdf.
It contains over 60 far reaching recommendations to address the
Commission’s underlying principles that —

e local authorities are key to promoting local democratic engagement;

e promoting a sense of efficacy — the feeling that an individual is able to
influence the democratic process and the course of events — is key for
better engagement;

e councillors are most effective as locally elected representatives when they
have similar life experiences as those of their constituents;

e key to local effective representation is the relationship and connections
between councillors and their constituents; and

e it should be less daunting to become a councillor, better supported once
elected as a councillor, and less daunting to stop being a councillor.

Several of the recommendations were incorporated in the subsequent
Communities in Control white paper and the Local Democracy, Economic
Development and Construction Bill will place a duty on Councils to promote
an understanding of its functions and democratic arrangements and how
members of the public can take part in those arrangements and what is
involved in doing so. That understanding must include how to become a
member of the Council, what members do and what support is available for
them. The duty also extends to promoting a similar understanding of a range
of other public sector organisations.

The working party addressed a number of recommendations that had
emerged from the Commission’s report which it thought were relevant to its
review.

Role Descriptions

One of those recommendations proposed that descriptions be prepared of the
role that councillors play. Political parties tend to struggle to attract people to
stand for election and there are few independent candidates. Most
candidates are unlikely to have much advance knowledge of what being a
councillor entails, other than what is provided to them by the party for which
they are standing. Once elected, there is no formal description as to the
expectations and duties of councillors in their many and diverse roles. The
same applies when members are elected to positions of chairmanship,
membership of the Cabinet etc.

Examples are available of good practice elsewhere where role descriptions
have been produced. The working party felt that the adoption of a similar
approach would be helpful for both existing members and electoral
candidates. The working party therefore recommends that job or role
descriptions should be introduced for all positions that attract a special
responsibility allowance, for an individual member, mentors (see below)
and political group leaders as set out in annex G and that these be
updated regularly.

Training
37
165



24.7

24.8

24.9

24.10

24.11

24.12

2413

Another of the Commission’s recommendations was improved member
training and mentoring.

The training provided for councillors now is more extensive than previously
with a formal induction process in place and detailed training for membership
of the executive, development control, overview and scrutiny, licensing,
standards, corporate governance, etc. A Members Training Programme has
been prepared and councillors are consulted regularly as to the courses that
they would like to see provided, the intention being to offer a minimum of
three training opportunities for each councillor annually. Briefings also are
given on topical subject areas and the Council’'s service delivery
arrangements on a regular basis.

What has not proved possible however within existing resources, is the
preparation of individual personal development plans for all councillors which
is one of the objectives in the learn and develop priority of the Council’s
corporate plan ‘Growing Success’. An earlier overview and scrutiny study
that investigated support for councillors recommended that each of the parties
appoint ‘training champions’ but this has met with limited success.

Nationally the Improvement and Development Agency has initiated a Member
Development Charter which a number of authorities have signed up to.
Further details can be found on the [IDeA website at
http://www.idea.gov.uk/idk/core/page.do?pageld=773091 and a self
assessment template has been produced which is attached as annex H to
this report which illustrates what this entails. The working party endorsed the
principles of the charter as a way of demonstrating the significance of a
councillor’s role and the investment and support which should be provided by
an authority to help them in their work as representatives of the local
community. The working party recommends that the Council signs the
IDeA Member Development Charter and arranges for its implementation.

The working party sees a key place for councillors in mentoring newly elected
persons. Notwithstanding the current induction arrangements, the working
party is firmly of the view that ongoing support should be available throughout
a new councillor’s first year of office. To that end, the working party felt that
‘mentors’ should be nominated by each of the political groups to assist their
newly elected councillors throughout their first year. The working party
therefore recommends that the political parties and independent
councillors be invited to nominate one or more mentors to assist newly
elected councillors to familiarise themselves with their role and to
provide support and advice in their first year of office.

The appointment of mentors will replace the previous role of training
champions which prompted the working party to look at the growth in the
number of ‘champions’ that have been appointed by the Council. The
working party felt that this was a somewhat populist terminology for
responsibilities that were already being undertaken by the relevant executive
councillor or chairman and that its use added little value to the work of the
Council. The working party recommends that the use of the term
champion be dispensed with and their roles absorbed in the existing
responsibilities of executive councillors, chairmen and ward
councillors.

Additional support for councillors as proposed above will have resource
implications. However the restructuring of the Central Services Directorate,
referred to previously in the report, has made provision for a Members
Support Officer which the working party welcomes and supports.

38
166



25.

25.1

252

25.3

254

25.5

25.6

Financial Implications

Clearly there are cost implications if the working party’s recommendations are
accepted by Council. These comprise primarily the additional special
responsibility allowances from the increase in the membership of the Cabinet
and the extra overview and scrutiny panel, the additional meetings which will
need to be supported and the proposals for neighbourhood engagement.
Some of the working party’s recommendations reflect legislative change while
others implement policies approved by Council in the sustainable
communities strategy and corporate plan. If the Council is to enhance its
community leadership role and comply with its forthcoming statutory
responsibilities to promote understanding of local democracy, some additional
cost is inevitable. However it can be argued that councillors are an under-
valued resource in terms of the volume of work that they undertake which is
expected to increase in response to legislative change.

Special Responsibility Allowances

Any change to the nature of the allowances paid by the Council will need to
have regard to the Members Independent Remuneration Panel, although
such approval would not normally be required simply for an additional
chairmanship or member of the Cabinet. The cost of the proposals
recommended by the working party can be summarised as follows -

SRA £

1 additional Cabinet member 8,394
1 additional Chairman of an Overview & Scrutiny Panel 6,311
1 additional Vice Chairman of an Overview & Scrutiny Panel 2,837
6 O & S co-optee’s allowances @ say £224 1,344
Speaker of the Council (say) 2,000
Total 20,886

The total budget for basic and special responsibility allowances in the current
year is £372,000. Budgetary provision has been made of an increase of 3%
for 2009/10. The Members Allowances scheme makes provision for an
annual adjustment in line with RPI which is currently less than the budgetary
allowance. Depending upon the final rate, it is possible that a saving in the
region of £7,500 might be achieved against the budget provision which would
be transferred to the Council’s contingency fund.

If costs are not to be increased, this can only be achieved by a redistribution
of SRAs which would require a meeting of the Members Independent
Remuneration Panel which normally carries a cost of £5,000 per review.

Depending upon the level of increase in allowances for 2009/10, the working
party recommends that the Council approves a supplementary estimate
to meet the cost of the additional allowances emerging from the review.

Resources

The additional resources required in servicing meetings can be summarised
as amounting to one extra Council meeting; a standing overview and scrutiny
panel as opposed to the Corporate and Strategic Framework Panel which
currently meets on the same evening as the service support or service
delivery panels; evening as opposed to day time meetings for Council,
Cabinet and some other panels; and the proposed neighbourhood forums and
panels. Additional resource will be required to provide the enhanced support
and training recommended for Members.

39
167



25.7

25.8

25.9

26.

26.1

26.2

27.

27.1

Reference has been made earlier in the report to the restructuring of the
Democratic Services Section of the Central Services Directorate to establish
posts of Scrutiny Manager and Members Support Officer. Elsewhere the
Cabinet has dispensed with the 5 leisure centre management committees
which will generate some savings in staff support costs. Officers attending
evening meetings will be taking time off in lieu as opposed to the payment of
overtime. It should be possible therefore to absorb the costs of servicing the
additional meetings internally.

Support for the introduction of neighbourhood forums and panels is more
difficult to quantify. The concept will only succeed if it is publicised and
administered well and local people can see value in attending. It should be
possible to absorb the cost of servicing the meetings themselves but other
costs will be incurred in terms of room hire, publicity, printing etc.. Although
officers will be taking time off in lieu for attending the evening meetings, there
will be a cost in terms of lost productivity. Mentioned has been made earlier
in the report of the County Council’s support for improved neighbourhood
engagement and the resources required by the Police to service meetings of
the existing Policing Panels. It is possible that those and other partners might
be prepared to contribute towards the cost involved in the new forums. The
working party therefore recommends that the Cabinet explore the
possibility of financial contributions from partners towards the new
neighbourhood engagement process.

In terms of support for Members, a training budget currently exists but this
may not be sufficient to accommodate fully the steps required to achieve and
maintain charter status. The additional support costs can be absorbed by the
staffing changes recently approved by the Employment Panel. Any additional
training costs from the adoption of the Member Development Charter that
cannot be absorbed will need to be the subject of future MTP bids in the
normal way.

Implementation Timetable

If the working party’s recommendations are accepted in full, some of the
changes can be implemented quickly. Others will involve public consultation
or discussions with partners before new procedures can be introduced.

To assist in a better understanding of the proposals, two presentations will be
given to all Members which have been scheduled for 17" and 24™ March.
The working party’s report will be considered by Cabinet on 2" April as the
body that initially commissioned the review. It will then be submitted to the
Overview and Scrutiny Panels (Service Delivery and Service Support) at their
meetings on 7" and 14 April. As any changes to the constitution require
previous consideration by the Corporate Governance Panel, a special
meeting of that Panel will be required to which the comments of the Cabinet
and Overview and Scrutiny Panels will be submitted. Final consideration will
be given to the report by the Council at its meeting on 22" April. If approved,
those internal changes will come into effect from the beginning of the new
municipal year. Annex | lists the timetable proposed.

Conclusion

The working party’s review has been thorough. It has looked at best practice
elsewhere and at Huntingdonshire’s neighbours. Its members have visited a
comparable authority and observed how that is currently structured and how it
is proposing to change. Its chairman has undertaken extensive interviews
with councillors and senior officers to obtain their thoughts about past
performance and whether change is required. An open invitation was

40
168



27.2

27.3

28.

28.1

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

extended to all members to submit any comments to the chairman for
consideration as part of the review. In total, 11 meetings of the working party
have been held.

On the whole, the working party has found that the structure implemented by
the Council in response to the 2000 Act has worked well. Members have
played a more active role than hitherto, both in the executive and scrutiny and
have enjoyed a higher profile in the local community. Although minor
changes have been made from time to time in the intervening years, this is
the first occasion when a fundamental review has been undertaken of the
Council’'s democratic structure. Where parts of the structure are considered
to be working satisfactorily, no change is recommended. However legislative
change does require the Council to amend some of its working practices and
formats and these have been accommodated as part of the review. The
working party believes that its recommendations will place the Council in a
position to respond well to the legislative changes and further promote its
leadership role in the community and engage with local neighbourhoods and
the public.

There are costs attached to the proposals which the working party is
conscious of in the current financial climate but these are relatively minor and
are considered to represent good value for money having regard to the
benefits that will be achieved in terms of access to local democracy and more
efficient and effective councillors. The working party believes that this is a
small price to pay for a healthy local democracy.

Recommendations

The working party’s recommendations are dealt with in the body of the report
but are reproduced in full below. The working party commend them to the
Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Panels, Corporate Governance Panel and
the Council.

that the Council undertakes a public consultation exercise as soon as
practicable with the intention of implementing an executive leader form
of executive in response to the 2007 Act. Following completion of that
exercise, the Council is invited to move to the new system with effect
from the annual meeting in 2010 or earlier if practicable; (paragraph 6.23)

that the size of the Cabinet be increased to 10 members, inclusive of the
leader; (paragraph 6.25)

that the deputy leader should not have responsibility for a portfolio of
executive functions but should be responsible for deputising and
supporting the leader and other executive councillors, as necessary,
and for a Member training and mentoring programme on a cross party
basis; (para. 6.27)

that the Cabinet should continue to contain members of the majority
political party only; (para. 6.28)

that meetings of the Cabinet should be held in the late afternoon or early
evening; (para. 6.30)

that short briefings of Cabinet members be held prior to Cabinet
meetings only with a formal briefing by officers some 2/3 days
previously. In addition, regular member only ‘blue sky’ meetings should
be convened by Cabinet at regular intervals involving, where
appropriate, other non-executive members; (para. 6.31)

41
169



(9)

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

(1)

(m)

that the present scrutiny arrangements be replaced by three new
scrutiny panels with the following titles and terms of reference -

Social Well-Being

e portfolios for housing and public health, leisure and operational
and countryside services;

¢ health & well-being and inclusive, safe & cohesive communities
thematic groups of the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership;

o safer & stronger communities priority of Cambridgeshire Vision
(the local area agreement); and

e the housing that meets individuals’ needs, safe, vibrant &
inclusive communities and healthy living aims of the Council’s
corporate plan ‘Growing Success’.

Environmental Well-Being

e portfolios for resources & policy and planning strategy and
transport;

e children & young people, environment, and growth &
infrastructure thematic groups of the Huntingdonshire Strategic
Partnership;

e managing growth and environmental sustainability priorities of
Cambridgeshire Vision; and

e a clean, green & attractive place and developing sustainable
communities aims of the Council’s corporate plan ‘Growing
Success’.

Economic Well-Being

o portfolios for customer services & information technology and
finance & environment;

e economic prosperity and equality & inclusion thematic groups of
the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership;

e a strong local economy, improving systems & practices, learning
& developing and maintaining sound finances aims of the
Council’s corporate plan ‘Growing Success’ (para. 7.25)

that each of the overview and scrutiny panels comprises 10 members
plus 2 co-opted persons with voting rights but without a right of call-in
and that arrangements be made for a formal co-option scheme to be
adopted to this effect; (para. 7.26)

that no change be made to the present system of no substitution on
overview and scrutiny panels; (para. 7.27)

that no change should be made to the present arrangements in terms of
the appointment and length of office of the chairmen and vice chairmen
of the overview and scrutiny panels; (para. 7.28)

that no change be made to the frequency and starting time of meetings
of the overview and scrutiny panels; (para. 7.29)

that every effort be made to highlight the importance of scrutiny and
encourage both members and the wider public to play an active role in
the scrutiny process; (para. 7.30)

that no change be made to the present arrangements for the call-in of
executive decisions contained in the constitution; (para. 7.31)

42
170



(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

(v)

(w)

(x)

(y)

(2)

that major policy decisions that are reserved to Council should be the
subject of debate at Council meetings before public consultation and
innovative ways used to brief Members on the subjects to stimulate
debate. Arrangements should be made for single issue debates (in
addition to normal business), with the opposition political party invited
to choose the subject for debate at one meeting per annum; (para. 9.12)

that the annual refresh of the sustainable community strategy and
periodic reports on the performance of the LSP should be submitted to
Council for consideration and approval, with any detailed scrutiny
referred to the relevant panel for investigation; (para. 9.13)

that meetings of the Council are chaired by a speaker elected by the
Council itself at its annual meeting, that the position be open to any
Member irrespective of any other position already held with the
exception of membership of the Cabinet; (para. 9.15)

that public question time be introduced at Council meetings as set out
in the procedure attached as annex B; (para. 9.16)

that the number of meetings of the Council be increased from 5 plus the
annual meeting to six plus the annual meeting each year; (para. 9.17)

that meetings of the Council should commence at 6.30 p.m. for a trial
period of twelve months; (para. 9.17)

that substitution is not introduced for non-executive meetings of the
Council; (para. 10.7)

that no change be made to the terms of reference, composition etc. of
the Development Control Panel; (para. 11.5)

that no change be made to the terms of reference, composition, etc. of
the Licensing and Protection Panel and Licensing Committee; (para.
12.6)

that no change be made to the terms of reference, composition, etc. of
the Standards Committee, other than a change in the time of its
meetings to 6.30 p.m.; (para. 13.5)

that the executive councillors whose portfolios include finance and
corporate governance should become ex officio members of the
Corporate Governance Panel in place of the present arrangements for a
maximum of 3 Cabinet members; (para. 14.6)

that the following be added to the terms of reference of the Corporate
Governance Panel —

¢ comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and ensure
it gives value for money

o liaise with the Audit Commission over the appointment of the
Council’s external auditor

e commission work from internal and external audit
monitor the Council’s policies on ‘Raising Concerns at Work’, the
Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy and the Council’s complaints
process; (para. 14.7)

that meetings of the Corporate Governance Panel commence at 6.30
p-m.; (para. 14.8)

43
171



(aa)

(bb)

(cc)

(dd)

(ee)

(ff)

(99)

that no change be made to the terms of reference, composition, etc. of
the Employment Panel; (para. 15.4)

that membership of the Appointments Panel comprise the chairman and
vice chairman of the Employment Panel, deputy leader, relevant
portfolio holder and the Leader of the majority opposition party (or their
respective nominees); (para. 16.10)

that no change be made to the terms of reference, composition, etc. of
the Elections Panel; (para. 17.3)

that 6 neighbourhood forums open to the public be established in
Huntingdonshire, chaired by district councillors and serviced by the
District Council for the areas of Huntingdon, St Neots, St Ives, Ramsey,
North Huntingdonshire and West Huntingdonshire with the catchment
areas shown on the plan attached as annex D to this report and the
following terms of reference —

e advising on the setting of local priorities for partner agencies,
including safety and policing policies, linked to the Huntingdonshire
Sustainable Community Strategy and Local Area Agreement,

e engaging with the community on local planning issues (where
appropriate),

¢ seeking the accountability of local service providers,

e developing and commissioning local community initiatives such as
projects to develop local skills, raise aspirations, improve quality of
life etc.,

¢ helping to enable town and parish plan development and integrate
town and parish priorities into area action plans’ and

e expressing views in response to consultation on proposals under
the Sustainable Communities Act 2007; (para 20.24)

that a panel should be established for each forum, chaired by a district
councillor and serviced by the District Council, with the composition of
each panel being a matter for local determination subject to a ceiling of
10 representatives of local authorities and other public sector bodies
active in the area of that forum and with the following terms of reference

¢ presenting information at forum meetings,

¢ resolving issues raised at forum meetings,

¢ moderating any requests for information/action that need to be
referred elsewhere,

¢ monitoring the performance of forum,

e progress chasing requests for information/action, and

e reporting back to ensuing meetings.

The panels and forums will feed into the appropriate thematic group of
the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership; (para 20.25)

that any proposals under the Sustainable Communities Act should be
subject to consultation with the neighbourhood forums; (para 21.4)

that no action be taken to implement delegated decision making,
including delegated budgets, to ward councillors under the 2007 Act;
(para 22.9)

44
172



(hh)

(ii)

(i)

(kk)

(I1)

(mm)

(nn)

(00)

(pPP)

(qa)

(rr)

(ss)

that there should be an annual review of the organisations to which
representatives are appointed by the Council, prior to new or re-
appointments being made; (para 23.3)

that cross party discussions should take place between a representative
of each of the political parties on the Council and the independent
councillors before new or re-appointments to external organisations are
made annually; (para 23.3)

that councillors or members of the public newly appointed to an
external organisation should receive a briefing note prepared by the
Democratic Services Section before attending their first meeting of that
organisation, explaining the implications of representation, the aims of
the organisation etc.; (para 23.9)

that external organisations to which representatives are appointed be
requested to provide an induction process for those persons; (para 23.3)

that an officer be named in respect of each external organisation to
which the Council makes an appointment to whom the representative
can turn for advice and support about membership of that body; (para
23.3)

that representatives be encouraged to produce a short report at regular
intervals of their membership of external organisations and a page be
established on the intranet to enable such reports to be posted; (para
23.3)

that job or role descriptions should be introduced for all positions that
attract a special responsibility allowance, for an individual member,
mentors and political group leaders as set out in annex G and that these
be updated regularly; (para 24.6)

that the Council signs the IDeA Member Development Charter and
arranges for its implementation; (para 24.10)

that the political parties and independent councillors be invited to
nominate one or more mentors to assist newly elected councillors to
familiarise themselves with their role and to provide support and advice
in their first year of office; (para 24.11)

that the use of the term champion to describe positions filled by
councillors be dispensed with and their roles absorbed in the existing
responsibilities of executive councillors, chairmen and ward
councillors; (para 24.12)

recommends that the Council approves a supplementary estimate to
meet the cost of the additional allowances emerging from the
review;(para 25.5) and

that Cabinet explore the possibility of financial contributions from
partners towards the new neighbourhood engagement process. (para.
25.8)

Contact Person

Roy Reeves,
Head of Administration

01480 388003

45
173



roy.reeves@huntsdc.gov.uk

Background Papers

The Council’s Constitution

Secretary of State’s guidance on implementation of new constitutions in accordance
with the Local Government Act 2000

The Local Government Acts 1972 and 2000

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

Sustainable Communities Act 2007, associated regulations an statutory guidance
The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Bill

Strong and Prosperous Communities White Paper

Communities in Control: Real People, Real Power White Paper

DCLG consultation paper on Improving Local Accountability

DCLG consultation paper on Local Petitions and Calls for Action

Constitutions of Cambridgeshire County Council and the City and District Councils in
Cambridgeshire

Council Structures of Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council, North Wiltshire
District Council, Colchester Borough Council, Cherwell District Council and Mid Beds
District Council.

Report to Cambridgeshire County Council Cabinet on 2™ July 2007 on Taking
Forward Neighbourhood Management in Huntingdonshire

Progress report to Huntingdonshire In Your Patch meeting on 8™ December 2008 on
Neighbourhood Panels

Report to Cabinet of Fenland District Council on 20" November 2008 on Effective
Three Tier Working in Cambridgeshire

Report to Community Services Committee of East Cambs District Council on
Neighbourhood Panels in October 2008

Institute of Local Government Studies presentation on the Role of the Council

Report of the Councillors Commission

Improvement and Development Agency Member Development Charter

Report by Director of Central Services to Employment Panel on restructuring of
Directorate.

Report on Community Engagement and Neighbourhood Panels by Heads of
Community and Environmental Health, Administration and Policy & Strategic
Services to Scrutiny Panels in November 2008.

46
174



Annex A
REVIEW OF DEMOCRATIC STRUCTURE
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A working party chaired by Councillor K J Churchill, the special adviser to the
Cabinet, has undertaken an extensive review of the Council’s democratic structure.
The review is the first comprehensive, formal analysis of the Council’s democratic
arrangements since it was implemented in accordance with the Local Government
Act 2000. The review also had regard to recent and forthcoming legislative change
that will necessitate some modification to the Council’s executive and scrutiny
arrangements.

The working party’s final report is lengthy which reflects the depth of its investigations
and discussions. This brief executive summary therefore accompanies the report
and reproduces its recommendations.

The working party met on a total of 10 occasions, including a visit to a similarly sized
shire district in Hampshire. Copious background information was obtained on the
arrangements in comparable authorities, best practice, legislative requirements and
Government proposals. Interviews were held with Chairmen, Members and officers
to obtain their views on the current structure of the Council and how this might be
improved.

The working party has found that the structure generally has performed well since its
implementation. It found that Cabinet, committees and panels have been monitoring
their own performance and changes and improvements have been made periodically
to improve performance and effectiveness. Where further change was not thought to
be necessary, the working party has said so in its report.

Elsewhere, the working party found scope for improvement, particularly in the
functions and responsibilities of the executive, scrutiny, Council, partnerships,
neighbourhood management and the role of the councillor. A series of
recommendations have been made to propose improvements in Council
effectiveness and promote the role of the Council as a community leader and
enhance local democratic engagement.

The working party commends its recommendations to Cabinet, Overview and
Scrutiny Panels, Corporate Governance Panel and Council as follows —

(a) that the Council undertakes a public consultation exercise as soon as
practicable with the intention of implementing an executive leader form of
executive in response to the 2007 Act. Following completion of that exercise,
the Council is invited to move to the new system with effect from the annual
meeting in 2010 or earlier if practicable; (paragraph 6.23)

(b) that the size of the Cabinet be increased to 10 members, inclusive of the
leader; (paragraph 6.25)

(c) that the deputy leader should not have responsibility for a portfolio of
executive functions but should be responsible for deputising and supporting
the leader and other executive councillors, as necessary, and for a Member
training and mentoring programme on a cross party basis; (para. 6.27)

175



(f)

that the Cabinet should continue to contain members of the majority political
party only; (para. 6.28)

that meetings of the Cabinet should be held in the late afternoon or early
evening; (para. 6.30)

that short briefings of Cabinet members be held prior to Cabinet meetings
only with a formal briefing by officers some 2/3 days previously. In addition,
regular member only ‘blue sky’ meetings should be convened by Cabinet at
regular intervals involving, where appropriate, other non-executive members;
(para. 6.31)

that the present scrutiny arrangements be replaced by three new scrutiny
panels with the following titles and terms of reference -

Social Well-Being

o portfolios for housing and public health, leisure and operational and
countryside services;

e health & well-being and inclusive, safe & cohesive communities
thematic groups of the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership;

o safer & stronger communities priority of Cambridgeshire Vision (the
local area agreement); and

o the housing that meets individuals’ needs, safe, vibrant & inclusive
communities and healthy living aims of the Council’s corporate plan
‘Growing Success’.

Environmental Well-Being

o portfolios for resources & policy and planning strategy and transport;

e children & young people, environment, and growth & infrastructure
thematic groups of the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership;

e managing growth and environmental sustainability priorities of
Cambridgeshire Vision; and

e a clean, green & attractive place and developing sustainable
communities aims of the Council’s corporate plan ‘Growing Success'.

Economic Well-Being

e portfolios for customer services & information technology and finance
& environment;

e economic prosperity and equality & inclusion thematic groups of the
Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership;

e a strong local economy, improving systems & practices, learning &
developing and maintaining sound finances aims of the Council’s
corporate plan ‘Growing Success’ (para. 7.25)

that each of the overview and scrutiny panels comprises 10 members plus 2
co-opted persons with voting rights but without a right of call-in and that
arrangements be made for a formal co-option scheme to be adopted to this
effect; (para. 7.26)

that no change be made to the present system of no substitution on overview
and scrutiny panels; (para. 7.27)

176



()

(v)

(w)

that no change should be made to the present arrangements in terms of the
appointment and length of office of the chairmen and vice chairmen of the
overview and scrutiny panels; (para. 7.28)

that no change be made to the frequency and starting time of meetings of the
overview and scrutiny panels; (para. 7.29)

that every effort be made to highlight the importance of scrutiny and
encourage both members and the wider public to play an active role in the
scrutiny process; (para. 7.30)

that no change be made to the present arrangements for the call-in of
executive decisions contained in the constitution; (para. 7.31)

that major policy decisions that are reserved to Council should be the subject
of debate at Council meetings before public consultation and innovative ways
used to brief Members on the subjects to stimulate debate. Arrangements
should be made for single issue debates (in addition to normal business), with
the opposition political party invited to choose the subject for debate at one
meeting per annum; (para. 9.12)

that the annual refresh of the sustainable community strategy and periodic
reports on the performance of the LSP should be submitted to Council for
consideration and approval, with any detailed scrutiny referred to the relevant
panel for investigation; (para. 9.13)

that meetings of the Council are chaired by a speaker elected by the Council
itself at its annual meeting, that the position be open to any Member
irrespective of any other position already held with the exception of
membership of the Cabinet; (para. 9.15)

that public question time be introduced at Council meetings as set out in the
procedure attached as annex B; (para. 9.16)

that the number of meetings of the Council be increased from 5 plus the
annual meeting to six plus the annual meeting each year; (para. 9.17)

that meetings of the Council should commence at 6.30 p.m. for a trial period
of twelve months; (para. 9.17)

that substitution is not introduced for non-executive meetings of the Council;
(para. 10.7)

that no change be made to the terms of reference, composition etc. of the
Development Control Panel; (para. 11.5)

that no change be made to the terms of reference, composition, etc. of the
Licensing and Protection Panel and Licensing Committee; (para. 12.6)

that no change be made to the terms of reference, composition, etc. of the

Standards Committee, other than a change in the time of its meetings to 6.30
p.m.; (para. 13.5)

177



that the executive councillors whose portfolios include finance and corporate
governance should become ex officio members of the Corporate Governance
Panel in place of the present arrangements for a maximum of 3 Cabinet
members; (para. 14.6)

that the following be added to the terms of reference of the Corporate
Governance Panel —

e comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and ensure it
gives value for money

o liaise with the Audit Commission over the appointment of the Council’s
external auditor

e commission work from internal and external audit
monitor the Council’s policies on ‘Raising Concerns at Work’, the Anti-
Fraud and Corruption Strategy and the Council’'s complaints process;
(para. 14.7)

that meetings of the Corporate Governance Panel commence at 6.30 p.m,;
(para. 14.8)

that no change be made to the terms of reference, composition, etc. of the
Employment Panel; (para. 15.4)

that membership of the Appointments Panel comprise the chairman and vice
chairman of the Employment Panel, deputy leader, relevant portfolio holder
and a member of the majority opposition party; (para. 16.10)

that no change be made to the terms of reference, composition, etc. of the
Elections Panel; (para. 17.3)

that 6 neighbourhood forums open to the public be established in
Huntingdonshire, chaired by district councillors and serviced by the District
Council for the areas of Huntingdon, St Neots, St lves, Ramsey, North
Huntingdonshire and West Huntingdonshire with the catchment areas shown
on the plan attached as annex D to this report and the following terms of
reference —

e advising on the setting of local priorities for partner agencies, including
safety and policing policies, linked to the Huntingdonshire Sustainable
Community Strategy and Local Area Agreement,

e engaging with the community on local planning issues (where
appropriate),

e seeking the accountability of local service providers,
developing and commissioning local community initiatives such as
projects to develop local skills, raise aspirations, improve quality of life
etc.,

e helping to enable town and parish plan development and integrate town
and parish priorities into area action plans’ and

e expressing views in response to consultation on proposals under the
Sustainable Communities Act 2007; (para 20.24)

that a panel should be established for each forum, chaired by a district

councillor and serviced by the District Council, with the composition of each
panel being a matter for local determination subject to a ceiling of 10

178



(99)

(hh)

(i)

representatives of local authorities and other public sector bodies active in the
area of that forum and with the following terms of reference —

e presenting information at forum meetings,
resolving issues raised at forum meetings,

¢ moderating any requests for information/action that need to be referred
elsewhere,

e monitoring the performance of forum,

e progress chasing requests for information/action, and

e reporting back to ensuing meetings.

The panels and forums will feed into the appropriate thematic group of the
Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership; (para 20.25)

that any proposals under the Sustainable Communities Act should be subject
to consultation with the neighbourhood forums; (para 21.4)

that no action be taken to implement delegated decision making, including
delegated budgets, to ward councillors under the 2007 Act; (para 22.9)

that there should be an annual review of the organisations to which
representatives are appointed by the Council, prior to new or re-appointments
being made; (para 23.3)

that cross party discussions should take place between a representative of
each of the political parties on the Council and the independent councillors
before new or re-appointments to external organisations are made annually;
(para 23.3)

that councillors or members of the public newly appointed to an external
organisation should receive a briefing note prepared by the Democratic
Services Section before attending their first meeting of that organisation,
explaining the implications of representation, the aims of the organisation etc.;
(para 23.9)

that external organisations to which representatives are appointed be
requested to provide an induction process for those persons; (para 23.3)

that an officer be named in respect of each external organisation to which the
Council makes an appointment to whom the representative can turn for
advice and support about membership of that body; (para 23.3)

that representatives be encouraged to produce a short report at regular
intervals of their membership of external organisations and a page be
established on the intranet to enable such reports to be posted; (para 23.3)

that job or role descriptions should be introduced for all positions that attract a
special responsibility allowance, for an individual member, mentors and
political group leaders as set out in annex G and that these be updated
regularly; (para 24.6)

that the Council signs the IDeA Member Development Charter and arranges
for its implementation; (para 24.10)

179



(Pp)

that the political parties and independent councillors be invited to nominate
one or more mentors to assist newly elected councillors to familiarise
themselves with their role and to provide support and advice in their first year
of office; (para 24.11)

that the use of the term champion to describe positions filled by councillors be
dispensed with and their roles absorbed in the existing responsibilities of
executive councillors, chairmen and ward councillors; (para 24.12)

recommends that the Council approves a supplementary estimate to meet the
cost of the additional allowances emerging from the review;(para 25.5) and

that Cabinet investigates the possibility of additional funding from the LPSA
reward grant to support the neighbourhood engagement process. (para. 25.8)

180



—— e
Hun’rlngdonshlre

Bl S ik R COUNCIL

Your right to speak
at meetings of the District Council

.- i._1_|4§ '_"::_n___

This leaflet explains how you can speak directly to Councillors at meetings
of the District Council.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an
audio version, please contact us on @ 01480 388388 and we will try to
accommodate your needs.

If you wish to take part by speaking at meetings and you have special
needs and requirements, please let us know beforehand.

181



This page is intentionally left blank

182



This leaflet explains how you can address meetings of the District Council. It outlines
the Council’s public participation policy and answers some questions you may have
about procedures, and what to expect at the meeting itself. It is based on some
simple rules formulated by the Council to make the system as fair and as easy to
operate as possible.

What issues can I refer to?

So long as you live, work or own property in the District you may ask a question on
any topic if there is no suspicion that the question is improper (i.e. offensive,
slanderous or might lead to disclosure of exempt or confidential information).
Furthermore, they should be capable of being adequately answered in 5 minutes.

When does Council meet?

Full Council meet on Wednesdays. There are 6 meetings each year plus the annual
meeting in May. The meetings are held in various venues around the District, starting
at 6.30 pm. The Agenda is published a week before the meetings, and can be viewed
on the Council’s website www.huntsdc.gov.uk.

What do I do if I wish to raise a question
or make a statement to Council?

Members of the public wishing to ask a question at Council should provide the
following details to the Council’'s Democratic Services Section by no later than 7 days
before the meeting -

Name and address and contact details of the person asking the question.

The name of the organisation if the question is being asked on their behalf.
Details of the question to be asked.

The name or the position of the Member of the Council to whom it is to be put.
Brief information about how the subject of the question relates to the person
asking the question (e.g. as a resident of the area, as a recipient of a service, the
owner of a property affected by a proposal).

* 6 6 o o0

Only one question may be asked by each member of the public or organisation and the
question must relate to a single topic.

2
183



To whom may I address the
question to

Questions may only be asked of the following:

The Leader of the Council.

A portfolio holder (Cabinet Member).

The Chairman of a Scrutiny Committee.

The Chairman of another Committee or Panel.

* & & o

NB You cannot ask a question about an individual planning or licensing application
or case or an investigation into a Member or Officer Code of Conduct issue.

What will happen at
the meeting?

The following process will apply at the meeting:

¢  The Chairman will invite questions to be asked at the meeting in the order in
which they are received by Democratic Services.

¢  The Chairman of the Council will invite the member of the public to put his/her
question from the floor using the microphone provided.

¢  The member of the public will then ask their question. Up to a maximum of 2
minutes will be allowed in which to ask the question.

¢ The named Member will respond to the question which may take the form of —

(a) a direct oral response of up to a maximum of 2 minutes;

(b) where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other
published work, a reference to that publication; or

(c) where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written response
circulated later to the questioner and made available to all Members of
the Council and to the public.

+  After the response has been given, the questioner has up to a further minute in
which to put 1 supplementary question or seek clarification of the response to the
original question. The supplementary question must arise directly out of the
original question or the reply and must not introduce new material.

¢ The recipient of the original question then has up to a further 2 minutes in which
to reply to the supplementary question.

¢  The Chairman of the Council may, in exceptional circumstances, extend the time
either for a question or its response. The timing of questions and responses is
controlled by the system of lights in the room.

2
184



¢+  Any question which cannot be dealt with during public question time, either
because of lack of time or because of the non-attendance of the member to
whom it was to be put, will be dealt with by a written response.

¢+ No debate will be allowed on any question or the response.

Will I receive a transcript of
the response?

Yes, a transcript of Public Question Time will be made available to all Members of the
Council and to the public following the meeting.

For further information please contact —

The Democratic Services Section
Central Services Directorate
Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House

St Mary’s Street

Huntingdon, PE29 3TN

For a location map of the District Council Offices please see the back page of this
leaflet.

185



1BUNo) 19U3sK] adysuopBuluny ¢ Aydessoloyd retiae Suisn pasnpoid sem dew sy 88E88¢E 08¥1L0 S92140 |12Uunod 101381 Q___.._m:D_..-m:_«::I

- 153 LINoE o}




A NEW LOOK COUNCIL MEETING

Programme Meeting

Frequency: 6 meetings per annum in the intervening months between

Council meetings.

Attendees: Speaker of the Council, Deputy Leader of the Council, Leaders
of opposition parties and independent councillors, appropriate
officers.

Purpose: To devise a forward plan of business for meetings of the
Council on a rolling twelve months basis for approval by the
Council.

The Council Meeting

Frequency: 6 meetings per annum plus the annual meeting of the Council

Time: Commencing at 6.30 p.m.

Expected duration:  No longer than 3.5 hours
Venue: The Civic Suite, Pathfinder House

The Council Agenda

1. Opened by the Chairman of the Council, accompanied 6.30 p.m.
by any guests.
2. Prayers 5 minutes
3. Chairman’s Announcements 5 minutes
4, Hand over to Speaker of the Council to lead the remainder of the business.
5. Presentation of Petitions (if any). 10 minutes
6. Public Question Time to the Council. Questions to be
answered by appropriate Member at invitation of Speaker. 15 minutes
7. Debate on choice of subject included in Council 1 hour
forward plan/Opposition debate day.
8. White Paper proposals by the Executive/launch of 30 minutes
policy initiative prior to consultation.
9. Any other business reserved to Council. 15 minutes
10. Monitoring of performance against local area agreement 15 minutes
targets (half yearly)
11. Notices of Motion by Members 10 minutes
12 Reports and recommendations (if any) by Cabinet, 30 minutes
committees, etc., providing opportunity to hold executive and
other committees etc. to account.
13. Member Question Time (written or oral) 15 minutes
14. Close 10.00 p.m.

1
187



POSSIBLE SUBJECTS FOR DEBATE

Healthy Living

The future of hospital services in Huntingdonshire (guest speaker from NHS)
NHS proposals for ‘super clinics’ in Huntingdonshire (guest speaker from NHS)
How can we promote active lifestyles

A Clean, Green and Attractive Place

How do we deal with waste in Huntingdonshire
The impact of climate change in Huntingdonshire

Developing Communities Sustainably

What are the implications for growth in Huntingdonshire

How can we tackle highway congestion in Huntingdonshire

The impact of the guided bus in Huntingdonshire

The future of RAF Alconbury

The future of RAF Wyton

Housing That Meets Individuals’ Needs

How can we tackle the problem of affordable housing

Safe, Vibrant and Inclusive Communities

Fear of crime in Huntingdonshire (guest speaker from Cambridgeshire Constabulary)
Anti-social behaviour in Huntingdonshire (guest speaker from Cambridgeshire
Constabulary)

A Strong Local Economy

Employment opportunities in Huntingdonshire

Retail opportunities in Huntingdonshire (guest speaker from major retailer)

Improving the skills base of Huntingdonshire residents (guest speaker from
Huntingdon Regional College)

Improving Systems and Practices

How can we promote local democracy

How can we promote community engagement

The role and effectiveness of the voluntary sector in Huntingdonshire (guest speaker
from the voluntary sector)

Maintaining Sound Finances

The Council’s financial strategy

Opposition Debate Day

Subject of choice by the Opposition party

2
188



Hunftingdonshire

Neighbourhood Panel Boundaries

Maps reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permisli&g the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Officer (C) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution of civil proceedings. HDC 100022322.



This page is intentionally left blank

190



— A8 a

_Huntingdonshire

9,
20904
Sibso’ f
{’:",\:AOQQ“ DISTRICT COUNCIL

9385,
XXX

&)
190070%010%

.’ O :

(> {HKNT
LXK > AR X X K
S0 KRR KA
Yous o,o‘ozo‘

Lhe?

{]

,.

v 4e%
%%

LA

=
0‘5’0

%
".’
7

X3
A
o
%
"

&
XS

.‘
%

2
>
S0
o %0

%%
GRS
Q55

RS

%
0%30 AKX, ; P
LR ANIHIRR IO KX IDEIL K X : P77
R e 2
SN Hanetten P KXY/ /4 Fiefe foh
KRR AR TN KN K XA 7 ;
AR SRS S AIILRD ¢ KK 7 / $457)
R R %

‘ 7= /]/4 //A
b v eteted. ‘?‘i/y/‘ o /
< AP ne 00,999,090 G
< AIRONDUTY. ) KRR RS 7 4K
O Kl SOREIEK 4./ g _ 7/ /
s \/ 7 /
£

L2 -2
it K gl X

GSIONR X <R R K
TSI

P

"y “dige”

Soimunnh % OSBRI

R R A R0
S S, BRI
ISR ::0‘*.0.00.0.0‘\.0‘}’ 5

KA

SRIRARKS
LIS
SR

5 .
o te 2R
a%0%2,70%% 0 2e%e 202 2¢
LRSBRELNRELS
S ACRILEIR

>
-~ ke - X
SRS or % SSab S A Fp 09t Sate 04
MG XA ‘Huntingdon East 05 %50 oo s oo UBHe
ool BB HY
QQ‘Q < 0.9___"".0‘0" S X YOO 0.0“,
B3 St Ives South'2S7

KHg5A 57
RS R e edatite!
SRR ST REIRK R Bat
0305 Jo%ely.
A% B

SRR
-

e

LR Gathan)

l""s " ' F

2. WPt ~ bode! adedetelate

R etele. el 26502 %% A
BRI Welotals elalstulele hhaat
AR //2132:’3*“3‘0‘"‘" .

ta

hyiidlls

t Neots Eaton Ford ¢4 ' / g
% Eyriestufy Hatdiwick (det)

st Neals / L
n and The Offords

Neighbourhood Policing Panel Boundaries

Maps reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of
the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Officer (C) Crown Copyright.

I:] Parishes
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution of civil proceedings.
HDC 100022322.

191



This page is intentionally left blank

192



4 Xauuy

sdnoub }saiajul

sdnoub 3saiajul/|Iounod ysiied @ umoy] /aljgqnd
winio4

9)9/ystied day/ad1jod/1|1D Ayunod /|9 1v1sIq
0l uey} aiow oN
a|qe] doj

saplIold 39S

S|19UNo0)H
ysued
umoy

9
x sdnouo

dljewdy L

30
sque) OdH

SHN
a4
ad1j0d

sdnoug
Jaulied

diysiauyied
o1bajenyg asysuopbununy

NM<COX

wwuwo

193



194



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Annex G
COUNCILLORS

All Councillors, during the course of their term of office, will aim to acquire the
following knowledge and skills which they will develop as their experience grows:
Knowledge — General

Huntingdonshire District Council

¢ An introduction to the Council, its democratic and directorate structures and
relevant strategies and plans.

Code of Conduct

e The current Members Code of Conduct and the role of the Standards
Committee in ensuring that the Code is adhered to.

The Constitution

e The Council’s rule book of protocols and procedures.
Scrutiny

e The scrutiny procedure and the role of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels.
Partnerships

The local area agreement and partnership working through local strategic
partnerships.

The Forward Plan
e The Cabinet’s agenda for the ensuing four months.
Equalities, Customer Care and Risk Management
e Policies implemented by the Council.
Knowledge — Specific
Budgets and Finances

¢ Members should have a working knowledge of the Council’s finances as they
collectively have responsibility for approving the budget.

Planning
¢ Members should have a working knowledge of planning legislation, policies

and procedures with Development Control Panel members having a more
extensive and detailed knowledge.

195



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Licensing
e Members should have a working knowledge of licensing legislation, policies
and procedures and a knowledge of the various licensing functions that the
Council is responsible for.
SKILLS
ICT — Word, Excel, Powerpoint, Email and Internet
e All Members should be able to make full use of technology, not only as a tool
for preparing reports, researching topics of interest or making presentations
but also for contacting their constituents, colleagues and officers.
Communication — Presentational Skills, Questioning Skills and Listening Skills
e Communication is used in every aspect of Members’ roles and they should
have the skills necessary to put across their point of view, the wishes of their
constituents and information generally in a clear, concise and well planned
manner that will make it easy to understand.

Written — Report Writing

e All Members should be able to prepare reports in a clear, concise and well
planned format.

Media
e The ability to make use of the various forms of media, how to react to
approaches from the media and when to encourage or discourage media
interest.
Officers within the Democratic Services Section will assist Members to develop their
abilities to meet the demands of their individual roles.
Desirable Skills and Abilities

Members should have the necessary attributes and skills -

e to represent the District Council and explain the policies and decisions
affecting the individuals and communities in their ward,

¢ to represent their ward and the District Council on a range of external bodies,

e to communicate effectively with the local community, other councillors and
Council officers,

e to be aware of the nature, scale and scope of the District Council and to
develop and maintain a knowledge of its services, management
arrangements, powers, duties and constraints,

e to develop good working relationships with other councillors and relevant
officers of the Council,

196



Profile

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

to participate in meetings of the Council and committees/panels as required,
so ensuring the effective and efficient operation of the Council,

to act as ward representative and advocate for people resident in the ward
and to undertake a councillor’s call for action to bring forward issues on behalf
of their constituents,

to undertake casework for ward residents,

to contribute to policy and strategy review and development,

to act as a community leader,

to support local partnerships and organisations,

to campaign on local issues,

to work in collaboration with officers to achieve solutions to local issues, and

to use ICT effectively to communicate with officers and others.

A Member should:

ensure that constituents have access to him/her by way of surgeries, use of
modern technology, letter and telephone,

develop and maintain links as required with the local MP, MEPs, county
councillors and the towns or parishes situated in his/her electoral ward,

participate in any political group to which he/she belongs, and

devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively.

A Member should have:

an ability to manage and prioritise workloads effectively,
an ability to work to deadlines,
effective communication skills including written, spoken and ICT, and

an ability to network and develop relationships within the Council, ward and
wider community.

197



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

The Leader of the Council will be appointed by the District Council in accordance with
its Constitution and current legislation.

The Leader of the Council will represent the Council at all levels and will be an
ambassador and its principal spokesman, representing the views of the Council at
local, regional and Government forums.

Responsibilities

Profile

chairing meetings of the Cabinet,

creating and amending portfolios of executive responsibilities,
allocating portfolios to executive councillors,

acting as lead member on the Council’s overall strategy,
having overall responsibility for:

o policy development,

o the Council’'s budget and its expenditure,

o effective and efficient delivery of the Council’s corporate plan,
promoting corporate membership of any appropriate body or organisation
whose objectives are considered to be beneficial to the pursuit of the
Council’s own priorities,

ensuring the work of the Cabinet is co-ordinated and progressed effectively,

reporting on the work of the Cabinet to Council and responding to questions
by Members in that forum,

maintaining a cordial, effective and efficient working relationship with leaders
of opposition groups, other Members and Council officers,

ensuring that the Executive responds to reports of the Overview and Scrutiny
Panels,

chairing the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership,
representing the Council at partnership meetings as appropriate, and

carrying out the duties set out in the job description of a councillor.

The Leader of the Council should:

lead by example in accordance with the highest standards of probity in public
life in all matters relating to the Council’s Code of Conduct, related protocols
and supporting guidance,

198



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

e comply with any relative legislative provisions, best practice and good
governance arrangements with regard to local government,

e be aware of any personal training needs and of other executive councillors
and liaise with the relevant officers to ensure those needs are addressed,

e keep abreast of national best practice and new initiatives relating to local
government so ensuring the continuous improvement of Council services, and

e devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively.

The Leader of the Council should have:

¢ an ability to manage and prioritise workloads effectively,

e an ability to work to deadlines,

o effective communication skills, including listening, written, spoken and ICT,
o effective leadership skills,

o effective chairmanship skills,

e an ability to engage with the media including television, radio and press to
promote the Council’s profile,

e an ability to act as a mentor to other executive councillors,
¢ an ability to think analytically and make effective decisions, and

e an ability to read and assimilate copious amounts of information.

199



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE CABINET

Each member of the Executive shall be referred to as an executive councillor and
shall be allocated by the Leader a specific area of responsibility known as his
portfolio.

The executive councillor will take the leading role in the development and
implementation of the policies covered by his/her portfolio.

Shared Responsibility as a Member of the Cabinet

Each executive councillor has shared responsibility for:

the co-ordination, promotion and implementation of the Council’s statutory
plans and strategies and for the setting of the Council’s objectives, and
priorities,

the oversight, development, monitoring and promotion of all services provided
by the Council within the appropriate performance management framework,

ensuring that suitable and proper arrangements are made for the
procurement, development, monitoring and promotion of all services relating
to executive functions which are provided by or under contract to the Council,

the promotion of the economic, social and environmental well-being of
Huntingdonshire, its residents, businesses and other organisations,

promoting the Council as a community leader within the public, voluntary and
business sectors, including the development of good and effective working
links and partnerships with all sectors,

the promotion and implementation of an effective equal opportunity policy in
relation both to the Council’s employees and the delivery of services by the
Council and other agencies,

the promotion of services which:
o improve the safety and well being of the community,
o secure a sustainable and attractive environment,
o create a prosperous local economy,
o raise corporate standards and efficiency, and

improving arrangements for communicating, consulting and maintaining a
dialogue with residents and service users.

Responsibilities as an Executive Councillor

to represent the Council or arrange for it to be represented in all national,
regional and local forums relevant to the duties of the portfolio,

to liaise with other executive councillors as required,
advising the Council, Cabinet or Overview and Scrutiny Panels on matters

concerning the implementation, monitoring and performance of services,
initiatives and projects relating to the executive councillor’s portfolio,

200



Profile

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

to bring forward revenue and capital budget proposals relevant to the
responsibilities of the portfolio,

to monitor the performance of portfolio functions and activities to ensure
corporate objectives and targets are achieved,

to represent the Council’s views relating to the executive councillor’'s portfolio
to other agencies, community interests and local media,

to attend and answer questions at meetings of the Overview and Security
Panel relevant to the executive councillor’s portfolio,

liaising with other Members and officers on strategic matters to ensure proper
co-ordination, consistency and seamless delivery of services within Council

policy,

to chair, when required, meetings of Members and officers and Council
partners,

to assist in the development of work programmes, forward plans and the
setting of agenda,

to be consulted as part of any decision-making processes within the portfolio
which have been delegated to Officers,

reporting on the portfolio responsibilities to Council and responding to
questions by Members in that forum,

to be aware of the best practice of other leading authorities and to promote
best practice and best value in the areas covered by the portfolio, and

to carry out the duties set out in the job description for a Councillor.

An executive councillor should:

comply with any legislative provisions, best practice and good governance
arrangements with regard to his portfolio,

Keep abreast of national best practice and new initiatives relating to the
executive councillor’s portfolio, and

devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively.

An executive councillor should have:

an ability to prioritise workloads effectively,

an ability to work to deadlines,

201



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

effective communication skills including listening, spoken, written and ICT,
a keen knowledge and interest in the areas of his own portfolio,

effective chairmanship skills,

an ability to read and assimilate information quickly and effectively,

an ability to discuss financial matters and the Council's budget with
confidence, and

an ability to engage effectively with the media.

202



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

Responsibilities

In addition to his shared responsibility as an executive councillor, the Deputy Leader
shall have the following specific responsibilities

to deputise for the Leader of the Council in the latter's absence,

to undertake the individual responsibilities of any executive councillor in
his/her absence,

to monitor on behalf of the Leader the corporate performance of the Cabinet
and executive councillors;

to organise the appointment of representatives to external organisations and
bodies within the remit of the Cabinet,

to liaise with the Leaders of opposition parties on the choice of
representatives to external organisations and bodies,

to liaise with the Speaker of the Council on the business to be conducted at
Council meetings,

to be a member of the Appointments Panel for the appointment of directors
and heads of service, and

to ensure that a Member mentoring and training programme is provided for
all Members of the District Council.

The Deputy Leader shall not have individual responsibility for a portfolio, other than
by way of undertaking the responsibilities for an executive councillor who is absent.

203



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL

The role of the Chairman is to act as the leading citizen in Huntingdonshire and to
represent the Council at the various functions which the Council might host or to
which it might be represented of a civic nature.

The main areas of duty are:

e Ceremonial
e Procedural

Ceremonial

to act as the Council’'s civic head and represent the Council during the
Chairman’s term of office,

to promote public involvement in the Council’s activities,

to act as an ambassador for the Council and for Huntingdonshire both inside
and outside the District and to attend such civic and ceremonial functions as
the Council and he determines appropriate.

to promote the Council and Huntingdonshire in a positive manner,

to act as a link between the Council and various groups and organisations,

to fund raise for a charity or charities of his/her choice during his/her term of
office,

to attend civic functions as the Council’s representative,

to liaise with the Lord Lieutenant and High Sheriff on visits by members of the
Royal Family to the District, and

to perform opening ceremonies as appropriate.

Procedural

Profile

to open meetings of the Council and to make civic announcements,

to deputise for the Speaker of the Council in his absence by chairing
meetings of the Council, and

to exercise a casting vote at meetings of the Council where there is otherwise
an equality of votes.

The Chairman of the Council should:

have excellent speaking skills to enable him/her to make speeches at formal
and public ceremonies, and

204



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

e devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively.

The Chairman of the Council should have:
e an ability to chair meetings effectively,
¢ an ability to assimilate information swiftly and effectively,
e excellent interpersonal skills and an ability to deliver speeches effectively,

e an ability to take an active part in functions managed by other authorities,
organisations and individuals and to host those run by the Council,

o effective communication skills including listening, written, spoken and ICT,
e akeen knowledge of and interest in the District and its people, and

¢ awillingness to mentor the Vice-Chairman as his successor.

205



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

SPEAKER OF THE COUNCIL

The role of the Speaker of the Council is to encourage and promote high standards
of debate in meetings of the Council and to promote the role of the Council as the
forum for local democracy in Huntingdonshire.

Responsibilities

Profile

to promote meetings of the Council as the focus for local democracy in
Huntingdonshire,

to liaise with the Deputy Leader of the Council and the leaders of opposition
groups and the independent councillors on the business to be conducted at
Council meetings,

to manage the agenda for meetings of the Council in a flexible and creative
manner to stimulate healthy debate and encourage public attendance,

to encourage the public to deliver and speak to petitions submitted to the
Council,

to encourage and promote public question time at meetings of the Council,

to act as an independent and impartial arbiter of discussion at meetings of the
Council, irrespective of political affiliation,

interpret and apply the Council Procedure Rules at meetings of the Council,
to be accountable to the Council as a whole,

to work effectively with the Leader, Chairman, Members and officers of the
District Council,

to attend briefings for meetings convened by appropriate officers supporting
the Council, and

to carry out the duties set out in the job description for a councillor.

The Speaker of the Council should:

thoroughly familiarise him/herself with the Council’'s constitution and in
particular the Council Procedure Rules,

have excellent chairmanship skills,

have an ability to encourage participation to promote high standards of
debate, and

devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively.

206



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

The Speaker of the Council should have:
o effective leadership skills,
o effective chairmanship skills,
¢ an ability to assimilate information swiftly and effectively,
e excellent presentational and motivational skills, and

o effective communication skills including listening, written, spoken and ICT.

207



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CHAIRMAN OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL

The Chairman of an Overview and Scrutiny Panel is responsible for the effective
management and running of the Panel’s business which is:

¢ to hold the executive to account,

e to make a pro-active and positive contribution to policy
development, and

¢ to monitor the performance of the Council and other partners
contributing to the sustainable community strategy.

Responsibilities

to effectively chair meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel, ensuring
effective management of the Panel’s deliberations,

to direct the Panel's work programme,
to present to the Cabinet reports of individual scrutiny reviews,

to present and monitor progress in respect of the Overview and Scrutiny
Panel’s work programme,

to consider decisions and relevant reports from the Cabinet,

In conjunction with the Scrutiny Manager, to lead the Panel in the drawing up
of terms of reference for individual scrutiny reviews,

to encourage involvement from all Members of the Panel and to promote
participation in scrutiny reviews.

to facilitate access to the necessary information for any review, namely:
research facilities

expert witnesses

specialist advice

comment and representation from the public

officer support,

O 0O O O O

to ensure that Panel Members benefit from appropriate training and
development to deal effectively with the Panel’s business,

to meet at pre-arranged intervals with Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of other
Scrutiny Panels to ensure that work programmes are properly co-ordinated,
cross-panel working is facilitated and that there is no duplication of topic
matter at review level,

to ensure that reports are drafted to a high standard, focused, relevant and
timely and presented to Cabinet, the public, other stakeholders and the
media,

208



Profile

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

reporting on the work of the Panel to Council and responding to questions by
Members in that forum,

to attend briefings for meetings convened by appropriate officers supporting
the panel,

to develop and maintain effective links with his/her Vice Chairman, the
executive, the Chairmen and Vice Chairmen of other Scrutiny Panels, other
Members of the Council, the Council’s officers, the public and stakeholders,
and

to carry out the duties set out in the job description for a Councillor.

The Chairman of an Overview and Scrutiny Panel should:

keep abreast of the Council’s policies, plans and strategies within the remit of
his/her Panel,

be aware of any personal training needs and those of other members of the
Panel and ensure that appropriate training is provided and taken up by
Overview and Scrutiny Panel members,

encourage use of the councillor’s call for action to raise awareness of issues
of local concern, and

devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively.

The Chairman of an Overview and Scrutiny Panel should have:

an ability to prioritise workloads effectively,
an ability to work to deadlines,

an ability to judge when to close down an issue or inquiry and move on to the
next,

effective communication skills, including listening, written, spoken and ICT,
a keen knowledge and interest in the areas of his/her own Panel’s remit,
an ability to challenge constructively and an inquiring mind, and

chairmanship skills specifically relevant to Scrutiny Panels.

209



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CHAIRMAN OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

The Chairman of the Development Control Panel will be appointed to chair, lead and
co-ordinate the Panel in an effective, open and transparent way. He/she will be
expected to structure the business of the Panel and determine priorities in the light of
the volume of work presented to the Panel.

Responsibilities

Profile

to effectively chair meetings of the Development Control Panel,
to understand the national, regional and local planning perspectives,

to develop a thorough understanding of the:
o development process
transportation issues
sustainability issues
legal and probity framework relating to planning and development,

O O O

to encourage consultation with the public and special interest groups within
the context of the Council’s planning policies,

to communicate constructively with Members of the Council with regard to
development proposals that impact on their area,

to work effectively with the Leader, relevant executive councillor, Members
and officers of the District Council,

reporting on the work of the Panel to Council and responding to questions by
Members in that forum,

to attend briefings for meetings convened by appropriate officers supporting
the Panel,

to be consulted as part of any decision-making processes within the remit of
the Panel which have been delegated to officers,

to ensure that planning matters are dealt with in a positive, constructive and
non-partisan manner which enhances the image and reputation of the
Council, and

To carry out the duties set out in the job description for a Councillor.

The Chairman of the Development Control Panel should:

keep abreast of and promote compliance with current legislation,
be aware of any personal training needs and those of other members of the

Panel and ensure that appropriate training is provided and taken up by
Development Control Panel members, and

210



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively.

The Chairman of the Development Control Panel should have:

effective leadership skills,

effective chairmanship skills,

an ability to assimilate information swiftly and effectively,
effective decision making skills,

an ability to engage with and manage the public during meetings of the
Development Control Panel, and

effective communication skills including listening, written, spoken and ICT.

211



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CHAIRMAN OF LICENSING COMMITTEE/LICENSING AND PROTECTION

PANEL

The Chairman of the Licensing Committee and Licensing and Protection Panel will
be appointed to chair, lead and co-ordinate the Committee and Panel in an effective,
open and transparent way. He/she will be expected to structure the business of the
Committee and Panel and to determine priorities in the light of the volume of work
presented to those bodies.

Responsibilities

Profile

to effectively chair the Licensing Committee and Licensing and Protection
Panel,

to effectively structure the business of the Committee and Panel,

to determine priorities in the light of the volume of work presented to the
Committee and Panel,

to understand the context and legislative framework in relation to the
Council’s responsibilities for licensing, including alcohol licensing, gambling,
taxis, public charitable collections, animal welfare and food,

to understand the context and legislative framework in relation to statutory
nuisances, air quality and contaminated land;

to encourage consultation with the public and special interest groups within
the context of the Council’s policies,

to determine, through the medium of sub committees and sub groups,
applications for licences,

to ensure that licensing matters are dealt with in a positive, constructive and
non-partisan manner which enhances the image and reputation of the
Council,

to attend briefings for meetings convened by appropriate officers supporting
the Committee or Panel,

reporting on the work of the Committee and Panel to Council and responding
to questions by Members in that forum,

to be consulted as part of any decision-making processes within the remit of
the Committee and Panel which have been delegated to officers,

To work effectively with the Leader, relevant executive councillor, other
Members and officers of the District Council, and

To carry out the duties set out in the job description for a Councillor.

The Chairman of the Licensing Committee and Licensing and Protection Panel

should:

212



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

e keep abreast of and promote compliance with current legislation,

e be aware of any personal training needs and those of other members of the
Committee and Panel and ensure that appropriate training is provided and
taken up by Committee and Panel members, and

e devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively.

The Chairman of the Licensing Committee and Licensing and Protection Panel
should have:

o effective leadership skills,

o effective chairmanship skills,

¢ an ability to assimilate information swiftly and effectively,
o effective decision making skills,

e an ability to engage with and manage applicants and the public during
meetings of sub committees and sub groups, and

o effective communication skills including listening, written, spoken and ICT.

213



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CHAIRMAN OF THE EMPLOYMENT PANEL

The Chairman of the Employment Panel will be appointed to chair, lead and co-
ordinate the Panel in an effective, open and transparent way. He/she will be
expected to structure the business of the Panel and determine priorities in the light of
the volume of work presented to the Panel.

Responsibilities

Profile

to effectively chair meetings of the Employment Panel,

to represent the Council as the employer at meetings of the Employment
Liaison Advisory Group and to chair meetings of that body as appropriate,

to have an understanding of employment legislation,

to promote effective communications and joint consultation between the
Council as an employer and its employees,

to assist in the resolution of differences between the Council and its
employees,

to promote the training, development and welfare requirement of the Council’s
employees,

to promote high standards of conduct by the Council's employees and
compliance with the Employees Code of Conduct,

to work effectively with the Leader, Members and officers of the District
Council,

reporting on the work of the Panel to Council and responding to questions by
Members in that forum,

to attend briefings for meetings convened by appropriate officers supporting
the Panel,

to be consulted as part of any decision-making processes within the remit of
the Panel which have been delegated to officers,

to be a member of the Appointments Panel for the appointment of directors
and heads of service,

to ensure that employment matters are dealt with in a positive, constructive
and non-partisan manner which enhances the image and reputation of the
Council, and

to carry out the duties set out in the job description for a councillor.

The Chairman of the Employment Panel should:

214



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

keep abreast of and promote compliance with current legislation,

be aware of any personal training needs and those of other members of the
Panel and ensure that appropriate training is provided and taken up by
Employment Panel members, and

devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively.

The Chairman of the Employment Panel should have:

effective leadership skills,

effective chairmanship skills,

an ability to assimilate information swiftly and effectively,
effective decision making skills,

an ability to engage with employees during meetings of the Employees
Liaison Advisory Group, and

effective communication skills including listening, written, spoken and ICT.

215



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CHAIRMAN OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PANEL

The Chairman of the Corporate Governance Panel will be appointed to chair, lead
and co-ordinate the Panel in an effective, open and transparent way. He/she will be
expected to structure the business of the Panel and determine priorities in the light of
the volume of work presented to the Panel.

Responsibilities

Profile

to effectively chair meetings of the Corporate Governance Panel,

to ensure that the financial management of the Council is adequate and
effective,

to ensure that the Council has a sound system of internal control, including
arrangements for the management of risk,

to consider the Council’s code of corporate governance and approve the
annual statement and statement of accounts,

to monitor the internal and external audit plans and liaise with the external
auditors on the Council’'s internal controls and corporate governance
arrangements,

to monitor compliance with the Council’s customer feedback procedure and
consider reports emerging either through the feedback system or the Local
Government Ombudsman,

to monitor the effectiveness of and compliance with the Council’s
whistleblowing policy,

to oversee the Council’s constitutional arrangements,.

to work effectively with the Leader, Members and officers of the District
Council,

to attend briefings for meetings convened by appropriate officers supporting
the Panel,

reporting on the work of the Panel to Council and responding to questions by
Members in that forum,

to be consulted as part of any decision-making processes within the remit of
the Panel which have been delegated to officers, and

to carry out the duties set out in the job description for a councillor.

The Chairman of the Corporate Governance Panel should:

keep abreast of and promote compliance with current legislation,

216



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

be aware of any personal training needs and those of other members of the
Panel and ensure that appropriate training is provided and taken up by
Corporate Governance Panel members, and

devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively.

The Chairman of the Corporate Governance Panel should have:

effective leadership skills,

effective chairmanship skills,

an ability to assimilate information swiftly and effectively,
effective decision making skills,

an ability to engage with internal and external auditors, and

effective communication skills including listening, written, spoken and ICT.

217



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CHAIRMAN OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE

The Chairman of the Standards Committee will be an independent person who is not
an elected Member of the District Council, nor a member or employee of another
local authority. He/she will be expected to structure the business of the Panel and
determine priorities in the light of the volume of work presented to the Panel.

Responsibilities

Profile

effective chairing of meetings of the Standards Committee.

effective chairing of hearings into cases of alleged breaches of the Members
Code of Conduct,

ensuring high standards of behaviour by District Council Members and
members of town and parish councils in Huntingdonshire,

maintaining effective and proper links with the Leader of the Council, leaders
of opposition groups, all Members, other Independent Members and parish
council representatives of the Standards Committee, the Chief Executive, the
Monitoring Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer,

liaising with the Monitoring Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer as
appropriate,

to attend briefings for meetings convened by appropriate officers supporting
the Committee,

reporting on the work of the Committee to Council and responding to
questions by Members in that forum,

The Chairman of the Standards Committee should lead by example in accordance
with the highest standards of probity in public life in all matters relating to the
Council’s Members Code of Conduct, related protocols and supporting guidance. In
particular he should -

have accurate and current knowledge of legislation relating to Members and
the Code of Conduct,

have accurate and current knowledge of the policies covering gifts and
hospitality and notification of financial and other interests, and

devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively.

The Chairman of the Standards Committee should have:

an ability to prioritise workloads effectively,

218



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

¢ the flexibility to make provision for unplanned issues,

o effective communication skills including listening, written, spoken and ICT,

o effective chairmanship skills,

e an understanding of the relevant legislation and how to carry out
investigations and determinations in relation to breaches of the Members
Code of Conduct,

o effective leadership skills,

e an ability to think analytically, and

o effective decision-making skills.

The Chairman of the Standards Committee needs to undertake the following
functions of the Committee -
e interview witnesses and others,

e ensure the production of appropriate recommendations to the Council,

e ensure changes in legislation are considered by the Committee and
necessary arrangements are put in place,

e be aware of any personal training needs and those of other members of the
Committee and ensure that appropriate training is provided and taken up by
Standards Committee members,

e promote the highest standards of behaviour of the elected Members of the
District Council and all town and parish councils in Huntingdonshire, and

e encourage and assist in the provision of training in the Members Code of

Conduct for all elected councillors of the District Council and town and parish
councillors in Huntingdonshire.

219



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CHAIRMAN OF THE ELECTIONS PANEL

The Chairman of the Elections Panel will be appointed to chair, lead and co-ordinate
the Panel in an effective, open and transparent way. He/she will be expected to
structure the business of the Panel and determine priorities in the light of the volume
of work presented to the Panel.

Responsibilities

Profile

to effectively chair meetings of the Elections Panel,

to monitor the electoral arrangements of the District Council and the town and
parish councils in Huntingdonshire,

to ensure the promotion of high standards of electoral probity at elections in
Huntingdonshire,

to encourage high levels of turnout at elections in Huntingdonshire,

to liaise with the Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer on the
efficient conduct of elections in Huntingdonshire,

to work effectively with the Leader, Members and officers of the District
Council,

to attend briefings for meetings convened by appropriate officers supporting
the Panel,

reporting on the work of the Panel to Council and responding to questions by
Members in that forum,

to be consulted as part of any decision-making processes within the remit of
the Panel which have been delegated to officers, and

to carry out the duties set out in the job description for a councillor.

The Chairman of the Elections Panel should:

keep abreast of and promote compliance with current legislation,

be aware of any personal training needs and those of other members of the
Panel and ensure that appropriate training is provided and taken up by
Elections Panel members, and

devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively.

The Chairman of the Elections Panel should have:

effective leadership skills,

220



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

effective chairmanship skills,

an ability to assimilate information swiftly and effectively,
effective decision making skills,

an ability to engage with internal and external auditors, and

effective communication skills including listening, written, spoken and ICT.

221



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

VICE CHAIRMEN

A Vice Chairman shall be appointed by the Council and by each of the Council’s
committees and panels, with the exception of the Cabinet in which case the Vice
Chairman shall be the Deputy Leader who shall be appointed by the Council. The
Vice Chairman of the Standards Committee shall be a member of the Council.

Responsibilities
In addition to his shared responsibility as a member of the Council and the
appropriate committee or panel, the Vice Chairman shall have the following specific

responsibilities -

e to deputise for the Chairman of the Council, committee or panel in the latter’s
absence,

e to undertake the individual responsibilities of the Chairman of the Council,
committee or panel in the latter’'s absence, and

e to attend briefings for meetings convened by appropriate officers supporting
the Council, committee or panel.

222



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

GROUP LEADERS

The Council recognises the key leadership role played by the leaders of all political
groups on the Council and the importance of their commitment to cross-party
working.

Responsibilities

Profile

to provide leadership in their own party group,
to act as principal political spokesman for their group,

to nominate Members of their group to serve on committees and panels in
accordance with proportionality rules.

To take part in cross party discussion on the appointment of representative to
outside bodies,

to consult with other group leaders as required,

to ensure high standards of probity and conduct by members of their group
and levels of attendance are maintained,

to encourage healthy debate at meetings of the Council and in committees
and panels,

to promote compliance with the Code of Recommended Local Authority
Publicity by members of their group,

to ensure that mentors are nominated by their group to assist newly elected
councillors in their first year of office, and

to carry out duties set out in the job description of a councillor.

The Group Leader should:

keep abreast of and comply with current legislation,

be aware of any training needs of himself/herself and other members of the
Group and ensure that appropriate training is provided and taken up, and

devote as much time as is necessary and reasonable to fulfil the
requirements of the role effectively

The Group Leader should have:

effective leadership skills, and

good communication skills.

223



This page is intentionally left blank

224



l )n*Aob eaplrmmm
vadai

"S9DURISWNDIID Jendiiied J1ay3 Sy 1S3 1eyl UOIDe UO 3pIdap 1SNW S|IDUNOD pue uawalinbal e jou
aJe sa|dwexa ayl Janamoy ‘axel 01 uonde buiApuapr ul djay Aew adueping a3110eid POOL) 3yl Ul USAID ,0UdpIAT JO sojdwexd, ayl

"ue|d uolde sy} buoyuow Joy d|qisuodsal buiag se paljizuspl 8q piNoYs uosiad paweu v
¢U0IDe 3y} 404 9|qIsuodsal aq ||IM OYM ¥
¢Ag use} g uoIde SIY} [|IM USYM €
(SJUleJ3SUOD pue suonedljdw
924n0sal Aue Jo 1unodde buie]) ¢aroldwi Aisnonuiiuod 1o ad13deld poob Mmo||04 0} ‘Aue }I ‘@3 e} 0} paau am Op UoIde JeYA\ ¢
,¢d110eid poob BuInmo||0) a1e aMm S1SaDBNS 1eyl SABY 9M OpP 9JUSPIAS 1RYA, "L
Jse pue
,92110e1d Ul SUeaW SIYy} 1eYAA, PUe ,SaulldpIinD, syl uo julod yoes 1e 3o0| pjnoys uejd uonde ayi dn buimelp 1o} a|qisuodsal asoy |

"poddns 4921440 yum dnoub juswdojsnsp
Jaquwisw Aued e syl se yons ‘1ayisbhoy uejd uonoe syl bulnd o} s|qisuodsal sjdoad Jo wea) e aAey 01 |NyAsN 1 puly Aew sjpUN0D

ue|d uonoe sy3 Jo uonerusws|dwl buuoyuow o} 3|qisuodsal S| oym
uoI3de 8y} 404 3|qIsuodsal sI oym
pa19|dWw0d 9 0} Pa1dadxa Sl UOIIDE UBYM
uolnoe pauueid aininj e
:Aj13uapI pjnoys 1 pasn si uejd uolde 4o 3JA1S JSASYDIYAA

"0S Op PINOYS }ewuo} buluue|d uoide umo Jisyl asn o0} buipuem
S[IDUNOD "JUBWIWWOD 4O JUaWaels sy} Auedwodde ysnw eyl uejd uoide syl dn BuiMmelp 1O pue JUSWSSISSE }|9s 10} apinbd
e sapinoid ) 1uswdopAs g JaqUUSIN Jo}) Ja1ieyD 3yl Jo sajdipulid ayy 03 auidse 01 dn ubis 1eyi sjpunod djay o1 swie a1ejdwal siyy

11V1dINTL INJINSSISSV 413S
H3I1HVHD 1INJINdOTIATA HIFINTIN

fouabe yuawdojanap pue juawanodi

vod'3i

225



I4 )n*Aob eaplrmmm
vaal
uondy "Spasu JUuswWdojaAIp
1ay3o pue Aioud ssaippe 01 a1enbape
SI Y21ym 1uswdojansp Jaquisw
:@uspIng | 10} 19bpnq e pa1edo|je sey |1DUN0d ay | 19bpng
uondy "SI9qUISW Pa1d3|9 JO 1uswdojansp
31 ul ‘Buluies| 01 ss330€ pue 1uswdo|anap pue
‘Alunyioddo jo Ayijenba ainsus 03 a3e} Bulules| 03 ssedde
A3y 1eY] suoide d1410ads 9q1dsap ued pue Aylunuoddo
:ouaping | diysispes| |elsbeuew pue |ednijod syl Jo Ayjenb3
"9|qIsuodsal 1901440 pue Jaquisw
:uoldYy | paweu pue sease yusawdoaaap Arioud
‘Alunpoddo jo Ayjenba jo swusy
ul Juswdolansp Jagqwiaw uo Adijod
Sy bulAyDads ‘sisquiawl ||e 0} panssl
:9dUBPINT ‘JUSUIS1L}S USMIM B Sey |IDUnod ay | Juswalels Adijod
SET[IETITNEIREIE]
uondy O Juswdojanap
"9dUBWIO0d S, [1DUNOD 3y} sAosdwl QRIVETVINIVI[VIfeb)
01 J9pPJO Ul SIsquiaw pa1ds|a dojansp diysiapes)
01 92e|d o1ul Ind sa1b31e41S 3qIIDSIp Ued |elsbeuew pue
;oousping | diysiopes| [eusbeuew pue [edijod ayy | |ednijod doy
OHM A4 NIHM Ad NOILDV / 3IDNIAINT 32110VHd NI SNV3IIN SIHL 1VHM SANIT3AINd

fouabe yuawdojanap pue juawanodi

juswdojanap Jaquiaw 0} Jusawwwod) |

11V1dINIL INJINSSISSV 4135

226



vedal

€ )n*Aob eaplrmmm

"2Jn}N> uolesiueblo
Bulules| e buibeinodus o yed
uondYy | se ‘uoiieullojul Jo sbueydxa bunowouid
JO pUE ‘siaquiaw pa1dadle buowe

Buiules) jo ssjdwexa apiroid ued buluies)

:oousping | diysiapes| [elsbeuew pue [ediijod ay | }JO uoIeUIWSSI]
uondy ‘Jusawdo|anap Jaquiaw buneulplo
-02 404 ‘uondudsap qol Jisyy ul pue

P924N0S3J WL SI YdIym ‘A1ljigisuodsal poddns

:9oUdpINg Sey |IPUN0d 3yl JO J3DIH0 Uy 924N0S3J JNDIHO

OHM A4 NIHM Ad NOILDV / IDNIAINT 32110VHd NI SNV3IN SIHL 1VHM SINIT3AIND

fouabe yuawdojanap pue juawanodi

227



1% )n*Aob eaplrmmm
vadai
ELE]
uondy "S|9A3| BPIM |IDUNOD puUe 3PIM |IDUNOD) pue
[ENPIAIPUI 9Y} 1B SPa3uU JUSWAdO9ASp |  [eNPIAIPUI 1B SPasu
Jaquiaw paldaje buissasse Ajienbal JO UOIRDIIIUSPI
:90USPIAT | 104 SS2204d PaINIdNILS B SBY [1DUN0D 3y | 10} $$920.44 vz
"S9AI13[gO S,|1PUN0D
uondy 9y} buirsiyde 03 91nqglIuod Asy
MOY 3Q1IDS3p 0} 3|qe 2Je SIaquiaw pue
pa1410ads Aj1ea)d e sisquisw paid9|d N0 13s AjJesp
:9dUSPINg JO S9|0J dAIRIUSSDIdAI SNOLIeA By | $39|0J JSQUISIN €7
"Slaquisw
P9123]9 O JUaWdolaASp By} 0}
uondY | SaN113[go pue swie S,[12UNnod Jul] YdIym
Spasu 1uswdojansp |euoliesiuebio
Ayioud buiAjiuapl ur panjoaul Ajpaioe ue|d a1esodiod
:oouspIng | ale diysiapes| [eusbeuew pue 21104 | |1DUNOD 0} abeyul] a4
"9911lwwod Aued |e Jayio Jo dnotb
yse1 Avied j|e paysijgeiss ue ybnoiyx
uoindy Ajgissod ‘saibaielis wuswdojanap
Jagquisw 4O uonen|eAs pue bulioyuow
‘uolieuswa|dwi ‘uoneNWIo} 3yl Abarens
’9OUBPIAT | Ul PAAJOAUI DJB SISQUIBW SAIIRIUS3IdRY SETBEI[WEIN '
OHM A4 NIHM Ad NOILDV / IDNIAIAT 32110Vdd NI SNV3IIN SIHL 1VHM SANIT3AINd

fouabe yuawdojanap pue juawanodi

juswdojanap 1oqwaw o) yYoeoidde d1631en5 7

228



vedal

S )n*Aob eaplrmmm
"JUSWAO|2ASP Wes) 0} PuUe (Sispes|
uoidy | anidadsold pue juanind Joy) diysispes)
[ed111jod 9A11D9449 01 Y10qg Yydoeoidde | juswdojarsp wesy
S,|IDUN0D By} buluIESP Ul PAAJOAUL pue diysispes|
:9oUBpINg Ajanoe ase diysiapes| jeonijod doj | |ednijod sassauppy 37
uondy "UOIIDNPUI SAIDBLD PUB PRINIINILS
e paAIadal ASyl 18yl WIyuod ‘9|04
Jejndiied e 0} Mau 9SOy} pue ‘|IDUNod uondNpu|
‘9ouapINg 3} O} MaU 248 OYM SISqUUaW Palds|] 10} ABarens YAK4
"suolesiueblo Jauped |PUISIXD
uonY | pue sisquiawl paids|d 1o} saiiunyoddo
1uswdo|aAap 1ulol abeinodus sJaulied
0] U3 e} uonoe Jo sajdwexa apiroid [BUJDIXD YIIM
:9ouspIng | ued diysiapes) |elsabeuew pue [ediljod | ules| Ajpreudolddy 97
saljlunuoddo
uondy "9dueApe ul uejd 01 Way} uswdojaAap
MO||e 0} saiiunyoddo JuswdoeAsp bunowoud
}JO 92110u 91enbape pue syeudoidde | 03 yoeosdde Aswiy
9doUBpINg dAI933J A3} 1BY1 WIIUOD SISqUIBIA pue painidniis gC
OHM A4 NIHM Ad NOILDV / IDNIAINT 32110VHd NI SNV3IN SIHL 1VHM SINIT3AIND

fouabe yuawdojanap pue juawanodi

229



)N*A0b eapl:Mmmm

vadai
uondy ‘Juswanoldwl 10} seale Ajruapl ‘paiyiruapl ‘sueld
pue 1uswdo|RAIp JaquUIBW Paldd|d alniny buiwoul
WOJ} SHJDUSQ 3y} 91BN[BAS A|9AIIDDHD pue ‘uonen|eans
:90USpINg 1ey1 ade|d ul suwa1sAs sey |1pDUNOD ay | 10} suwsiueyds|n 6°C
OHM A4 NIHM Ad NOILDV / IDNIAINT 32110VHd NI SNV3IN SIHL 1VHM SINIT3AIND

fouabe yuawdojanap pue juawanodi

230



vedal

L )n*Aob eaplrmmm
‘ue|d sy} buirenjeas pue buoluow
uondy ‘Buipusws|dwi 40y} 3|qgisuodsal
SI oym buipnpul ssaxoud burtuue|d | 3|qisuodsal S| oym
padojansp e smoj|o} uejd Juswdojansp pue aJaym ‘usym
:9duUspINg pue buluiel} Jaquisw padaje 9yl ‘MOY 1N0 S135 €€
uoPy "S9AI}D9[O Pasnd0) pue paulyap dA3IYde
[[9M 9ABY S311IAIIDE 1UaWdO|9ASp pINOYS SaliAlDe
pue bululel] Jaquiaw paldd|e uswdojaAap
:9dUdpINg 1eY1 91RJISUOWSP UBD |IDUNOD 3y | 1eym Ajiusp| €
uondy | "SaAI3[qo pue swie 91e10dI0d 3A3IYde
01 3 buidjay ui Ayuoud e se paijiuspl saljond
Spasu JuswdojaAap pue bulurely swdojanap
:92USPINg ‘199w 01 sue|d dn smeup [1DUNOd 3y $95S2.ppY S
OHM A4 N3IHM Ad NOILDV / IDNIAIAT 32115VYd NI SNV3IIN SIHL LIVHM SANIT3AINd

fouabe yuawdojanap pue juawanodi

2de|d ul ue|d yuswdojaAap pue buluied] JDqWBIN "€

231



8 )n*Aob eaplrmmm
vadai
'sdnoub |edijod-uou / |ediyijod
uondy SNOLIBA 3} WOJ} S9AILRIUDSIdD)
Y1M 1uswdo|aAap Jagquiaw pa1|NSU0d
Po1239|3 UO dIYSUOIIe|a4 SAIIDNIISUOD Slaquiaw paldadje
:9oUBpINg pue uado ue sey [1DUNOD 3y | dAIIRIUDSIdRY g€
sue|d Jsyjo
uondy "S9AIIDS[go pue swie pue 91e10diod
91eJ0dJ0D pue uoIIdUNY 01Ul Yul| 33y} $,[1DUN0d 3y}
MOY pue spasu buluies| 419yl 3quIsap | pue sued |enplaipul
:9dUBpINg Ued SIaquIBW Paldala |enpIAIpU| U99M13( abexul g€
"Spasu buluses)
uoindy 199W 0} spoyiaw 4o abuel e sasiin saljunyioddo
pue ‘SJUSWHWWOD AjiLey) JO YJOM uswdojanap
Y1 250y} AQ ss9dde 10} MO||e 0} ‘Sawli} 01 SS90k
:9oUBpPIAF | SNOLIBA 1B SJUSAS $3siueblo |1DuUNod ay | jojunodxe sadel  pE
OHM A4 NIHM Ad NOILDV / IDNIAINT 32110VHd NI SNV3IN SIHL 1VHM SINIT3AIND

fouabe yuawdojanap pue juawanodi

232



vedal

6 )n*Aob eaplrmmm
eduwl
"9duewWIOoad Uuo pue syjausq 4o
uoidy | pey sey 1l pedwi syl pue JuswdoieAsp | SWIS) Ul palen|eas
pue bulurel) Jaquiaw JO S3Jau(q Sl JuswdojaAap
pue 150D 3y} sa1en|eAs Ajjediponad pue buluies)
:9dUSPING 1 1BY1 91RJISUOWSP UBD [IDUN0D 3y | Ul JUSWISaAU| €y
'SIap|oyaels
"SI9Y10 JO 1ey} pue aduewopad PUEB SIDD140 YHM
uondy UMO JI9y} anosdwil 03 Se 0s ‘siaylo |  aieldosdde aisym
yuMm Buluies| syl aJeys 0} pue ‘ules pue siaquisw
01 pabeinodus usaq aAey Asyl moy | Pa1ds|s J9Yyio Yyim
:9ouapIng | Jo sajdwexs anlb ued siaquisaw paldd|T paJeys si buiuiea iR
‘SlenpiAipul pue
SUOIdUNY ‘[1DUNOD 3y} 4O 9duUerWIORd
uoidy | 9yl panoidwi sey Siaquisw paiddje o
1uswdojeAsp moy jo ssjdwexs a|qibuey
aAIb Ajpuaisisuod ued diysiapes| | Aj9Aida4e dojeasp
:9dUBpINg |eusbeuew pue |ediijod dol ayl | pue uJes| SISqUISIA %
OHM A4 NIHM Ad NOILDV / IDNIAINT 32110VHd NI SNV3IN SIHL 1VHM SINIT3AIND

fouabe yuawdojanap pue juawanodi

Aypeded Buipjing ul 9A13d3443 si Juawdojanap pue bBuluiea] 'y

233



0l )n*Aob eaplrmmm
vadai
"S911IAILDE 1UsWdOo|9ASp 0} spew SallAIDe
u99q aAeY 1eyl stuswarosdwi Apwin uswdolanap
uondy pue JueAs|aJ Jo ss|dwexa sAIb ued pue buluies)
pue SIaquisw pa3da|e Jo 1uswdojansp 01 Spuswarosdwl
SNONUIIUOD 3yl 0} paniwwod Ajpuinuab (syuswia|dwl
:9doUBpINg SI|IPUNOD 3y} 1By} WwiIjuod 3|doad pue) saljiusp| vy

fouabe yuawdojanap pue juawanodi

234



Ll

)N*A0b eapl:Mmm
vedal

"921440 dn 93e} 0} sdnoib pajussaidal
Japun buibeinodus pue Adesnowsp | sispes| Alunwwod
uondy |e>0| bunowold jo 1ed se ‘siapes| 9W0d3q 0}
Alunwwod se siaquusw pa1dge | 9|doad abeinodus
}JO 9j04 3y} saspIgnd pue ‘diysusziyid 01 Alunwwod ay}
9dUapINg sabeInoduUs Aj9AIlde [1DUNOD 3y 10} SIUBAS SP|OH €q
swisiueydaw
"$$9204d D11eIDOWIP buew
9y} Ul Jed a3e} 01 9|ge aJe ‘SlIaquisw uoIsIDap |ediyljod
|e1ua30d JO SIsquiaw P18 1eyl A3 0} ssedde
uondy 0s ‘A1Is1anIp JoO Buipuelsispun Jeap e 40 Aujenbs Joy
UO paseq ssadde pue p|ay ale sbuildaw | MO||e 0} Pa1dNPUOD
USYM JO SWUS} Ul 'SSBUISNQ S} SIDNPUOD | SI SSauUIsng [1DUN0d
:9dUBPINT H MOY sMalnaa AjJeinbad [15unod sy MOY SMIINDY Z'S
uondy "1oddns pue saduemo|je
9|(e}INS JO SWIS} Ul Saijigisuodsal "Sa11|IqIsuodsau
Ajiwe} yum asoys 1sisse ued Ajwey
9dUBpINg 1 Moy sassasse Alieinbad [1ounod syl Y1IM 350U SISISSY e

OHM A8 NaHM Agd

NOILOV / 3IDN3AIAT

312110ViHd NI SNVIIN SIHL LVHM

SANIT3AIND

fouabe yuawdojanap pue juawanodi

diysuazin pue aduejeq a1 }40m sajowoad JusawdoldAaqg Joquid| pPaIId|T 'S

235



This page is intentionally left blank

236



Annex |

DEMOCRATIC STRUCTURE REVIEW

Timetable for Implementation

Despatch of draft report to all Members 6" March 2009
Member seminars on contents of report 17" & 24" March 2009
Cabinet 2" April 2009
Overview & Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery) 7™ April 2009
Overview & Scrutiny Panel (Service Support) 14™ April 2009
Corporate Governance Panel To be arranged
Council 22" April 2009
Implementation 13™ May 2009

of changes with the exception of —
Start of consultation process on choice of elected mayor/executive leader
(Commencement in April with final decision in September.)

Adoption of proposals for the co-option of independent persons to the Overview &
Scrutiny Panels

(Commencement in April with adoption and implementation in September.)
Adoption of Member Development Charter

(July)

Consultation on proposals for neighbourhood engagement

(Commencement in April with final proposals in September.)

237



This page is intentionally left blank

238



Agenda ltem 9

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 7TH APRIL 2009
(SERVICE DELIVERY)

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 14TH APRIL 2009
(SERVICE SUPPORT)

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007
— IMPLICATIONS FOR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
(Report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to acquaint Members with details of recent
legislative changes affecting overview and scrutiny.

2, BACKGROUND

21 The Secretary of State has finally made an Order bringing into force those
aspects of the Local Government and Public involvement in Health Act 2007
that affect Overview and Scrutiny. The changes are summarised below.

3. CHANGES
The Councillor Call for Action

3.1 In future, any Member of a council will be able to refer to an overview and
scrutiny committee any local government matter which is relevant to the
functions of that committee. In addition, any Member may request that a local
government matter relating to his Ward shall be included in the agenda for,
and discussed at, a meeting of any of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny
Panels. In considering whether or not to exercise any of its powers, the
committee must have regard to whether it is an excluded matter under the
legislation or as defined by the Secretary of State. The committee must
provide the member with a copy of any resulting report or recommendations
either to the Council or the Cabinet on the CCFA and if the committee
decides not to exercise its powers in relation to the matter, it must notify the
Member of its decision and the reasons for it.

3.2 The changes will require alterations to both the Council Procedure Rules and
the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules which currently enable any
Member to raise an item on a committee agenda. As both Rules are
contained in the Constitution, the Corporate Governance Panel and the
Council will be required to approve the changes. Annex A contains the
changes proposed.

3.3 Under the legislation, an Overview and Scrutiny Panel can decide not to
include a CCFA on an agenda. It is recommended that authority to reject a
CCFA be delegated to the Head of Democratic and Central Services after
consultation with the appropriate Panel Chairman.

3.4 A guide to the use of the Councillor Call for Action has also been prepared
which is reproduced at Annex B which the Panel are invited to approve.

239



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

The Councillor Call for Action for crime and disorder matters under the Police
and Justice Act 2006 has yet to be implemented.

Delegated Decision-Making

Councils will be able to delegate decision making to individual councillors in
relation to their ward. An overview and scrutiny committee may require a
Member who has had functions delegated to him / her to attend before it to
answer questions relating to the exercise of that function. This issue has
been considered by a Working Party established by the Cabinet to undertake
a review of the Council's democratic structure. The Working Party's report
appears elsewhere on the Agenda in which it is being recommended that
functions are not delegated to individual Ward Councillors.

Power to Require Information

The Secretary of State can make regulations as to which information can be
requested from partner authorities and which cannot be disclosed but the
regulations have yet to be made. Specific provision is made for district
council overview and scrutiny committees to request information from the
relevant county council and partner authorities of that county council, other
than a police authority, or a chief officer of police. Overview and scrutiny
committees can require partner authorities to have regard to their reports or
recommendations.

Reports and Recommendations

Where an overview and scrutiny committee makes a report or
recommendations to the authority or the executive, the committee may decide
to publish the report or recommendations and, by notice in writing, require the
authority or executive to consider the report or recommendations and to
respond to the overview and scrutiny committee indicating what (if any) action
the authority or the executive proposes to take. If the overview and scrutiny
committee has published the report or recommendations, the authority or
executive must publish the response within two months beginning with the
date on which the authority or executive received the report or
recommendations or (if later) the notice.

An overview and scrutiny committee may by notice in writing to a relevant
partner authority, require the partner authority to have regard to a report or
recommendation in exercising their functions. Where the report or
recommendations relate to a local improvement target which is specified in a
local area agreement, it is the duty of the relevant partner authority to comply
with the requirement. This does not apply if the relevant partner authority is a
health service body or the Police.

The overview and scrutiny committee or the local authority, in publishing a
document or providing a copy of a document to a relevant partner authority
must exclude any confidential information, and may exclude any relevant
exempt information.

240



3.1

3.12

3.13

41

5.1

The Secretary of State may by regulations make provision under which a
district council may confer on an overview and scrutiny committee the power
to make reports and recommendations to the related county council or that
council’'s executive on any local improvement target which relates to that
county council and which is specified in a local area agreement. Again, this
also applies to any other authority which is a partner of that county council,
other than the police.

Discussions are taking place between officers of the County and District
Councils in the County on the preparation of a scrutiny protocol and this will
be brought to the attention of the Panels when it has been drafted.

Joint Overview and Scrutiny

County and District Council can now make arrangements for joint overview
and scrutiny committees, again subject to regulations to be made by the
Secretary of State. Again, discussions are taking place on how the changes
will affect the Joint Accountability Committee which currently scrutinises
achievement of the local area agreement in Cambridgeshire.

CONCLUSION

The new powers have been promised for some eighteen months since the
2007 Act was passed. Although they come into effect in April 2009, the
specific powers in relation to crime and disorder scrutiny have yet to be
enacted. The regulations in relation to requiring information from others and
on joint scrutiny have still to be issued, as has the guidance on the Councillor
Call for Action.

RECOMMENDATION
The Panels are
RECOMMENDED

(a) to note the changes outlined in this report that take
effect from 1st April 2009;

(b) to authorise the Head of Democratic and Central
Services, after consultation with the appropriate
Overview and Scrutiny Panel Chairman to determine
whether a Councillor Call for Action shall be included
on a Panel Agenda and which Panel is the most
appropriate;

(c) to recommend the Corporate Governance Panel and
Council to approve the changes to the Council
Procedure Rules and Overview and Scrutiny Procedure
Rules as set out in Annex A; and

(d) to approve the guide for the Councillor Call for Action in
Annex B attached.

241



BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Statutory Instrument 2008 No. 3110 (C.134).
Councillor Call for Action Best Practice Guidance issued by the Centre for Public
Scrutiny and the Improvement and Development Agency.

Contact Officer: A Roberts, Democratic Services Officer 01480 388015

242



Annex A

IMPLICATIONS OF THE COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION PROCEDURE
Council Procedure Rules

Item 24 deals with items on committee agenda. It enables any member to place an
item on the agenda for any meeting by giving notice to the Chief Executive or
Director of Central Services. The officers’ decision is also final as to whether an item
should be included on an agenda.

The Councillor Call for Action contains statutory exclusions as to what items can be
raised. Of necessity it must be dealt with differently.

It is therefore recommended that -

in the second and penultimate lines of paragraph 24 of the Council Procedure
Rules, the words ‘Overview and Scrutiny Panel’ be deleted; and

a second paragraph be added to Iltem 24 to read ‘Any member wishing to have
an item placed on an agenda for a meeting of an Overview and Scrutiny Panel
will comply with the Councillor Call for Action procedure, a guide to which is
attached at Annex (iv).’

Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules

A number of changes are required to the Rules to reflect the changes introduced by
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.

Iltem 7 deals with agenda items. The references to the ability of a member to raise
an item are no longer relevant.

It is recommended that the first and second paragraphs of Iltem 7 be deleted
and replaced by the following —

‘A member may raise an item on an Overview and Scrutiny Panel agenda in
accordance with the Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) procedure. A member of
a Panel may raise an item on an agenda for a meeting of that Panel which
relates to the functions of that Panel. Any Member may raise an item on an
agenda of a meeting of a relevant Panel if it relates to the discharge of any of
the Council’s functions or it affects that member’s ward or any person who
lives or works there. In certain circumstances a CCfA may be omitted from an
agenda if it is an excluded matter. A guide to CCfA is attached to the Council
Procedure Rules as annex (iv).’

Item 9 deals with reports from Overview and Scrutiny Panels. The 2007 Act has
introduced a requirement for the Council and the Cabinet to respond to a report and
recommendations by a Panel.

It is recommended that the third paragraph of Item 9 be deleted and replaced by
the following —

‘An Overview and Scrutiny Panel may choose to publish a report and
recommendations.

243



‘An Overview and Scrutiny Panel must, by notice in writing, require the Council
or Cabinet to consider the report and recommendations and respond
indicating what action (if any) they propose to take. If the Overview and
Scrutiny Panel has published its report and recommendations, the Council or
Cabinet must publish their response within two months of receiving the
Panel’s report or the notice (if later).’

Iltem 10 deals with the consideration of Overview and Scrutiny Panel reports. As a
statutory timescale of two months for a response has been introduced, amendments
are required to the text.

It is recommended that the last sentence of the first paragraph of Item 10 be
deleted and replaced by the following —

‘The Council or the Cabinet shall respond to a report and recommendations of
an Overview and Scrutiny Panel within 2 months of receiving the report or a
written notice from the Panel requiring them to consider the report (if later).’

In the penultimate sentence of the third paragraph, the following words should
be added ‘or the written notice (if later)’.

244



1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

41

Annex B

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

A GUIDE TO THE COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION

What is the Councillor Call for Action?

The Councillor’s Call for Action (CCfA) provides an opportunity for a councillor
to raise an issue at a meeting of one of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny
Panels when it has not proved possible to resolve the matter in any other
forum. It provides an opportunity for a matter to be discussed in a public
forum and will augment the Council’s overview and scrutiny role.

The guide has been prepared to offer assistance to a councillor who is
thinking of pursuing a CCfA and has had regard to a best practice guidance
booklet published by the Centre for Public Scrutiny and the Improvement and
Development Agency. Statutory guidance may be issued by the Secretary of
State which may necessitate change to this guide.

What is CCfA designed to achieve?

CCfA should be seen in the context of wider changes introduced to provide
overview and scrutiny with greater powers to work more closely with partners
and across organisational boundaries. It will enable councillors as the
democratic representatives of their communities to raise issues that it has not
been possible to resolve by other means.

CCfA should not be seen in isolation. It is part of a range of measures
available to a ward councillor in support of his or her representative role,
including the internal feedback process, petitions, call-in etc.

Who can raise a CCfA?

It is open to any councillor to raise a CCfA at a meeting of one of the
Council’'s Overview and Scrutiny Panels. The councillor does not have to be
a member of the relevant panel.

A councillor whose CCfA is listed on an agenda for a panel meeting will be
invited and expected to attend that meeting to speak to the item.

What can be raised through a CCfA?

A councillor who is a member of an Overview and Scrutiny Panel can raise
any matter that is within the terms of reference of that Panel. Any councillor
can raise a local government matter with any of the Council’'s Overview and
Scrutiny Panels. A local government matter can relate to the discharge of
any function of the Council and, more locally, all or part of the councillor's
ward or any person who lives or works in it. The latter is not restricted to the
functions and responsibilities of the District Council. In line with the area
focus of Comprehensive Area Assessment and the fact that the Council’s
duties increasingly impact on other organisations and involve partners within
and outside the Local Strategic Partnership, a councillor can raise any issue

245



5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

that relates to the economic, social and environmental well-being of his or her
ward.

Is any matter excluded from a CCfA?
Yes. There are certain statutory exclusions from CCfA —

e any licensing or enforcement decision in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol, regulated entertainment or late night entertainment or any review
of a decision;

¢ any planning or enforcement decision under the planning legislation;

e any matter relating to an individual or entity who has a right of recourse to
a review or appeal under any enactment (excluding a right to make a
complaint to the Local Government Ombudsman);

e a local crime and disorder matter (which is dealt with under different
provisions); and

e any matter which is vexatious, discriminatory or not reasonable* for
inclusion on an agenda or for discussion at a meeting of an Overview and
Scrutiny Panel.

However a CCfA can be raised about licensing and planning decisions and
where there is a right to review or appeal if the CCfA consists of an allegation
that the authority responsible has failed to discharge the function or is failing
on a systematic basis.

What other avenues are available to resolve an issue?

There is a wide range of both formal and informal avenues available that a
councillor can use to influence change and resolve problems. These include

Motions on the agenda at full Council

Written and oral questions at full Council

Exercising the right to ask for items to be included on an agenda
Organising a petition

Organising a public meeting

Informal discussions with officers or other councillors

Liaison and discussions with councillors of other authorities, such as the
County Council or relevant town or parish council

Raising the issue at a neighbourhood forum

o Writing or e-mailing an officer or an officer of another authority on behalf
of a constituent.

It is important to recognise CCfA as a last resort rather than the primary route
to getting constituency issues resolved. It would be an unnecessary waste of
resources if a councillor tried to deal with all constituency issues or matters of
concern by raising them on an Overview and Scrutiny Panel agenda. A
councillor should try to resolve matters informally or at a local level before
considering whether to pursue a CCfA. Advice can be sought from the
Scrutiny Manager on appropriate courses of action.

246



6.3

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Care should be taken by a councillor not to offer definitive advice to a
constituent about a particular issue which may lead to action or expenditure
on the part of that constituent. Councillors are not insured to do so and any
subsequent claim by a constituent that the advice was flawed could lead to
embarrassment and costs.

How will the process work?

A councillor wishing to raise a CCfA should contact the Scrutiny Manager with
the appropriate details not less than ten working days prior to the despatch of
an agenda for the Overview and Scrutiny Panel on which the item is to be
included. He or she should explain —

e The background to the CCfA

o What action the councillor has already taken to try to resolve the issue
informally

o If the issue is being raised on behalf of a constituent, what action the
constituent has taken to try to resolve the matter

¢ What resolution the councillor (or constituent) is seeking to achieve.

It is important to recognise that CCfA is not appropriate for an individual
complaint, e.g. a complaint by an individual resident about a failure to collect
refuse or about an incident in a leisure centre. Avenues for complaint already
exist to deal with such matters through the Council’s feedback procedure if a
matter is not resolved to the satisfaction of the complainant. However
scrutiny can become involved where it is felt that a series of complaints
demonstrates a systematic failure in a particular service.

On receipt of the request, the Scrutiny Manager will obtain any further
information thought to be necessary from the councillor, including any
documentation that may be available, and his or her availability to attend the
Panel meeting when the CCfA is to be raised. The Scrutiny Manager will
consult with the Chairman of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel as to
whether the CCfA can be accepted or whether it should be excluded under
the statutory criteria.

In considering whether to include the CCfA on an agenda, regard will be had
to any representations made by the councillor in support of his or her request.
The Head of Democratic and Central Services, after consultation with the
appropriate Chairman has been authorised to determine whether a CCfA can
be accepted and which Panel it should be considered by. If the CCfA is
rejected, the councillor will be notified of the decision and the reasons for it.

The relevant executive councillor will be invited to attend the Panel meeting at
which the CCfA is to be raised, together with a senior officer from the
appropriate directorate or division.

When an item is raised at a Panel meeting, the councillor bringing the CCfA
will be invited to speak to the Panel about the issue and what outcome is
being sought. The Panel may —

o Challenge the expected outcome if it feels that this is unreasonable or
inappropriate

247



7.7

7.8

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

o Seek further information from the councillor bringing the CCfA
Invite the executive councillor or senior officer to respond to the issues
raised by the councillor

¢ Decide to ask the executive councillor or senior officer to report back to a
future meeting with further information, after investigating the issue raised

o Decide whether to invite a representative of a partner or other
organisation to attend a future meeting if the CCfA relates to an issue that
is the responsibility of that organisation and not the District Council

e Appoint a sub group to investigate the issue further and report back with
recommendations

¢ Recommend the executive councillor or Cabinet to pursue a particular
resolution to the CCfA

o Decide that it would be inappropriate to pursue the matter any further.

If the Panel decides to submit a report and/or recommendations either to the
authority or the Cabinet, it will provide the councillor with a copy.

The decision of the Panel on the CCfA shall be final.
*Definitions

Any matter which is vexatious, discriminatory or not reasonable is excluded
from CCfA.

‘Vexatious’ is defined in guidance to the Freedom of Information Act as
‘Deciding whether a request is vexatious is a flexible balancing exercise,
taking into account all the circumstances of the case. There is no rigid test or
definition, and it will often be easy to recognise. The key question is whether
the request is likely to cause distress, disruption or irritation, without any
proper or justified cause’.

Issues around persistency are also implied in this definition. However a
persistent request may be entirely valid where it relates to a systematic
problem. A request which some councillors may regard as vexatious for
political reasons may be entirely reasonable.

‘Discriminatory’ is defined in the Equality Act as ‘A person (“A”)
discriminates against another person (“B”) for the purposes of this Part if on
the grounds of the religion or belief of B or of any other person except A
(whether or not it is also A’s religion or belief) A treats B less favourably than
he treats or would treat others (in cases where there is no material, difference
in the relevant circumstances’. The definition can applied to other forms of
discrimination for reasons of sex and/or race.

‘Not reasonable’ does not mean the same as unreasonable. It is best

considered as a qualifier to the word ‘vexatious’ i.e. a vexatious request is
likely to be not reasonable and vice versa.

248



Agenda ltem 10
NHS

Cambridgeshire

Our plan for your health
Have we got it right?

S

This document provides a summary of our Strategic Plan
To see the full report visit: www.cambridgeshire.nhs.uk
To receive a copy by post call 0800 279 2535

—

Everyone in

Cambridgeshire -
as healf‘hﬂ [”
as tan be

249




NHS Cambridgeshire spends around £750 million of your
money every year to buy healthcare services for everyone

in Cambridgeshire. This includes services from hospitals,
GPs, dentists, opticians and community services. There are
just under 606,000 people in Cambridgeshire and we want
to make sure that they can access the same high quality
treatment wherever they live in the county.

In our plan for the next five years,
we have made the following areas
our four priorities:

1. Promoting health and preventing disease

2. Older people’s health and care

3. Safe, sustainable and affordable health services
4. Patient experience and customer care

How we
currently spend

your money:

B NHS Hospital & Specialist
Services (£342.2m)

B Community Health Services
(£68.3m)

M Mental lliness (£55.5m)

m  Primary Care (£120.9m)
Prescribing Costs (£80.2m)
Revenue Grants (£2.3m)

m  Other Health Related
Contracts (£13m)

2008/09

The plan will begin to
change the way health
care is provided - closer
to home rather than in
hospitals. We would like
to focus on preventing
illness and helping people
stay healthy.

Do you think
this is right?

2 NHS Cambridgeshire - our plan for your health 250



1. Promoting health and

preventing disease

We want to make it easier
for people to take care of
their own health and to
make choices about living
more healthily. This is just
as important for the very
young as it is for those
people approaching the
end of their life. There are a
wide range of initiatives that
we're looking at. Here are
just a few examples:

Example 1. Smoking is

one of the main causes

of deaths we can stop.

We have been working
together with our partners
to help people be more
aware of the harm smoking
can do to health and
guarantee to invest a further
£14,000 over the next five years.
We plan to continue our work in
this area and help smokers to stop
through CAMQUIT our local free NHS

service. We are also going out to local

schools. By speaking about the health
risks to schoolchildren it has helped
to cut down smoking in years eight
and ten.

Example 2. Childhood obesity is
increasing in our area and in England
as a whole. We are planning to
support the Government to stop
children who might become obese
and then to stop it happening again.
We guarantee to invest an extra
£65,000 over the next five years. In
partnership with other organisations,
all schools will take part in the
healthy Schools Lunch Box Challenge.
We will also put into action the
under Five's Feeding Guidance which
helps families to understand the
importance of nutrition in our food.

Example 3. We are looking to invest
an additional £1,145,000 to see
improvement in health and lifestyle
behaviour in 20% of the most
deprived areas of Cambridgeshire
over the next five years. We shall
provide training to local GPs, nurses
and other people who provide care,
so they can help these groups to
change the way they look at their
health. We are also looking at ways
to support families and work with
communities.

251

NHS Cambridgeshire - have we got it right? 3



2. Older people’s health and care

We plan to focus on older people’s care, including access
to mental health services. Here are just a few examples:

Example 1. We want to see older people and their carers get more
involved in their health care and to be actively involved in how their services
are chosen and delivered. We will provide information to ensure people

can make decisions about their care. By 2009/10 we would like to start to
provide elderly people with a personalised health care plan.

Example 2. We will invest £930,000 over the next five years into dual
frailty/intermediate care mental health services and falls prevention for older
people. We are investing £1,600,000 over the next five years to ensure
people who are approaching their end of life receive the best possible care
and support to meet their needs. We also want to ensure carers and family
are supported.

Example 3. We plan to support more people to stay, where possible,

at home for longer. We will review all community hospitals and
Cambridgeshire Community Services to ensure that services are meeting
the needs of its people. We believe that older people should be able to get
mental health services that are, at least, as good as that available to adults
of working age. Our goal is to increase our primary care mental health
teams to include older people, we will invest £550,000 over the next

five years.

4 NHS Cambridgeshire - our plan for your health 252

For more examples see the

full Strategic Plan. Visit:
www.cambridgeshire.nhs.uk.
To receive a copy by post call
0800 279 2535




3. Safe, sustainable and
affordable health services

We want to make sure
we have safe, long
lasting and cost effective
health services within
Cambridgeshire.

Example 1. We want to ensure that we provide safe, sustainable and affordable
clinical services at Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust and in the surrounding
community and primary care services. We will be reviewing the community
hospitals in East Cambridgeshire and Fenland so that they remain a thriving part
of the health system in these areas. We plan to invest £700,000 in the South
Fenland review.

Example 2. Patient safety is paramount and over the next five years we

will continue to develop safety programmes including identifying the top

six clinical risks and the actions needed to prevent them. We will reduce
Healthcare Acquired infections such as MRSA infection through best practice
and Department of Health Guidelines and by ensuring that hospital services are
constantly improved and measured through their contract with us.

Example 3. The number of people living in Cambridgeshire is expected to rise
significantly. We want to plan ahead for the impact this growth in population will
have on our communities. We are working closely with local partners to plan the
essential requirements needed to house the new population and generate the
jobs and services needed. For example, we shall be planning services for the new
town of Northstowe.

253 NHS Cambridgeshire - have we got it right? 5



4. Improving patient experience
and customer care

We want a plan that improves patient experience.
We rely on what patients say about our services to
help us improve them.

Example 1. We want to give better life chances for children and will invest
£510,000 over the next five years. We want to reduce speech therapy waiting
lists to a maximum of 18 weeks waiting time by April 2010. We want to work
with the Office of Children and Young People Services (OCYPS) to bring about a
core service for special schools that meet assessed requirements.

Example 2. Over the next five years we want to improve access to a wide range
of services and provide a staged development plan for each of these, including:
adult podiatry, adult physiotherapy, orthotic, orthodontics, wheelchair services
and mental health services. By April 2010 we want to ensure that no one waits
for more than 18 weeks from referral to treatment for all non-consultant led
services.

Example 3. A further £1-1.5 million is to be invested in dental services in
2009/10. We want to improve access to dental services including the March
area. We will provide more information about dental services through the
Yours Cambridgeshire newsletter to all residents and by actively promoting our
PALS service that provides advice and support to all residents about

NHS services.

Do you think this is right?

6 NHS Cambridgeshire - our plan for your health 254

For more examples see the

full Strategic Plan. Visit:
www.cambridgeshire.nhs.uk.
To receive a copy by post call
0800 279 2535




Some facts

Spend per age
e By 2021, we estimate that there will be a further ! .
90,000 people living in Cambridgeshire. We want category £'000:
to be able to meet the health needs of all our residents.

* Nearly 40% of our total spend is on the over 65s.
We want to spend money wisely and to enable people
to get the care they need to remain in their home,
if at all possible.

e The total number of people in Cambridgeshire
with diabetes in 2008 was 24,500. \We expect that to
increase to 26,000 by 2010. We want to help people live
healthier lifestyles to prevent or better manage diabetes.

B 0-4(4%) 65-74 (14%)
e We estimate 76,000 people in Cambridgeshire binge B 5-14(5%) 75-84 (15%)
drink. We want to help people understand the health wO154431%) W 85+(8%)
N 45-64 (23%) 2006

risks of alcohol and make support services easier to
access.

e We spend £286 million on hospital care every year.
That's £23 million more than other counties of the same
size. We want to spend resources wisely and be able to
help people get the same level of treatment from their
local GP, nurse or minor injuries unit as well as hospitals.

Our plan for your health
Have we got it right?

NHS resources are limited and demands on them will increase. We would like
your help in looking at the best ways to use our limited resources over the

next five years.

Please fill in our questionnaire overleaf » »

255 NHS Cambridgeshire - have we got it right? 7



How might we spend NHS resources wisely... SR LRI

. . from 2 March until 29 May. Then
This is our plan for your health, tell us what you think - from July 2009 onwards \,{e'" let

have we got it right, are we spending resources wisely? you know how we got on and how
we're going to develop our services.

1. To what extent do you agree or disagree with  Strongly Tend to  Neither agree  Tend to Strongly Don't
NHS Cambridgeshire’s plans for additional funding agree agree  nor disagree  disagree disagree know
in the following key areas?

Promoting Health and Preventing Disease L] ] L] L] ] L]
Older People’s Health and Care L] L] L] L] L] U]
Ensuring that Cambridgeshire has sustainable U] L] U] U] L] U]
and affordable health services

Patient experience and customer care L] L] L] L] L] L]

2. Bearing in mind that the local NHS has a limited budget, are there any other areas you think there should be more
investment, or which should be a higher priority than the ones we have identified?

No other areas for more investment [

3. Are there any areas that you think should be less of a priority for the NHS?

None [
4. To what extent do you agree or disagree Strongly Tend to  Neither agree  Tend to Strongly Don't
with the following statements: agree agree nor disagree  disagree disagree know
NHS Cambridgeshire has enough to spend L] L] L] U] L] U]
on health services?
NHS Cambridgeshire should look at different ways U] L] U] U] L] U]
of spending their resources?
We should provide more services closer to home in the L] L] L] L] L] L]
community and use hospitals less where it makes sense
to do so?
People should try and keep themselves healthy if they can? U] L] U] U] L] U]
We all have a responsibility to use NHS resources wisely? L] ] L] L] ] L]
5. To what extent do you support or oppose NHS Strongly Tend to Neither support Tend to Strongly Don't
Cambridgeshire’s overall approach over the next support support  nor oppose  oppose oppose know
five years? ] ] ] ] ] ]
6. Would you be happy to receive treatment in primary care services (GPs, pharmacists, Yes No Don‘t
dentists, minor injuries units and Out of Hours services) rather than in a hospital setting? know
(this would be clinically safe and appropriate). Hospitals would still provide emergency
care, care for serious illnesses and major operations. (] (] (]
7. Would you like more help and support to take care of your own health and wellbeing? L] L] L]

8. If so, how?

Please return your completed survey (no stamp needed) to:

Our plans for your health, FREEPOST ANG10772, Fulbourn, Cambridge CB1 5YB

To find out more and have your say or to complete the form online visit: www.cambridgeshire.nhs.uk

If you would like to talk to someone or get involved in having your say please provide your details below
and we'll get in touch as soon as we can. NHS Cambridgeshire will not pass any of your details to a third party.

Name: Email or telephone:

D

@

'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
:
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
:
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
:
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
:
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
:
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
:
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
:
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
:
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
H
'

Address: (x

P
0
Feb 2009. © NHS Cambridgeshire (Cambridgeshire PCT), Ida Darwin, Fulbourn, CB21 5EE 0
'
'
H



Agenda ltem 11

louog Bulp|ing [ediould ay) yim
Bunesw pjay dnois Bujopn “Slemaes
pue speos pajdope-un jo Jajsibos apim
-ousiq e Bupnposqul Jo  uonebisaaul
ue Ag Ajemul  ‘yualedsuesy  asow
sainpadcosd ay) ayew pue ssasold a8y}
auljweans ||Im 1ey) aoeld ul seunseaw jnd
0] WIe UB YlIM SIOM3S pue SpeoJ 9]e]Sd
Bundope Jo ssaooud 8y} UO M3INaL B
@yeuspun 0} ‘||8sin Y d pue A9|poo v O
SIN ‘soll9 vV @ ‘@uyme|qy g  sJojjiounod

Buisudwoo paysiigeise dnois BuijIOpA 10/20/S
‘pabue.le
"/0/01/2Z uo pjay bunssw isii4 | 8q 0} Bunesy ‘Buneaw jxau 0} pauisjep Hoday | 20/90/S
"Apnis ay)
Ssnosip 0} Buidaw ainyny e puajpe 0} pPajAul
aq 0} Jajepn uelbuy 8y} Jo aAnejuasalday
"'SIaMas pue speol Jo uondope ay)
‘Bunsswi UlM paAjoAuUl sainpadold pue sassadoud
alnny e 0) panlwgns ag 0} Jodas Buidoog | -pajsenbal uonewldoju] | 8Yyy Ojul  udyeuwspun aq o0} Apnig 90/2LIS
SIOMaS pue speoy jo uondopy
"W} SYUOW XIS Ul [dued 8y} 0} papiwgns
g 0] podal ssaiboid e pajsenbas siequopy '60/L0/6C Uo "Joulge) ay)
60/60/1L | ‘lduigen AQ peslopus SUOBPUSWWOISY | JBuIge) O} paplwgng | 0} uolssiwgns 1o} pasiopus uodas |euld 60/10/9
$S82JY Ajl|igesiqg
uonay
ainjn4
10} ajeq asuodsay uoloy uoisioaq | ajeq |aued

257



'60/¢0/v¢
uo plaYy Bunesy

'60/L0/6¢
uo pIay Bunoay

'80/CL/91 pue 80/L0/¥C
uo  pYy sbunasp

‘80/¥0/1 1
uo play Bunosy

‘pabue.lie Bunsspy

e dn uaye} aAney dnoids Bupopp
‘laued 01 paniwgns Jodal ayepdn Jayrn4

1obeuey bunayiep
pue SUONBOIUNWIWOD s Jlounon
10ISIg 8Yy) pue seolelsg pue |eboT
JO peaH oyl wol ybnos uonewioyu|

‘wes ] |o4uo) jJuswdojanaq AemybiH
S IoUN0) AJUN0D By} Wouy aAlejuasaldal
B pue sadiAeS  bBuluueld Jo pesH
ay} yim 1ow dnols) BuijIop) uonewloul
i0} |sued 8yl O} psplwgns 3jep 0}
sBuipuly s dnoids Buuopn 8y jo ssaiboud
ayl bBuisuewwns uodas Aseulwnaid

‘dnoug Bupjlopn 8y} 0} uo pajuiodde alam

HEM S I pue sug||dys 4 N SJ0]|lounod
‘Apnis 8y} Ul s)sasdiul JiIvy} 0} Buimo

"A9Ipo9) W D SJI\ 10]|10UN0) d)e|
ay) jo aoe|d ul dnois BuIOpA By} OJuo
pajuiodde uepior ¥ 4 SJN 10|[1oUNno)

‘Aioyine
Aemybiq soAneussaidal pue isbeuepy
sjassy pue sjoslold ‘saoineg Buluueld
JO peaH yum pjay aq o} Bunssw Jayund

19010

(7U0)) Siomag pue speoy jo uondopy

60/€0/€0

60/20/€0

80/€0/¥

80/20/S

L0/CLiV

10}

uonoy
ainjng
ajeq

asuodsay

uonoy

uoisioaq

aje( |aued

258



Ydom Apnis
Jayuny ueld o} 20/0L/¥Z uo play Bunespy

‘pabue.lie Bunsspy

‘paisanbal uonew.ou|

'sso20.d |jenoidde pue
JUSWIBA|OAUL JaoIo ‘sseoold uopnesldde
‘Ayolgnd ‘els)llo | SBWBYOS ay) dulwexa
0] pajsenbai sem awayos sjuswarosdw|
[ejuBWIUOIIAUT 9|eos lews ay)
JO mainal ay) Bupjeuspun dnoisy Bupopn
ay} ‘Ayqowdoyg jo uondeoxa aul U
"paJopISuU0d sewayos juelb (e Jo s|ie}aqg

"uayenapun ag 0] saWwayos Juswanoidw|
[BIJUSWUIUOIIAUT 8|e0S [[BWS JO MBINSY

‘pajsanbal sawayos juelb |e Jo sjielaq
"SaWaYDs juelb JO SSBUBAIDaYS By}
pue pie jelb Jo} Buifidde ul sessadoud

8yl ol usdeuspun aq 0] Apnig

pIv JUeIH

L0/vIE

90/¢L/S

‘pabue.le
Buleq Bunesy

‘BuioueAaAuod
Buunp dn pamojjo} Alybnoioy} si siames
pue SpeoJ JO SNje}s 8y} ainNsus 0} uaye)}
a8 ued 1ey] sdais Aue ale alsy] Jayeym
ysiigeise 03 pue oonoeid jsaq Ajuep
0] A}9100S MeT 8y} JO youeiq [BOO| 3y} JO
aAleluasaldal e 0] yeads 0} uonsabbns

(7U0)) Siomag pue speoy jo uondopy

10}

uonay
ainjng
ajeq

asuodsay

uonoy

uoisioaq

aje( |aued

259



JO S1aquiaj\ O} Ajjew.ojul paje|ndJid aq
0} suodal souewlopad Ausuend ‘joued
AaAljeg 991M8S 8Yy) 0} |[pued Moddng
90INIBS 98U} WOJ) JBAO pallajsuel) uasq
mou sey Buuoyjuopy anua) 18D (8002
Joquisides | wWouy 109Ye UIMm) Hwal

s,|Jaued a8y} 0} sebueyo juadas Buimojjo4 80/60/2
Buniojiuop a13uaj ||e)
‘Bunjesw |aued 1e paAiaodal aq 0} ayepdn
‘Apoalip Jsjjew  siy} asind 0} yoouspun
IBUININ O d  J0]IdUn0)  "SIO|IdUNOY
9AIJNDSXT JUBASIB) BY} YUM udyeuspun "Jouige) ayj 0} UOISSIWANS J10) PaSIOpPUd
Buleq suonebiysaaul Jayuny o} 108lgns ‘wayl '60/10/6Z Uo JouIge) | pue Bunesw |sued e paJapISUOD
SIY} JO UOIBJISPISUOD paLlsep louiqed 8yl | 8y 0} papiwgng | yodals  Buipnpuod s dnols)  Bupopp 80/LLIV
‘uonajdwod Buliesu suonebisaau|
'80/0L/¥2 | "SHWaJ J1ayy ulyum Buijjey sawayods juelb
pue g0/.0/¥Z ‘80/S0/. | @nuaAal pue |euded ssnosip 0} 89IAISS JO
‘80/€0/92 ‘80/€0/0Z | SPeaH shouleA yum pjay aq o} sbunesjy
uo  pYy sbuneayy | ‘pajenalid  sawayos Juelb Jo sjieldaqg
‘louno) sy Aq palajsiuiwpe
sowayos juelb Jayjo UO uOlBWIOUI
Jayuny Bunieme dnolg Buyiopn
'80/20/1 ‘po1o|dwod awayodg sjuswaAosdu|
uo play Bunesiy | [eJuBWUOIIAUT S|EDS [[BWS JO MIINSY 10/2LVIv
(‘juo)) Py juety
uonay
ainjn4
10} 9djeq asuodsay uonoy uoisio9q | ajeq |sued

260



‘lendsoH a)004qbulyouiH Jo adueutanob
ainin} 8y} uO Uuole}NSUO0D BulWOoIYUO}
ay} Joj uoneledasd ul ‘Bunesw |sued
ay} ye pasiel 8q plnoys 3o8[qns 8y} jeuy)
pajsenbas oym uewuiey) ayj} Agq |sued
ay} Jo uonuale a8y} 0} umelp sem 109lgng

Sjuswiobuelly uonejnsuoy) ;[e}idsoH
3)001qBUIYOUIH JO 9dUBUI9A0S ainjng

80/cL/e

60/90/¢

‘6002

aunp Ul slaquwisy 0]
Ajlesluosjosle palenalIn

aq 01 uodal

|ew.oyu|

IPunod ouIsIa ayy jo
AJqisuodsal sy} Jou alam jeyy salinbua
JO Jaquinu 8y} pue aJqud) |BD 8y}
Aq paniaoal s||eo auoydaje} paiamsueun
JO Joqwnu a8y} 0} Buneds uonewloul
[euonippe  8jesodioour 0}  spodel
aouewsopad ainin) 1o} apew s}sanboy

'solsie)s
aljua) ||en bupesodioour  ‘paonpoud
MOU ©dJe Wea] dIJIAIBS JBwWoisn)
ay} Joj} suodas aouewldopad Ausuenb
‘900 Aenige4 ul  wea] 82IAIBS
Jawojsn) a8y} JO uonewlo) a8y} aduIs
‘(Jeak yoea Jo Jaquws)dag pue Alenigad)
alniny ul syuow 9 Alone epusby
8y} uo paepnpul wa) ue pue (seak
yoea JO JoqWIBAON pue aunr) [aued ay}

(3U0D) BULIGIIUG 93U3) [IED

uonoy
ainjng
ioj} ajeq

asuodsay

uonoy

uoisioaq

aje( |aued

261



ay] Malnal 0] Ainf pue
aunp ul pjdy sbunes

ajelodio) o0} pajuiodde |[oyou © d pue
[lomsu) r S ‘ealisueg |\ SIN SJo|1oUNOD

S$S900Ng BUIMOIL) — Ue|d 9je1odio)

80/50/v1

‘6002
aunf Ul UOISSILUWO)D
ay) 0} papusixa
aq 0} uoneyAu|

'6002 UdY |
nun Bunesado uibaqg jou ||Im UOISSILIWOYD

Ul 1eyl pesIApY "YJOMaWel) 82IAI8S
yleay Jepim 8y} Ojul Sjij  jJusWNoop
38Ul MOY pue UOISSILWOY 8yl JO MIOM
ay]l uo uonejussald e JeAlep 0) Bunssw
|[aued @inin} B pusye 0] pPaliAul 8q
p|jnoys aAllejussaldal e eyl palsenbay
‘follod  JuswWSoJojJug  S,UOISSILIWOD
8y} 0] asuodsal e papiwgns |sued a8yl

uoIssiwio) Ajijenp aie)

80/cL/C

‘Bunesw
[sued 2injnj e je pasiel
ag 01 Joney ‘soblows
I UBym  uonEeyNsSuUod
ay} ul ayeued 0} |aued

"Jeak Jepuajed jJuaind ay} JO d|ppIw 8y}
Ul Julod BWOS 1B 9oUBWWO0I 0} Aj9YI| Sem
uone}Nsuod a8y} jey} |dued 8y} pasIApY
"uol}e}INSU0Y 8y} 0} punolbxoeq apiroid
0] Bunssw Alenuer s |aued ay) papusje
asysebpuqwe) SHN ‘uspmeg eoISSof
SN pue Jojeuiplo-0) 108lold sdeig
XaN @yoougbuiyoulH ‘uung usydsls IQ

(3uoJ)
Sjuswebuelly Uone}Nsuoy) :[ejldsoH
3)00.(BUIJOUIH JO 90UBUI9AOL) oinjng

60/10/9

10}

uonay
ainjng
ajeq

asuodsay

uonoy

uoisioaq

aje( |aued

262



10} 10]|I0UN0YD SAIINDBXT BY) Y)IM
joswW O} [IBYSUIN © d Pue alyms|qy a r

‘pabuedle | sio|ouno) Buislidwoo paysiigess dnois
Bureq Bunes|y | Bupiopy  “joued 0} pepiwgns  Hoday | 60/£0/E0
"S90INIDS
yijesH Aunwwo) |lounoY J014s8Iq 8y}
pue [eluswuodinug | Ag pauleluiew aiam Aay} JI pue painsul
pue suoneladQ | pue pabeuew ale sal|ioe} 9S8y} MOY UO
JO speaH ay} | passaidxe 1saloul Jendlued ‘|sued auyj
60/S0/€0 ‘epuaby ay) uo aleymas|o sieadde way sy | 03 papiwgns 1sanbay | Ag Apnjs Joj eale |enuajod e se payuap| 80/Z1/9
ajdoag buno)
10} sanljioeJ ainsid] jJO UOISIAOI]
"'S9AI}09[qO S |1IoUN0Y By}
Buinelyoe ul suonnguuod 1By} SSNosIp
0] Buneaw ainyny e 0} 82IAI8S JO SpesH
‘'sbuneaw | a)IAUl 0] epew usaqg sey uonsabbns
dnolo Bupop) | V¥ "uBld @jesodioD 8yl UIlyim  paiijuapl
ainin} je paJapisuod aq | eale  Ajuoud yoes jo  suoneoidwi
0] UoljewJoyul |eloueUld | 1S00 8y} ajebiseAul o0} ) bBunsanbai
AQ ywai s dnois Bupiop) ueld siesodio)
‘sjpued Auiniog pue | 8y} pusixa 0} paplosp |dued MJomawelH
MBINIBAQ 0} paplwgns | oiIbajesis pue ajelodio) 8y} S$S820NS
a8Qg 0} suodal |enuue-ig | Bumols Jo malney 8y} Bulepisuod u|
‘ue|d ajelodio) ‘dnolg Bupplops ueld | 80/60/20
(juo))
§S990Ng DuIMol9 — ueld 9jeiodio)
uonay
ainjn4
10} ajeq asuodsay uoloy uoisioaq | ajeq |aued

263



60/¥0/L

60/L0/L
/1 60/90/¢

‘epuaby ay] uo ataymas|e sieadde wayl Siy |

‘Bunesw 600z AInr /
aunr JIay} 1e [sued 8y} aiojaq Jeadde 0} anQq

‘Bunesw [aueq ainjn} e 1e palepIsuod
aq p|noys uodas 8y 1eyr pseisenbay

24N}2N1}G d1jRIO0Wd( JO MIIADY

‘Buijesw |aued aininy e je palapisuod
9q p|noys uodas 8y} eyl paisanbay

ajepdn

ABajenyg BuisnoH 19p|10

suosiad

ue|d piemiog

60/10/9

80/LLIV

60/¥0/L

‘Bunsswi |dy Jiay) Je [sued
0] paAladal aq 0} ajepdn ‘suoneladQ Jo pesH
ayl Aq pebpsimouyoe usaq sey Jepew ay|

‘'suonelsadQ

Jo pesH ay}
UM papiwigns jsanbay

‘s|elglew pajoAoal
JO 8njeA 8y} Ul SpuaJj} uo papIwgns
8gq 0} Modal Buidoos e Jo} pajsenbay

SEE AT EELEED

80/cL/C

‘sanljioe}
yons YlM poleloosSe S)S0D  SNUDBASI
Buiobuo oyl Bunesw uo pue 10u1SIq
8y} ssouoe sanioe) yinoA jo uonnguisip
UsA® ue BulAsIyoe UO SUOIBPUBLIWODSI
Bupjew 01 MaIA B yum  ‘salj|ioe}
ainsig] Jo uoisinoid By  ajeblysaaul
0} S92IAI9S apIsAnuno) pue JeuonesadQ

(fuo)) sjdoaq bunoA
10} soniioeJ oainsio|] JO UOISIAOI]

uonoy
ainjng
ioj} ajeq

asuodsay

uonoy

uoisioaq

aje( |aued

264



60/90/¢

60/¥0/L

60/¥0/L

60/¥0/L

"Bunesw 6002
aunr Jlsy) 1e |aued ay} alojaq Jeadde 0} anQq

"epuaby ayj uo aiaymas|e sieadde wall sIy |

"epuaby ayj uo aisaymas|e sieadde wall siy |

‘epuaby ay] uo ataymas|e sieadde wayl Siy |

‘l]aued ay1 a10jeq

Jeadde pjnoys uodal

ay)
‘apew

ley}  pspnpuod
suonebnsonu|

‘Buneasw [sued ainjn} e 1e paepIsuod
aq p|noys uodal ay; 1eyl pseisenbay

jusawdojanaq 4o} sjesodoud
— S9IjUd) 9INSIa S}JOSAN }S pue OA] IS

‘Bunsswi
ainjn} e je |pued a8y} AQ paispisuod aq
pInoys 1 Jayiaym Buiplosp 0} MBIA B UM
wall Siyl 01 punoibyoeq oyl si1ebisaAul
0} oouapun asalisueg |\ SJ J0J|IOUNOD

Kaijod sBumaT s 1ouno9 ayy
pue awayosg YUIT-aWOoH 3y} JO MIIADY

‘Buni@aw aininy e je [sued ay} 81049q
Bueadde aq [Im wal sIy1 ‘AlINURUOD 104

84JU9D) UMO] SdA|
}S 0} sjuawaAoidw] [ejUdWUOIIAUT

‘Bunesw |sued aininj e 18 paJapISuod
aq p|noys uodal a8y 1eyr pseisenbay

ABajesyg sanioe4 syodg

(jU0D) Ueld PIeMIOS

60/¥0/L

60/20/€

uonoy
ainjng
ioj} ajeq

asuodsay

uonoy

uoisioaq

aje( |aued

265



This page is intentionally left blank

266



Decision Digest

Agenda ltem 12

P

Huntingdonshire

D15 TRI1ET

CO UNCIL

Edition 93

Monthly summary of the decisions taken at meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny and other Panels for the period 2nd - 27th

March 2009.

PROVISION OF LEISURE
FACILITIES FOR YOUNG PEOPLE

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel
(Service Delivery) has received
information on the leisure facilities
owned and maintained by the
District Council, together with details
of facilities which the Council helps
to maintain. The information
presented excluded those facilities
under the direct control of the
District's Town and Parish Councils.

The  efforts of independent
community groups in raising funds
for youth facilities within villages and
the provision of funding through
Section 106 Agreements for the
construction and maintenance of
facilities was discussed. Attention
was drawn to the disparity of
facilities between towns and
villages. The Panel considered that
there should be more consistency in
the provision of facilities across the
District and has appointed a
Working Group, comprising
Councillors J D Ablewhite and P G
Mitchell, to meet with the Executive
Councillor for Operational and
Countryside Services to discuss the
matter further, with a view to making
recommendations on achieving an
even distribution of youth facilities
across the District and meeting the

ongoing revenue costs associated
with such facilities.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING

The Cabinet and Overview and
Scrutiny Panels have considered
the performance of the authority
against the priority objectives
identified in "Growing Success", the
Corporate Plan, in the quarter to
31st December 2008.

The Service Delivery Panel has
endorsed the views of the Corporate
Plan Working Group and noted the
Working Group's request for a report
on the private housing retrofit
project for submission to the Panel's
June meeting. It was requested that
a representative of the Carbon Trust
be invited to attend a subsequent
meeting, with a view to examining
the retrofit project’s principles in the
context of the Trust's work. It was
also suggested that environmental
efficiency data be compiled to
determine the energy efficiency
levels of homes before and after
completion of refurbishment works.

Members also concurred with a
suggestion that the disabled
facilities available at Sawtry Leisure
Centre should be promoted.

Having regard to the key measure
relating to the number of

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section 75 (01480) 388007

267



Edition 93

households living in temporary
accommodation, it was noted that
the performance achieved
represented an increase in the
number of households prevented
from becoming homeless during the
reporting period.

Finally, the Panel has reiterated
their concern at the potential risk to
the Council should the bid for
funding to re-model Coneygear
Court not be successful.

The Service Support Panel was
pleased to note that all of the
indicators where statistics were
available were positive with one
exception. The Panel was satisfied
with the explanation given as to why
this was not completed on time.

ADOPTION OF ROADS AND
SEWERS

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel
(Service Delivery) has received a
further update from the Adoption of
Roads and Sewers Working Group.
At a recent meeting, the Head of
Legal, Property and Governance
advised that there was adequate
legal provision in existence to
ensure that the adoption of roads
and sewers could be brought to a
completion.  Additionally, it was
established that  during the
purchasing process, purchasers and
mortgage providers were made fully
aware of the status of the roads and
sewers servicing properties and of
the associated financial liabilities
should either not be adopted. This
matter will further be explored at the
next meeting of the Working Group.

The Panel noted that new legislation
to be introduced by the Government

Decision Digest

in 2010/11 would ensure that
sewers were adopted and that this
would expedite the road adoption
process.

OVERVIEW AND  SCRUTINY
PANEL (SERVICE DELIVERY) -
PROGRESS

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel
(Service Delivery) has received
updates on developments relating to
the Panel's final report on grant aid
and on the future governance of
Hinchingbrooke  Hospital.  With
regard to the latter, the Panel was
advised that the Department of
Health had approved the Strategic
Health Authority's proposal but that

formal approval had yet to be
obtained from Her Majesty’s
Treasury.

LOCAL INVESTMENT
FRAMEWORK

The Cabinet has considered the
content of the Local Investment
Framework  which  has been
compiled to determine the level of
local and strategic infrastructure
required to meet the target of new

homes identified for
Huntingdonshire up to 2026.
In discussing future initiatives,

Executive Councillors supported the
proposed creation of a St Neots
Delivery Board, similar to the boards
set up to deliver growth in the
Cambridge area. The new board
will consider social infrastructure
requirements and where delivery
options associated with potential
housing development can be
located based on existing facilities
and accessibility levels.

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section & (01480) 388007

page 2

268



Decision Digest

ST NEOTS MARKET TOWN
STRATEGY

The St Neots Market Town
Transport Strategy has been
approved by the Cabinet. The
strategy forms part of the
Cambridgeshire Local Transport
Plan 2006 — 2011.

In discussing the Strategy, the

Cabinet has raised concerns over
the lack of any reference to a bus
layover space or to the impact of
congestion generally in terms of air
quality. Although initial discussions
have been held with local bus
operators to  discuss  known
problems, specifically the absence
of any link between bus and train
timetables, the Executive Councillor
for Resources and Policy recorded
his concern that the Strategy does
not address future transport needs
given the predicted population levels
for the area. The Cabinet is
encouraged that the strategy will be
reviewed between now and 2011 to
take into account emerging
pressures and possible
development scenarios around St
Neots.

PROPOSED SERVICE
ENHANCEMENTS -
TRANSFORMATION FROM

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL TO
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

A proposal to formalise the
transformation of the development
control  function to one of
development management has
been endorsed by the Cabinet. The
change has been brought about
because planning is focussing on
the importance of sustainable and
deliverable development in the

Edition 93

District. Whilst discussing the
change, Executive Councillors have
referred to the issue of targeted
funding and have requested the
Head of Planning Services to
investigate  the  possibility  of
introducing charges for pre-
application discussions. Given the
need to ensure all stakeholders
understand and sign up to the new
approach, the Cabinet has
requested that Town and Parish
Councils be invited to a series of
planned workshops on the new
arrangements.

REVIEW OF
AGREEMENTS

SECTION 106

The findings of a study by the
Overview and Scrutiny Panel
(Service Support) on the Council’s
Section 106 process which included
reference to a proposed Community
Infrastructure Levy and variable
infrastructure tariff both expected to
be implemented in the near future.
The Cabinet has been informed that
the introduction of the levy will
empower local authorities to place a
new charge on most types of
developments in their area with the
proceeds being spent on local and
sub-regional infrastructure to offset
the impact of the development.
Having been advised that the new
legislation will allow for draft heads
of terms for Section 106
Agreements to be requested as part
of the application validation process,
the Cabinet has —

¢  requested that a
guidance note be
prepared and drawn to
the attention of

Members to illustrate
how they can comment

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section 7 (01480) 388007

page 3

269



Edition 93

on applications and the

potential heads of
terms for Section 106
Agreements by

reference to the
weekly planning list
notification;

agreed to give clear
guidance to Town and
Parish  Councils on
how to comment on
the potential content of
agreements for
development in their
areas as part of the

normal consultation
arrangements and
speaking at
Development
Management Panel
meetings;

requested that Parish
Councils be advised of
the introduction of a
marker on the planning
weekly list and
reminded to review
these on a regular
basis with a view to
making comments on
the potential heads of
terms of Section 106
Agreements in their
areas;

suggested that copies
of the quarterly report
prepared by the

People, Performance
and Partnership
Division detailing
income and

expenditure from the
Section 106 money be
provided to all
Members and changes
to the content of the
report implemented at

Decision Digest

the earliest
opportunity;
approved the

expansion of the remit
and terms of reference
of the Section 106
Advisory  Group to
include monitoring of
agreements and
meetings convened on
a more regular basis
with dates reserved in
the Council's calendar
one week prior to each
Development
Management Panel;

agreed to  submit
copies of the
monitoring report to

the Section 106
Advisory Group on a
quarterly basis and

also to the
Development
Management Panel
with  any comments
from the Advisory
Group;

agreed to award the
Executive  Councillor
for Finance and the
Environment the
responsibility for
ensuring the
effectiveness of

processes for securing
payments and the
expenditure of receipts

under Section 106
Agreements, with
individual Executive

Councillors  remaining
accountable for the
delivery of benefits and
projects relevant to
their portfolios; and

invited the Section 106
Working Group to

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section & (01480) 388007

page 4

270



Decision Digest

consider the likely
effects of the
introduction of the
Community

Infrastructure Levy and
to make
recommendations on
processes to

implement the system.

CONSULTATION ON CODE OF
RECOMMENDED PRACTICE ON
LOCAL AUTHORITY PUBLICITY

The Cabinet and The Overview and
Scrutiny Panel (Service Support)
has endorsed the contents of a
suggested response to a
consultation paper issued by the
Department of Communities and
Local Government on proposed
changes to the Code of
Recommended Practice on Local
Authority Publicity. The Code was
first issued in 1988 to cover the
content, style, distribution and cost
of local authority publicity, from
public meetings to council
publications, advertising and the
website. In reviewing the Code,
Members have recorded their
concern that it offers no specific
guidance in relation to individual
Ward Members who may not hold a
particular responsibility with the
Council, but whose work with their
constituents is  of  significant
importance, nor addresses the
growth in electronic communication.

The  Service  Support Panel
expressed the view that there is a
greater need for awareness and
compliance with the Code, since
failure to have regard to the Code is
a potential breach of the Members’
Code of Conduct. Members also
noted that it was the County

Edition 93
Council’'s practice when issuing
press releases to include the

contact details of a spokesperson of
the opposition political party. The
Executive Councillor for Resources
and Policy undertook to consider
this suggestion in the case of press
releases issued by the District
Council.

MONITORING OF SECTION 106
(PLANNING OBLIGATIONS)

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel
(Service Support) have considered
the receipt and expenditure of
money negotiated under Section
106 Agreements by the Council.
The Panel have been informed that
a number of developers have
requested the re-negotiation of
trigger points due to the economic
climate.

FEES AND CHARGES

The Licensing and Protection Panel
has noted the revised fees and
charges for those licences etc.
issued by the Central Services
Directorate. = The licences have
been increased by 3% for the period
1st April 2009 to 31st March 2010.
The initial issue and subsequent
renewal of hackney carriage and
private hire vehicle licences will also
increase by an additional £9 in line
with an increased charge by the
vehicle testing centre.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORT
CONSULTATION ON IMPROVING
ACCESS TO TAXIS

The Licensing Manager has been
authorised, following consultation
with  the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman of the Licensing Panel to

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section 7 (01480) 388007

page 5

271



Edition 93

respond to a consultation paper on
improving access to taxis, which has
been issued by the Department of
Transport in relation to the 1995
Disability Discrimination Act.

HACKNEY CARRIAGE LICENCES

The Licensing and Protection Panel
has decided to  discontinue
restricting the number of hackney
carriage licences in line with the
findings of a consultation exercise
on the possible de-limitation of
licensed hackney carriages.

Following the implementation date,
which has yet to be decided, any
new licences issued will be
restricted to wheelchair accessible
vehicles only, in line with the
Governments’ vision of seamless
travel for wheelchair users.

The Huntingdonshire Traffic
Management Area Joint Committee
will consider, if as a consequence of
the de-limitation, there is a need for
additional taxi ranks.

THE ENVIRONMENTAL DAMAGE

(PREVENTION AND
REMEDIATION) REGULATIONS
2009

The Licensing and Protection Panel
has authorised Officers to enforce
the provisions of the Environmental
Damage (Prevention and
Remediation) Regulations 2009 on
behalf of the Council. They also
have endorsed a memorandum of
understanding on partnership
working drawn up to assist the
implementation of the Regulations.
The Regulations place a liability on
operators of activities that cause
environmental damage to land,

Decision Digest

water and biodiversity (ie. protected
species, natural habitats etc).
Although the events covered by the
Regulations are likely to be rare
there will be a need for
environmental health staff to be
trained to ensure they are able to
respond in the event of an incident.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
ACT 1990

The Licensing and Protection Panel
has authorised the Head of
Environmental and  Community
Health Services to declare two
areas of land in the District as
contaminated.

SI06 AGREEMENT ADVISORY
GROUP

The Development Control Panel has
appointed Councillor J S Watt to
replace Councillor A N Gilbert in the
membership of the S106 Agreement
Advisory Group.

ENFORCEMENT ACTION

The Head of Legal, Property and
Governance has been authorised by
the Development Control Panel to
secure the cessation of the
unauthorised use of land by
travellers at Harpers Drove, Ramsey
Heights and the removal of
caravans and a mobile home from
the site.

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

At its March meeting, the
Development Control Panel
determined eight applications of
which five were approved, two
refused and one delegated to the
Head of Planning Services to

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section & (01480) 388007

page 6

272



Decision Digest

determine, having regard to a
decision by Cambridgeshire County
Council relating to an archaeological
investigation.

STANDARDS (CONSIDERATION
AND HEARING) SUB-COMMITTEE

The Standards Committee has
appointed its Chairman, Mr D L Hall,
Councillors J D Ablewhite and Mrs B
E Boddington, Parish Councillor M J
Reece and Mr P Boothman to
comprise a Consideration and
Hearing Sub-Committee which will
consider investigation reports and
hold determination hearings arising

from complaints of misconduct
under the Members' Code of
Conduct.

MONITORING - STANDARDS
ISSUES

The Standards Committee has
noted that five cases involving

complaints of misconduct have been
considered recently by its Referrals
(Assessment) Sub-Committee but
that no action was required to be
taken by the Monitoring Officer in
each case.

The Committee continues to monitor
the enquiries dealt with by the
Monitoring Officer under the Code.
The areas of the Code which appear
to raise most interest will help form
the basis of future training sessions
for Parish Councils. Informal
training of the Standards Committee
has continued with Members
discussing current Standards Board
guidance on personal and
prejudicial interests.

Edition 93

CASE TRIBUNALS (ENGLAND)
REGULATIONS 2008

The Standards Committee has
noted the effect of the Case
Tribunals (England) Regulations
2008 which principally refer to the
sanctions available to the
Adjudication Panel for England
where it has determined that a local
authority Member has failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct.

ETHICAL STANDARDS REGIME
NATIONALLY AND LOCALLY

The Standards Committee has
enjoyed a wide ranging debate on
standards issues prompted by an
address to them from Councillor P J
Downes. Councillor | C Bates will
similarly be invited to present to a
future meeting.

QUALITY STATUS FOR PARISH
COUNCILS

Although pleased to note that
adoption of the code of conduct
formed one of the standards
required by local councils if they
were to acquire quality status under
the Quality Parish and Town Council
scheme, the Standards Committee
were disappointed that there was no
subsequent requirement for
refresher training or any way in

which they could influence the
introduction of this continuing
commitment.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REPORT:
USE OF RESOURCES 2007/08

The External Auditor’'s Report on the
Council's Use of Resources for
2007/08 has been presented to the
Corporate Governance Panel

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section 7 (01480) 388007

page 7

273



Edition 93

together with the associated action
plan. The report concluded that the
Council's overall performance was
satisfactory.

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE:
INTERIM PROGRESS REPORT

The Corporate Governance Panel
has noted progress by the Internal
Audit Service against the Audit Plan
for 2008/09 and the performance
standards achieved.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE
EFFECTIVENESS OF THE
SYSTEM OF INTERNAL AUDIT

The outcome of a review of the
effectiveness of the system of
internal audit has been presented to
the Corporate Governance Panel.
Details of the review will be included
within the Annual Governance
Statement Assurance Framework.
The next review of the Internal Audit
Service against CIPFA’s Code of
Audit Practice will be conducted in
2011.

RISK REGISTER
The Corporate Governance Panel

has noted the changes made to the
Risk Register between the period

1st September 2008 to 28th
February 2009 inclusive.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK

Progress made to date in respect of
the achievement of the action plan
supporting the Annual Governance
Statement has been noted by the
Corporate Governance Panel.

Decision Digest

REVIEW OF
CONSTITUTION

COUNCIL

The Corporate Governance Panel
has undertaken its biennial review of
the Constitution and recommended
a series of changes for submission
to the Council.

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PANEL

A special meeting of the Corporate
Governance Panel has been
scheduled for 16th April 2009 to
consider the outcome of the review
of the Council's democratic structure
by the Structure Review Working
Group.

ELECTORAL CYCLE
HUNTINGDONSHIRE

IN

The Elections Panel has considered

the outcome of an internal
consultation exercise on the
Council’s future electoral

arrangements. Following discussion
on the way forward, Members
agreed to make no change to the
existing arrangements, although this
was not a unanimous Vview.
Members also requested an
investigation be undertaken via the
Department for Communities and
Local Government as to whether
elections for the multi member
wards could be held on the same
day every four years.

PARISH ELECTORAL REVIEW -
UPDATE

The Council are still awaiting
confirmation from the Department
for  Communities and Local
Government on the effective date of

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section & (01480) 388007

page 8

274



Decision Digest Edition 93

the  Huntingdonshire  (Parishes)
Order 2009 which proposes the
abolition of one parish, five new
parishes and other changes to
parish boundaries that resulted from
the parish electoral review of the
District.

Further information can be obtained from the Democratic Services Section 7 (01480) 388007

page 9

275



This page is intentionally left blank

276



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN
	4 REVIEW OF THE HOME-LINK SCHEME AND THE COUNCIL'S LETTINGS POLICY
	Home-Link - Lettings Policy Review Report Appendix

	5 SPORTS FACILITIES STRATEGY
	Sports Facilities Strategy - Version 7

	6 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS TO ST IVES TOWN CENTRE
	8 REVIEW OF DEMOCRATIC STRUCTURE
	9 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007 - IMPLICATIONS FOR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
	10 NHS CAMBRIDGESHIRE STRATEGIC PLAN 2009 - 2014
	11 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SERVICE DELIVERY) - PROGRESS
	12 SCRUTINY

